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Washington, D.C. 20549
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or
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Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(b) tife Act:

Name of each exchange
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant éf tiled all reports required to be filed by Sectid or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of4
during the preceding 12 months (or for such shqrégiod that the registrant was required to filehsteports), and (2) has been subject to suclhy
requirements for the past 90 days. Y&b No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant hdsnitted electronically and posted on its corpolateb site, if any, every Interactive Data |
required to be submitted and posted pursuant te R of Regulation $-during the preceding 12 months (or for such sngreriod that the registr:
was required to submit and post such files). Y&s No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquilerrs pursuant to Item 405 of RegulatiorkSs not contained herein, and will not be contdirte the
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Large accelerated filerf] Accelerated filer [J Non-accelerated filer(J Smaller reporting company
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantdbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Brgle Act). Yes[O No X

The aggregate market value of voting stock heldday-affiliates of the registrant on May 31, 2012wW637,684,763including 10,839,351 shares
by the registrant’s grantor stock ownership trust excluding 27,214,174 shares held in treasury.

There were 77,221,785 shares of the registrantisnoon stock, par value $1.00 per share, outstanminBecember 31, 2012. The registrargranto
stock ownership trust held an additional 10,615 8%#res of the registrant’'s common stock on thigt da
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PART |
Item 1. BUSINESS

General

KB Home is one of the largest and most recognizeddbuilding companies in the U.S. and has beedihgihomes for more than 50 ye.
We construct and sell homes through our operativigidns under the name KB Home. Unless the coriteditates otherwise, the terms “we,”
“our” and “us” used in this report refer to KB HopgeDelaware corporation, and its predecessorsapsidiaries.

Beginning in 1957 and continuing until 1986, ousimess was conducted by various subsidiaries ofrKau and Broad, Inc. (“KBI"and it¢
predecessors. In 1986, KBI transferred all of @mkbuilding and mortgage banking operations té&srtly after the transfer, we completec
initial public offering of 8% of our common stockébegan operating under the name Kaufman and Bfoate Corporation. In 1989, we w
spuneff from KBI, which then changed its name to Brdad., and we became an independent public compg@rating primarily in Californ
and France. In 2001, we changed our name to KB Hdmeéay, having sold our French operations in 200 ,operate a homebuilding ¢
financial services business serving homebuyersiiious markets across the U.S.

Our homebuilding operations offer a variety of neemes designed primarily for first-time, moup-and active adult homebuyers, incluc
attached and detached single-family residentialésyrownhomes and condominiums. We offer homegweldpment communities, at urban in-
fill locations and as part of mixed-use projectstHis report, we use the term “home” to refer wirayle-family residence, whether it is a single-
family home or other type of residential properpnd we use the term “community® refer to a single development in which homes
constructed as part of an integrated plan.

Through our homebuilding reporting segments, wevedetd 6,282 homes at an average selling price2d6500during the year end
November 30, 201, compared to 5,812 homes delivered at an averltijegsprice of $224,600 during the year ended Nwober 30, 2011 Oul
homebuilding operations represent most of our @ssinaccounting for 99.3% of our total revenue20ib2and 99.2% of our total revenue:
2011.

Our financial services reporting segment providesiiance services to our homebuyers in the samketaavhere we build homesnc
provides title services in the majority of our matklocated within our Central and Southeast hoitdhg reporting segment$n addition, sinc
the third quarter of 2011, this segment has eareeenues pursuant to the terms of a marketing sEs\agreement with a preferred mort
lender that offers mortgage banking services, dioly mortgage loan originations, to our homebuyefur financial services operatic
accounted for .7% of our total revenues in 2012.806 of our total revenues in 2011 .

In 2012 , we generated total revenues of $1.5®biknd a net loss of $59.0 million , comparedotaltrevenues of $1.32 billicand a ne
loss of $178.8 million in 2011 .

Our principal executive offices are located at 1MMilshire Boulevard, Los Angeles, California 9002¢e telephone number of «
corporate headquarters is (310) 28100 and our primary website address is www.kbhoome. In addition, community location and informa
is available at (888) KB-HOMES.

Markets

Reflecting the geographic reach of our homebuildinginess, as of the date of this report, our paloperations are in the 10 states an
major markets presented below. We also operataiiows submarkets within these major markets. Eponting purposes, we organize
homebuilding operations into four segments — Wes s, Southwest, Central and Southeast.
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Segment State(s) Major Market(s)
West Coast California Fresno, Los Angeles, Madera, Oakland, Orange CoRngrside, Sacramento, San Bernardino, San Diego
San Jose, Santa Rosa-Petaluma, Stockton, Ventdréiudra City

Southwest  Arizona Phoenix and Tucson
Nevada Las Vegas and Reno
New Mexico Albuquerque

Central Colorado Denver
Texas Austin, Dallas/Fort Worth, Houston and San Antonio

Southeast Florida Daytona Beach, Fort Myers, Jacksonville, Lakel@dando, Sarasota and Tampa
Maryland Washington, D.C.
North Carolina Raleigh
Virginia Washington, D.C.

Segment Operating Informatiomhe following table presents certain operating rimfation for our homebuilding reporting segmentstfe
years endeNovember 30, 2012 , 2011 and 2010 :

Years Ended November 30,

2012 2011 2010

West Coast:

Homes delivered 1,94¢ 1,757 2,02:

Percentage of total homes delivered 31% 30% 27%

Average selling price $ 388,30( % 335,50 % 346,30(

Total revenues (in millions) (a) $ 755.: % 589.. % 700.7
Southwest:

Homes delivered 683 843 1,15(

Percentage of total homes delivered 11% 15% 16%

Average selling price $ 193,90 $ 165,80 $ 158,20(

Total revenues (in millions) (a) $ 1322 $ 139.¢ $ 187.7
Central:

Homes delivered 2,56¢€ 2,15¢ 2,66

Percentage of total homes delivered 41% 37% 36%

Average selling price $ 170,10 $ 171,50 $ 163,70(

Total revenues (in millions) (a) $ 436.2 % 369.7 $ 436.2
Southeast:

Homes delivered 1,08¢ 1,057 1,51(

Percentage of total homes delivered 17% 18% 21%

Average selling price $ 206,20 $ 195,50 $ 170,20(

Total revenues (in millions) (a) $ 224 % 206.€ % 257.(
Total:

Homes delivered 6,28 5,81 7,34¢€

Average selling price $ 246,50 $ 224,60( $ 214,50(

Total revenues (in millions) (a) $ 1,548.: $ 1,305t % 1,581.¢

(a) Total revenues include revenues from housing amdl $ale:

Unconsolidated Joint VentureThe above table does not include homes deliveredh funconsolidated joint ventures in which
participate. These unconsolidated joint venturepiime and develop land and, in some cases, buiddafiver homes on the land develo)
Over the last five years, we have reduced the numibkomebuilding joint ventures in which we paipiite. Our unconsolidated joint ventt
delivered no homes in 2012 , one home in 2011 1&2chomes in 2010 .
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Strategy

Since 1997, we have operated our homebuilding basifiollowing the principles of an operational bess model that we call KBn
KBnxt provides the core framework under which weéhastablished our main operational objectivesraatterm strategic goals. We beli¢
the principles of KBnxt set us apart from othegé&production homebuilders and provide the foundsafor our long-term growth.

KBnxt . With KBnxt, we seek to generate greater operaéfigiencies and return on investment through sciglined, factbased an
procesddriven approach to homebuilding that is founded aorwonstant and systematic assessment of consuretargmirces and marl
opportunities. The key principles of KBnxt inclutte following:

e gaining a detailed understanding of consumer lonatind home design and interior/exterior desigimopreferences through regt
surveys and research. In this report and elsewhereefer to our home designs and design optiomsia¥products;”

¢ managing our working capital and reducing our ofegaisks by acquiring primarily developed andited land at reasonable price:
preferred markets with perceived high growth postrthat meet our investment return and market tipmshg (or “marketing)
standards ;

e using our knowledge of consumer preferences t@desifer, construct and deliver products that hionyers desir

* in general, commencing construction of a home aifigr a purchase contract has been signed andnpratiy credit approval has be
received;

e building a backlog of net orders and minimizing tlyele time from initial construction to delivery lsomes to custome
« establishing an even flow of production of higiality homes at the lowest possible cost;

« offering customers affordable base prices and gpodunity to customize their homes through chaitécation within a communit
elevation and floor plans, and choices for desjgfioas at our KB Home Studios.

While we consider KBnxt to be integral to our siecen the homebuilding industry, there have bestaites where market conditions F
made it necessary, in our view, to temporarily devifrom certain of its principles. For exampletiates we have been unable to maintai
even flow production of homes in a particular dreaause of slow sales activity. Also, in specifigeted communities with strong demand
have started construction on a small number of Isobbedore a corresponding purchase contract wagaigmmore quickly meet the deliv:
expectations of homebuyers and generate revenbeseTand other markdtiven circumstances may arise in the future aad les to mak
specific short-term shifts from the principles dBit.

Operational ObjectivesGuided by KBnxt, our main areas of operationalfoare as follows:

« Asset Positioning We seek to maintain a lorigrm growth platform of new home communities thiodgnd and land developm:
investments that enable us to own or control actsted three-tfive year supply of developed or developable landoieferre:
locations in our served markets. We manage this/thrplatform through an ongoing allocation of res@s to capitalize on identifi
opportunities, which may involve withdrawing andhltecating resources from underperforming markgfe also will expand ar
contract our geographic footprint and corresponda@spurce commitments over time in line with hogsimarket conditions, particula
prevailing and expected levels of home sales agtivi

« Product Sales and Customer Satisfactidfe aim to generate sales volume and high leetasiomer satisfaction by providing the |
combination of value, quality and choice in homed design options along with attentive service o @are customers — firsime,
move-up and active adult homebuyers. In addition to foeus on operating from new home communities iraative locations, w
believe we stand out from other homebuilders asdleehomes through our distinct Built to Order™ rapgh to homebuying and ¢
longstanding commitment to sustainability. With Bud Order, we offer customers affordable baseqwiand the opportunity
significantly customize the floor plans and desigrions for their new homes. With our homes, we alfer several standard featt
and options that are among the most energy- anerwticient commercially available. These featured aptions provide increas
value to our homebuyers by helping to lower thatre¢ cost of homeownership over time.

« Organizational and Production EfficiencyWe strive to enhance our performance by aligming management resources, persc
levels and overhead costs with our growth platfogaies activity expectations and business needsbwstreamlining and constar
improving, to the extent possible, our home comsiton process. In addition to even flow
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production scheduling, our home construction predesludes developing and refining a set of vaugineered home designs in w
that allow us to meet the needs of consumers igriaty of different markets, shorten cycle timed &wer direct construction costs
also includes taking advantage of economies oednatontracting for building materials and skilkealde labor.

Near-Term Strategic GoalsAs 2012 unfolded, the overall housing market stabimcreasing signs that it had stabilized and neegverin
from the severe and widespread downturn that begand-2006, and some stronger housing markets experiesustdined positive moment
in sales activity and selling prices. Optimistiattithe housing recovery could be at the beginnih@ mew upward business cycle
homebuilding, but mindful of the several challenégsng housing markets, we continued to execut¢herfollowing three primary integrat
strategic goals that have been our focus duringdiséfew years of the housing downturn:

« achieving and maintaining profitability at the scaf prevailing market conditions, our highest ptjoin 2012
e generating cash and strengthening our balance; stre
e positioning our business to capitalize on futur@ngh opportunitie:

In pursuing these goals, we have broadly transfdramel refocused the scope, scale and position robaginess both geographically
operationally, compared to the peak pmising downturn years of the prior decade, to attaphanging housing market dynamics and vo
home sales activity. Several housing markets egpeeid challenging conditions during the housingram, which was deepened and extel
by the negative impacts of the 20R@O9 economic recession and subsequent slow rgcametuding high unemployment; sluggish econc
growth; weak consumer confidence; elevated resaleransumer mortgage loan delinquencies, defamitsforeclosures; turbulent financial |
credit markets and tight mortgage lending standaru$ practices. These factors, to varying degr&ds affect housing markets. Given -
difficult homebuilding environment, we, among otltleings, shifted resources from underperformingsute markets offering perceived hic
growth prospects, particularly laminstrained locations in coastal areas of Califorand in Texas, to maintain a solid growth platf
implemented measures to generate and conservetlmasigh reduced spending and asset sales, strengtirebalance sheet, improve
operating efficiencies and lower our overhead c@std redesigned and re-engineered our products.

While these efforts to refocus our operations dbated to reduced inventory levels, lower commuityints, and declines in our back
deliveries and revenues, and we posted operatssg$p we believe they have strengthened our ovrrsilhess relative to where we stood a
outset of the housing downturn and have positiomedo operate profitably to the extent there istiooled progress in the present hou
recovery. We generated net income in the secorfdoié®012 and our fulifear deliveries and revenues were each higher ith@®911. Ir
addition, our backlog at November 30, 2012, in &h both homes and potential future housing regsnwas significantly higher than
backlog at November 30, 2011. We expect our comipwount to increase in 2013 largely as a resu#t laind acquisition initiative we begar
late 2009 and accelerated in 2012, and the invesgsme land and land development we plan to make0ib3. We use the terntdmmunity
count”to refer to the number of new home communities aeetopen for sales in a given period, and forrdyp®rt our community count refle
as of a given period or date the number of our heme communities with at least one home left tb sel

Encouraged by the results of our efforts to repmsithe company during the housing downturn andsteadily emerging indications dur
2012 that the housing market is now past stabitinaind into recovery, in the latter part of 2002, expanded our primary integrated strat
goals to target both profitability and growing dowsiness and, among other things, implementecotioaving initiatives:

« Building on our focused geographic and operatigaitioning strategy of the past few years by aggjvely investing in land and la
development, subject to our investment return araaketing standards, in highperforming, choice locations that feature hig
household incomes within our core homebuyer denpdgca These consumers are more likely to chooggetdrome sizes and purch
more design options, key drivers for our home sgllprices and housing gross profit margins. Thiestment orientation, which
began in late 2009, yielded improved results in2@bntributing to our higher revenues and avesskng prices. During 2012, \
invested approximately $565 million in land anddatevelopment.

«  Optimizing our assets by increasing revenues perhmgne community open for sales through an intéosgs on sales performance
continued improvement in our product offerings,luding our energy- and water-efficient product dffgs, to meet highercome
consumerstlemand for larger home sizes and more design aptidie consider a community that has one or moreekdett to sell ¢
the end of a quarter to be a “new home communigndpr sales.”

« Broadening our performing asset base by activatiedgain inventory in stabilizing markets that waswvously held for futur
development. In 2012, we identified 21 communit@sactivation, primarily in Florida and Arizonagpresenting
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more than 1,000 lots. We expect to generate dédwand to realize the associated revenues frose thetivated assets in 2013.

e Bringing additional resources to targeted markdtenre we operate to further strengthen our locéd firanagement teams and ta
where appropriate, while leveraging our existinfjastructure and carefully managing overhead casthelp ensure the effective ¢
efficient execution of our strategic initiatives. 2012, we expanded our management teams in Nor@eifornia, Southern Califorr
and Central Texas to provide heightened attentidey submarkets within those regions.

In 2013, we intend to continue and may expand anstategic growth initiatives, subject to condigoin the housing markets, the ove
economy and the capital, credit and financial marke

Promotional Marketing StrategyOur promotional marketing efforts are centeredlifferentiating the KB Home brand in the mindsooi
core homebuyer demographic from resale homes amd frew homes sold by other homebuilders. Thesetgffocreasingly involve usi
interactive Internebased applications, social media channels and res®@and other technologies. We believe that oult BuOrder messag
and approach generate a high perceived value fopmducts and our company among consumers andrageie among largproductior
homebuilders. In marketing our Built to Order amio, we emphasize how we partner with our homeButgercreate a home built to tt
individual preferences in design, layout, squargdge and lot location, and give them the abilitysignificantly customize their home w
design options that suit their needs and interéstsssence, Built to Order serves as the constanerof core elements of our KBnxt operatic
business model and is designed to ensure thatroargbional marketing strategy and advertising cagmsare closely aligned with our ove
operational focus. For greater consistency with mmamotional marketing messages and in the exetwticour Built to Order approach, 1
selling of our homes is carried out byhnuse teams of sales representatives and othempetsvho work personally with each homebuyse
create a home that meets the homebuyer's prefesameebudget.

Our KB Home Studios are a key component of thetBoiOrder experience we offer to our homebuyers faip increase the revenues
generate from home sales. These showrooms, whietgamerally located close to our new home comnamitipen for sales, allow «
homebuyers to select from a wide variety of desigtions that are available for purchase as pattt@briginal construction of their homes. °
coordinated efforts of our sales representativelskd® Home Studio consultants are intended to geedrigher customer satisfaction and le¢
enhanced customer retention and referrals.

Sustainability. We have made a dedicated effort to further diffiéiate ourselves from other homebuilders and eelsaimnes through o
ongoing commitment to become a leading nationalpzom in environmental sustainability. Under thisnooitment, we:

« refined our products to reduce the amount of bagdnaterials needed to construct them, and hawntsteps to reduce construc
waste;

e build all of our new homes to U.S. EnvironmerRabtection Agency’s (‘EPA”) ENERGY STAR®tandard:
* build an increasing percentage of our homesdetrthe U.S. EPA’s Watersensefiecifications for water use efficien
*  build our homes with Watersense labeled fixtt

« developed an Energy Performance Guide®, or EPB&, informs our homebuyers of the relative eneefficiency (and relate
estimated monthly energy costs and potential eneggy savings) of each of our homes as designegaea to typical new ai
existing homes; and

« introduced negero energy design options, in a program calledHeuse 2.0™, in select mark

This commitment and the related initiatives we hawplemented stem in part from growing sensitigtend regulatory attention to
potential impact that the construction and useasfidgss can have on the environment, and from our boyees’interest in reducing this imp:
and in lowering their consumption of energy andevatsources and their utility bills. More inforrioett about our sustainability commitment
be found in our annual sustainability reports, Whiee have published on our website since 2008.8fe, dve are the only national homebui
to publish a comprehensive annual sustainabilippre As we see environmental issues related tsihgubecoming increasingly importan
consumers and government authorities at all lewgés,intend to continue to research, evaluate aildeunew or improved products &
construction and business practices consistent evithcommitment. In addition to making good businesnse, we believe our sustainak
initiatives can help put us in a better positioompared to resales and homebuilders with teasloped programs, to comply with evolving Ic
state and federal rules and regulations intendgddiect natural resources and to address clintetege and similar environmental concerns.
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Customer Service and Quality Control

Customer satisfaction is a high priority for us.r@oal is for our customers to be 100% satisfiethwheir new homes. Our asite
construction supervisors perform regular plasing quality checks and our sales representativaintain regular contact with our homebu
during the home construction process in an efforérisure our homes meet our standards and our hgersbexpectations. We believe «
prompt and courteous responses to homebuyers’ ribealgghout the homebuying process help reducegbasing repair costs, enhance
reputation for quality and service, and help enagarrepeat and referral business from homebuyertharreal estate community. We also |
employees who are responsible for responding toshoyers’ post-closing needs, including warrantynua

We provide a limited warranty on all of our hom&ke specific terms and conditions vary dependinghenmarket where we do busini
We generally provide a structural warranty of 1@nge a warranty on electrical, heating, coolinginbing and other building systems €
varying from two to five years based on geograpiécket and state law, and a warranty of one yeastfeer components of a home.

Local Expertise

To maximize KBnxt$ effectiveness and help ensure its consistenuérac our employees are continuously trained omi¢Brinciples an
are evaluated based on their achievement of reley@grational objectives. We also believe that lousiness requires itlepth knowledge
local markets in order to acquire land in prefedahtions and on favorable terms, to engage sukamiors, to develop communities that n
local demand, to anticipate consumer tastes infspatarkets, and to assess local regulatory emvirents. Accordingly, we operate our busil
through divisions with trained personnel who haweal market expertise. We have experienced managet@@ms in each of our divisio
Though we centralize certain functions (such asnptdnal marketing, legal, purchasing administmtiproduct development, architecture
accounting) to benefit from economies of scale, mmal management exercises considerable autonemigentifying land acquisitic
opportunities, developing and implementing prodgud sales strategies, and controlling costs.

Community Development and Land Inventory Management

Our community development process generally cansistour phases: land acquisition, land develogimesme construction and deliver
Historically, our community development process easyed from six to 24 months in our West Coastread, with a somewhat shorter dura
in our other homebuilding segments. The commundyetbpment process varies based on, among othagsththe extent of governm
approvals required, the overall size of a particaelammunity, necessary site preparation activitibe, type of product(s) that will be offer
weather conditions, promotional marketing resatgsumer demand and local and general economib@rging market conditions.

Although they vary significantly in size and comytg, our communities typically consist of 50 to@#ts ranging in size from 2,200
13,000 square feet. In our communities, we typjcaffer from three to 15 home design choices. W @enerally build one to three mc
homes at each community so that prospective buyanspreview various products available. Dependingthe community, we may off
premium lots containing more square footage, betésvs and/or location benefits.

The following table summarizes our community caargach of our homebuilding reporting segments:

As of November 30, West Coast Southwest Central Southeast Total
2012 46 17 91 37 19
2011 72 25 93 44 23

Land Acquisition and Land Developmente continuously evaluate land acquisition oppottasias they arise against our investment r
and marketing standards, balancing competing nieedmancial strength, liquidity and land invenydior future growth. When we acquire la
we generally focus on land parcels containing fethan 250 lots that are fully entitled for residehtonstruction and are either physic
developed to start home construction (referredsttfinished lots”)or partially finished. Acquiring finished or pattiafinished lots enables us
construct and deliver homes with minimal additiodalelopment work or expenditures. We believe thia more efficient way to use «
working capital and reduces the operating risk®cated with having to develop and/or entitle lasd¢ch as unforeseen improvement ¢
and/or changes in market conditions. However, ddipgnon market conditions and available opportesitincluding opportunities to sec
certain finished lots, we may acquire undevelopadf@ unentitled land. We expect that the overalabce of undeveloped, unentitled, enti
and finished lots in our inventory will vary ovéme, and in implementing our strategic growth atities, we may acquire a greater proportic
undeveloped or unentitled land in the future.
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Consistent with our KBnxt operational business nhodee target geographic areas for potential lanquisitions and communi
development, based on the results of periodic gsred both new and resale homebuyers in particolarkets, prevailing local econor
conditions, the supply and type of homes availdbtesale, and other research activities. Locakhadnse land acquisition specialists ana
specific geographic areas to identify desirablel laoquisition targets or to evaluate whether tpaie of an existing land interest. We alsc
studies performed by thindarty specialists. Using this internal and extedsth, some of the factors we consider in evalgdéind acquisitio
targets are consumer preferences; general ecormmnititions; prevailing and expected home saleviaictand the selling prices and pric
trends of comparable new and resale homes in thctusubmarket; proximity to metropolitan areasl @mployment centers; populati
household formation and employment and commeraiavth patterns; household income levels; availgbitif developable land parcels
reasonable cost, including estimated costs of cetimgl land development and selling homes; our djperal scale and experience in the sul
submarket; and environmental compliance matters.

We generally structure our land acquisitions andl ldevelopment activities to minimize, or to defiee timing of, expenditures, whi
enhances our returns associated with laatated investments. While we use a variety oféhes to accomplish this, we typically use corg
that give us an option or similar right to acquaead at a future date, usually at a predeterminmégk @nd for a small initial option or earr
money deposit payment. These contracts may alsuifpes to partially develop the underlying landoprto our acquisition. We refer to le
subject to such option or similar rights as beiogntrolled.” Our decision to exercise a particular land optiorsimilar right is based on t
results of due diligence and continued market litglanalysis we conduct after entering into a cact. In some cases, our decision to exerc
land option or similar right may be conditionedtbe land seller obtaining necessary entitlemenish s zoning rights and environmental
development approvals, and/or physically developlirgunderlying land by a pre-determined date.

In addition, we may acquire land under contractt ttondition our acquisition obligation on our skction with the feasibility «
developing the subject land and selling homes enahd by a certain future date, consistent withiouestment return and marketing stand:
Our land option contracts and other similar congraway also allow us to phase our land acquisiteordor land development over a perio
time and/or upon the satisfaction of certain cood#. We may also acquire land with seller finagdimat is norrecourse to us, or by working
conjunction with thirdparty land developers. The use of these land ogtbortracts and other similar contracts generaliynal us to reduce tl
market risks associated with direct land ownersing development, and to reduce our capital andidinhcommitments, including interest
other carrying costs.

Our land option contracts and other similar corngragenerally do not contain provisions requiring specific performance. Howev
depending on the circumstances, our initial optiorearnest money deposit may or may not be refladabus if we abandon the related |
option contract or other similar contract and do camplete the acquisition of the underlying lahd addition, if we abandon a land opt
contract or other similar contract, we usually canrecover the praequisition costs we incurred after we entered theocontract, includir
those related to our due diligence and other etialuactivities and/or partial development of thiject land, if any.

Before we commit to any land acquisition, our seeiarporate and regional management evaluate tet hased on the results of our i
specialists’ due diligence, thiparty data and a set of defined financial measunefding, but not limited to, housing gross prafiargir
analyses and specific discounted, aftercash flow internal rate of return requiremefitse criteria guiding our land acquisition and disitior
decisions have resulted in our maintaining inventorareas that we believe generally offer betétunns for lower risk and lower our upfr
investment in inventory.

Our inventories include land we are holding forufet development, which is comprised of land wheeshave suspended developn
activity or development has not yet begun but jgeexed to occur in the future. These assets heltlfore development are located in vari
submarkets where conditions do not presently sudpather investment or development, or are subjeca building permit moratorium
regulatory restrictions, or are portions of larggrd parcels that we plan to build out over sevgears and/or parcels that have not yet
entitled and, therefore, have an extended developtireeline. Land we are holding for future devetamnt also includes land where we
deferred development activity based on our beleft twe can generate greater returns and/or maxithigeeconomic performance o
community by delaying improvements for a periodtiofe to allow earlier phases of a long-term, mphase community or a neighbor
community to generate sales momentum or for madeeditions to improve.

The following table presents the number of inventlmts we owned, in various stages of development;ontrolled under land opti
contracts and other similar contracts in our horilding reporting segments as of November 30, 20d@ 2011. The table does not inclu
approximately 326 acres owned as of November 302 20id November 30, 201hat are not currently expected to be approveddddivisior
into lots.
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Homes Under Total Land
Construction and Land Land Held for Future Land Under Owned or
Under Development Development Option Under Option
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

West Coast 2,89¢ 3,42¢ 3,93¢ 4,102 3,61 1,491 10,44¢ 9,017
Southwest 1,27¢ 1,01: 7,745 8,21¢ 534 33 9,552 9,26¢
Central 7,85¢ 7,681 2,05t 1,831 4,61z 3,21¢ 14,52¢ 12,73:
Southeast 1,92: 1,12¢ 4,93¢ 5,567 3,37( 2,46¢ 10,22¢ 9,15¢
Total 13,95¢ 13,24: 18,66¢ 19,72¢ 12,12¢ 7,204 44.75: 40,17(

Reflecting our geographic diversity and relativblanced operational footprint, as of NovemberZL2 , 23%of the inventory lots w
owned or controlled were located in our West Cdashebuilding reporting segment, 21%ere in our Southwest homebuilding repor
segment, 33% were in our Central homebuilding réppisegment and 23% were in our Southeast honmdibgiteporting segment.

The following table presents the carrying valuényentory we owned, in various stages of develogmencontrolled under land opti
contracts and other similar contracts in our horiiéimg reporting segments as of November 30, 20422011 (in thousands):

Homes Under Total Land
Construction and Land Land Held for Future Land Under Owned or
Under Development Development Option Under Option
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

West Coast $ 47165( $ 508,73: $ 337,22¢ $ 344,70. $ 33,71¢ % 62,37C $ 842,59° $ 915,80:
Southwest 63,45¢ 66,77( 156,15¢ 163,41: 1,83( 307 221,44! 230,491
Central 292,47! 265,94¢ 21,80¢ 23,08¢ 5,44: 2,83¢ 319,72- 291,86t
Southeast 154,99; 87,14 153,66 195,54 14,15: 10,78 322,80! 293,47(
Total $ 982570 $ 92859. $ 66885 $ 726,74, $ 5514 $ 76,298 $ 1,70657 $ 1,731,62

Home Construction and DeliverieBollowing the acquisition of land and, if necessahe development of the land into finished lotg
typically begin constructing model homes and mankethomes for sale. The time required for constoumcof our homes depends on the wea
time of year, availability of local trade labor abdilding materials and other factors. To minimibe costs and risks of unsold home
production, we generally begin construction of ankomonly when we have a signed purchase contrabtanitomebuyer. However, cancellati
of home purchase contracts prior to the deliverthefunderlying homes, the construction of attagirediucts with some unsold units or spe
strategic considerations, will result in our havirgsold homes in production.

We act as the general contractor for the majoritpur communities and hire experienced subcontradim supply the trade labor anc
procure some of the building materials requiredallbproduction activities. Our contracts with @ubcontractors require that they comply
all laws applicable to their work, including lablaws, meet performance standards, and follow lbeglding codes and permits. We h
established national and regional purchasing progréor certain building materials, appliances,uies and other items to take advantac
economies of scale and garner better pricing ance madiable supply and, where available, parti@piat manufacturers’ or supplierezbat:
programs. At all stages of production, our admiatste and orsite supervisory personnel coordinate the actitiesubcontractors to meet
production schedules and quality standards.

Backlog

We sell our homes under standard purchase contsahtsh generally require a homebuyer to pay a dié@ the time of signing. T
amount of the deposit required varies among maiketiscommunities. Homebuyers also may be requirqrhy additional deposits when tl
select design options for their homes. Most of lname purchase contracts stipulate that if a hormabegncels a contract with us, we have
right to retain the homebuysrdeposits. However, we generally permit our horyefzuto cancel their obligations and obtain refuoidall or ¢
portion of their deposits in the event mortgagarficing cannot be obtained within a certain peribtinoe, as specified in their contract. '
define our cancellation rate in a given periodhestotal number of contracts for new homes canodifdded by the total new (gross) orders
homes during the same period. For further discassfoour cancellation rates and the factors affigcur cancellation rates, see below u
“Iltem 1A. Risk Factors” and “Part Il — Item 7. Magement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Cadiand Results of Operations.”
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Our “backlog”consists of homes that are under a home purchadecbbut have not yet been delivered to a homehugnding backic
represents the number of homes in backlog fromptiegious period plus the number of net orders (neders for homes less cancellatic
generated during the current period minus the numbdomes delivered during the current period. ®acklog at any given time will
affected by cancellations and by our community ¢olihe number of homes delivered has historicailyréased from the first to the for
quarter in any year.

Our backlog at November 30, 2012 consisted of 2[wivies, an increase of 20% from the 2,156 homeadklog at November 30, 2011
Our backlog at November 30, 2012 represented patdature housing revenues of approximately $618iion , a 35%increase from potenti
future housing revenues of approximately $459.0ionilat November 30, 2011resulting from the higher number of homes in begland
higher overall average selling price. Our backiaiip; defined as homes delivered in the quarter garcentage of backlog at the beginning ¢
quarter, will vary from quarter to quarter, depergdon what portion of our backlog is under congtam; and how many unsold homes we |
sell and close within a quarter.

Our net orders for the year ended November 30, 2xk2ased to 6,703 from 6,632 for the year endedelber 30, 201 1representing tt
second consecutive year that fydlar net orders have increased from the previoas. yide value of the net orders we generated fryda
ended November 30, 2012 increased 15% to $1.78rbflom $1.51 billion in the prior year. Our caliagon rate for the year was 31% in 2012
compared to a cancellation rate of 29% in 2011 r. €uncellation rate was 35% in the fourth quarfe2@l2 , compared to 34% the fourtt
quarter of 2011 .

The following tables present homes delivered, mdeis and cancellation rates by homebuilding réppitegment for each quarter dul
the years ended November 30, 2012 and 2011 , anehding backlog at the end of each quarter with@se years:

West Coast Southwest Central Southeast Total
Homes delivered
2012
First 30¢ 17C 487 184 1,15(C
Second 33C 157 53¢ 267 1,29(
Third 541 18¢€ 70C 29¢ 1,72C
Fourth 765 17C 84: 344 2,122
Total 1,94t 68< 2,56¢ 1,08¢ 6,282
2011
First 224 15€ 363 204 94¢
Second 35¢ 18¢ 47¢% 254 1,26¢
Third 524 232 611 23€ 1,60¢
Fourth 65¢€ 27C 70¢€ 363 1,99¢
Total 1,75 84: 2,15¢ 1,057 5,81z
Net orders
2012
First 28¢ 14C 547 221 1,197
Second 60C 22¢ 90C 32C 2,04¢
Third 65¢€ 154 765 32¢ 1,90(C
Fourth 61¢ 14C 48% 31: 1,557
Total 2,16¢ 663 2,691 1,175 6,70:
2011
First 404 20¢€ 44¢ 244 1,30z
Second 542 27C 83¢ 34¢ 1,99¢
Third 581 25¢ 677 321 1,83¢
Fourth 49C 172 517 31t 1,49¢
Total 2,017 907 2,48( 1,22¢ 6,632
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West Coast Southwest Central Southeast Total
Cancellation rates
2012
First 34% 24% 39% 37% 36%
Second 24 17 28 28 26
Third 23 16 35 27 29
Fourth 25 21 47 31 35
Total 26% 19% 37% 30% 31%
2011
First 15% 18% 39% 33% 29%
Second 22 18 29 24 25
Third 27 20 34 30 29
Fourth 28 27 41 33 34
Total 24% 21% 35% 30% 29%
Ending backlog — homes
2012
First 445 178 1,07¢ 50¢ 2,20z
Second 713 24t 1,442 562 2,96:
Third 83C 213 1,507 592 3,14:
Fourth 684 18z 1,14¢ 561 2,57
2011
First 38: 187 77¢ 341 1,68¢
Second 572 274 1,141 43t 2,42
Third 62¢ 301 1,207 52C 2,65
Fourth 465 203 1,01¢ 472 2,15¢
Ending backlog — value, in thousands
2012
First $ 150,63t % 32,13¢  $ 177,99¢ % 99,17¢ % 459,95:
Second 301,65: 43,51¢ 237,55¢ 110,68( 693,40¢
Third 327,52¢ 40,727 251,90( 124,58¢ 744,74
Fourth 248,79( 40,20¢ 204,47 125,15 618,62¢
2011
First $ 126,25¢ % 2797C % 132,16: $ 67,24: $ 353,63
Second 172,14 43,57 199,35( 86,47¢ 501,54
Third 211,36( 51,26: 199,50: 97,20¢ 559,33(
Fourth 161,98 37,07 168,51: 91,38( 458,95(

Land and Raw Materials

Based on our current strategic plans, we striveno or control land sufficient to meet our foreegsproduction goals for the next thre
five years. As discussed above under “Stratey2013 we intend to acquire additional land subjecconditions in the housing markets,
overall economy and the capital, credit and finahgiarkets. However, we may also decide to sethoetand or land interests as part of
marketing strategy or for other reasons.

The principal raw materials used in the constructsd our homes are concrete and forest productadtition, we use a variety of otl
construction materials in the homebuilding procasduding drywall and plumbing and electrical itenWe attempt to enhance the efficienc
our operations by using, where practical, standattimaterials that are commercially available anpetitive terms from a variety of sources
addition, our national and regional purchasing progs for certain building
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materials, appliances, fixtures and other itemsvallis to benefit from large quantity purchase dists and, where available, manufacture
supplier rebates. When possible, we arrange fde putchases of these products at favorable prices fnanufacturers and suppliers. Altho
our purchasing strategies have helped us in neupgtigavorable prices for raw materials, in 2012 encountered higher prices for lum
drywall, concrete and other materials, and labar uincreased residential construction activityd e expect to see additional cost increa:
and as the present housing recovery progressdisassed further below under “Competition, Sea#gn®elivery Mix and Other Factors.”

Customer Financing

Our homebuyers may obtain mortgage financing tahmse our homes from any provider of their chdige.do not directly offer mortga
banking services or originate residential consumertgage loans (“mortgage loan$dy our customers. Prior to late June 2011, KBA tdage
LLC (“KBA Mortgage”), a former unconsolidated mortgage banking joint wenbf a subsidiary of ours and a subsidiary ofkBaihnAmerica
N.A., provided mortgage banking services to a $icgmt proportion of our homebuyers. KBA Mortgageased offering mortgage bank
services after June 30, 2011.

Since the third quarter of 2011, we have had a etats services agreement with a preferred mortdagger that offers mortgage bank
services, including mortgage loan originationsotos homebuyers who elect to use the lender. Thegage banking services are descr
further below under “Part Il — Item 7. Managemeridiscussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ekults of Operations -Financia
Services SegmentQur preferred mortgage lender and its respectiverpaompany are not affiliates of ours or any of subsidiaries. We «
not have any ownership, joint venture or otherregts in or with our preferred mortgage lendertorespective parent company or with res
to the revenues or income that may be generated frar preferred mortgage lender providing mortgbgeking services to, or originati
mortgage loans for, our homebuyers. Until the fgearter of 2012, our preferred mortgage lender Ma#_.ife Home Loans, a division
MetLife Bank, N.A., which announced in January 2@&t it was ceasing to offer forward mortgage laglservices as part of its busines:
March 2012, Nationstar Mortgage LLC (“Nationstab@came our preferred mortgage lender. Nationstgarbaccepting new mortgage |
applications from our homebuyers on May 1, 2012.

Employees

We employ a trained staff of land acquisition spksis, architects, planners, engineers, constnucsupervisors, marketing and s
personnel, and finance and accounting personneplamented as necessary by outside consultants, guite the development of ¢
communities from their conception through the préoral marketing and delivery of completed homes.

At both December 31, 2012 and 2011, we had appeteiyn 1,200 fulltime employees. None of our employees are repreddoy
collective bargaining agreement.

Competition, Seasonality, Delivery Mix and Other Fators

The homebuilding industry and housing market aghllji competitive with respect to selling homesijrgrtrade labor, such as carpent
roofers, electricians and plumbers; and acquirttr@etive developable land. We compete for hometayskilled trade workers and manager
talent and desirable land against numerous hondsjlranging from regional and national firmsnwal local enterprises. As to homebuy
we primarily compete with other homebuilders on tiasis of selling price, community location, avkilidy of financing options, desig
reputation, quality and amenities, including withémger residential development projects contairéegarate sections designed, plannec
developed by such other homebuilders. In additiem,compete for homebuyers against housing alteestther than new homes, incluc
resale homes, apartments, sinfgletily rentals and other rental housing. In certaiarkets and at times when housing demand is kighalsc
compete with other homebuilders and commercial ranaodeling contractors to hire skilled trade lahmimarily on the basis of preexisti
relationships, contract price and volume and ctesty of available work. During the housing downtunany skilled workers left construct
for other industries, and in markets where thers imareased residential construction activity id20the smaller workforce and higher den
for trade labor created shortages of certain skilberkers, driving up costs and/or extending laedefopment and home construction sched
This elevated residential construction activityoateiuused notable increases in the cost of certalditig materials, such as lumber, drywall
concrete, reflecting in part a smaller supplierebasd lower production capacity than existed betioeehousing downturn. In 2012, we also
higher prices for desirable land amid heightenechpmtition with homebuilders and other developerd mvestors, particularly in the land-
constrained areas we are strategically targeting. ekpect these upward trends in construction laboitding materials and land costs
continue, and possibly intensify, in 2013 if andtees present housing recovery progresses andithgreater competition for these resources.

Our performance is affected by seasonal demanddrem housing. Traditionally, there has been nomresumer demand for home purchi
and we tend to generate more net orders in the tmildtespring and early summer months (corresponding tst imfoour second and part of
third quarters) than at other times of the yeathWiur Built to Order approach and typical
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home construction cycle times, this “selling sedsdemand results in our delivering more homes ancrgging higher revenues from |
summer through the fall months (corresponding td phour third and our fourth quarters). On a tigka basis, the winter and early spi
months within our first and part of our second ¢gi@r usually produce the fewest net orders, horebgeded and revenues, and the seque
difference from our fourth quarter to our first gigs can be significant. During the housing downtand in 2012, these seasonal trends
somewhat less pronounced, and our overall net&rtlemes delivered and revenues were generally lthae before the housing downturn.
currently expect the traditional seasonality cyarel its impact on our results to become more prentiif and as the present housing reco
progresses and the housing markets and homebuifdiogtry return to a more normal operating envinent.

In addition to the overall volume of homes we seltl deliver, our results in a given period areificantly affected by the geographic r
of submarkets in which we operate; the number &adacteristics of the new home communities we lugpen for sales in those submarkets;
the products we sell from those communities duthregperiod. While there are some similarities, ehare differences within and between
served markets and submarkets in terms of the igyasize and nature of the new home communitieoperate and the products we offe
consumers. These differences reflect, among oftiregg, local homebuyer preferences; household deapbigs (e.g., large families or workin
professionals; income levels); and geographic conte.g., urban or suburban; availability of reasonapticed finished lots; developm
constraints; residential density), and the shiftd tan occur in these factors over time. Thesetstral factors in each market and submarke
affect the costs we incur and the time it takel®tate, acquire rights to and develop land, opem Im@me communities for sales and market
build homes; the size of our homes; our sellingg®i(including the contribution from homebuygraichases of design options); and the pa
which we sell homes and close out communities. 8fioeg, our results in any given period will fluctelaompared to other periods based ol
proportion of homes delivered from areas with higbe lower selling prices and on the correspondaryd and overhead costs incurre:
generate those deliveries, as well as from ouradveommunity count. In 2012, we targeted openirgyemof our new home communities
sales in higher-performing, choice locations — prathately in land-constrained areas that featughdri household incomes -where
customers are more likely to choose larger homessimd purchase more design options, key drivereuiohome selling prices and hous
gross profit margins. Due in part to this stratdgius, in the second, third and fourth quarter8dif2, we posted favorable year-oyear result
in revenues as we delivered more homes from thadsearkets. At the same time, we had modest yeary@ar growth in net orders in e
period due largely to sequential declines in owgrall community count, as we closed out older comities more quickly than we were able
develop and open new communities in our strategitatgeted areas. In 2013, we plan to continue opraaggh of opening new hol
communities for sales in locations with the abdeseribed demand characteristics, and we anticifrete we will have more new hol
communities open for sales than we did in 2012.

Financing

We do not generally finance the development ofaammunities with project financing. By “project &éincing,”we mean proceeds of lo:
from parties other than land sellers that are $ipatly obtained for, or secured by, particular comnities or other inventory assets. Instead
operations have historically been funded by reflisperations, public debt and equity financingpBnding on market conditions in 2013,
may obtain project financing, or secure externaificing with community or other inventory assett the own or control. We may also arra
or engage in equity or debt capital markets, baak | credit facility, project debt or other finaaciransactions. These transactions may int
repurchases from time to time of our outstandingaenotes or other debt through tender offersharge offers, private exchanges, open m
purchases or other means, and may include potergial issuances of equity or senior notes or ottt through public offerings, prive
placements or other arrangements to raise newatdpit land acquisition, land development and othesiness purposes and/or to el
repurchases of our outstanding senior notes orr akigt. Our ability to engage in such financiahsactions, however, may be constraine
economic or capital markets or bank lending coodgj investor interest and/or our current leveragies, and we can provide no assurant
the success or costs of any such transactions.

Environmental Compliance Matters

As part of our due diligence process for land asitiohs, we often use thindarty environmental consultants to investigate il
environmental risks, and we require disclosuresrapdesentations and warranties from land selkganding environmental risks. Despite t
efforts, there can be no assurance that we willdawmaterial liabilities relating to the existence removal of toxic wastes, site restorat
monitoring or other environmental matters affectprgperties currently or previously owned or col by us. No estimate of any poter
liabilities can be made although we may, from titoetime, acquire property that requires us to ineavironmental cleanp costs afte
conducting appropriate due diligence, including, ot limited to, using detailed investigationsfpemed by environmental consultants. In <
instances, we take steps prior to acquisition efl#tnd to gain reasonable assurance as to thesprecope of work required and the c
associated with removal, site restoration and/onitodng. To the extent contamination or other emwimental issues have occurred in the
we will attempt to recover restoration costs frdmnd parties, such as the generators of hazardastewland sellers or others in the prior
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chain of title and/or their insurers. Based on ¢hgisactices, we anticipate that it is unlikely tavironmental cleanp costs will have a mater
effect on our consolidated financial statements. \Mfee not been notified by any governmental agerigny claim that any of the properi
owned or formerly owned by us are identified by A as being a “Superfund” cleap- site requiring remediation, which could ha\
material effect on our future consolidated finahstatements. Costs associated with the use of@nviental consultants are not material tc
consolidated financial statements.

Access to Our Information

We file annual, quarterly and current reports, grstatements and other information with the Selesriiatnd Exchange Commission (“SBC”
We make our public SEC filings available, at notctiwough our investor relations website at wwweistor.kbhome.com, as soon as reasol
practicable after the report is electronically dileith, or furnished to, the SEC. We will also pide/these reports in electronic or paper fo
free of charge upon request made to our investatioas department at investorrelations@kbhome.opiat our principal executive offices.
intend for our investor relations website to be piienary location where investors and the geneudlip can obtain announcements regar
and can learn more about our financial and operatiperformance, business plans and prospectyarbard of directors, our senior exect
management team, and our corporate governancégsoliacluding our articles of incorporation, laws, corporate governance principles, b
committee charters, and ethics policy. We webaadtaachive quarterly earnings calls and other itoresvents in which we participate or h
and post related materials, on our investor refatiwebsite. Interested persons can register ofngastor relations website to receive pro
notifications of new SEC filings, press released ather information posted there. However, the @ontwvailable on or through our prim
website at www.kbhome.com or our investor relatimebsite, including our sustainability reportsné incorporated by reference in this re
or in any other filing we make with the SEC. Ouierences in our SEC filings or otherwise to maten@sted on or to any content availabls
or through our websites are intended to be inat¢éixtual or oral references only. Our SEC filings also available to the public over the Inte
at the SEC’s website at www.sec.gov. The public alag read and copy any document we file at the’ SIGblic reference room located at
F Street N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. PleasetlkallSEC at 1-800-SEQ330 for further information on the operation oé thublic referenc
room.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following important factors could adversely mspour business. These factors could cause aualaesults to differ materially from t
forward4ooking and other statements that (i) we make gisteation statements, periodic reports and otfiag$ with the SEC and from time
time in our news releases, annual reports and ethien reports or communications, (i) we post @nmake available through our prim
website at www.kbhome.com or our investor relatisrebsite at www.investor.kbhome.com, and (iii) @ersonnel and representatives n
orally from time to time.

The recent improvement in housing market conditiofigllowing a prolonged and severe housing downtumay not continue, and ar
slowing or reversal of the present housing recovesnerally, or in our served markets, or for the mebuilding industry may materially ar
adversely affect our business and consolidated fio&l statements.

In 2012, several housing markets stabilized andabegcovering after years of weak demand and exagsply during the housii
downturn. In these markets, there were generallsersales of new and resale homes, higher sellicggpand fewer homes available for sal
each case as compared to the prior year. There al®yanore overall housing starts and construgtienmits authorized in the U.S., reflect
increased residential construction activity. Theseds have been driven in large part by redovd-interest rates for mortgage loans tha
combination with relatively low home selling pricdsave made homeownership more affordable comp@ardtstorical levels and to ren
housing costs, which have been rising over thefpasyears.

With the emerging housing recovery, we and othendtauilders for the most part reported higher or@eids deliveries and better finani
results in 2012 than in 2011, a year in which amtow number of new homes were sold in the countrywelver, the improved conditions
not (and may not) extend to a number of housingketarwe serve, and some markets have been strtmgerothers. We expect that s
unevenness will continue in 2013 and beyond whetherot the present housing recovery progressebsttaat prevailing conditions in varic
housing markets will fluctuate, perhaps signifiba@ind unfavorably in future periods. In additiovhile some of the many negative factors
contributed to the housing downturn may have mdddran 2012, several remain, and they could returd/or intensify to inhibit any futu
improvement in housing market conditions in 201BeSe negative factors include (a) weak generala@uianand employment growth tk
among other things, restrains consumer incomesurner confidence and demand for homes; (b) elevatets of mortgage loan delinquenc
defaults and foreclosures that could add to a ‘“sWaithventory” of lendeewned homes that may be sold in competition witlv a@d othe
resale homes at low “distresseaatices or that generate short sales activity ah guice levels; (c) a significant number of homeevenwhos
outstanding principal balance on their mortgage keeceeds the market value of their home, whiclketmthes

13




Table of Contents

their ability to purchase another home that thdyeise might desire and be able to afford; (datiliy and uncertainty in domestic ¢
international financial, credit and consumer lendimarkets amid slow growth or recessionary conafitio various regions around the world;
(e) tight lending standards and practices for nag#gloans that limit consumeiility to qualify for mortgage financing to purcteaa hom
including increased minimum credit score requiretsienredit risk/mortgage loan insurance premiumd/@nother fees and required dc
payment amounts, more conservative appraisalsghighn-tovalue ratios and extensive buyer income and assetndentation requiremer
Additional headwinds may come from the efforts anoposals of lawmakers to reduce the debt of tHerd government through tax incre¢
and/or spending cuts, and financial markets’ argirt@ssesteactions to those efforts and proposals, whictdcmopair economic growth. Givi
these factors, we can provide no assurance thairédsent housing recovery will continue or gairttfar momentum, whether overall or in
served markets.

The present housing recovery is relative to aneextly low level of consumer demand for homes, haales and new residen
construction activity, reflecting the severity dethousing downturn. Even with the upturn in 204%, and the homebuilding industsysales
deliveries, revenues and profitability remain wa#low, and may not return to, the peak levels redcthortly before the housing downt
began. If, on an overall basis or in our servedketar the present housing recovery stalls or doesontinue at the same pace, or any or i
the negative factors described above persist osemprparticularly if there is limited economic gtbver a decline, low growth or decrease
employment and consumer incomes, and/or continigid mortgage lending standards and practicesethemuld likely be a correspondi
adverse effect on our business and our consolidatadcial statements, including, but not limiterj the number of homes we deliver,
average selling prices, the amount of revenuesemergte and our ability to operate profitably, Hreleffect may be material.

Continued or additional tightening of mortgage leird) standards and practices or mortgage financingguirements or volatility in financia
credit and consumer lending markets could adversaffect the availability of mortgage loans for patgal purchasers of our homes ai
thereby reduce our sales.

Since 2008, the mortgage lending and mortgage émandustries have experienced significant instgbdue to, among other thin
relatively high rates of delinquencies, defaultsl &oreclosures on mortgage loans and a correspgraicline in their market value and
market value of securities backed by such loatispadjh there was some modest improvement in theses & 2012. The delinquencies, def:
and foreclosures have been driven in part by gerdipoor economic and employment conditions, wiiate negatively affected borrowers’
incomes, and by a decline in the values of mangtiexj homes in various markets below the princi@ance of the mortgage loans secure
such homes. A number of providers, purchasersmutars of mortgage loans and mortgage lmacked securities have gone out of busine
exited the market, with most mortgage loans culyebeing originated under programs offered or sujgub by government agencies
government-sponsored enterprises — principally Rib@eral Housing Administration (“FHA”), the VetesaAdministration (“VA”"),the Feder:
National Mortgage Association (also known“Fannie Mae”) and the Federal Home Loan Mortgagg@ation (also known as “Freddie Mac”
Compared to prior periods, this instability andreased government role in the mortgage financingketéhas led to reduced availability
mortgage loan products (particularly subprime andcenforming loans), and tighter lending standaadd practices for mortgage loans
described above. As a result, it is generally naifficult for some categories of borrowers to ficanthe purchase of homes, including
homes. Overall, these factors have slowed the hgusarkets recovery, caused volatility in and generally ated cancellation rates for us .
other homebuilders, and reduced demand for homelsiding our homes. If these factors continuef arartgage lending standards and prac
further tighten, we expect that there would be denial adverse effect on our business and our didlaged financial statements, particule
since we depend on third-party lenders (includingpreferred mortgage lender Nationstar) to prowdetgage loans to our homebuyers.

Further tightening of mortgage lending standards$ practices and/or reduced credit availability feortgages may also result from
implementation of regulations under the 2010 Dodakk Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection (e “Dodd-Frank Act”).Amonc
other things, the DodBrank Act established several requirements (inolydisk retention obligations) relating to the amifion, securitizin
and servicing of, and consumer disclosures fortgage loans. In addition, U.S. and internationalkixag regulators have proposed or eng
higher capital standards and requirements for iginstitutions. These standards and requiremastsind when implemented, are expect
further reduce the availability of and/or incredke costs to borrowers to obtain mortgage loandeféé regulators and lawmakers are
considering steps that may significantly reduceabidity or authority of the FHA, Fannie Mae anceédie Mac to purchase or insure mortg
loans under the programs that many lenders useigmate mortgage loans. Further, since 2010, lended other mortgage banking serv
providers, brokers and other institutions, or tlegjents, have been under intense regulatory sgratid the targets of several civil actions
investors and government agencies regarding maetd@a@n underwriting practices and/or representatiorade in connection with selli
mortgage loans into private or Fannie Mae- or Feetithcbacked securitized pools. If such scrutiny andl eigtions result in lenders and ot
mortgage banking services providers and brokertgeae adjust their operations and/or pay significamounts in damages or fines, they
further curtail or cease their mortgage loan oatjon activities due to reduced liquidity or to igdtte perceived risks.
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In 2012, the Federal Reserve announced that it dvpulchase each month billions of dollars of loAgem Treasury securities ¢
mortgage loan-backed securities of Fannie Mae, digeflac and the Government National Mortgage Asgani (or “Ginnie Mae,"which
guarantees securities composed of FHA- andduakfied mortgage loans) until it determines tki@re is sufficient improvement in U
employment levels. It expects that this action willintain downward pressure on longemn interest rates, support mortgage markets afp
to make broader financial conditions more accomrtieelawWhile the Federal Resergeaction has helped to lower mortgage loan inteetss, |
is unclear whether the program will be successfikdeéeping such interest rates low or in meetingRibéeral Reserve’policy goals, or for ho
long it will be in place. Even if the program dde=ep mortgage loan interest rates at low levelsiynpatential homebuyers may still be uni
to obtain mortgage loans to purchase homes, ingduolir homes, if mortgage lending standards anttipes remain tight or tighten further, @
lenders curtail or cease mortgage loan originadictivity due to regulatory requirements and/or liify or risk concerns.

Third-party lenders may not complete mortgage loan origions for our homebuyers in a timely manner or afl, which can lead t
cancellations and lower our backlog of net orders, to significant delays in delivering homes and orecognizing revenues from those ho
sales.

Our homebuyers may obtain mortgage financing feirthome purchases from any lender or other prowafi¢heir choice. If, due to cre
or consumer lending market conditions, reducedidityy increased risk retention or minimum capitalel obligations and/or regulatc
restrictions related to the Dodtank Act or other laws, or other factors or businhdecisions, these lenders refuse or are unalpeotade
mortgage loans to our homebuyers, the number ofeBome deliver and our consolidated financial stat#simay be materially and adver:
affected. For instance, tight mortgage lending ddatls and practices for mortgage loans have imteoeriods led to significant delays
delivering homes and/or have caused some potédrtiaebuyers to cancel their home purchase contwatiisus. We can provide no assura
that these tight mortgage lending conditions velak or reverse in the foreseeable future.

In addition, in the first half of 2012, as we endegreferred mortgage lender relationship with@vigler that had decided to cease offe
forward mortgage banking services and were tramsitg to Nationstar as our preferred mortgage lende experienced significant disruptis
to our business due to the inability or unwillingeeof several independent thjpdrty lenders to complete in a timely fashion omathtthe
mortgage loan originations they had started fortmmebuyers. As a result, in our first quarter fomgart of the second quarter of 2012, we
an elevated level of cancellations and delayedrayss which negatively affected our net orders emwenues. Nationstar began accepting
mortgage loan applications from our homebuyers @y ¥, 2012, and is providing more consistent exeswind completion of mortgage Ic
originations for our homebuyers who choose to ustidNstar. Based on the number of homes delivaretheé month of November 20:
approximately 58% of our homebuyers used Nationstdinance the purchase of their home. Comparethast of the first half of 201
Nationsta’s performance as our preferred lender has helppdotade more stability in the conversion of oucklag into home deliveries a
revenues. Although we expect continued improventeithis area as our relationship with Nationstaioas preferred mortgage lender furt
matures and Nationstar becomes more closely irntesgywith our operations, we can provide no ass@asco Nationstas’ability or willingnes
to provide mortgage loans and other mortgage bgrdénvices to our homebuyers in future periods {agredue to the factors discussed al
or otherwise), or as to its performance in doing @othat Nationstar will remain our preferred ngage lender. If Nationsta’performanc
declines or Nationstar decides to end, or we detderminate, our relationship, we may experiemm@tgage loan funding issues simila
those we experienced in the first half of 2012 dascribed in Note 6. Inventory Impairments and L@mlion Contract Abandonments in
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in thort), which would likely have a material adveisgact on our business and
consolidated financial statements. Our strategeniion is to reestablish a mortgage banking jeamture with a lender or other provider, but
can provide no assurance that we will be able teado

Our current strategies may not generate improvedaiincial and operational performance, and the contied implementation of these a
other strategies may not be successful.

We believe the integrated strategic actions we taken during the housing downturn strengthenedwarall business and that our cur
primary strategies, as described above under “lterBusiness — StrategyWill enable us to grow our business and achieve raathtair
profitability at the scale of prevailing market ditions for 2013. However, these strategies mayeto be unsuitable for some or all of
served markets in 2013, and we can provide no gteeahat these strategies will be successfullgroductively implemented or, even if tt
are implemented as designed, that they will geaegabwth and earnings, or that we will achieve @12 or beyond positive operational
financial results or results in any particular ricetr measure equal to or better than our 2012opmdnce, or perform in any period as we
other homebuilders. In particular, our strategfortfto broaden our performing asset base by datigaertain inventory that was previously f
for future development may not generate positivilte as many of these assets are located in skbteahat have only recently begur
stabilize. We also cannot provide any assurandevibawill be able to maintain these strategiesdd®and, due to unexpectedly favorabl
unfavorable market conditions or other factorsmay determine that we need to adjust, refine on@ta all or portions of these
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strategies, although we cannot guarantee thatuty changes will be successful. The failure of ang or more of our present strategies, o
failure of any adjustments or alternative stratediat we may pursue or implement, to be successhulikely have an adverse effect on
ability to grow and increase the value of our besgand on our consolidated financial statemestsyel as on our overall liquidity, and -
effect could be material.

The success of our present strategies and our loeign performance depends on the availability ofiihed and partially finished lots ar
undeveloped land that meet our investment returrdamarketing standards.

The availability of finished and partially finishdéats and undeveloped land that meet our investmatntn and marketing standards dep:
on a number of factors outside of our control,udahg land availability in general, geographicgitigraphical constraints, land selleosisines
relationships with other homebuilders, developersnaestors, climate conditions, competition witther homebuilders and land buyers
desirable property, financial and credit marketditons, legal or government agency processesi¢péatly for land that is part of bankrup
estates or is held by financial institutions takesr by government agencies), inflation in lanctgsi zoning, allowable housing density,
ability and the costs to obtain building permitse amount of environmental impact fees, propertyrédes and other regulatory requireme
Should suitable lots or land become less availdbknumber of homes that we may be able to buitisell could be reduced, and the co:
attractive land could increase, perhaps substhntiahich could adversely impact our consolidatiedficial statements including, but not limi
to, our housing gross profit margins, and our gbiid maintain ownership or control of a sufficiesupply of developed or developable |
inventory. The availability of suitable land cowtbo affect the success of our current strategiesjf we decide to reduce our acquisition of
land in 2013 due to a lack of available assets i@t our standards, our ability to increase ounrnanity count, to grow our revenues
housing gross profit margins, and to achieve ontaai profitability, would likely be constrained dould have a material adverse effect or
consolidated financial statements.

The value of the land and housing inventory we owncontrol may fall significantly.

The value of the inventory we currently own or ¢ohtlepends on market conditions, including estéwaif future demand for, and
revenues that can be generated from, this inventdrg market value of our inventory can vary coesattly because there is often a signifi
amount of time between our acquiring control otitglkownership of land and the delivery of homegtat land. The negative conditions of
housing downturn, which generally depressed hortes sand selling prices, caused the fair value dbgeof our owned or controlled invent:
to fall, in some cases well below the estimatedfalue at the time we acquired ownership or cdnEeen with the improved housing mar
conditions in 2012, local submarkstecific or other factors led to a decrease irfdirevalue of certain of our inventory and suchréases me
occur in 2013 whether or not the present housinguwery progresses. Based on our periodic assessmieimventory for recoverability, duril
the housing downturn and in 2012, we have writtewrd the carrying value of certain of our inventdoyits estimated fair value, includi
inventory that we have previously written down, aadorded corresponding charges against our earmingeflect the impaired value. We h
also taken charges in connection with abandonimgrdarests in certain land controlled under laption contracts and other similar contri
that no longer met our investment return or mangestandards. If in 2013 the present housing regosiws or reverses, or if particu
submarkets experience challenging or unfavorabde@és in prevailing conditions, we may need to tedditional charges against our earn
for inventory impairments or land option contralsaadonments, or both, to reflect changes in fdirevaf land or land interests in our invent:
including assets we have previously written dowmy Asuch charges could have a material adverseteffecour consolidated financ
statements, including our ability to achieve ormein profitability.

Our business is cyclical and is significantly affeexl by changes in general and local economic coruahis.

Our operations and consolidated financial statemeah be substantially affected by adverse chamgegneral economic or busin
conditions that are outside of our control, inchglchanges in:

e short- and londerm interest rate

« employment levels and job and personal income dn

« housing demand from population growth, househalth&tion and other demographic changes, among fabtrs
« availability and pricing of mortgage financing feomebuyer:

« consumer confidence generally and the confideng®thntial homebuyers in particul

* U.S. and global financial system and credit maskability:

e private party and government mortgage loan nogr(including changes in FHA, Fannie Mae- and diseMac-
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conforming mortgage loan limits, credit risk/moiggaloan insurance premiums and/or other fees, doayment requirements &
underwriting standards), and federal and statelagign, oversight and legal action regarding legdiappraisal, foreclosure and sl
sale practices;

« federal and state personal income tax rates andspyos, including provisions for the deductionrobrtgage loan interest payme
real estate taxes and other expenses;

« supply of and prices for available new or resadenes (including lendeswned homes) and other housing alternatives, sg
apartments, single-family rentals and other rembaising;

« homebuyer interest in our current or new produdigies and new home community locations, and germmasumer interest
purchasing a home compared to choosing other hpadtiernatives; and

* real estate taxe

Adverse changes in these conditions may affecbasiness nationally or may be more prevalent oceotrated in particular submarket
which we operate.

Inclement weather, natural disasters (such as qakles, hurricanes, tornadoes, floods, droughtsfaes), and other environmer
conditions can delay the delivery of our homes aniticrease our costs. Civil unrest or acts ofotésm can also have a negative effect or
business.

The potential difficulties described above can eadsmand and prices for our homes to fall or casde take longer and incur more cos
develop the land and build our homes. We may natide to recover these increased costs by raigicggpbecause of market conditions
because the price of each home we sell is usuallgeveral months before the home is delivereduasustomers typically sign their ho
purchase contracts before home construction begines potential difficulties could also lead somenebuyers to cancel or refuse to honor -
home purchase contracts altogether. Reflectingliffieult conditions in our served markets duririgethousing downturn, we have experiet
volatility in our net orders and cancellation raitesecent years, and if the present housing regcslews or reverses, we may experience sil
or increased volatility in 2013. If we do, therauttbbe a material adverse effect on our consolilfitencial statements.

Home prices and sales activity in the particular nkats and regions in which we do business matesiadiffect our consolidated financii
statements because our business is concentratdetiése markets

Home selling prices and sales activity in some wf key served markets have declined from time rwetfor markespecific reason
including adverse weather, high levels of forectesu short sales and sales of lender-owned homelsjaagk of affordability oreconomi
contraction due to, among other things, the depadudecline of key industries and employersolfle selling prices or sales activity declin
one or more of our key served markets, includintif@aia, Florida, Nevada or Texas, our costs maydecline at all or at the same rate an
a result, our consolidated financial statements beagnaterially and adversely affected. Adverse itimmg in California, where we are the state’
largest homebuilder based on new home sales, wiad a particularly material effect on our consatid financial statements as a signifi
proportion of our inventory-related investmentscsimate 2009 were made, and in 2013 are expected toade, in that state. Califorrgestat
government and many of its regional and local gowvemts have struggled to balance their budgetsadaenumber of factors that in part ref
the impact of the 2002009 economic recession. These include lower éarnues; higher debt service, public employee parand soci
welfare obligations; lower federal government suppand, for regional and local governments ancvetbpment agencies, various reducti
eliminations or reversals of state government stipphs a result, there have been, and lawmakers peoposed making additional, signific
cuts to government departments, subsidies, progeardspublic employee staffing levels, and taxes faed have been raised, and lawme
have proposed additional tax and fee increases) effort to balance governmental budgets. A fawigipalities have declared bankruptcy,
others are considering such a step. Californiariakers’efforts at all governmental levels to address omgaind/or projected budget defi
through spending cuts and/or efforts to increaseegonental revenues, could, among other thingssechusinesses and residents to leav
state, or discourage businesses or householdscimanng to the state, which would limit economic\gtie; cause significant delays in obtair
required inspections, permits or approvals witlpees to residential development at our new homenaonities located in the state, or resu
higher costs for such permits or approvals; anddcdelay or prevent the release or repayment blicgie municipalities and other governrr
agencies of performance bonds, letters of creditaarsimilar deposits we have made in connectidh wur residential development activiti
These negative impacts could adversely affect bilityato generate net orders and revenues and/ondintain or increase our gross pi
margins from our California operations.
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Supply shortages and other risks related to demémdbuilding materials and/or skilled trade laborould increase costs and delay deliveri

As discussed above under “ltem 1. Business — Cadtiguet Seasonality, Delivery Mix and Other Factbrghere is a high level
competition in the homebuilding industry and theiging market for skilled trade labor and buildingterials that can, among other things, ¢
increases in land development and home constructists and development and construction delay®, As2012, a smaller pool of skill
trade labor due to the housing downturn led totslgess in some markets that experienced increasatkntial construction activity, and sl
shortages could occur in 2013 if and as the prelsensing recovery progresses. Shortages or upwaed fluctuations in lumber, drywe
concrete and other building materials, and labdretiver due to a small supplier base or supplieaagp constraints, increased residel
construction activity, international demand, thewcence of or rebuilding after natural disasterstber reasons, can also have an adverse
on our business. We generally are unable to pagscozases in land development and home constructists to homebuyers who have alre
entered into home purchase contracts, as the meaumtracts generally fix the price of the homthattime the contract is signed, and ma
signed well in advance of when home constructionroences. We also may not be able to raise oungedlices to cover such increases in
development and home construction costs becauseadfet conditions, including competition for homgérs with other homebuilders ¢
resale homes. Sustained increases in land devetd@and home construction costs due to higher tlaloler rates or elevated lumber, dryw
concrete and other building materials prices mayrag other things, decrease our housing grosst pnafigins, while shortages of skilled tr.
labor or building materials due to competition ¢iey factors may delay deliveries and our recognitif revenues. As a result, these neg
items, individually or together, can have a matenal adverse impact on our consolidated finarstetements.

Inflation may adversely affect us by increasing t®shat we may not be able to recover, particulaflgelling prices decrease, and the imp
on our performance and our consolidated financiglsements could be material.

Inflation can have an adverse impact on our codatgd financial statements because increasing fydend, skilled trade labor or buildi
materials could require us to increase our honiangedrices in an effort to maintain satisfactoigusing gross profit margins. In 2010 and 2
worldwide demand for certain commodities and mayepalicy actions led to price increases and pvickatility for raw materials that are us
in land development and home construction, inclgdiimber and metals. Additionally, increased resiidé construction activity in 2012
combination with a relatively small supplier basso$ted prices for lumber, drywall, concrete andeottaw materials, and these trends
expected to continue in 2013 if and as the prelsensing recovery progresses. These pricing treallen together with U.S. and internatic
central bank and governmental policies and progré@siggned to boost economic growth, may lead tereigl increase in inflation. Howe\
we may not be able to increase our home sellirgpptto cover cost inflation due to market condgjaand may need to hold or reduce our se
prices in order to compete for home sales. If aeiteed necessary, our lowering of home selling grige addition to impacting our housing gt
profit margins, may also reduce the value of ondlmventory, including the assets we have purahasescent years, and make it more diffi
for us to fully recover the cost of previously phesed land with our home selling prices or, if vil@ase, in disposing of land. In additi
depressed land values may cause us to abandoordgitl deposits on land option contracts and ofli@ilar contracts if we cannot satisfacto
renegotiate the purchase price of the subject Mfeimay incur charges against our earnings fomitorg impairments if the value of our owr
inventory is reduced or for land option contracadonments if we choose not to exercise land omtionracts or other similar contracts,
these charges may be substantial as we experiémeedtain periods during the housing downturnlaltidn may also increase interest rate:
mortgage loans and thereby reduce demand for sues@nd lead to lower revenues, as well as inctbasaterest rates for external financing.

Reduced home sales may impair our ability to recalgvelopment costs or force us to absorb additiorasts.

We incur many costs before we begin to build hoinea community. Depending on the stage of developraeland parcel is in wh
acquired, such costs may include costs of prepdaing; finishing and entitling lots; installing s, sewers, water systems and other util
taxes and other costs related to ownership ofahd bn which we plan to build homes; and promotionarketing and overhead expense
prepare for the opening of a new home communitysédes. In addition, local municipalities may im@aequirements resulting in additio
costs. If the rate at which we sell and deliver Berslows or falls, or if we delay the opening ofvnigome communities for sales due
adjustments in our marketing strategy or otheraesseach of which has occurred throughout theihgudownturn, we may incur additiol
costs and it will take a longer period of time f@rto recover our costs, including the costs waried in acquiring and developing land in re
years. Furthermore, due to market conditions dutieghousing downturn, we have abandoned somedptidn contracts and other sim
contracts to purchase land, resulting in the farfei of non-refundable deposits and unrecoveratdeagquisition costs. If the present hout
recovery slows or reverses in 2013, we may decidgandon certain land option contracts and ofiha@tas contracts, and sell certain land
loss, and the costs of doing so may be adversenatetial to our consolidated financial statements.
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Some homebuyers may cancel their home purchasealse the required deposits are small and sometineéisndable.

Our backlog at a given point in time reflects themter of homes under a home purchase contrachévet not yet been delivered t
homebuyer. Our home purchase contracts typicatipire only a small deposit, and in some circumsanthe deposit is refundable prio
closing. If the prices for new homes decline, cotit@es increase their use of sales incentives,den@nd others increase their efforts to
resale homes, trade labor or building materialgtaes delay our home construction cycle timestgage loan interest rates increase
availability of mortgage financing further dimineshor there is continued weakness or a downtuloced or regional economies or the natic
economy and in consumer confidence, customers maget their existing home purchase contracts wattbecause they have been unab
finalize their mortgage financing for the purchadesire to move into a home earlier than we caiveteit, or in order to attempt to negotiate
a lower price or explore other options or for otheasons they are unable or unwilling to complét purchase. In recent years, we |
experienced volatile cancellation rates, in pae tluthese reasons and in part due to the mortgagefunding issues arising from the 2
transition of our preferred mortgage lending relaship. To the extent they continue, volatile c#latien rates resulting from these conditions
otherwise, could have a material adverse effedwrbusiness and our consolidated financial statésne

Interest rate increases or changes in federal lemgliprograms or regulations could lower demand fanrchomes.

Nearly all of our customers finance the purchastheir homes. Before the housing downturn begastptically low interest rates and
increased availability of specialized mortgage Iganducts, including products requiring no or loawsh payments, and interestly anc
adjustablerate mortgage loans, made purchasing a home mimrelable for a number of customers and more availedocustomers with low
credit scores. Increases in interest rates andforedses in the availability of mortgage financargof certain mortgage loan products
programs may lead to fewer mortgage loans beingiged, higher credit risk/mortgage loan insuranoenpums and/or other fees, incree
down payment and extensive buyer income and asgeinmkntation requirements, or a combination offtliegoing, and, as a result, red
demand for our homes and increase our cancelleies.

Due to the volatility and uncertainty in the crediarkets and in the mortgage lending and mortgag@de industries since 2008, the fec
government has taken on a significant role in stipymp mortgage lending through its conservatorsififannie Mae and Freddie Mac, botl
which purchase or insure mortgage loans and maetigsmmbacked securities, and its insurance of mortgagesiéhrough the FHA and the \
FHA backing of mortgage loans has been particularlgortant to the mortgage finance industry andto business. The availability &
affordability of mortgage loans, including intereates for such loans, could be adversely affelsyed scaling back or termination of the fed
government’s mortgage loaetated programs or policies. The FHA, for instariotends to increase its annual insurance premiarg13, an
could, among other actions, extend the periodghah premiums are charged to borrowers, furtheease such premiums or other fees al
raise its standards on the loans it will insurerider to address the significant cash reserveitl@f@ative to its projected losses from delinat
loans) it reported in November 2012. These stepsther individually or collectively taken, couldepent some homebuyers from qualifying
mortgage loans to purchase homes, including oureBoin addition, given growing federal budget defiche U.S. Treasury may not be abl
continue, or may be required by future legislatimregulation to cease, supporting the mortgage-tekated activities of Fannie Mae, Frec
Mac, the FHA and the VA at present levels.

Because Fannie Mae-, Freddie Mac-, FHA- and h&tked mortgage loans have been an important factoarketing and selling many
our homes, any limitations or restrictions in thaitability of, or higher consumer costs for, sigdvernmenbacked financing could reduce
net orders and adversely affect our consolidateghfiial statements, and the effect could be materia

Tax law changes could make home ownership more egdee or less attractive.

Under current tax law and policy, significant expes of owning a home, including mortgage loan @sercosts and real estate ta
generally are deductible expenses for the purpbsaloulating an individual’s or househaddfederal, and in some cases state, taxable ir
subject to various limitations. For instance, unter American Taxpayer Relief Act of 2012, whichswsigned into law in January 2013,
federal government enacted higher income tax eatddimits on the value of tax deductions for dertdghincome individuals and househol
If the federal government or a state governmenngés or further changes its income tax laws, asestawmakers have proposed,
eliminating, limiting or substantially reducing 8eeincome tax benefits, the aftax cost of owning a home could increase substjntiany
additional increases in personal income tax rateléoa additional tax deduction limits or restrictooenacted at the federal or state levels,
adversely impact demand for and/or selling priceeew homes, including our homes, and the effecownconsolidated financial stateme
could be material.
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We are subject to substantial legal and regulatoeguirements regarding the development of land, themebuilding process and protecti
of the environment, which can cause us to sufferlae and incur costs associated with compliance ambich can prohibit or restric
homebuilding activity in some regions or areas. Timepact of such requirements, individually or cotiévely, could be adverse and materia
the implementation of our strategic growth initiates and our consolidated financial statements.

Our homebuilding business is heavily regulated sufgject to a significant amount of local, state fedkral regulation concerning zoni
natural and other resource protection, buildingigies land development and home construction matheod similar matters, as well
governmental taxes, fees and levies on the aciguisiind development of land parcels. These reguigitbften provide broad discretior
government authorities that oversee these matidrigh can result in unanticipated delays or inaesas the cost of a specified developn
project or a number of projects in particular méskaVe may also experience delays due to a builgieignit moratorium or regulatc
restrictions in any of the locations in which weetgte, which can affect the balance of land helduimre development in our inventory.

In addition, we are subject to a variety of losdlte and federal statutes, ordinances, rulesemdations concerning the environment
discussed below with respect to potential climdtange impacts, these laws and regulations, andéivieg interpretations thereof, may ca
delays in our land development and in our condoocind delivery of new homes, may cause us torisghstantial compliance and other c«
and can prohibit or restrict homebuilding activiitycertain regions or areas.

As discussed above under “Item 1. Business — Enmiental Compliance Mattersghvironmental laws may also impose liability foe
costs of removal or remediation of hazardous oictaubstances whether or not the developer or owhehe property knew of, or w
responsible for, the presence of those substambespresence of those substances on our propetréggprevent us from selling our homes
we may also be liable, under applicable laws agdlagions or lawsuits brought by private parties,Hazardous or toxic substances on lanc
we have sold in the past.

Further, a significant portion of our businessasducted in California, one of the most highly feged and litigious states in the cour
Therefore, our potential exposure to losses andresgs due to new laws, regulations or litigatioly tma greater than other homebuilders w
less significant California presence.

The homebuilding industry and housing market areryecompetitive, and competitive conditions couldvadsely affect our business or ¢
consolidated financial statements.

As discussed above under “Item 1. Business — CdtigretSeasonality, Delivery Mix and Other Factbnse face significant competitis
in several areas of our business from other hontadrsi and participants in the overall housing itusrhese competitive conditions can re
in:

» our delivering fewer home
e our selling homes at lower pric
« our offering or increasing sales incentives, distswr price concessions for our hor

* our experiencing lower housing gross profit margiparticularly if we cannot raise our selling pscé cover increased la
development, home construction or overhead costs;

» our selling fewer homes or experiencing a highenlper of cancellations by homebuy:
e impairments in the value of our inventory and otheset:

« difficulty in acquiring desirable land that meets investment return or marketing standards, argklling our interests in land that
longer meet such standards on favorable terms;

« difficulty in our acquiring raw materials and skill management and trade labor at acceptable |
* delays in the development of land and/or the cantitm of our homes; and,
« difficulty in securing external financing, performae bonds or letter of credit facilities on favdeaterms

These competitive conditions may have a materige# effect on our business and consolidated diahstatements by decreasing
revenues, impairing our ability to successfully lempent our current strategies, increasing our castidor diminishing growth in our local
regional homebuilding businesses. During the ha@udmwnturn in particular, actions taken by our Hewne and housing alternative competi
reduced the effectiveness of our efforts to achgability or increases in
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home selling prices, to generate higher deliveregenues and housing gross profit margins, amghgeve and maintain profitability.

Homebuilding is subject to warranty and liabilitya@ims in the ordinary course of business that caa bignificant.

In the ordinary course of our homebuilding business are subject to home warranty and construct&fect claims. We record warra
and other liabilities for the homes we deliver lshgeimarily on historical experience in our serwedrkets and our judgment of the ri
associated with the types of homes we build. Ath&rrdescribed in Note 13. Commitments and Contiogs in the Notes to Consolida
Financial Statements in this reportewnaintain, and require the majority of our subrators to maintain, general liability insuranagc{uding
construction defect and bodily injury coverage) amtkers’compensation insurance. These insurance polic@egirus against a portion of «
risk of loss from claims related to our homebuidarctivities, subject to certain sétlsured retentions, deductibles and other coveliages. In
Arizona, California, Colorado and Nevada, our sulb@xtors' general liability insurance primarilkéa the form of a wrapp policy, wher
eligible subcontractors are enrolled as insuredsamh project. We seifisure a portion of our overall risk through the w$ a captive insuran
subsidiary. We also maintain certain other insuegnalicies. Because of the uncertainties inhei@itieése matters, we cannot provide assu
that our various insurance arrangements and obiliies will be adequate to address all our watyagnd construction defect claims in
future, or that any potential inadequacies will hatve an adverse effect on our consolidated fimhrstatements. Additionally, the cover
offered by and the availability of general lialyilinsurance for construction defects are curreliijted and costly. There can be no assur
that coverage will not be further restricted, imgiag our risks and financial exposure to claimsl/@ become more costly.

We engage subcontractors to perform the actuakrmtion of our homes, and in many cases, to olit@mecessary building materia@ur
contracts with our subcontractors require that thesnply with all laws applicable to their work, lnding labor laws, meet performal
standards, and follow local building codes and fstntHowever, we may encounter improper construction practiweshe installation ¢
defective materials in our homes, among other thiMghen we discover these issues, we will evalaatk if necessary, repair the home
accordance with our new home warranty and as redjldy law. The adverse costs of satisfying our avdyr and other legal obligations in th
instances may be significant and we may be unabtedover the costs of warranigtated repairs from subcontractors, suppliersiasdrers
which could have a material impact on our constdiddinancial statements.

Because of the seasonal nature of our business, quarterly operating results fluctuate

As discussed above under “ltem 1. Business — CdtigrgtSeasonality, Delivery Mix and Other Factbraie have experienced seast
fluctuations in our quarterly operating resultst tten have a material impact on our results andconsolidated financial statements. Historici
a significant percentage of our home purchase aotstrare entered into in the spring and early sunmoaths, and we deliver a correspon
significant percentage of our homes in the lateresemand fall months. As a result, we historicalgvé experienced uneven quarterly res
with lower revenues and operating income generhllyng the first and second quarters of our fisear. During the housing downturn ant
2012, these seasonal trends were somewhat lessuoiced, and our overall net orders, homes delivanedrevenues were generally lower
before the housing downturn. We currently expeettthditional seasonality cycle and its impact anresults to become more prominent if
as the present housing recovery progresses arttbthebuilding industry returns to a more normal apieg environment, but we can make
assurances as to the degree to which our hist@éeedonal patterns will occur in 2013 and beydrat, all.

We may be restricted in accessing external capgtadi to the extent we can access external capitahay increase our costs of capital or res
in stockholder dilution.

We have historically funded our operations witteintlly generated cash flows and external sourtdelut and equity financing. Howev
during the housing downturn, we relied primarily e positive operating cash flow we generatedygipally through the receipt of fede
income tax refunds, and from home and land saldsoan efforts to reduce our overhead costs, to maeworking capital needs and re
outstanding indebtedness. In recent years, thedimgfahe housing downturn in reducing our stockleo’ equity and increasing our debt-to-
capital ratio and volatility in the financial andedit markets made external sources of liquidisslavailable and more costly to us. In 2
relatively favorable housing and credit market éoods enabled us to refinance and measurably dxtesmaturity of certain of our senior nc
due in 2014 and 2015 through the issuance of newversaotes, albeit at somewhat higher interestsréttan the refinanced debt, and to 1
unrestricted cash for general business purposesaigrovide no assurances, however, that we wililile to access external credit or ec
markets in 2013 at favorable terms or at all.

Market conditions in 2013 and beyond may signifitalimit our ability to replace or refinance indelness, particularly given the rating
our senior notes by the three principal nationadlyognized registered credit rating agencies, s=udsed
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further below. The terms of potential future isstes of indebtedness by us may be more restrickima the terms governing our curl
indebtedness, and the issuance, interest and elefites expenses are likely to be higher, as wagdle with the new senior notes we issu
2012. In addition, our low stock price comparedhe level reached before the housing downturn hegalatility in the stock markets, t
reduction in our stockholdersquity relative to our debt, and a decline in omrestricted cash balance could also impede oussadoeghe equi
markets or increase the amount of dilution ourldtotders would experience should we seek to raapétal through the issuance of new eq
or convertible securities.

While we believe we can meet our forecasted captplirements from our cash resources, expectedefetsh flow, capital markets acc
and the external financing sources that we antieipall be available to us, we can provide no amssce that we will be able to do so, or d
without incurring substantially higher costs orrsfigantly diluting existing stockholder@terests. The adverse effects of these conditionsu
business, liquidity and consolidated financialesta¢nts could be material to us.

We have a substantial amount of indebtedness iratien to our tangible net worth and unrestricted sla balance, which may restrict o
ability to meet our operational and strategic goals

As of November 30, 2012, we had total outstandielgt @f $1.72 billion , total stockholders’ equity $876.8 million, and an unrestrict:
cash balance of $524.8 million . The amount ofaelst overall and relative to our total stockholdecpity and unrestricted cash balance ¢
have important consequences. For example, it could:

< limit our ability to obtain future financing for wking capital, capital expenditures, acquisitiodspt service requirements or of
business needs;

» limit our ability to renew or, if necessary or desie, expand the capacity of any letter of créafilities, to obtain a revolving cre
facility, and to obtain performance bonds in theiery course of our business;

* require us to dedicate a substantial portion ofoaish flow from operations to the collateralizatiwrpayment of our debt and reduce
ability to use our cash flow for other purposes;

« impact our flexibility in planning for, or reactirtg, changes in our busine

< limit our ability to implement our present strategi particularly our land acquisition and developimglans and asset activat
initiatives, in part due to competition from otlemebuilders, developers and investors with greatailable liquidity or balance sh:
strength;

« place us at a competitive disadvantage becaadtawe more debt or defdlated restrictions than some of our competitans
* make us more vulnerable in the event of weakneasdomnturn in our business or in general econanitousing market conditiot

Our ability to meet our debt service and othergailbns will depend on our future performance. Business is substantially affectec
changes in economic cycles. Our revenues, earrsindgscash flows vary with the level of general eenitoactivity and competition in tl
markets in which we operate. They could also bect by financial, political, regulatory, enviroental and other factors, many of which
beyond our control. A higher interest rate on ceistccould materially and adversely affect our ctidated financial statements.

Our business may not generate sufficient cash fiom operations and external financing at a redsleneost may not be available to u
an amount sufficient to meet our debt service aliims, fulfill the financial or operational obligans we may have under certain unconsolic
joint venture transactions, support our letter i&fdat facilities (including our ca-collateralized letter of credit facilities with waus financia
institutions (the “LOC Facilities”))or to fund our other liquidity or operational neeBarther, if a change of control were to occudaned ir
the instrument governing our $265.0 million of @4 8enior notes due 2017 (the “$265 Million 9.10%i8e Notes”),our $350.0 million ¢
8.00% senior notes due 2020 (the “$350 Million 8608enior Notes”) and our $350.0 million of 7.50%ise notes due 2022 (the 3%0 Million
7.50% Senior Notes”)we would be required to offer to purchase theses@but not our other outstanding senior notes)0as of thei
principal amount, together with all accrued andaidpnterest, if anylf we are unable to generate sufficient cash flownT operations, we me
given our unrestricted cash balance, need to mdmand/or restructure with our lenders or otheditors all or a portion of our outstanding ¢
obligations on or before their maturity, which waymot be able to do on favorable terms or ataltaise capital through equity or convert
security issuances that would dilute existing sbhod#ters’interests, and the impact on our consolidated @isistatements would be material
adverse.

22




Table of Contents

Our ability to obtain external financing could bedversely affected by a negative change in our crediing by a third-party rating agency.

Our ability to access the capital markets and ealdinancing sources on favorable terms is a keyof in our ability to fund our operatic
and to grow our business. As of the date of thi®e our credit rating by Fitch Ratings is B+, lwé# stable outlook, our credit rating by Moosly’
Investor Services is B2, with a stable outlook, and credit rating by Standard and PsoFinancial Services is B, with a negative outl
Downgrades of our credit rating by any of thesagpial nationally recognized registered creditmgtagencies may make it more difficult .
costly for us to access the capital markets anereat financing sources, and could have a matadaérse effect on our consolidated finar
statements.

We may have difficulty in continuing to obtain thaedditional financing required to operate and develour business.

Our homebuilding operations and our present stiedagquire significant amounts of cash and/orateglability of external financing. V'
have established our LOC Facilities in order topsup certain aspects of our operations in the amgircourse of our business, including
acquisition of land and our development of new hamemunities. We anticipate that we will need tantan these facilities in 2013, and
necessary or desirable, we may seek to expanddhgidrcities or enter into additional such factifier enter into a revolving credit facility. Ii
not possible to predict the future terms or avdlilstof additional external capital or for maintéing or, if necessary or desirable, expandiny
capacity of our LOC Facilities or entering into #&tichal such facilities, or entering into a revalgi credit facility. Moreover, our outstand
senior notes contain provisions that may resthietdmount and nature of debt we may incur in theréu As the financial and credit mark
worldwide have been experiencing and may contiouexperience volatility, there can be no assurahaewe can at reasonable cost act
borrow additional funds, raise additional capitabtigh other means, or successfully maintain aredessary or desirable, expand the capac
our LOC Facilities or enter into additional suchilities or enter into a revolving credit facilitgach of which depends, among other factor
conditions in the capital markets and our perceredit worthiness, as discussed above. If comitin the financial and credit markets cont
to be volatile or worsen, it could reduce our &pito generate sales and may hinder our future tir@md impair our consolidated finan
statements. Potential federal and state regulalimiting the investment activities of financialsititutions, including regulations that have bee
may be issued under the DoBdank Act, could also impact our ability to acctss capital markets, to obtain additional extefimgncing and t
maintain or, if necessary or desirable, expandL@€ Facilities or enter into additional such fa@is or enter into a revolving credit facility,
each case on acceptable terms or at all.

Failure to comply with the covenants and conditiomaposed by the agreements governing our indebtegneould restrict future borrowing ¢
cause our debt to become immediately due and payabl

The indenture governing our outstanding senior s\atgposes restrictions on our business operatiodsaativities. Though it does t
contain any financial maintenance covenants, tderiture contains certain restrictive covenants, #aong other things, limit our ability
incur secured indebtedness, to engage inleakeback transactions involving property or assbtse a specified value, and, as in the ca
three of our outstanding senior notes, to engageergers, consolidations, and sales of assetstd®fieancial and credit market conditions,
may also need to include additional covenantsgahitins or restrictions in our indenture or witBpect to a specific issuance of securities
our currently outstanding securities. If we faildomply with these covenants, obligations or restms, the holders of our senior notes c
cause our debt to become due and payable prioatority or could demand that we compensate themvéiving instances of noncomplian
and, if they are successful in doing so, the impacour consolidated financial statements wouldnagerial and adverse. In addition, a de
under any series of our senior notes could cawsdaalt with respect to our other senior notesrasdlt in the acceleration of the maturity o
such defaulted indebtedness and other debt oldigatas well as penalties or additional fees, whichld have a material adverse impact or
consolidated financial statements.

We may not realize our deferred income tax assétsaddition, our net operating loss carryforwardsoald be substantially limited if w
experience an ownership change as defined in theelnal Revenue Code.

Since the end of our 2007 fiscal year, we have gdee significant net operating losses (“NOL&hd we may generate additional NOI
2013. Under federal tax laws, we can use our NQId (@ertain related tax credits) to reduce our fitaxable income for up to 20 years, ¢
which they expire for such purposes. Until theyiexpwe can carry forward our NOL (and certain tediatax credits) that we do not use in
particular year to reduce our taxable income inrityears, and we have recorded a valuation allogvagainst our net deferred tax assets
include the NOL (and certain related tax creditgt twe have generated but have not yet realizetNokember 30, 2012, we had deferred
assets, net of deferred tax liabilities, totalir@3®.1 millionagainst which we have provided a full valuatiomatnce. Our ability to realize ¢
net deferred tax assets is based on the exterhitihwve generate sustained profits and we canmolige any assurances as to when and to
extent we will generate sufficient future taxalleame to realize our net deferred tax assets, whettwhole or in part.
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The majority of our net deferred tax asset is fellezlated and is valued at a 35% corporate inctameate. If, as some lawmakers h
proposed, the U.S. corporate income tax rate igfed; we would be required to write down a rougirigportionate amount of the value of
federal net deferred tax asset to account forithwver rate. We would also need to record a corneding write down of our valuation allowan
The lower tax rate would reduce our future fedexaés, which may put a portion of our tax creditdsk of expiring before we could use them.

In addition, the benefits of our NOL, built-in lessand tax credits would be reduced or elimindtegkiexperience an “ownership change,”
as determined under Internal Revenue Code Sed®r{“$ection 382") A Section 382 ownership change occurs if a stoddrobr a group «
stockholders who are deemed to own at least 5%uptommon stock increase their ownership by moam tB0 percentage points over t
lowest ownership percentage within a rolling thyees period. If an ownership change were to ocBaction 382 would impose an annual |
on the amount of NOL we could use to reduce oualilexincome equal to the product of the total vaifieur outstanding equity immediat
prior to the ownership change (reduced by certaims specified in Section 382) and the federalteng taxexempt interest rate in effect
the month of the ownership change. A number of derpules apply in calculating this annual limit.

While the complexity of Section 382’s provisionsgdahe limited knowledge any public company has éltee ownership of its publicly-
traded stock make it difficult to determine whetlag@r ownership change has occurred, we currentigugethat an ownership change has
occurred. However, if an ownership change werectuig the annual limit Section 382 may impose coekllt in a material amount of our N
expiring unused. This would significantly impairetivalue of our NOL and, as a result, have a mateegative impact on our consolida
financial statements.

In 2009, our stockholders approved an amendmeioiutorestated certificate of incorporation that esigned to block transfers of
common stock that could result in an ownership ghaand a rights agreement pursuant to which we fesued certain stock purchase ri
with terms designed to deter transfers of our comstock that could result in an ownership changevéver, these measures cannot guar.
complete protection against an ownership changetaathains possible that one may occur.

Our consolidated financial statements could be nré#y and adversely affected if we are unable tbtain performance bonds and/or lette
of credit.

In the course of developing our communities, ave often required to provide to various municifedi and other government agen
performance bonds and/or letters of credit to sedhe completion of our projects and/or in suppdrtobligations to build communi
improvements such as roads, sewers, water systachsother utilities, and to support similar devel@h activities by certain of o
unconsolidated joint venture¥/e may also be required to provide performance a@mdl/or letters of credit to secure our perforreamede
various escrow agreements, financial guaranteeed arrangements. Our ability to obtain suchdsaor letters of credit and the cost to d
depend on our credit rating, overall market cajzitdiion, available capital, past operational andrficial performance, management expertis:
other factors, including prevailing surety markenditions, which have been tight since 2010 asigavs have exited the market or substant
reduced their issuances of performance bonds atetdeof credit, and the underwriting practices aasburces of performance bond an
letters of credit issuers. If we are unable to mbpeerformance bonds and/or letters of credit wiegquired or the cost or operational restrict
or conditions imposed by issuers to obtain themeiases significantly in 2013 or later, we may regble to develop or we may be significa
delayed in developing a community or communitied/anwe may incur significant additional expensasd, as a result, our consolide
financial statements, cash flows and/or liquidityicl be materially and adversely affected.

Our ability to attract and retain talent is critidato the success of our business and a failure  gb may materially and adversely affect
performance.

Our officers and employees are an important regoaed we see attracting and retaining a dedicatddalented team to execute our KE
operational business model as crucial to our ghititachieve and maintain an advantage over otherebuilders. We face intense competi
for qualified personnel, particularly at senior ragament levels, from other homebuilders, from otleenpanies in the housing and real e
industries, particularly with the increased rest@grconstruction activity in 2012, and from compemin various other industries with respet
certain roles or functions. Moreover, the prolongedsing downturn and the decline in the markatevaff our common stock during the hou:
downturn have made it difficult for us to attraadaretain talent, even as we are making a targeffed to strengthen and expand certain of
local field management teams and talent as paouofstrategic growth initiatives. If we are unabdecontinue to retain and attract quali
employees, or if we need to significantly incregsenpensation and benefits to do so, or, alterriggive we are required or believe it
appropriate to reduce our overhead expenses thrsiggificant personnel reductions, our performarae, ability to achieve and maintai
competitive advantage and our consolidated findsta@ements could be materially and adverselyctdte
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Changes in global or regional environmental conditis and governmental actions in response to suclartdes may adversely affect us
increasing the costs of or restricting our planned future growth activities.

There is growing concern from members of the sifier@ommunity and the general public that an irse in global average temperat
due to emissions of greenhouse gases and othernhaatizities have or will cause significant changesveather patterns and increase
frequency and severity of natural disasters. Ameased frequency or duration of extreme weatheditons and environmental events cc
limit, delay and/or increase the costs to devedoy land build new homes and reduce the value dhadrand housing inventory in locations
become less desirable to consumers or blockedvielafement. Projected climate change, if it occaray exacerbate the scarcity of water
other natural resources in affected regions, whalid limit, prevent or increase the costs of resitl development in certain areas. In addi
government mandates, standards or regulationsdeteto mitigate or reduce greenhouse gas emissiopsojected climate change impe
could result in prohibitions or severe restrictiamsland development in certain areas, increaserggntransportation and raw material costs
make building materials less available or more agpe, or cause us to incur compliance expensesodret financial obligations to me
permitting or land development- or home constructielated requirements that we will be unable toyfudcover (due to market conditions
other factors), and reduce our housing gross pmaditgins and adversely effect our consolidatednfifed statements, potentially to a mate
degree. As a result, climate change impacts, amsl dad land development and home construction atdadand/or the manner in which they
interpreted or implemented, to address potentiadate change impacts, could increase our costshawd a longerm adverse impact on ¢
business and our consolidated financial statemdmis is a particular concern with respect to oay Vest Coast homebuilding report
segment, as California has instituted some of thstraxtensive and stringent environmental lawsrasitlential building construction stande
in the country.

Information technology failures and data securityrdaches could harm our busines

We use information technology, digital telecommatiizns and other computer resources to carry optitant operational and promotio
marketing activities and to maintain our busine=srds. Many of these resources are provided endér maintained on our behalf by third-
party service providers pursuant to agreementssiietify to varying degrees certain security andice level standards. Although we and
service providers employ what we believe are adegsecurity, disaster recovery and other prevemtatind corrective measures, our abilit
conduct our business may be impaired if these ressuincluding our primary website, are comprochisegraded, damaged or fail, whe
due to a virus or other harmful circumstance, ititgyxal penetration or disruption of our informatitathnology resources by a third party, na
disaster, hardware or software corruption or failar error (including a failure of security conrahcorporated into or applied to such hard
or software), telecommunications system failureyise provider error or failure, intentional or aténtional personnel actions (including
failure to follow our security protocols), or losbnnectivity to our networked resources. A sigaificand extended disruption in the functiol
of these resources, including our primary websitelld damage our reputation and cause us to logeroers, orders, deliveries and rever
result in the unintended and/or unauthorized pubigclosure or the misappropriation of proprietgogrsonal identifying and confiden
information (including information about our homgkus and business partners), and require us to siganificant expense to address
remediate or otherwise resolve these kinds of gsstibe release of confidential information may dksad to litigation or other proceedit
against us by affected individuals and/or busingmdgners and/or by regulators, and the outcomeuoh groceedings, which could inclt
penalties or fines and cause reputational harmddwave a material and adverse effect on our categteld financial statements. In addition,
costs of maintaining adequate protection againsh shreats, depending on their evolution, pervasige and frequency and/or government-
mandated standards or obligations regarding piiveeetforts, could be material to our consolidafiedncial statements in a particular perio
over various periods.

Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

tem 2. PROPERTIES

We lease our corporate headquarters in Los Ang@akfornia. Our homebuilding division offices (et for our San Antonio, Tex
office) and our KB Home Studios are located in éehspace in the markets where we conduct busiéssown the premises for our ¢
Antonio office.

We believe that such properties, including the papaint located therein, are suitable and adequateéd the needs of our businesses.

25




Table of Contents

Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Nevada Development Contract Litigati

On November 4, 2011, the Eighth Judicial Districiu@, Clark County, Nevada set for trial a consatiédl action againstKB HOME
Nevada Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of ol"KB Nevada”), in a case entitleldas Vegas Development Associates, LLC, Essex Reatk
Partners, LLC, et al. v. KB HOME Nevada It In 2007, Las Vegas Development Associates, LLG/DJA”) agreed to purchase from |
Nevada approximatel83 acres of land located near Las Vegas, Nevada. L¥Di#sequently assigned its rights to Essex Reatd&Rartner
LLC (“Essex”). KB Nevada and Essex entered inteaelopment agreement relating to certain majoagtfucture improvements. LVD#'anc
Essexs complaint, initially filed in 2008, alleged th&B Nevada breached the development agreement, landalieged that KB Neva
fraudulently induced them to enter into the purehaad development agreements. LVDA's and Essexiders subsequently filed rele
actions that were consolidated into the LVDA/Ess®tter. The consolidated plaintiffs sought reseissf the agreements or, in the alterna
compensatory damages of $55 milliplus unspecified punitive damages and other damagekrelated loan interest charges in excess t
million (the “Claimed Damages”). KB Nevada has iédrthe allegations, and believes it has meritaridefenses to the consolidated plaintiffs’
claims. At a November 19, 2012 hearing, the cdertied all of the consolidated plaintiffisiotions for summary judgment on their claims
addition, the court granted several of KB Nevadattions for summary judgment, eliminating, amonbeotof the consolidated plaintiffs’
claims, all claims for fraud, negligent misrepreagion, and punitive damages. With the caidécisions, the only remaining claims agains
Nevada are for contract damages and rescissiorleWtd ultimate outcome is uncert— we believe it is reasonably possible that the in
this matter could range from zero to the amounthef Claimed Damages (now excluding any punitive aiggs per the coust’action) plu
prejudgment interest, which could be material to @ansolidated financial statementskB Nevada believes it will be successful in defeg
against the consolidated plaintiffs’ remaining eiaiand that the consolidated plaintiffs will notdgarded rescission or damages. A jog-
trial, originally set for September 2012 and thentsued until January 2013, has now been furthaticued to October 15, 2013.

Other Matters

In addition to the specific proceeding describedvabwe are involved in other litigation and regulatgsoceedings incidental to ¢
business that are in various procedural stagesbélieve that the accruals we have recorded forgireband reasonably estimable losses
respect to these proceedings are adequate andshaft,November 30, 201R,was not reasonably possible that an additioretenial loss he
been incurred in an amount in excess of the estithamounts already recognized on our consolidateshdial statements. We evaluate
accruals for litigation and regulatory proceedirsgdeast quarterly and, as appropriate, adjust ttemeflect (i) the facts and circumstar
known to us at the time, including information refiag negotiations, settlements, rulings and ote&vant events and developments; (ii)
advice and analyses of counsel; and (iii) the aptioms and judgment of management. Similar facami considerations are used in establis
new accruals for proceedings as to which losses hagcome probable and reasonably estimable aintkean evaluation is made. Based or
experience, we believe that the amounts that magldimed or alleged against us in these proceedingsot a meaningful indicator of
potential liability. The outcome of any of thes®geedings, including the defense and other litigetélated costs and expenses we may i
however, is inherently uncertain and could diffign#icantly from the estimate reflected in a relhtaccrual, if made. Therefore, it is poss
that the ultimate outcome of any proceeding, #xeess of a related accrual or if no accrual hah Ineade, could be material to our consolid
financial statements.

Item 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The following table presents certain informatiogamding our executive officers as of December 8122

Year Years
Assumed at Other Positions and Other
Present KB Business Experience within the From —
Name Age Present Position Position Home Last Five Years (a) To
Jeffrey T. Mezger 57 Ppresident and Chief Executive Officer (b) 2006 19
Jeff J. Kaminski 51 Executive Vice President and Chief 2010 2 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer &Btcategy 2008-
Financial Officer Board member, Federal-Mogul Corporation (a global 2010

supplier of component parts and systems to the
automotive, heavy-duty, industrial and transportkets)

Senior Vice President, Global Purchasing and SjyalBward 2005-

Member, Federal-Mogul Corporation 2008
Albert Z. Praw 64  Executive Vice President, Real Estate an 2011 16 (c) Chief Executive Officer, Landstone Communities, L{zC 2006-
Business Development real estate development company) 2011
Brian J. Woram 52 Executive Vice President, General Counsel 2010 2 Senior Vice President and Chief Legal Officer, H8Rck, 2009-
and Secretary Inc. (a provider of tax, banking and business and 2010

consulting services)
Senior Vice President, Chief Legal Officer and €hie 2005-

Compliance Officer, Centex Corporation (a homeharild 2009
and provider of mortgage banking services)

William R. Hollinger 54  Senior Vice President and Chief Accounting 2007 25
Officer
Thomas F. Norton 42  Senior Vice President, Human Resources 2009 4 Chief Human Resources Officer, BJ's Restaurants,(Bn 2006-
owner and operator of national full service resiats) 2009
Tom Silk 44 Senior Vice President, 2011 1 Vice President of Marketing for Hydration and JuBrands,  2009-
Marketing and Communications PepsiCo Beverages Americas (a beverage marketiohg an 2011
distribution company)
Senior Director, Global Brand Management, Activisio 2006-
Blizzard, Inc. (a game publisher of interactive 2009

entertainment software)
(@) All positions described were with us, unless othsevindicatec
(b) Mr. Mezger has served as a director since -
(c) Mr. Praw was employed by us from 1989-1992 faoch 19942006. He was elected to his present position irokt 2011

There is no family relationship between any of executive officers or between any of our execubifficers and any of our directors.

PART Il

tem 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT ' S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

As of December 31, 2012, there were 735 holdeneoérd of our common stock. Our common stock idedaon the New York Sto
Exchange under the ticker symbol “KBHIhe following table presents, for the periods iatkd, the price ranges of our common stock, ant
dividends declared and paid per share:

Year Ended November 30, 2012 Year Ended November 30, 2011
Dividends Dividends Dividends Dividends
High Low Declared Paid High Low Declared Paid
First Quarter $ 1291 % 6.17 $ 062t $ 062t $ 16.11 $ 1141 % 062t $ .062¢
Second Quarter 13.12 6.7 .025( .025( 13.6i 10.8¢ .062¢ .062¢
Third Quarter 11.2¢ 6.4¢ .025( .025( 12.2i 5.0¢ .062¢ .062¢
Fourth Quarter 17.3( 10.8¢ .025( .025( 8.0C 5.0z .062¢ .062¢

The declaration and payment of cash dividends areshof our common stock, whether at current leweks all, are at the discretion of
board of directors, and depend upon, among otliegshour expected future earnings, cash flowsitalap
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requirements, debt structure and adjustments theoperational and financial investment strateggt ganeral financial condition, as well
general business conditions.

The description of our equity compensation planguired by Item 201(d) of Regulation kKS-s incorporated herein by reference
“Part Ill — Item 12. Security Ownership of Certdeneficial Owners and Management and Related Stdd&hMatters” of this report.

We did not repurchase any of our equity securdtiging the fourth quarter of 2012.

Stock Performance Graph

The graph below compares the cumulative total netfilk B Home common stock, the S&P 500 Index, tB& FHomebuilding Index and tl
Dow Jones Home Construction Index for the last figar-end periods ended November 30.

Comparison of Five-Year Cumulative Total Return
Among KB Home, S&P 500 Index, S&P Homebuilding
Index and Dow Jones Home Construction Index
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2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
KB Home $ 100 5 57 $ 69 $ 58 $ 39 $ 77
S&P 500 Index 100 62 78 85 92 107
S&P Homebuilding Index 100 62 76 70 80 167
Dow Jones Home Construction Index 100 70 83 76 82 144

The above graph is based on the KB Home commolk stod index prices calculated as of the last tigadiay before December 1 of
yeaend periods presented. As of November 30, 20tz closing price of KB Home common stock on Mew York Stock Exchange w
$14.36 per share. The performance of our commark stepicted in the graphs above represents pafsirpemce only and is not indicative
future performance. Total return assumes $100 fedest market close on November 30, 2007 in KB Hooremon stock, the S&P 500 Ind
the S&P Homebuilding Index and the Dow Jones HomesBuction Index including reinvestment of dividsn
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tem 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The data in this table should be read in conjunciiith “Iltem 7. Managemerg’Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esult
of Operations” and our Consolidated Financial Stetets and the Notes thereto, which are includetiitam 8. Financial Statements :
Supplementary Data.” Both are included in this repo

KB HOME
SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
(Dollars In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Years Ended November 30,

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Statement of Operations Data:
Revenues:
Homebuilding $ 154843 $ 1,30556. $ 1581,76: $ 1,816,441 $  3,023,16
Financial services 11,68: 10,30¢ 8,23: 8,43t 10,76
Total revenues $ 1560,11' $ 1,315860 $ 1,589,990 $ 1,824,851 $  3,033,93
Operating income (loss):
Homebuilding $ (20,256 $ (103,07) $ (16,045 $ (236,52() $ (860,647)
Financial services 8,69:- 6,792 5,11« 5,18¢ 6,27¢
Operating loss $ (11,569 $ (96,28 $ (10,93) $ (231,33 $ (854,36
Pretax loss $ (79,05) $ (181,169 $ (76,368 $ (311,18) $ (967,93)
Net loss $ (58,959 $ (178,769 $ (69,36¢) $ (101,78) $ (976,13))
Basic and diluted loss per share $ (76) $ (2.32) % (90 % (1.39) $ (12.59)
Cash dividends declared per common share $ A378 % 2500 % 2500 % 2500 $ .812¢
Balance Sheet Data:
Assets:
Homebuilding $ 255724 $ 248036 $ 3,080,300 $ 3,402,560 $  3,992,14
Financial services 4,45k 32,17: 29,44 33,42¢ 52,15:
Total assets $ 256169 $ 251254 $ 3,109,74 $ 3,43598 $  4,044,30
Mortgages and notes payable $ 1,722,81' $ 158357 $ 1,77552 $ 1,820,370 $ 1,941,553
Stockholders’ equity $ 376,80t $ 442,65 % 631,87¢ $ 707,22 $ 830,60!
Homebuilding Data:
Net orders 6,70z 6,632 6,55¢ 8,341 8,27¢
Unit backlog 2,57 2,15¢ 1,33¢ 2,12¢ 2,26¢
Homes delivered 6,28: 5,812 7,34¢ 8,48¢ 12,43¢
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ltem7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Overview.Revenues are generated from our homebuilding awaddial services operations. The following tablespnts a summary of «
consolidated results of operations for the yeadedriNovember 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 (in thousa&axdgpt per share amounts):

Years Ended November 30, Variance
2012 2011 2010 2012 vs 2011 2011 vs 2010

Revenues:

Homebuilding $ 1,548,433 $ 1,305,56. $ 1,581,76: 18% a7%

Financial services 11,68: 10,30¢ 8,23 13 25

Total $ 1,560,11 $ 1,315,861 $ 1,589,99 18% (17%

Pretax income (loss):

Homebuilding $ (89,93¢) $ (207,246 $ (88,51 57 % (1349%

Financial services 10,88: 26,07¢ 12,14: (58) 11&
Total pretax loss (79,059 (181,169 (76,369 5€ (137)
Income tax benefit 20,10( 2,40( 7,00( 73¢ (66)
Net loss $ (58,95) % (178,769 $ (69,36¢) 67 % (158)%
Basic and diluted loss per share $ (7€) $ (237 $ (:90) 67 % (15)%

In 2012, the overall housing market showed steagtilgouraging signs of stabilizing and recoverirgfrthe severe downturn that bega
mid-2006, with the benefits extending to both the n@mé and resale segments. The pace of stabilizatidnrecovery between and wit
individual housing markets, however, was uneverth wertain markets and submarkets exhibiting greapevard momentum than others
housing starts, home sales and home selling piWWesexpect these dynamics — overall improvemert végional and local market-toarke
variability — to continue in 2013. We also beliedmt in this environment, our ongoing strategicuon higheperforming, choice locatio
enabled us to achieve improved results in 2012 hasdositioned us for growth in 2013 and beyond.

The present housing recovery that began in 2012bas driven by growing demand and a tighteninglsupf homes available for sa
This demand has been fueled by historically highshwg affordability, particularly compared to riginental costs, reflecting recolalw interes
rates for mortgage loans and relatively low homléngeprices due to the significant reductions tleaturred during the housing downtt
Demand is also emerging with growth in househotdhtions amid a gradually improving economic angleyment environment. The num|
of homes available for sale has fallen in severalkets with the upturn in demand, including fromaeistors purchasing homes to convert
rental properties. Also affecting supply are a ot in the number of lenderwned and other distressed homes available for aalductanc
of some current homeowners to sell at existingepiéwels, including homeowners who have mortgage lmalances that exceed such levels
the impact of diminished new home constructionvitgtiduring the housing downturn.

The present housing recovery has had a positivadtngn our business and on the homebuilding ingultrt the improvement was fron
low base — annual U.S. new home sales in 2011 therowest on record -and we believe the favorable trends that emerge@12 will nee:
to strengthen and continue for some time beforartarity of housing markets return to a more histily typical state. Moreover, to varyi
degrees, many housing markets continue to facéfisimt challenges. These include uncertain econaunditions, tepid job and wage grov
tight mortgage lending standards, reduced creditlahility for mortgage loans, continued elevatedels of mortgage loan delinquencies
defaults, and increased construction labor andlimgjimaterials costs. If these challenges do nateglor if they deepen, they could slow or
the present housing recovery and negatively affectperformance. Therefore, although we are engedrdy the healthier housing mal
environment, and believe that it could be the beigim of a new upward business cycle for homebujdand are planning to make additic
investments in land and land development and attrategic growth initiatives in 2013 to further exyl our business, our future performe
and the success of the strategies we implementgdjodt or refine as necessary or appropriate)sighificantly depend on prevailing econo
and credit and financial market conditions.
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As discussed above under “Part | — Item 1. BusiresStrategy,”we transformed and refocused the scope, scale esitlop of ou
business both geographically and operationally, exetuted on three primary and integrated stratggéds, with achieving and maintain
profitability at the scale of prevailing market ditions our highest priority. Within this stratediamework, we improved and refined
products; moved to align our overhead to markeivictlevels through a dedicated effort to contouists while maintaining a solid grov
platform; improved our operating efficiencies; shif resources from underperforming areas; and rims@stments in our business in prefe
locations with perceived strong growth prospectsth\Wthese strategic actions, we believe we streamgttl our overall business and felt
entered 2012 well-positioned for profitability ifid as housing market conditions improved.

With the housing recovery gaining traction, in tager half of 2012, we expanded on our primargtsgic goals to target both profitabi
and growth. As further described above under “Paft Item 1. Business — Strategythis encompassed implementing four main stra
growth initiatives: (1) aggressively investing iantl and land development in highmsrforming, choice locations. In 2012, we inve
approximately $565 million in land and land devetmmt in such preferred locations; (2) increasingneies per new home community oper
sales through an intense focus on sales performéBfeactivating certain inventory in stabilizingankets that was previously held for fut
development; and (4) bringing additional resoutogsirgeted markets where we operate.

In addition to our strategic growth initiatives, \believe we further strengthened our business 2 2y implementing an operatio
transition to Nationstar as our preferred mortglgeler. Since May 1, when it began accepting agtitins under our preferred relations
Nationsta’s performance as our preferred lender has helppdotade more stability in the conversion of oucklag into home deliveries a
revenues. We also extended our senior debt matgfitgdule through the issuance of the $350 Milid@0% Senior Notes and the $350 Mill
7.50% Senior Notes in the first and third quartezspectively, to fund the related simultaneoudiegiple tender offers for certain of our sel
notes due in 2014 and 2015 that were initially mamldanuary 19, 2012 (the “January 2012 Tendergjfand on July 11, 2012 (thduly 201:
Tender Offers”).

We believe that through our execution of our sg@teyrowth initiatives, combined with the actiong Wwave taken through the hous
downturn and the recent improvement in housing etatknditions, we were able to generate positiva-g@eryear results in 2012 in seve
areas of our business, as discussed below.

¢ Revenue. Total revenues of $1.56 billion for the year eshddovember 30, 2012 increased 19% from $1.32 hiliilo2011. The year-
over-year increase in total revenues was primatilg to an increase in housing revenues to $1.%5i6rbfrom $1.31 billionin 2011
reflecting an increase in the number of homes dedi and an increase in the overall average sqiliieg of those homes. We had
land sale revenues in 2012, compared to total $atel revenues of $.3 milliom 2011. Included in our total revenues were final
services revenues of $11.7 million in 2012 and $Million in 2011. The year-overear increase in financial services revenues rteit
higher marketing services fees as a result of awing a marketing services agreement in place [fosf&2012, compared to only
portion of 2011, and higher title services revenues

o Homes Delivere«. We delivered 6,282 homes in 2012, up 8% from B8dmes delivered in 2011, partly due to our reldyi
higher backlog at the beginning of the year, whigs up 61% on a year-ovgear basis largely as a result of a 39% increase!
orders in the latter half of 2011.

o Average Selling Pric. Our overall average selling price of homes detidencreased 10% in 2012 (and 9@011 compared
2010), primarily due to changes in community anobpict mix, as we delivered more homes from manksts stronger economi
that featured higher household incomes, with custsmvho chose larger home sizes at higher selliitg$ and spent more
design options at our KB Home Studios.

*  Operating LossOur homebuilding operating loss improved by $82i8ion to $20.3 million in 2012, compared to $103rillion in
2011, reflecting higher housing gross profits, lgasffset by higher selling, general and administe expenses. The year-owsal
improvement in 2012 also reflected a $30.8 millioss on loan guaranty recorded in 2011 relatedutoivestment in a resident
development joint venture located near Las Vegasala that underwent a bankruptcy reorganizatidghahyear as discussed in N
9. Investments in Unconsolidated Joint Venturethan Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsis report. As a percentage
homebuilding revenues, our operating loss was 132012, compared to 7.9% in 2011.

> Housing Gross Profit. Housing gross profits increased by $55.4 millior$230.9 million in 2012 from $175.5 million 2011
Our housing gross profit margin was 14.9% in 20dfhgared to 13.4%n 2011. Our housing gross profits for 2012 refe
insurance recoveries of $26.5 million related foaie costs and costs to handle claims with restgepteviously delivered homt
including homes affected by allegedly defectivewdaly manufactured in China, and favorable net wayradjustments of $8
million that reflected trends in our overall wararlaims experience, which were partly offset hyentory impairment and la
option contract abandonment charges of $28.5
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million . In 2011, our housing gross profits included $2&i8ion of inventory impairment and land optionntoact abandonme
charges, which were partially offset by $7.4 milliof favorable warranty adjustments. Our housirgsgprofit margin, excludir
inventory impairment and land option contract almmdent charges, was 16.8% in 2012 compared to 1542011. Ou
calculation of this measure of housing gross profitgin is described below under “Non-GAAP Finahbaasures.”

o Selling, General and Administrative Expensgalling, general and administrative expenses twtf251.2 millionin 2012, up fror
$247.9 million in 2011. The year-ovgear increase was primarily due to an $8.8 millibarge recorded in 2012 as a result ¢
unfavorable court decision that is being appeadsddiscussed in Note 14. Legal Matters in the NuieSonsolidated Financ
Statements in this report, and costs associatddtheé year-oveyear increase in the volume of homes delivered)ypaffset by
costsaving initiatives. In addition, selling, generaldaadministrative expenses for 2011 included therible impact of leg
expense recoveries of $8.3 million. As a percentafghousing revenues, to which these expenses ast ofosely correlate
selling, general and administrative expenses imgade 16.2% in 2012, compared to 19.092011. The percentage improves
2012 compared to 2011, primarily due to the 19%-pear-year increase in housing revenues.

* Net Loss. We generated a net loss of $59.0 million , o6%@r diluted share, in 2012, compared to a net éds$178.8 million, or
$2.32per diluted share, in 2011. Our 2012 net loss oetlinsurance recoveries and favorable net warraditystments, which we
partly offset by inventory impairment and land opticontract abandonment charges and the courtiale@barge, all as noted abc
The net loss in 2012 also included an income tarefieof $20.1 million, reflecting the resolution of federal and state aadits. It
2011, our net loss included inventory impairmend &and option contract abandonment charges of $2fl®n, and a joint ventu
impairment charge of $53.7 million and a loss oanlguaranty of $30.8 million both related to our investment in the reside
development joint venture located near Las Vegasjaba noted above. Our net loss for 2011 alsodedwa gain of $19.8 millic
associated with the wind down of KBA Mortgage, whiteased offering mortgage banking services inJate 2011, legal exper
recoveries of $8.3 million, a favorable warrantyuatment of $7.4 million, and an income tax benefi$2.4 million .

e Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Ca€hur cash, cash equivalents and restricted cdaledo$567.1 millionat November 3!
2012, up from $479.5 millioat November 30, 2011. Of our total cash, cash edgmis and restricted cash at November 30, 201
2011, $524.8 million and $415.1 million , respeelyy was unrestricted.

* Inventories.While we made substantial investments in land amd Idevelopment in 2012, our inventory balance lo¥ % billion at
November 30, 2012 was slightly lower than $1.73 billionbalance at November 30, 2011. This decrease refléebe higher numb
of homes delivered and the inventory impairment mdi option contract abandonment charges of $2fil®on recorded in 2012.
also reflected that our land investments during22@kulted in our having 4,925 more lots controlieder land option contracts or ot
similar contracts, which required a lower upframtéstment, at November 30, 2012 than we had atMbee30, 2011. Overall, we t
a higher percentage of lots controlled under laptoa contracts or other similar contracts at the ef the year—27% in 201.
compared to 18% in 2011. We ended our 2012 fiseal with a land inventory portfolio comprised of Z82lots owned or controlle
representing an increase of 11% from the 40,1&daed or controlled at November 30, 2011.

* Mortgages and Notes Payat. Our debt balance at November 30, 2012 was $1lliénhh up from $1.58 billionat November 30, 201
Our debt balance at the end of our 2012 fiscal yeféected the issuance during the year of the $3iiion 8.00% Senior Notes and t
$350 Million 7.50% Senior Notes, which was largeljset by the total purchase of $584.9 million ggeegate principal amount
certain of our senior notes due in 2014 and 20X¥Syaunt to the applicable tender offers noted abOue.ratio of debt to total capi
was 82.1% at November 30, 2012, compared to 7&2Bovember 30, 2011. Our ratio of net debt tol toapital (a calculation that
described below under “Non-GAAP Financial Measure&is 75.4% at November 30, 2012 and 71.4% at Nbee30, 2011.

¢ Net Orders and Backlc. Net orders from our homebuilding operations iasexl 1% in 2012, despite an 18% year-gea- decrease
our community count at the end of the year. Congé&rehe prior year, net orders in 2012 increasédand 9%in our West Coast al
Central homebuilding reporting segments, respdgtivend decreased 27% and 4fo our Southwest and Southeast homebuil
reporting segments, respectively. The year-ger decreases reflected our strategic repositiofiom certain underperformi
locations in the affected segments, and a sigmifid@wnsizing of our business in Arizona and ChgeloNorth Carolina in 2011 a
into 2012. The value of the net orders we generat@@12 increased 15% to $1.73 billion from $1flion in 2011, also reflecting tl
impact of our strategic repositioning initiativ8$iree of our four homebuilding reporting segmemsegated year-overear increases
net order value, with our West Coast homebuildiegorting segment up 23% to $859.3 millioour Central homebuilding reporti
segment up 16% to $484.6 million , and our Southleamebuilding reporting segment up 5% to $254.ani. The number of hom
in our ending backlog rose 20% year over year, arigndue to a higher number of homes in backlothat
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beginning of 2012 and the slight increase in odranders for the year. The potential future housienues in backlog at Novem
30, 2012 increased 35% from the prior year, refigahe higher number of homes in backlog and adiigverall average selling price.
The following table presents information concernmg net orders, cancellation rate, ending backlod ending community count for
years ended November 30, 2012 and 2011 (dollgt®oimsands)

Years Ended November 30,

2012 2011
Net orders 6,70:% 6,63
Net order value $ 1,733,14  $ 1,511,65
Cancellation rate 31% 2%
Ending backlog — homes 2,571 2,15¢
Ending backlog — value $ 618,62t $ 458,95(
Ending community count 191 234

Our lower community count in 2012 compared to 20@éflected the impact of our strategic repositiongffprts to focus on higher-
performing, choice locations and, in part, the elost of older communities during 2012 at a fasterepdnan openings of new communities
sales. With the substantial inventaslated investments we made in 2012 and are plgrtoimake in 2013, however, we expect that ouradl
community count will increase in 2013. Our cand@larate was 31% in 2012, which was slightly higthen the 29%n 2011, due in partto t
mortgage loan funding issues we encountered in p@f@e we transitioned to Nationstar as our preemortgage lender, as further descr
in Note 6. Inventory Impairments and Land Optiom@act Abandonments in the Notes to Consolidatedrsial Statements in this report.
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HOMEBUILDING

We have grouped our homebuilding activities intarfoeportable segments, which we refer to as WestsC Southwest, Central ¢
Southeast. As of November 30, 2012, our homebujldéporting segments consisted of ongoing operatioeated in the following states: W
Coast — California; Southwest — Arizona, Nevada Heav Mexico; Central — Colorado and Texas; and Beast —Florida, Maryland, Nort
Carolina and Virginia.

The following table presents a summary of certaiarfcial and operational data for our homebuildapgrations (dollars in thousan
except average selling price):

Years Ended November 30,

2012 2011 2010
Revenues:
Housing $ 1,548,43. $ 1,305,29 $ 1,575/48
Land — 263 6,27¢
Total 1,548,43. 1,305,56: 1,581,76:
Costs and expenses:
Construction and land costs
Housing (1,317,52) (2,129,78) (1,301,67)
Land — (200 (6,617
Total (1,317,52) (2,129,98) (1,308,28)
Selling, general and administrative expenses (251,159 (247,88¢) (289,52()
Loss on loan guaranty — (30,76% —
Total (1,568,68) (1,408,63)) (1,597,80)
Operating loss $ (20,25¢) $ (103,079 % (16,045
Homes delivered 6,282 5,817 7,34¢
Average selling price $ 246,50( $ 224,60( $ 214,501
Housing gross profit margin as a percentage ofihgugvenues 14.¢% 13.4% 174 %
Selling, general and administrative expenses a&s@eptage of housing revenues 16.2 % 19.C% 18.4%
Operating loss as a percentage of homebuildinguese (1.39% (7.9% (1.0%

Revenueddomebuilding revenues totaled $1.55 billion in 20it2reasing 19% from $1.31 billion in 2011, whicad decreased 17¢®m
$1.58 billion in 2010. The year-over-year increas@omebuilding revenues in 2012 was due to hidgfeersing revenues, while the year-over-
year decrease in 2011 reflected lower housing amdl $ale revenue

Housing revenues were $1.55 billion in 2012, coragan $1.31 billion in 2011 and $1.58 billion in120 Housing revenues rose 1986
2012 from the previous year, reflecting an 8% iaseein the number of homes delivered and a ita¥ease in the overall average selling f
of those homes. In 2011, housing revenues decliii@tl from 2010 due to a 21% decrease in homes detivpartly offset by a 5%crease i
the overall average selling price.

We delivered 6,282 homes in 2012, up from 5,Baghes delivered in the previous year. The incr@asige number of homes delivered
partly due to our relatively higher backlog at tieginning of the year, which was up 61% on a ye@r-gear basis largely as a result of a !
increase in net orders in the latter half of 204/ithin our homebuilding reporting segments, the banof homes delivered in 2012 increase
11% , 19% and 3% in our West Coast, Central andh®ast homebuilding reporting segments, respeytivadid decreased by 19% ou
Southwest homebuilding reporting segment, in eaa$e cas compared to the yearier period. The decrease in homes deliveredui
Southwest homebuilding reporting segment refleetstiategic reduction in our investments in certaiderperforming locations in the segn
and the significant downsizing of our business fizéna during 2011 and into 2012, each part of eerall repositioning of our operations
focus on better-performing markets.
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In 2011, we delivered 5,812 homes, down from 7 Bd@ies in 2010. The decrease in the number of hdelesred was partly due to «
relatively low backlog level at the beginning of12Q which was down 37% on a year-oyear basis. The lower beginning backlog refle
softness in net orders in the third and fourth tprarof 2010 due to generally weak housing markeditions, depressed demand and :
activity following a temporary surge in the firstd quarters of 2010 that was motivated by the etioin of a federal homebuyer tax credit
“Tax Credit”), and, to a lesser extent, the implementation ofstnategic repositioning initiatives. Each of oumnfebuilding reporting segme
delivered fewer homes in 2011 compared to 201® décreases ranging from 13% in our West Coast hoildéng reporting segment to 30%
our Southeast homebuilding reporting segment.

The overall average selling price of homes delidénereased to $246,500 2012 primarily due to changes in community anatpct mix
as we delivered more homes from markets with ecanamd consumer demand dynamics that supportedrldngme sizes and higher sel
prices. Our higher overall average selling pricéarnes delivered in 2012 reflected year-over-yrargases of 16% , 17% and $8our Wes
Coast, Southwest and Southeast homebuilding regogggments, respectively. In our Central homelgldeporting segment, the aver
selling price of homes delivered in 2012 remaingskatially even with 2011.

Our 2011 overall average selling price of homesvdedd rose to $224,600 from $214,5002010, as average selling prices increas
three of our four homebuilding reporting segmeXtsar over year, average selling prices in 201 leiased 5%n both our Southwest and Cen
homebuilding reporting segments and 1B%ur Southeast homebuilding reporting segmenbuinWest Coast homebuilding reporting segn
the 2011 average selling price of homes deliveetahsed 3% om the prior year. The increase in our overadrage selling price in 2011 w
mainly due to changes in the proportion of homdweled from communities with highgriced homes, and a shift in product mix to la
homes.

We had no land sales in 2012. Land sale revente@edds.3 million in 2011 and $6.3 millian 2010. Generally, land sale revenues fluct
with our decisions to maintain or decrease our kawdership position in certain markets based upenvblume of our holdings, our market
strategy, the strength and number of competingldpees entering particular markets at given paimtsme, the availability of land at reasone
prices, and prevailing market conditions.

Operating LossOur homebuilding business generated operating$ass$20.3 million in 2012, $103.1 million in 20&hd $16.0 milliorin
2010. Our homebuilding operating loss as a pergeméhomebuilding revenues was 1.3% in 2012, 792011, and 1.0% in 2010.

The year-ovelear improvement in our 2012 operating results mémarily due to higher housing gross profits, padffset by highe
selling, general and administrative expenses. mm@avement in 2012 also reflected the $30.8 millimss on loan guaranty recorded in 2
related to our investment in a residential develepijoint venture located near Las Vegas, Nevaaauhderwent a bankruptcy reorganizatic
that year as discussed in Note 9. Investments tohbolidated Joint Ventures in the Notes to Codatdid Financial Statements in this rej
Our housing gross profits for 2012 increased by.458illion from $175.5 million for the yeagarlier period. Housing gross profits for 2
included $26.5 million of insurance recoveries tedato repair costs and costs to handle claims vesipect to previously delivered hon
including homes affected by allegedly defectivewhly manufactured in China, and favorable net wayraadjustments of $8.6 million tt
reflected trends in our overall warranty claimsengnce. The impact of these items was mostly bffganventory impairment and land opt
contract abandonment charges of $28.5 million . ZDir2 housing gross profit margin improved by lebcpntage points to 14.9% fralB3.4%
in 2011. Our housing gross profit margin, excludimgentory impairment and land option contract almarment charges, was 16.8&2012 an
15.4% in 2011.

In 2011, the year-overear increase in our operating loss reflected lol@using gross profits compared to 2010 and the ¢s loal
guaranty, partly offset by reduced selling, genaral administrative expenses. The decrease inigpgsdss profits in 2011 resulted from fe
homes delivered and a lower housing gross profigmaOur housing gross profit margin was 13.4%20@11, compared to 17.4% 2010. Ir
2011, our housing gross profits included $25.8iarillof inventory impairment and land option contrabandonment charges, which were p
offset by $7.4 million of favorable warranty adjmgints that were made based on downward trends iovenall warranty claims experience
homes previously delivered. In 2010, our housingsgrprofits included $19.6 millioof inventory impairment and land option cont
abandonment charges. Our housing gross profit maegicluding inventory impairment and land opti@nitact abandonment charges,
15.4% in 2011, compared to 18.6% in 2010. The pearyear decrease in our housing gross profit margi20Oihl reflected reduced operal
leverage from the lower volume of homes delivermamparatively fewer homes delivered from higheargin communities in 2011, largely ¢
result of higher-margin communities that were ofbsat in 2010; and a shift in product mix.

We had no land sale income in 2012. Our land sgesrated income of $.1 million in 2011 and logse®.3 millionin 2010. The land s
results in 2011 and 2010 included impairment ctagdes.1 million and $.3 million, respectively, agdd to planned future land sales.
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As described in Note 6. Inventohypairment and Land Option Contract AbandonmentiénNotes to Consolidated Financial Statemel
this report, each community or land parcel in owned inventory is assessed to determine if indisabd potential impairment exist. Basec
our evaluations, we recognized charges for invgritopairments of $28.1 million in 2012, $22.7 nalti in 2011 and $9.8 milliom 2010. Th
inventory impairment charges in all three yearkeotéd challenging economic and housing marketitiond in certain of our served markets
addition, the inventory impairment charges we redoed in 2012 were partly due to changes to ourajmmal or selling strategy for cert.
communities in an effort to accelerate our retunrirvestment. In 2011, the inventory impairmentrglea included an $18.1 million adjustmr
to the fair value of real estate collateral thattaek back on a note receivable. Deteriorationhia $upply and demand factors in the ov
housing market or in an individual market, or ches@go our operational or selling strategy at cermmmunities may lead to additio
inventory impairment charges, future charges aagettiwith land sales or the abandonment of landmpbntracts related to certain assets.
to the nature or location of the projects, landdHet future development that we activate as padup strategic growth initiatives may hav
somewhat greater likelihood of being impaired tb#ver of our active inventory.

When we decide not to exercise certain land optiontracts or other similar contracts due to madatditions and/or changes in
marketing strategy, we write off the related inwentcosts, including non-refundable deposits anceeoverable precquisition costs. W
recognized abandonment charges associated wittofgtimh contracts and other similar contracts dfi@illion in 2012, $3.1 milliorin 2011 an
$10.1 millionin 2010. Inventory impairment and land option caotrabandonment charges are included in construetial land costs in ¢
consolidated statements of operations.

Selling, general and administrative expenses wté#51.2 million in 2012, up from $247.9 millian 2011, which had decreased fi
$289.5 million in 2010. The year-over-year increms@012 was largely due to the abawentioned court decision charge and costs assd
with the year-over-year increase in the volume ofnbs delivered, partly offset by castving initiatives. In addition, selling, generaid
administrative expenses for 2011 included the falvierimpact of legal expense recoveries of $8.8anilIn 2011, the year-overear decrea:
in selling, general and administrative expenses r@#ected ongoing actions to streamline our oiggtional structure and reduce overhead ¢
including personnel- and payrotated costs, and the lower volume of homes deteAs a percentage of housing revenues, to wthieb
expenses are most closely correlated, selling,rgéaad administrative expenses were 16.2% in 2092)% in 2011 and 18.4% 2010. Th
percentage greatly improved in 2012 compared tdl 2ptimarily due to the 19% year-ovgear increase in housing revenues. In 2011
percentage increased from 2010 as the yearymear-decrease in our housing revenues was larger tthe corresponding reduction in
expenses.

Loss on Loan GuarantyAs discussed in Note 9. Investments in Unconsdidialoint Ventures in the Notes to Consolidated riia
Statements in this report, the loss on loan gugrah®$30.8 millionrecognized in 2011 related to the Nevada joint menhoted above unc
“Operating Loss’and reflected the consummation of a consensualgilezorganization of the venture, known as Sowthek that was confirms
by a bankruptcy court in November 2011 (the “Soktlge Plan”)and included, among other things, the eliminatibradimited sever:
repayment guaranty (the “Springing Guarantyfiat we had provided to the administrative agent tfee lenders to South Edge (
“Administrative Agent”).

Interest Incomelnterest income, which is generated from short-tetwestments and mortgages receivable, totalednfilion in 2012,$.€
million in 2011 and $2.1 million in 2010. Generaliycreases and decreases in interest income tat®igble to changes in the interdsaring
average balances of sheerim investments and mortgages receivable, asasdllctuations in interest rates. Mortgages red#es are primaril
related to land sales.

Interest Expensdnterest expense results principally from borrowing finance land purchases, housing inventoryahdr operating ar
capital needs. Our interest expense, net of amaasalized, totaled $69.8 million in 2012, $4@ndlion in 2011 and $68.3 milliom 2010
Interest expense for 2012 included a $10.3 millass on the early extinguishment of debt as a resudompleting the applicable January 2
and July 2012 Tender Offers. Interest expense@ad 2ncluded a $3.6 million gain on the early egtirshment of secured debt. In 2010, inte
expense included $1.8 million of debt issuancescwsitten off in connection with our voluntary redion of the aggregate commitment ur
our unsecured revolving credit facility with var®iinancial institutions (the “Credit Facility’gnd our subsequent voluntary termination o
Credit Facility. The percentage of interest cajata was 51% in 2012, 54% in 2011 and 45% in 201@ percentage of interest capitali
generally fluctuates based on the amount of invgrgaalifying for interest capitalization. Grosgearest incurred during 2012 increasedbi2Q.7
million to $132.7 million from $112.0 milliom 2011 as a result of the $10.3 million loss om éarly extinguishment of debt in 2012, comp
to the $3.6 million gain on the early extinguishinehsecured debt in 2011, a higher average debt la 2012 and the higher interest rate
the senior notes we issued in 2012 compared tinteeest rates on the senior notes we purchaseer uhd applicable January 2012 and
2012 Tender Offers. Gross interest incurred du?idfjl decreased by $10.2 million , from $122.2 wrilin 2010, as a result of a lower aver
debt level and the $3.6 million gain on the eastfirguishment of secured debt included in 2011, gared to the write off of $1.8 million
debt issuance costs included in 2010.

Equity in Loss of Unconsolidated Joint Ventu@ar unconsolidated joint ventures operate in varimarkets, typically
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where our homebuilding operations are located. &haxonsolidated joint ventures posted combinedmess of $31.8 million in 201%.2
million in 2011 and $122.2 million in 2010. The ye&averyear increase in 2012 was primarily due to landsabmpleted by our unconsolide
joint venture in Maryland. The marked y-overyear decrease in unconsolidated joint venture mge®nn 2011 was primarily due
substantially fewer homes delivered by, and no kalds from, our unconsolidated joint venturesrdp#011, reflecting the significant reduct
in our participation in unconsolidated joint vergsirover the past several years. Activities perfdrhg our unconsolidated joint ventu
generally include acquiring, developing and selliagd, and, in some cases, constructing and deliydrtomes. Our unconsolidated jc
ventures delivered no homes in 2012, one homeid 26d 102 homes in 2010. Our unconsolidated j@ntures generated combined incorr
$8.3 million in 2012, compared to combined losse$403 million in 2011 and $17.2 milliom 2010. Our equity in loss of unconsolidated j
ventures totaled $.4 million in 2012, $55.8 milliam 2011 and $6.3 million in 2010. The year-oyear change in our equity in loss
unconsolidated joint ventures in 2012 and 2011 wmainly due to a charge of $53.7 millioncurred in 2011 to write off our remaini
investment in South Edge, as discussed below u@feBalance Sheet Arrangements.” There were ndvs@arges in 2012 or 2010.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

This report contains information about our housipgss profit margin, excluding inventory impairmesand land option contre
abandonment charges, and our ratio of net delotab dapital, both of which are not calculated édec@dance with generally accepted accoul
principles (“GAAP”). We believe these n@BAAP financial measures are relevant and usefinvtestors in understanding our operations an
leverage employed in our operations, and may befileh comparing us with other companies in thenkbuilding industry to the extent tt
provide similar information. However, because thmuiding gross profit margin, excluding inventory miyment and land option contr
abandonment charges, and the ratio of net delotabdapital are not calculated in accordance BI&AP, these financial measures may nc
completely comparable to other companies in thedbwitding industry and thus, should not be congidén isolation or as an alternative
operating performance and/or financial measurescpiieed by GAAP. Rather, these nGAAP financial measures should be used to supplt
their respective most directly comparable GAAP fiicial measures in order to provide a greater utatling of the factors and trends affec
our operations.

Housing Gross Profit Margin, Excluding Inventory dairment and Land Option Contract Abandonment Chardghe following tabl
reconciles our housing gross profit margin caladah accordance with GAAP to the n@G#®AP financial measure of our housing gross p
margin, excluding inventory impairment and landi@picontract abandonment charges (dollars in thulsa

Years Ended November 30,

2012 2011 2010

Housing revenues $ 154843 $ 1,305,290 $ 1,575,48
Housing construction and land costs (1,317,52) (1,129,78) (1,301,67)
Housing gross profits 230,90 175,51- 273,81(
Add: Inventory impairment and land option contralsandonment charges 28,53 25,74( 19,577
Housing gross profits, excluding inventory impaimhand land option contract

abandonment charges $ 259,43t % 201,25 % 293,38°
Housing gross profit margin as a percentage ofihgugvenues 14.%% 13.2% 17.£%
Housing gross profit margin, excluding inventoryparment and land option

contract abandonment charges, as a percentageisingaevenues 16.8% 15.4% 18.€%

Housing gross profit margin, excluding inventorypmirment and land option contract abandonment esarig a norGAAP financia
measure, which we calculate by dividing housingereies less housing construction and land costsebafeentory impairment and land opt
contract abandonment charges (as applicable) assdavith housing operations recorded during argjweriod, by housing revenues. The r
directly comparable GAAP financial measure is hogsgjross profit margin. We believe housing grossfipmargin, excluding invento
impairment and land option contract abandonmentgelsa is a relevant and useful financial measuiavestors in evaluating our performa
as it measures the gross profit we generated ggadhifon the homes delivered during a given pedaod enhances the comparability of hou
gross profit margin between periods. This finanoi@asure assists us in making strategic decisegearding product mix, product pricing &
construction pace. We also believe investors viiltl fhousing gross profit margin, excluding invegtampairment and land option contr
abandonment charges, relevant and useful becateggrésents a profitability measure that may bepzoed to a prior period without regarc
variability of charges for inventory impairmentsland option contract abandonments.
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Ratio of Net Debt to Total Capitalhe following table reconciles our ratio of debtatal capital calculated in accordance with GAARHe
non-GAAP financial measure of our ratio of net dehiotal capital (dollars in thousands):

November 30,

2012 2011
Mortgages and notes payable $ 1,722,811 $ 1,583,57.
Stockholders’ equity 376,80t 442,65
Total capital $ 2,099,62 $ 2,026,22i

Ratio of debt to total capital 82.1% 78.2%
Mortgages and notes payable $ 1,722,811 % 1,583,57.
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash (567,12) (479,53)
Net debt 1,155,68: 1,104,04i
Stockholders’ equity 376,80t 442,65
Total capital $ 1,532,49. % 1,546,69

Ratio of net debt to total capital 75.2% 71.5%

The ratio of net debt to total capital is a MBAAP financial measure, which we calculate by diwidmortgages and notes payable, ni
homebuilding cash and cash equivalents and restricash, by total capital (mortgages and noteshp@yaet of homebuilding cash and c
equivalents and restricted cash, plus stockholdsgaity). The most directly comparable GAAP finahcreasure is the ratio of debt to t
capital. We believe the ratio of net debt to tatapital is a relevant and useful financial meadarinvestors in understanding the level
employed in our operations.
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HOMEBUILDING SEGMENTS

The following table presents financial informatioglated to our homebuilding reporting segments tf@ years indicated (dollars

thousands):

West Coast:
Revenues
Construction and land costs

Selling, general and administrative
expenses

Operating income
Other, net
Pretax income (loss)

Southwest:
Revenues
Construction and land costs

Selling, general and administrative
expenses

Loss on loan guaranty
Operating income (loss)
Other, net

Pretax loss

Central:
Revenues
Construction and land costs

Selling, general and administrative
expenses

Operating income (loss)
Other, net
Pretax income (loss)

Southeast:
Revenues
Construction and land costs

Selling, general and administrative
expenses

Operating income (loss)
Other, net
Pretax loss

Years Ended November 30, Variance
2012 2011 2010 2012 vs 2011 2011 vs 2010
755,25¢ $ 589,38 $ 700,64 28 % (16)%
(658,58) (488,88 (545,987 (35) 10
(74,386 (56,61¢) (64,459 (31) 12
22,28 43,88¢ 90,20: (49 (51)
(32,759 (24,249 (29,957 (35) 18
(10,467 $ 19,63¢ $ 60,25( (159)% (67)%
132,43t $ 139,87; $ 187,73t (5)% (25)%
(106,38 (129,46 (141,88) 18 9
(17,989 (29,407) (45,467) 3¢ 35
o (30,76Y - 10C (100)
8,067 (49,767) 39C 11€ (12,86()
(18,267 (58,505) (16,19)) 69 (261)
(10,199 $ (108,269 $ (15,807 91% (585)%
436,400 $ 369,70 $ 436,40 18% (15)%
(371,87Y) (316,409 (364,73 (18) 13
(56,579 (59,709 (62,55() 5 5
7,95¢ (6,417) 9,11¢ 224 (170
(6,504) (6,512 (10,890) — 40
1,44¢ $ (12,92 $ (1,772 111% (629)%
224.32¢ % 206,59¢ $ 256,97¢ 9% (20)%
(177,50:) (189,22) (245,419 6 23
(34,699 (39,34) (36,05%) 12 9)
12,13: (21,970) (24,49)) 15¢ 10
(13,315 (16,019 (18,309 17 13
(1,189 $ (37,98) $ (42,807 97 % 11%
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The following table presents information concernmg housing revenues, homes delivered and aveselliag price by homebuildir
reporting segment:

Percentage of Percentage of
Total Total
Housing Housing Homes Homes Average
Years Ended November 30, Revenues Revenues Delivered Delivered Selling Price
(in thousands)
2012
West Coast $ 755,25¢ 49% 1,94t 31% $ 388,30(
Southwest 132,43t 9 688 11 193,90(
Central 436,40° 28 2,56¢ 41 170,10(
Southeast 224,32¢ 14 1,08¢ 17 206,20(
Total $ 1,548,43. 10C% 6,282 10% $ 246,50(
2011
West Coast $ 589,38° 45% 1,75 30% $ 335,50(
Southwest 139,76: 11 842 15 165,80(
Central 369,55 28 2,15¢ 37 171,50(
Southeast 206,59¢ 16 1,057 18 195,50(
Total $ 1,305,29 10C% 5,812 10% $ 224,60(
2010
West Coast $ 700,64! 44% 2,02 27% $ 346,30(
Southwest 181,91 12 1,15(C 16 158,20(
Central 435,94° 28 2,662 36 163,70(
Southeast 256,97¢ 16 1,51( 21 170,20(
Total $ 1,575,48 10C% 7,34¢ 10(% $ 214,50(

West Coast Our West Coast homebuilding reporting segnsetatal revenues in 2012, 2011 and 2010 were getkeatirely from housir
operations. Housing revenues in 2012 increased f28% 2011 due to an 11% increase in the numbepofds delivered and a 16@crease i
the average selling price. Homes delivered incikas@012 from 2011 largely due to a higher backéngl at the beginning of 2012 compe
to the prior year. The average selling price ros2(G12 primarily due to a greater proportion of lesrdelivered from highegyriced communitie
reflecting our strategic repositioning initiativdiscussed above and a change in product mix terddrgme sizes. In 2011, the 16% year-over-
year decrease in housing revenues reflect13% decrease in the number of homes delivered a8fb decline in the average selling pri
Homes delivered decreased in 2011 due to the fadescribed above under “Homebuilding.”

In 2012, the pretax results for this segment dedlifrom 2011, primarily reflecting lower housingpgs profits and higher selling, gen
and administrative expenses. The housing gros# pmafgin decreased to 12.8% in 2012 from 17.1%0mh1, primarily due to higher inventory-
related charges, a shift in product mix of homds/eieed and a lower proportion of deliveries fromgherimargin communities, partially offs
by favorable warranty adjustments. Inventory impaint charges totaled $19.2 milliam 2012, compared to inventory impairment and
option contract abandonment charges of $3.3 miilioR011. These charges representedo3%egment total revenues in 2012 and less the
in 2011. Inventory impairment charges were highe2012 due to challenging economic and housing etarénditions in certain of our sen
markets and changes to our operational or selliggegly for certain communities in an effort to elecate our return on investment. The year-
overyear increase in selling, general and adminisatixpenses in 2012 primarily reflected the $8.8ianilcourt decision charge, as discus
in Note 14. Legal Matters in the Notes to Consaéida-inancial Statements in this report, an in@eéashe number of homes delivered in 2!
and the impact of the gain recognized in 2011 erstile of a multi-level residential building that vad operated as a rental property.

The year-over-year decrease in pretax income id 2@ primarily due to lower housing gross profiitly offset by a
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decrease in selling, general and administrativeees@s. The housing gross profit margin decreaséd.fi® in 2011 from 22.1% 2010. Thi:
decline was primarily due to comparatively fewemas delivered from highenargin communities, largely as a result of our idgout o
certain highemargin communities in the prior year, and redueaeiage from the lower volume of homes delivereddhl, partially offset t
favorable warranty adjustments. Inventory impairtmnand land option contract abandonment chargesetb®3.3 million in 2011 an&4.€
million in 2010. These charges represented less than Xggaient total revenues in both 2011 and 2010. €beedse in selling, general
administrative expenses in 2011 was primarily dughé impact of the gain on the sale of the meitel residential building mentioned abc
partly offset by increased legal expenses in 2011.

Southwest In 2012, our Southwest homebuilding reportingnseigt’s total revenues were generated solely from housgegations. In 201
and 2010, this segmesttotal revenues also included land sale revenu@slanillion and $5.8 million, respectively. Hongirevenues in 20
decreased 5% from the previous year due to a 19%eake in the number of homes delivered, partlyedfby a 17%ncrease in the avers
selling price. Homes delivered decreased in 201 tduthe significant downsizing of our businessAizona during 2011 and into 2012
discussed above. The average selling price inaléas2012 mainly due to a change in community amdipct mix of homes delivered. The 2
year-over-year decline in housing revenues in 201kctdld a 27% decrease in the number of homes dedivpartly offset by a 5%ticrease i
the average selling price. Homes delivered decdeims2011 due to the factors described above utidlemebuilding.” The average selling pri
increased in 2011 mainly due to a shift in commuaitd product mix.

This segment’s pretax results improved significaml 2012 compared to 2011 largely due to the impdéche South Edgeelated join
venture impairment charge of $53.7 million and lossloan guaranty of $30.8 milliorecorded in 2011. The housing gross profit me
increased to 19.7% in 2012 from 7.4% in 2011, prilmalue to a decrease in inventastated charges, and favorable warranty adjustn
Inventory impairment charges totaled $2.1 millinor2012, compared to inventory impairment and lapdon contract abandonment charge
$19.0 million in 2011, which included an $18.1 ioifl adjustment to the fair value of real estatéatetal that we took back on a note receivi
These inventory-related charges represente@f286gment total revenues in 2012 and 14% in 28&lling, general and administrative expe
decreased in 2012 compared to 2011, mainly dueéchead cost reductions and the lower volume ofdsdelivered. Other, net expense
2011 included the South Edge-related joint venitmgairment charge. There was no such charge in.2012

In 2011, the pretax loss from this segment incrbdisem the previous year, mainly due to the SoudeRelated charges recorded in 2
as mentioned above. The housing gross profit madgtreased to 7.4% in 2011 from 24.4862010, primarily reflecting higher inventc
impairment and land option contract abandonmentgeisaand reduced operating leverage from the lawkime of homes delivered in 20
partially offset by favorable warranty adjustmeritsventory impairment and land option contract almmment charges increased $&9.(
million in 2011 compared to $1.0 million in the yesarlier period, primarily due to the aboweted adjustment to the fair value of real e
collateral. These inventomglated charges represented 14% of segment tatahues in 2011 and less than 1% of segment totahues i
2010. Selling, general and administrative expeuseseased on a year-owsrar basis in 2011 as a result of ongoing overleeat reduction
lower legal expenses and the lower volume of hodwiered. Other, net expenses in 2011 includedSbeth Edgeelated joint ventul
impairment charge discussed above. In 2010, thesene such charge.

Central. Our Central homebuilding reporting segmsrtbtal revenues in 2012 were generated solely fronsing operations; total reven
in 2011 and 2010 also included land sale reventi&2amillion and $.5 million, respectively. Hougimevenues rose 18% in 2012 compare
the previous year as a result of a 19% increagee@mumber of homes delivered, partly offset by?adecrease in the average selling p
Homes delivered increased in 2012 largely due ¢ohigher number of homes in backlog at the sta0df2, while the average selling pi
declined primarily due to a change in community anaduct mix. In 2011, housing revenues decreasétl dompared to 2010 as a result
19% decrease in the number of homes deliveredy mdfset by a 5%ncrease in the average selling price. Homes delivdeclined in 2011 d
to the lower backlog level at the start of the yeeflecting the factors described above under “dobuilding.” The average selling price rose
2011 compared to 2010 primarily due to a shiftammunity and product mix to larger homes.

The pretax results in this segment improved in 2@&hly due to higher housing gross profits, refterthe increase in homes delivered
a higher housing gross profit margin, and reduasdling, general and administrative expenses. Thesing gross profit margin increasec
14.8% in 2012 from 14.4% 2011, primarily due to favorable warranty adjoshts, which were largely offset by inventory impaént and lan
option contract abandonment charges. Inventory imm@ant and land option contract abandonment chargdss segment totaled $1.4 milligm
each of 2012 and 2011 and were less than 1% ofesgigiotal revenues in each year. Selling, generdlaaministrative expenses decreast
2012 compared to 2011, due to overhead cost rexhscéind other cost-saving initiatives.

In 2011, the pretax loss from this segment incrédsam the previous year due to lower housing gmsdits, partly offset by reduc
selling, general and administrative expenses. Tétp loss included $1.4 million of inventory impaent and land
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option contract abandonment charges, compared .® rilion in 2010. As a percentage of segmentl trggenues, these inventorgelatec
charges were less than 1% in 2011 and 2% in 20€.hbusing gross profit margin decreased to 142011 from 16.4%n 2010, primaril
reflecting reduced operating leverage from the lovedume of homes delivered. Selling, general ashaiaistrative expenses decreased by 5
2011 from 2010, reflecting the lower volume of handelivered.

SoutheastOur Southeast homebuilding reporting segneehtal revenues in 2012, 2011 and 2010 were genksolely from housir
operations. In 2012, housing revenues increaseft@¥the previous year due to a 5% increase irattezage selling price and a 3@t6rease i
the number of homes delivered. We delivered moradwoin 2012 compared to 2011 largely due to thgsneat having more homes in back
at the beginning of 2012 compared to 2011. In 20blising revenues decreased 20% from the previeas due to a 30%ecrease in tl
number of homes delivered, partly offset by a lIiBétease in the average selling price. We delivézaer homes in 2011 compared to 2010
to the factors described above under “Homebuildifige average selling price rose in 2011 compar&di® due to a change in product mi
larger homes and a higher number of homes delivieoed markets that supported higher selling price2011.

The significant improvement in pretax results fustsegment in 2012 reflected an increase in hgugioss profits and a decrease in sel
general and administrative expenses. The housgsgrofit margin improved to 20.9% in 2012 from%.in 2011, mainly due to $26.5 milli
of insurance recoveries recorded in 2012 as destadbove under “Homebuildingpartly offset by unfavorable warranty adjustmeits2012
this segment had $5.8 million of inventory impainhand land option contract abandonment chargaespaced to $2.1 million in the yeagrliel
period. As a percentage of segment total revertiese charges were 3% in 2012 and 1% in 2011.

The pretax loss in 2011 narrowed on a year-gear-basis due to an increase in the housing grodis margin, partly offset by an incre:
in selling, general and administrative expenseg. fidusing gross profit margin improved to 8.4% 012 from 4.5%n 2010, largely due to tl
reduction in charges for inventory impairments ¢t option contract abandonments and the incrieatiee average selling price. In 20
inventory impairment and land option contract almenmdent charges totaled $2.1 million , compared7t® $nillionin 2010. As a percentage
segment total revenues, these charges were 1%!1lih &dd 3% in 2010. Selling, general and adminisgagxpenses in 2011 increased
compared to 2010.

FINANCIAL SERVICES SEGMENT

Our financial services reporting segment providesiiance services to our homebuyiarthe same markets as our homebuilding repc
segments and provides title services in the mgjofibur markets located within our Central and t8east homebuilding reporting segmeits.
addition, since the third quarter of 2011, thismegt has earned revenues pursuant to the termsntdrigeting services agreement wi
preferred mortgage lender that offers mortgage ibgn&ervices, including mortgage loan originatiotaspur homebuyeraho elect to use tl
lender. Our homebuyers are under no obligatiorséoaur preferred mortgage lender and may seledeadgr of their choice to obtain mortg
financing for the purchase of a honiior to late June 2011, this segment provided gaget banking services to our homebuyers indir
through KBA Mortgage, a former unconsolidated jorenture of a subsidiary of ours and a subsididrpank of America, N.A., with ea
partner having had a 50% interest in the ventune. Bank of America, N.A. subsidiary partner opat8A Mortgage. We accounted for KE
Mortgage as an unconsolidated joint venture irfittencial services reporting segment of our comlstéd financial statements.

Effective June 27, 2011 and into the second quaft@012, we had a preferred mortgage lender celghiip with MetLife Home Loans,
division of MetLife Bank, N.A. Under this relationip, MetLife Home Loanspersonnel, located on site at several of our newehcommunitie:
could offer (i) financing options and mortgage Iqanoducts to our homebuyers, (ii) to prequalify letmmyers for mortgage loans, and (iii
commence the mortgage loan origination procesesdohomebuyers electing to use MetLife Home Lo&vs.made available to our homebuy
marketing materials and other information regardegLife Home Loansfinancing options and mortgage loan products, aacewompensat
solely for the fair market value of these serviddstLife Home Loans and its parent company, MetBfnk, N.A., were not affiliates of us
any of our subsidiaries. We had no ownership, jeerture or other interests in or with MetLife Homeans or MetLife Bank, N.A. or wi
respect to the revenues or income that may have geperated from MetLife Home Loangtfovision of mortgage banking services to
origination of mortgage loans for, our homebuyers.

Following MetLife Bank, N.A.5 announcement in January 2012 that it would cefiseng forward mortgage banking services as phits
business, we evaluated various options and, in IMa€d2, we entered into an agreement with Natiopataubsidiary of Nationstar Mortge
Holdings Inc., under which Nationstar became owr peeferred mortgage lender, offering mortgage bankervices to our homebuyers at
new home communities. The terms of our relationslith Nationstar are substantially similar to tkems of our prior relationship with MetL
Home Loans, as are the mortgage banking servidesedfby Nationstar. Nationstar began accepting mastgage loan applications from
homebuyers on May 1, 2012.

Nationstar and Nationstar Mortgage Holdings Ine.reot affiliates of us or any of our subsidiari& have no ownership,
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joint venture or other interests in or with Natitarsor Nationstar Mortgage Holdings Inc. or witlspect to the revenues or income that me
generated from Nationstar’'s provision of mortgageking services to, or origination of mortgage wéor, our homebuyers.

Nationstars performance since May 1, 2012 as our preferredgage lender has resulted in a reduction in thegage loan funding issu
that disrupted the ability of some of our homebayerobtain mortgage financing and contributedrt@l@vated level of cancellations in the
and into the second quarter of 2012. These mortdaye funding issues are described in Note 6. ltorgnimpairments and Land Opti
Contract Abandonments in the Notes to Consolid&iedncial Statements in this report. Nationstgprisviding more consistent execution
completion of mortgage loan originations for ountetuyers who choose to use Nationstar, which aieasing percentage are electing tc
Compared to most of the first half of 2012, Natian's performance has helped to provide more staliilityhe conversion of our backlog il
home deliveries and revenues. Based on the nunfilbemees delivered in the month of November 201praximately 58% of our homebuy:
used Nationstar to finance the purchase of theinehdNe expect to see improvement in future peribdsid as a greater percentage of
homebuyers obtain mortgage financing from Nations®aur strategic intention remains to establisbragiterm mortgage banking joint vent
that is more closely integrated with our operations

The following table presents a summary of selefitethcial and operational data for our financiavgges segment (dollars in thousands):

Years Ended November 30,

2012 2011 2010

Revenues $ 11,68: $ 10,30: $ 8,23:
Expenses (2,99) (3,517 (3,119
Equity in income/gain on wind down of unconsolidhjeint venture 2,191 19,28¢ 7,02¢

Pretax income $ 10,88: $ 26,07¢ % 12,14
Total originations (a):

Loans — 1,63 5,70¢

Principal $ — 315,89 $ 1,092,50:

Percentage of homebuyers using KBA Mortgage — 67% 82%
Mortgage loans sold to third parties (a):

Loans — 1,86 5,85(

Principal $ — 370,59 $ 1,092,73

(a) Loan originations and sales occurred within KBA kage, which ceased offering mortgage banking sesvafter June 30, 20

RevenuesOur financial services segment generates revenuiesnly from insurance commissions, title servicegrketing services fe
and interest income. Financial services revenuatetb$11.7 million in 2012, $10.3 million in 20&ahd $8.2 million in 2010. The year-ovggal
increase in financial services revenues in 2012¢tfd higher marketing services fees resultinghftmving a marketing services agreeme
place for all of 2012, compared to only a portidni2011, and higher title services revenues. In 2@t4é year-ovegear increase was due
revenues associated with the marketing serviceeaggnt we entered into during the year, and hititeeservices revenues.

Financial services revenues included revenues frsrance commissions and title services totalig #illion in 2012, $9.2 million i
2011 and $8.2 million in 2010, and a nominal amainhterest income in each year, which was eapmedarily from money market deposits.
2012 and 2011, financial services revenues aldaded $2.2 million and $1.1 million, respectivebf, revenues from marketing services f
These fees are associated with the marketing ssnagreements in effect during each year and memrdlse fair value of the services
provided in connection with the agreements.

ExpensesGeneral and administrative expenses totaled $3li@min 2012, $3.5 million in 2011 and $3.1 miltian 2010.

Equity in Income/Gain on Wind Down of Unconsolidag®int VentureThe equity in income/gain on wind down of uncordaled join
venture of $2.2 million in 2012, $19.3 million i®21 and $7.0 milliorin 2010 related to our 50% interest in KBA Mortgage amounts fi
2012 and 2011 included gains of $2.1 million an@.8Imillion, respectively, recognized in connectisith the wind down of KBA Mortgag
Excluding these gains, our equity in income offthrener unconsolidated
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mortgage banking joint venture (i.e., KBA Mortgadgedaled $.1 million in 2012 and our equity in lasfsthe former unconsolidated mortg
banking joint venture totaled $.5 million in 20 KIBA Mortgage originated 1,633 loans in 2011 andb,lbans in 2010.

INCOME TAXES

We recognized income tax benefits of $20.1 millior2012, $2.4 million in 2011 and $7.0 milliam 2010. The income tax benefit in 2(
primarily reflected the resolution of federal artdte tax audits, which resulted in an income taxefie of $20.1 millionand the realization
$1.2 million of deferred tax assets. The income tax benefiDihl Zeflected the reversal of a $2.6 million ligpifor unrecognized tax benef
due to the status of federal and state tax auflits.income tax benefit in 2010 reflected the redomn of a $5.4 millionfederal income te
benefit from an additional carryback of our 2009 IN@ offset earnings we generated in 2004 and 2@08, the reversal of a $1.6 milli
liability for unrecognized tax benefits due to thiatus of federal and state tax auddse to the effects of our deferred tax asset valn
allowances, carrybacks of our NOL, and changesuinumrecognized tax benefits, our effective taxesain 2012, 2011 and 2010 are
meaningful items as our income tax amounts areinettly correlated to the amount of our pretaxséssfor those periods.

Due to the prolonged housing downturn, the asspaimrment and land option contract abandonment elsang have incurred and the N
we have posted, we have generated substantialeléfierx assets and established a correspondingticadwallowance against those deferrec
assets. In accordance with Accounting Standardsfi€atibn Topic No. 740, “Income Taxes” (“ASC 740%e evaluate our deferred tax as
quarterly to determine if adjustments to the vatwatallowance are required. ASC 740 requires tlhganies assess whether a valui
allowance should be established based on the @yasioh of all available evidence using a “moreelykthan not”’standard with respect
whether deferred tax assets will be realized. QuAM12 and 2011, we recorded valuation allowande®3@.3 million and $76.7 million
respectively, against net deferred tax assets gtkeprimarily from the pretax losses for thoseryeBuring 2010, we recorded a net increa:
$21.1 millionto the valuation allowance against net deferredasets, reflecting a $26.6 million valuation abbmwe recorded against the
deferred tax assets generated from the pretaxfdoshe year that was partially offset by the $Billion federal income tax benefit from 1
additional carryback of our 2009 NOL.

We had no net deferred tax assets at Novembei03@, Dur net deferred tax assets totaled $1.2anitit November 30, 2011. The defel
tax asset valuation allowance increased to $880@libmat November 30, 2012 from $847.8 milliat November 30, 2011, reflecting the
impact of the $32.3 milliowaluation allowance recorded in 2012. The defeteadasset valuation allowance at November 30, 2@drkase
from $771.1 million at November 30, 2010, reflegtihe net impact of the $76.7 million valuatioroalance recorded in 2011.

The benefits of our NOL, built-in losses and tagdits would be reduced or potentially eliminated/é experienced an “ownership change”
under Section 382. Based on our analysis perforasenf November 30, 2012, we do not believe thahaee experienced an ownership ch
as defined by Section 382, and, therefore, the N@iil-in losses and tax credits we have generated shmtldbe subject to a Section :
limitation as of this reporting date.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Overview.We historically have funded our homebuilding antaficial services activities with internally genethtash flows and exter
sources of debt and equity financing.

We manage our use of cash in the operation of asinbss to support the execution of our primamtstyic goals. In addition, to support
strategic repositioning initiatives, from late 208&d continuing through 2012, we used our unréstticash balance to acquire land and to i
in land development in higher-performing, choicealtions —many of which are in California and Texas. Our |lamtl land developme
investments totaled approximately $565 million @12, approximately $478 million in 2011 and appneaiely $560 million in 2010. O
investment in land and land development in ther&utwill depend significantly on market conditionsdaavailable opportunities that meet
investment return and marketing standards.
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The following table presents the number of lotsameed or controlled under land option contracts atieérsimilar contracts (dollars
thousands):

November 30, Variance
2012 2011 Lots/$ %
Number of lots owned or controlled under land api@iontracts
or other similar contracts 44,75 40,17( 4,58: 11%
Carrying value of inventory owned or controlled enthnd
option contracts or other similar contracts $ 1,706,57 $ 1,731,620 $ (25,05¢) (D)%

The year-ovegear increase in the number of lots owned or ctlattainder land option contracts or similar contseat November 30, 20
reflected the investments we made in land and Eexblopment during 2012. The slight year-oyear decrease in the carrying valut
inventory owned or controlled under land option tcacts or other similar contracts for the samequereflected the higher number of hoi
delivered and inventory impairment and land optiontract abandonment charges in 2012. It alsoatefliethat our land investments during 2
resulted in our having 4,925 more lots controlletler land option contracts or other similar cortsaevhich required a lower upfrc
investment, at November 30, 2012 than we had aeMder 30, 2011. Overall, we had a higher percerdédmts controlled under land opti
contracts or other similar contracts at the enthefyear— 27% in 2012 compared to 18% in 2011.

We ended our 2012 fiscal year with $567.1 milliohcash and cash equivalents and restricted cashpaed to $479.5 milliora
November 30, 2011. Our balance of unrestricted @ashcash equivalents w$524.8 million at November 30, 2012 and $415.1 iamillai
November 30, 2011. The yroveryear increase in our unrestricted cash balancectefl in part our raising approximately $91 milliof
unrestricted cash through the issuance of the $88i@n 7.50% Senior Notes. The majority of our baand cash equivalents at Novembe
2012 and 2011 were invested in money market acsount

Capital Resource®ur mortgages and notes payable consisted of Hoevfog (in thousands):

November 30, Variance
2012 2011 $

Mortgages and land contracts due to land selled#rer loans (6% to 7% at

November 30, 2012 and 2011) $ 52,31! $ 2498 $ 27,32
Senior notes due February 1, 2014 at 5 3/4% 75,91: 249,64° (173,73
Senior notes due January 15, 2015 at 5 7/8% 101,99¢ 299,27 (197,279
Senior notes due June 15, 2015 at 6 1/4% 236,82t 449,79! (212,969
Senior notes due September 15, 2017 at 9.10% 261,43( 260,86! 56E
Senior notes due June 15, 2018 at 7 1/4% 299,12¢ 299,00° 122
Senior notes due March 15, 2020 at 8.00% 345,20¢ — 345,20¢
Senior notes due September 15, 2022 at 7.50% 350,00( — 350,00

Total $ 1,722,81 $ 1,5683,57. $ 139,24

Our debt balance at November 30, 2012 reflectedsthance of the $350 Million 8.00% Senior Notethimfirst quarter of 2012, which w
largely offset by the purchase of $56.3 millionaiggregate principal amount of the $250.0 milliorb@/4% senior notes due 2014 (th@58%
Million 5 3/4% Senior Notes”), $130.0 million in geegate principal amount of the $300.0 million of/8% senior notes due 2015 (the30%
Million 5 7/8% Senior Notes”)and $153.7 million in aggregate principal amountt@ $450.0 million of 6 1/4% senior notes due 2(th&
“$450 Million 6 1/4% Senior Notes"pursuant to the applicable January 2012 Tenderr©ffeur debt balance at November 30, 2012
reflected the issuance of the $350 Million 7.509%hi8eNotes in the third quarter of 2012, which iagely offset by the purchase $117.1
million in aggregate principal amount of the $250livh 5 3/4% Senior Notes, $67.8 millian aggregate principal amount of the $300 Millic
7/8% Senior Notes, and $59.4 millionaggregate principal amount of the $450 Millioti/8% Senior Notes pursuant to the applicable 20z
Tender Offers. The remaining net proceeds fromethiEht issuances were used for general corporapegrs. The terms of the $350 Mill
8.00% Senior Notes and the $350 Million 7.50% Semotes are described in Note 12. Mortgages ancedN@tayable in the Notes
Consolidated Financial Statements in this repolnie @bovedescribed transactions effectively extended theurtatof $584.9 million of ot
outstanding senior debt by more than five years. i@xt scheduled debt maturity is in 2014, whenr#reaining $76.0 million in aggreg:
principal amount of our $250 Million 5 3/4% Senidotes becomes due.
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Our financial leverage, as measured by the raticledft to total capital, was 82.1% at November 3W22 compared to 78.2%l
November 30, 2011. The increase in our financiatiage reflected the increase in our mortgagesnates payable balance stemming lar
from the issuance of the $350 Million 7.50% Serlmtes and the decrease in our stockholdegsiity, which resulted from the net losses
incurred during 2012. Our ratio of net debt to totpital at November 30, 2012 was 75.4% , comparéd..4% at November 30, 2011.

We maintain our LOC Facilities with various finaakinstitutions to obtain letters of credit in thedinary course of operating our busin
As of November 30, 2012 and 2011, we had $41.9aniland $63.8 million, respectively, of letters of credit outstandingdein our LO(C
Facilities.Our LOC Facilities require us to deposit and mamtash with the issuing financial institutions aslateral for our letters of cre
outstanding. The amount of cash maintained for bOC Facilities totaled $42.4 million at November, 32012 and $64.5 millioral
November 30, 2011, and these amounts were inclindegstricted cash on our consolidated balancetsteeseof those dateWe may maintait
revise or, if necessary or desirable, enter intditemhal or expanded letter of credit facilities, enter into a revolving credit facility, with t
same or other financial institutions.

The indenture governing our senior notes does patain any financial maintenance covenants. Suliectpecified exceptions, t
indenture contains certain restrictive covenang, tamong other things, limit our ability to incsecured indebtedness, or engage in sale
leaseback transactions involving property or assktse a certain specified value. Unlike our otbamior notes, the terms governing the ¢
Million 9.10% Senior Notes, the $350 Million 8.008&nior Notes, and the $350 Million 7.50% Seniorddatontain certain limitations relatet
mergers, consolidations, and sales of asdétsler the terms of the indenture, we must causesafgidiary of ours that is or become
“significant subsidiary,” as defined under Rule 24f Regulation Sk (as in effect on June 1, 1996), to provide a gnsge with respect to ¢
senior notes (the “Guarantor Subsidiariesf)addition, we may cause other subsidiaries o$ éoiprovide such a guarantee if we believe ite
in our or the relevant subsidiasybest interests. Condensed consolidating finaidi@tmation for our subsidiaries considered toGagarantc
Subsidiaries is provided in Note 21. Supplementa@ntor Information in the Notes to ConsolidatethRcial Statements in this report.

As of November 30, 2012ve were in compliance with the applicable termalbbf our covenants under our senior notes, tderiture, an
mortgages and land contracts due to land selletotrer loans. Our ability to secure future debéarficing may depend in part on our abilit
remain in such compliance.

Depending on available terms, we finance certain lacquisitions with purchaseeney financing from land sellers or with othermfigro
financing from third parties. At November 30, 20%# had outstanding mortgages and land contraetdalland sellers and other loans pay
in connection with such financing of $52.3 millipeecured primarily by the underlying property, ethhad a carrying value of $94.1 million .

Consolidated Cash Flow3he following table presents a summary of net gashided by (used in) our operating, investing &indncinc
activities (in thousands):

Years Ended November 30,

2012 2011 2010
Net cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities $ 34,617 % (347,54 $ (133,969
Investing activities (760) 13,09¢ (16,089
Financing activities 73,757 (155,909 (119,479
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent $ 107,61« § (490,350 $ (269,53)

Operating ActivitiesOperating activities provided net cash of $34.8iamlin 2012 and used net cash of $347.5 millio20d1 and $134.0
million in 2010. The year-oveyear change in net operating cash flows in 2012 prasarily due to the lower net loss incurred irl2Gand th
substantial payments we made in 2011 in conneetitnthe South Edge Plan and in resolving othertensitsurrounding the underlying jc
venture. In 2011, the year-ovgear change in net operating cash flows was lardeéyto a sizeable federal income tax refund weived durin
2010; there was no such refund received in 2011.

In 2012, cash was provided by a net decrease emiovies of $30.3 milliorfexcluding $53.6 million of inventories acquiredabgh selle
financing, inventory impairment and land option taot abandonment charges of $28.5 million andcaedese of $19.8 millioin consolidate
inventories not owned) and a decrease in receigalfl$25.0 million . Partially offsetting the cggtovided was a net loss of $59.0 millipa ne
decrease in accounts payable, accrued expenseshemndiabilities of $2.1 million , and other opéng uses of $12.5 million .
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In 2011, our uses of cash for operating activitietuded a net loss of $178.8 milligra net decrease in accounts payable, accrued ss¢
and other liabilities of $253.5 million , a net irase in inventories of $12.3 milliqexcluding the real estate collateral in our Soe
homebuilding reporting segment that we took backao$40.0 millionnote receivable, inventory impairment and land aptcontrac
abandonment charges of $25.8 million , and an &s@ef $8.4 milliorin consolidated inventories not owned), a net iaseein receivables
$2.2 million and other operating uses of $2.3 wiilli The net decrease in accounts payable, accrueshgsp and other liabilities was largely
to payments we made in connection with the SoutheBlan and in resolving other matters surrounttieginderlying joint venture.

Our uses of operating cash in 2010 included a eatedse in accounts payable, accrued expensestamdiabilities of $199.2 million a ne
increase in inventories of $129.3 million (excluglimventory impairments and land option contracradmnments, $55.2 millioof inventorie:
acquired through seller financing and a decreastf6 million in consolidated inventories not owjiea net loss of $69.4 millionand othe
operating uses of $1.7 million . Partially offseftithe cash used was a decrease in receivablegl@f3smillion, mainly due to the $19(C
million federal income tax refund we received dgrthe first quarter as a result of the carrybackiwsf2009 NOL to offset earnings we gener
in 2004 and 2005.

Investing Activitieslnvesting activities used net cash of $.8 milliarkD12 and $16.1 million in 2010 and provided raethcof$13.1 millior
in 2011. The year-overear change in net investing cash flows in 2012 20l was mainly due to proceeds of $80.6 millian received i
2011 from the sale of a mulivel residential building we had operated as &ateroperty in our West Coast homebuilding repgrtsegmen
partly offset by investments in unconsolidated fjeientures that year.

In 2012, $1.7 million was used for net purchaseproperty and equipment. The cash used was lamfégt by $1.0 millionof casl
provided by a return of investment in unconsolidaj@nt ventures. In 2011, the $80.6 million we eired from the sale of the mulével
residential building was partly offset by $67.2liait used for investments in unconsolidated jormtures and $.3 million used for net purch
of property and equipment. In 2010, cash of $15llfomwas used for investments in unconsolidadtjventures and $.4 milliowas used fc
net purchases of property and equipment.

Financing ActivitiesFinancing activities provided net cash of $73.8iorilin 2012 and used net cash of $155.9 millio2011 andp119.t
million in 2010. We generated cash from financing actiwitie2012 mainly as a result of the issuances @860 Million 8.00% Senior Not
and the $350 Million 7.50% Senior Notes, partlyseffby the purchase of certain of our senior ndtesin 2014 and 2015 pursuant to
applicable January 2012 Tender Offers and July 2@#ler Offers. In 2011, the year-owezar change in cash used for financing activities
largely due to the repayment of debt, partly offset decrease in restricted cash.

In 2012, cash was provided by net proceeds of 8684llion from the issuances of the $350 Million 8.00% Semiotes and the $3!
Million 7.50% Senior Notes, a decrease of $22.llionilin our restricted cash balance and $.6 milladrcash provided from the issuance
common stock under employee stock plans. The caslided was partially offset by $592.6 milliased to purchase $340.0 million in aggre
principal amount of certain of our senior notes @0&4 and 2015 pursuant to the applicable Januait® Zender Offers and $244.9 millior
aggregate principal amount of certain of our semiotes due 2014 and 2015 pursuant to the applichile2012 Tender Offers, includi
expenses associated with the applicable tendersadfed with the issuance of the $350 Million 8.08&mior Notes and the $350 Million 7.5
Senior Notes. Uses of cash in 2012 also includgdhpats on mortgages and land contracts due todalets and other loans of $26.3 millipn
the payment of senior note issuance costs of $blibn , dividend payments on our common stock$0.6 million, and stock repurchases
$1.8 million in connection with the satisfactioneshployee withholding taxes on vested restrictedkst

In 2011, cash was used for the repayment of thairéng $100.0 millionin aggregate principal amount of $350.0 million6o8/8% senic
notes due 2011 (the “$350 Million 6 3/8% Senior &3 at their August 15, 2011 maturity, and for net pests on mortgages and li
contracts due to land sellers and other loans 6fSillion , primarily related to the repaymentdebt secured by the mulével residentit
building we sold during the year. Uses of cash@f@?also included dividend payments on our comntocksof $19.2 million. The cash ust
was partially offset by a $51.0 milliatecrease in our restricted cash balance, of wHéB8smillion related to cash collateral no longeguirec
on a surety bond, and $1.8 million of cash provifteth the issuance of common stock under emplotgk plans.

In 2010, cash was used for net payments on morsgage land contracts due to land sellers and dtlaeis of $101.2 million dividenc
payments on our common stock of $19.2 million jramease in the restricted cash balance of $1.komi] and stock repurchases$®# million
in connection with the satisfaction of employeehivilding taxes on vested restricted stock. The casld was partially offset 1.9 millior
provided from the issuance of common stock undgsleyee stock plans and $.6 millidrom excess tax benefits associated with the esei@
stock options.

Our board of directors declared a quarterly divileh$.0625per share of common stock in the first quarter@f2and quarterly dividen
of $.0250per share of common stock in each of the secomd, dnd fourth quarters of 2012. All dividends deeld in 2012 were paid during
year. In the second quarter of 2012, our board of trscdecided to reduce the quarterly
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cash dividend from $.0625 per share to enable édeployment of our unrestricted cash to help suppar strategic growth initiatives. Or
board of directors declared four quarterly cashdeinds of $.0625 per share of common stdekng both 2011 and 2010. The declaration
payment of future cash dividends on our commonkstwe at the discretion of our board of directars] depend upon, among other things
expected future earnings, cash flows, capital requents, debt structure and any adjustments theoptrational and financial investm
strategy and general financial condition, as weljeneral business conditions.

Shelf Registration Statemeblite have an automatically effective universal shedfistration statement on file with the SEC, whigs filec
on September 20, 2011 (the “2011 Shelf Registrgtiorhe 2011 Shelf Registration registers the offenfiglebt and equity securities that
may issue from time to time in amounts to be deieerh In 2012, we issued the $350 Million 8.00% iBeilotes and the $350 Million 7.5(
Senior Notes under the 2011 Shelf Registration.

Share Repurchase Progras of November 30, 2012, we were authorized to mepase 4,000,000 shares of our common stock ur
board-approved share repurchase progk&ie.did not repurchase any of our common stock utidgmprogram in 2012, 2011 or 2010. We t
not repurchased common shares pursuant to a comstock repurchase plan for the past several yeatsaag resumption of such stc
repurchases will be at the discretion of our badrdirectors.

In the present environment, we are managing oupfisash for investments to maintain and grow aisgifess. Based on our current ca
position, we believe we will have adequate resauarad sufficient access to the capital marketsexternal financing sources to satisfy
current and reasonably anticipated Idagn requirements for funds to acquire capital kamdl, to develop acquired land, to construct horta
finance our financial services operations, and éztmany other needs in the ordinary course of asinless. Although our land acquisition
land development activities for 2013 will be sulbjée market conditions and available opportunitie®, will likely use a portion of o
unrestricted cash resources to acquire and/or agVahd that meets our investment return and miakstandards. In 2013, we may also us
redeploy our unrestricted cash resources to supgivet business purposes that are aligned witlpoomary strategic goals, including our gro
initiatives. In addition, we may also arrange ogage in capital markets, bank loan, credit fagilfiyoject debt or other financial transactit
These transactions may include repurchases fromttintime of our outstanding senior notes or ottedat through tender offers, exchange of
private exchanges, open market purchases or oth@nsnand may include potential new issuancesuifyegr senior notes or other debt thro
public offerings, private placements or other ageaments to raise new capital to support our curi@md acquisition and land developrr
investment targets, and for other business purpars#er to effect repurchases of our outstandingps@otes or other debt. Our ability to enc
in such financial transactions, however, may bestrained by economic, capital, credit and/or finahmarket conditions, investor inter
and/or our current leverage ratios, and we canigeavo assurance of the success or costs of ahytiursactions.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

We have investments in unconsolidated joint vemsttinat conduct land acquisition, land developmendia other homebuilding activities
various markets where our homebuilding operatioed@cated. Our partners in these unconsolidated yentures are unrelated homebuilc
and/or land developers and other real estate esjtiir commercial enterprises. These investmeatslesigned primarily to reduce market
development risks and to increase the number sfdaned and controlled by us. In some instancetcipating in unconsolidated joint ventu
has enabled us to acquire and develop land thahigkt not otherwise have had access to due to jaghi® size, financing needs, duratior
development or other circumstances. While we cams@lr participation in unconsolidated joint veeturas potentially beneficial to «
homebuilding activities, we do not view such pdptition as essential and have unwound our partioipan a number of unconsolidated jc
ventures in the past few years.

We typically have obtained rights to acquire parsiof the land held by the unconsolidated jointtuess in which we currently participe
When an unconsolidated joint venture sells landuohomebuilding operations, we defer recognitibowr share of such unconsolidated |
ventures earnings until a home sale is closed and titesgmto a homebuyer, at which time we accounthfuset earnings as a reduction of
cost of purchasing the land from the unconsolidgsd venture.

We and our unconsolidated joint venture partnerkemaitial and/or ongoing capital contributionstteese unconsolidated joint ventu
typically on a pro rata basis equal to our respectquity interests. The obligations to make capmtatributions are governed by e
unconsolidated joint venture’s respective operatiggeement and related governing documents. Weshils® in the profits and losses of tt
unconsolidated joint ventures generally in accocdanith our respective equity interesthiese unconsolidated joint ventures had total s.ss
$389.8 million at November 30, 2012 and $396.9iarillat November 30, 2011. Our investments in uncltsted joint ventures totalegll23."
million at November 30, 2012 and $127.9 milliorNmtvember 30, 2011.

Our unconsolidated joint ventures finance landiamdntory investments for a project through a \gredf arrangements,
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and certain of our unconsolidated joint venturegehabtained loans from thindarty lenders that are secured by the underlyingenty an
related project assets. However, none of our uratifaded joint ventures had outstanding debt atéMaver 30, 2012 or 2011.

In certain instances, we and/or our partner(shinirgconsolidated joint venture have provided cotigrieand/or carvesut guarantees to t
unconsolidated joint venture’lenders. A completion guaranty refers to the jglayscompletion of improvements for a project amdiloe
obligation to contribute capital to an unconsokdhjpint venture to enable it to fund its completabligations. Our potential responsibility un
our completion guarantees, if triggered, is higiypendent on the facts of a particular case. Aesaw guaranty refers to the payment of los
lender suffers due to certain bad acts or omisdigran unconsolidated joint venture or its partnsugh as fraud or misappropriation, or dt
environmental liabilities arising with respect toetrelevant project. As none of our unconsolidgtédt ventures had outstanding deb
November 30, 2012 or 2011, we did not have expositrerespect to any related completion or c-out guarantees as of those dates.

As further discussed in Note 9. Investments in Wsctidated Joint Ventures in the Notes to Const#di&inancial Statements in this ref
our investments in unconsolidated joint venturesefaddovember 30, 2012 and 2011 included our investsiof $71.0 million and $75.5 millic
respectively, in Inspirada Builders, LLC, an unaditgated joint venture that was formed in 2011 ammection with the South Edge Plan, ar
which a wholly owned subsidiary of ours is a member part of the terms of the South Edge Plan, lam¥iously owned by the South E«
joint venture, including our share that consistapproximately 600 developable acres, was acquuyebhspirada Builders, LLC in Novemt
2011. We anticipate that we will acquire our sharthe land from Inspirada Builders, LLC througfuture distribution.

Our investments in joint ventures may create aabéeiinterest in a variable interest entity (“VIEdepending on the contractual terms o
arrangement. We analyze our joint ventures in alzoare with Accounting Standards Codification NoO,81Consolidation” (“ASC 810"{to
determine whether they are VIEs and, if so, whetherare the primary beneficianjll of our joint ventures at November 30, 2012 &l 1
were determined under the provisions of ASC 818danconsolidated joint ventures and were accoufatednder the equity method, eit
because they were not VIEs and we did not haventaalting financial interest or, if they were VIEsge were not the primary beneficiary of
VIEs.

In the ordinary course of our business, we entar land option contracts and other similar contdot acquire rights to land for
construction of homes. The use of these land optimracts and other similar contracts generaltynad us to reduce the market risks assoc
with direct land ownership and development, andettuce our capital and financial commitments, idelg interest and other carrying co
Under such contracts, we typically pay a speciiption or earnest money deposit in consideratiortte right to purchase land in the futi
usually at a predetermined price. Under the remeérgs of ASC 810, certain of these contracts megtera variable interest for us, with the
seller being identified as a VIE.

In compliance with ASC 810, we analyze our landaptontracts and other similar contracts to deirgemvhether the corresponding i
sellers are VIEs and, if so, whether we are thegry beneficiary. Although we do not have legdé tib the underlying land, ASC 810 requ
us to consolidate a VIE if we are determined tdHseprimary beneficiary. In determining whether ave the primary beneficiary, we consi
among other things, whether we have the powerrttihe activities of the VIE that most signifitlgrimpact the VIES economic performant
Such activities would include, among other thirdgtermining or limiting the scope or purpose of WHE, selling or transferring property owr
or controlled by the VIE, or arranging financing foe VIE. As a result of our analyses, we deteadithat as of November 30, 2012 and :
we were not the primary beneficiary of any VIEsnfravhich we have acquired rights to land under lapton contracts and other sim
contracts.

The following table presents a summary of our s in land option contracts and other similatremts (in thousands):

November 30, 2012 November 30, 2011
Cash Aggregate Purchase Cash Aggregate
Deposits Price Deposits Purchase Price
Unconsolidated VIEs $ 8,46: $ 327,19¢ $ 8,097 $ 122,12!
Other land option contracts and other similar Gty 17,21¢ 298,13¢ 12,83( 222,94(
$ 25,68: $ 625,33! $ 20,927 $ 345,06!

In addition to the cash deposits presented in dlbéetabove, our exposure to loss related to owt Gption contracts and other sim
contracts with third parties and unconsolidatediestconsisted of pre-acquisition costs of $25ilien at November 30, 2012 ar&B81.5 millior
at November 30, 2011. These @reguisition costs and cash deposits were includ@ad/entories on our consolidated balance sheetsalb ha
outstanding letters of credit of $.5 million at Nowber 30, 2012 and $1.7 million
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at November 30, 2011 in lieu of cash deposits undgain land option contracts and other similartcacts.

We also evaluate our land option contracts andratinglar contracts for financing arrangements ¢éoadance withAccounting Standari
Coadification Topic No. 470, “Debt” (“ASC 470"xand, as a result of our evaluations, increasedntovies, with a corresponding increas
accrued expenses and other liabilities, in our clideted balance sheets I$4.1 million at November 30, 2012 and $23.9 milliai
November 30, 201:

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMERCIAL COMMITMENTS
The following table presents our future cash regqugnts under contractual obligations as of Nover@beR012 (in millions):

Payments due by Period

Total 2013 2014-2015 2016-2017 Thereafter
Contractual obligations:
Long-term debt $ 1,722 $ 37¢ % 429.; % 261.¢ % 994.:
Interest 751.¢ 125.c 230.t 195.2 200.¢
Operating lease obligations 14.: 5.¢ 8.1 3 —
Inventory-related obligations (a) 11.% 1.8 3.8 14 4.7
Total (b) $ 2,500.. $ 170¢ % 671.¢ $ 458.1 % 1,199.¢

(a) Represents liabilities related to inventory not edrmand liabilities for fixed or determinable amauassociated with debt of a tax incren
financing entity (“TIFE"). As homes are delivered, the obligation to pay tmaining TIFE assessments associated with eacls
transferred to the homebuyer. As such, the TIFE débbe paid by us only to the extent we do netiwker the applicable homes before
debt matures.

(b) Total contractual obligations exclude our accruml dncertain tax positions recorded for financigbarting purposes as of November
2012 because we are unable to make a reasonabhatesof cash settlements with the respective tpainthorities for all periods preseni
We anticipate these potential cash settlement repeints for 2013 to range from $.2 million to $illion.

We are often required to provide to various municidi and other government agencies performanceshamdfor letters of credit to sec
the completion of our projects and/or in supporobligations to build community improvements sushr@ads, sewers, water systems and
utilities, and to support similar development aititd¢ by certain of our unconsolidated joint veesiAt November 30, 2012, we had $2€
million of performance bonds and $41.9 milliohletters of credit outstanding. At November 3012, we had $361.6 million of performa
bonds and $63.8 million of letters of credit outslimg. If any such performance bonds or letters of craditcalled, we would be obligatec
reimburse the issuer of the performance bond derleif credit. We do not believe that a materialoant of any currently outstandi
performance bonds or letters of credit will be @dllPerformance bonds do not have stated expirdtites. Rather, we are released fron
performance bonds as the underlying performanceoimpleted. The expiration dates of some lettersreflit issued in connection w
community improvements coincide with the expectemhgletion dates of the related projects or oblageti Most letters of credit, however,
issued with an initial term of one year and aredgity extended on a year-to-year basis until #lated performance obligations are completed.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Discussed below are accounting policies that wiebelare critical because of the significance efdbtivity to which they relate or beca
they require the use of significant judgment initlgplication.

Homebuilding Revenue Recognitioks discussed in Note 1. Summary of Significant Astting Policies in the Notes to Consolid:
Financial Statements in this report, revenues fhamsing and other real estate sales are recoginizaccordance with Accounting Stande
Codification Topic No. 360, “Property, Plant andument” (“ASC 360”")when sales are closed and title passes to the .bBgkas are clos
when all of the following conditions are met: aesi consummated, a sufficient down payment isivedethe earnings process is complete
the collection of any remaining receivables is oeably assured.

Inventories and Cost of Saless discussed in Note 1. Summary of Significant Agtng Policies in the Notes to Consolidated Firl
Statements in this report,dusing and land inventories are stated at cosésarthe carrying value is determined not to bevesedle, in whic
case the affected inventories are written dowratovfalue in accordance with ASC 3@®air value is determined based on estimated futal
cash flows discounted for inherent risks associafietd the real estate assets, or other
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valuation techniques. Due to uncertainties in thtimeation process and other factors beyond oumrabrit is possible that actual results cc
differ from those estimated. Our inventories tyflicado not consist of completed unsold homes. Haavewcancellations or strate
considerations may result in our having some inwgnof unsold completed or partially completed heme

Our inventories include land we are holding forufiet development, which is comprised of lantere development activity has b
suspended or has not yet begun, but is expectectcta in the future. These assets held for futenebpment are located in various subma
where conditions do not presently support furtherestment or development, or are subject to a imgjlghermit moratorium or regulatc
restrictions, or are portions of larger land pasdbht we plan to build out over several yearsamiiat have not yet been entitled. We may
suspend development activity if we believe it wakult in greater returns and/or maximize the emoamerformance of a communityVe
resume development activity when we believe ouestwment in this inventory will be optimized, and agve activated assets previously helt
future development in certain markets as part ofstrategic growth initiatives. Interest is not italized on land held for future development.
discussed in Note 5. Inventories in the Notes tasotidated Financial Statements in this report tfimse communities for which developrr
activity has been suspended, applicable interestgensed as incurred.

We rely on certain estimates to determine our caotbn and land costs and resulting housing gposfit margins associated with reven
recognized. Construction and land costs are coeghe direct and allocated costs, including estaddtiture costs for warranties and amen
Land acquisition, land development and other comousts are generally allocated on a relative falue basis to homes within a communit
land parcel. Land acquisition and land developreests include related interest and real estatestaxe

In determining a portion of the construction anadi@osts recognized for each period, we rely ofjeptdudgets that are based on a va
of assumptions, including future construction schesl and costs to be incurred. It is possible #uanal results could differ from budge
amounts for various reasons, including constructletays, labor or materials shortages, increase®sis that have not yet been commi
changes in governmental requirements, unforeseetroemental hazard discoveries or other unantieigpatssues encountered dui
construction and other factors beyond our contddile the actual results for a particular constiarciproject are accurately reported over t
variances between the budgeted and actual coatprafect could result in the understatement orstagement of construction and land costs
homebuilding gross profits in a particular repagtiperiod. To reduce the potential for such disbortiwe have set forth procedures
collectively comprise a “critical accounting polityrhese procedures, which we have applied on a d¢ensisasis, include assessing, upd:
and revising project budgets on a monthly basitaining commitments from subcontractors and vendorsfuture costs to be incurre
reviewing the adequacy of warranty accruals antbtiésl warranty claims experience, and utilizifg tmost current information available
estimate construction and land costs to be chargezkpense. The variances between budgeted andl adsts have historically not be
material to our consolidated financial stateme¥ifg. believe that our policies provide for reasonatypendable estimates to be used it
calculation and reporting of construction and laosits.

Inventory Impairments and Land Option Contract Adb@mmentsAs discussed in Note 6. Inventory Impairments aadd_Option Contra
Abandonments in the Notes to Consolidated Finariatements in this report,a&h community or land parcel in our owned inventis
assessed to determine if indicators of potentigkiimment exist. Impairment indicators are assesspdrately for each community or land pe
on a quarterly basis and include, but are not éichito: significant decreases in net orders, avesafimg prices, volume of homes delivel
gross profit margins on homes delivered or propegposs profit margins on homes in backlog or fitiousing sales; significant increase
budgeted land development and home constructiots coscancellation rates; or projected losses qreeted future land sales. If indicator:
potential impairment exist for a community or lgratcel, the identified asset is evaluated for recaWility in accordance with ASC 360.
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The following table presents information regardimyentory impairment and land option contract almamdent charges included
construction and land costs in our consolidatetdstants of operations (dollars in thousands):

Years Ended November 30,

2012 2011 2010

Inventory impairments:

Number of communities or land parcels evaluateddooverability (a) 13t 13¢€ 11¢€

Number of communities or land parcels impaired (b) 14 12 8

Pre-impairment carrying value of communities odig@arcels impaired $ 67,95¢ $ 56,75 $ 21,38¢

Inventory impairment charges (b) (28,107 (22,730 (9,815

Post-impairment fair value $ 39,851 $ 34,02: $ 11,57(
Land option contract abandonment charges:

Number of lots abandoned 44¢ 83C 1,007

Land option contract abandonment charges $ 42¢ $ 3,061 $ 10,11(

(a) As impairment indicators are assessed on a quatadis, some of the communities or land parcedduated during the years en
November 30, 201, 2011 and 2010 were evaluated in more than oneaglyaperiod.

(b) The inventory impairment charges we recordading 2012 , 2011 and 2016flected challenging economic and housing markatlitions
in certain of our served markets. In addition, teentory impairment charges in 2012 were partlg o changes to our operationa
selling strategy for certain communities in an gfto accelerate our return on investment. Thentgy impairment charges in 2011 ¢
included an $18.1 million adjustment to the failugaof real estate collateral in our Southwest hmumding reporting segment that we tc
back on a note receivable. In some cases, we leagmized impairment charges for particular commesiior land parcels in multig
years.

When an indicator of potential impairment is idéatl for a community or land parcel, we test theeasor recoverability by comparing
carrying value of the asset to the undiscountagaréunet cash flows expected to be generated basbet. The undiscounted future net cash |
are impacted by thecdrrent conditions and trends in the market in White asset is located as well as factors knowrstat the time the ca
flows are calculated. With the undiscounted futoe¢ cash flows, we also consider recent trendsuinooders, backlog, cancellation rates
volume of homes delivered, as well as our expextatirelated to the following: product offerings; ket supply and demand, includ
estimated average selling prices and related pyiqeeciation; and land development, home constmu@nd overhead costs to be incurred
related cost inflation. With respect to the yeadehNovember 30, 201fhese expectations reflected our experience thhgugh there were
times measurable quarterly fluctuations in our y®aryear and sequential net orders, backlog levelshtading gross profit margin, the
were primarily due to certain period-specific amdzompanyspecific factors that we believed would be largeljigated by various strateg
actions and/or by observed market trends. Thederfaincluded mortgage loan funding issues arigmogn a change in the nature of
relationships with mortgage lenders; the beforeaftet effects of the Tax Credit that expired ii@0and a lower community count as a rest
our strategic repositioning efforts. We believe thgact of these factors was moderated by our ¢ipeed transition to our new prefer
mortgage lender; our strategic growth initiativas¢ our continued ability to generate a consistehigher average selling price as a result ¢
demand from our homebuyers for larger home sizdst@re design options. By comparison, market carditfor our assets in inventory wh
impairment indicators were identified have beenegalty stable in 2011 and 2012, with no significansustained deterioration identified a
revenue and cost drivers that would prevent orratise impact recoverability. Based on this experé&rand taking into account the sign
stability and improvement in many markets for newwnle sales, our inventory assessments as of NoveB@#he2012 considered an expe!
steady, if slightly improved, overall sales pacel average selling price performance for 2013 nedatd the pace and performance in re
quarters.

Given the inherent challenges and uncertaintider@casting future results, our inventory assesssnanthe time they are made take
consideration whether a community or land parcelciive, meaning it is open for sales and/or ungiagydevelopment, or whether it is be
held for future development. For active communitéesl land parcels, due to their shiemm nature as compared to land held for fu
development, our inventory assessments generalynaes the continuation of thenwrent market conditions, subject to identifyimformatior
suggesting a significant sustained deterioratiootioer changes in
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such conditions. These assessments, at the time, gmederally anticipate net orders, average sefliiwgs, volume of homes delivered and ¢
to continue at or near then-current levels throtghaffected assat'estimated remaining life. Inventory assessmemtsir land held for futu
development consider thenwrent market conditions as well as subjectivedasts regarding the timing and costs of land deweént and hon
construction and related cost inflation; the pra(g)do be offered; and the net orders, volumeashés delivered, and selling prices and re
price appreciation of the offered product(s) wherassociated community is anticipated to opendt@ss We evaluate various factors to dev
these forecasts, including the availability of ateimand for homes and finished lots within the rahvmarketplace; historical, current .
expected future sales trends for the marketplawetisirdparty data, if available. These various estimatesds, expectations and assumpt
used in each of our inventory assessments arefispeceach community or land parcel based on wiatbelieve are reasonable forecast:
performance and may vary among communities or femdels and may vary over time.

We record an inventory impairment charge when #reying value of a real estate asset is greaterttimundiscounted future net cash fl
the asset is expected to generate. These read estdts are written down to fair value, whichrimarily based on the estimated future net
flows discounted for inherent risk associated véi#ith such assdhputs used in the estimated discounted futurecash flows are specific
each affected community or land parcel and aredoeseour expectations for each such asset as afppkcable measurement date, incluc
among others, expectations related to averageggilices and delivery rateghe discount rates used in our estimated discourdast flow
ranged from 17% to 20% during 2012, 2011 and 20h@ discount rates we use are impacted by thewitp the riskfree rate of retur
expected risk premium based on estimated land dewent, home construction and delivery timelinearkat risk from potential future pri
erosion; cost uncertainty due to land developmeritome construction cogtcreases; and other risks specific to the assebwditions in th
market in which the asset is located at the tineeafsessment was made.

As of November 30, 2012the aggregate carrying value of our inventoryt theed been impacted by inventory impairment chargas
$307.2 million , representing 46 communities andous other land parcels. As of November 30, 201le aggregate carrying value of
inventory that had been impacted by inventory impant charges was $338.5 million , representing&®munities and various other i
parcels.

Our inventory controlled under land option contsaahd other similar contracts is assessed to detenwhether it continues to meet
internal investment and marketing standards. Assests are made separately for each optioned lamelpan a quarterly basis and are affe
by the following factors relative to the marketvitnich the asset is located, among others: curnethoa anticipated net orders, average se
prices and home delivery volume; estimated lanctkigwment and home construction costs; and projquiaitability on expected future hous
or land sales. When a decision is made not to sseeoertain land option contracts and other simitartracts due to market conditions an
changes in our marketing strategy, we write offrdlated inventory costs, including non-refundad@posits and unrecoverable preguisitior
costs.

The estimated remaining life of each communityaordl parcel in our inventory depends on variouofagctsuch as the total number of
remaining; the expected timeline to acquire andtlerland and develop lots to build homes; the dpéted future net order and cancella
rates; and the expected timeline to build and éelhomes sold. While it is difficult to determingigcise timeframe for any particular inven
asset, we estimate our inventory assetsiaining operating lives under current and expefuéure market conditions to range generally 1
one year to in excess of 10 yedsased on current market conditions and expectdadedgltimelines, we expect to realize, on an ovdrakis
the majority of our current inventory balance witlive years. The following table presents our ineeptbalance as of November 30, 2(
based on our current estimated timeframe of dglif@rthe last home within an applicable commuwityand parcel (in millions):

Greater than
0-2 years 3-5 years 6-10 years 10 years Total
Inventories as of November 30, 2012 $ 731 % 357.¢ % 453.1 $ 164.¢ $ 1,706.¢

The inventory balance in the six to 10 years categs of November 30, 2012 was located throughthuifaur homebuilding segmen
though mostly in our West Coast and Southwest haoittbhg reporting segments. The inventory balamcthe greater than 10 years categol
of November 30, 2012 was mainly located in our Wasdst, Southwest, and Southeast homebuildingttegaegments. The inventory balar
in the six to 10 years and greater than 10 yedegjodes, which collectively represented 36% of total inventory at November 30, 2012, w
primarily comprised of land held for future devetognt.

Due to the judgment and assumptions applied inetémation process with respect to inventory impaints, land option contre
abandonments, the remaining operating lives ofirotentory assets and the realization of our invenbalances, it is possible that actual re:
could differ substantially from those estimated.

We believe that the carrying value of our inventbatance as of November 30, 2012 is recoverable.d@uosiderations in making tl
determination include the factors and trends ino@fed into our impairment analyses, and as agpécthe prevailing
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regulatory environment, competition from other hbmilers, inventory levels and sales activity ofale homes (including lendemwnec
homes), and the local economic conditions wherasaet is located. In addition, we consider thenfifed and operational status and expecta
of our inventories as well as unique attributeseath community or land parcel that could be viewedindicators for potential futt
impairments. However, if conditions in the ovetadlusing market or in specific markets worsen inftltere beyond our current expectation
future changes in our marketing strategy signifiigaaffect any key assumptions used in our progetiof future cash flows, or if there
material changes in any of the other items we cemsin assessing recoverability, we may recognimrges in future periods for invent
impairments or land option contract abandonmentfoth, related to our current inventory assetsy 8mch charges could be material to
consolidated financial statements.

Fair Value Measurementg#s discussed in Note 7. Fair Value Disclosureshin Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsiiréport
Accounting Standards Codification Topic No. 820aifFValue Measurements and Disclosures,” (“ASC 820ovides a framework f
measuring the fair value of assets and liabilitieder GAAP, and establishes a fair value hieratbhyrequires an entity to maximize the us
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobséniaputs when measuring fair valdée fair value hierarchy can be summarized asva

Level 1 Fair value determined based on quoted prices imeactarkets for identical assets or liabilit

Level 2 Fair value determined using significant observabeits, such as quoted prices for similar asset®bitities or quoted price
for identical or similar assets or liabilities irarkets that are not active, inputs other than guptees that are observable
the asset or liability, or inputs that are deriywthcipally from or corroborated by observable nedrlata, by correlation
other means.

Level 3 Fair value determined using significant unobsemaiplputs, such as pricing models, discounted cémhsf or simila
techniques.

Fair value measurements are used for inventories wonrecurring basis when events and circumstandasate the carrying value is |
recoverable. The fair values for our loliged assets held and used that were determined Usvel 2 inputs were based on an executed ca!
The fair values for londjved assets held and used that were determined) Wsivel 3 inputs were primarily based on the estéd future ne
cash flows discounted for inherent risk associatéti each asseds described in Note 6. Inventory Impairments aadd_Option Contra
Abandonments in the Notes to Consolidated Finai8te@tements in this report. The discount rates secane impacted by the following: the risk-
free rate of return; expected risk premium basedstimated land development, home constructiondslidery timelines; market risk fro
potential future price erosion; cost uncertaintg tlu land development or home construction coseases; and other risks specific to the as:
conditions in the market in which the asset is tedaat the time the assessment was matese factors were specific to each affe
community or land parcel and may have varied antmmgmunities or land parcels. Due to uncertaintiethe estimation process, it is poss
that actual results could differ from those estedat

Our financial instruments consist of cash and @aglivalents, restricted cash, mortgages and netesvable, senior notes, and mortg;
and land contracts due to land sellers and otlaslo-air value measurements of financial instrusnare determined by various market date
other valuation techniques, as appropriate. Wheilable, we use quoted market prices in active etarto determine fair value.

Warranty CostsAs discussed in Note 13. Commitments and Contirigerin the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statémenthis repor
we provide a limited warranty on all of our hom€&ke specific terms and conditions of these limitedranties vary depending upon the mai
in which we do business. We generally provide acstiral warranty oflO years, a warranty on electrical, heating, caplpiumbing and oth
building systems each varying from two to five yebased on geographic market and state law, aratranty of one year for other compont
of the homeWe estimate the costs that may be incurred unddr lgaited warranty and record a liability in themaunt of such costs at the ti
the revenue associated with the sale of each hemeedgnized. Our expense associated with therissuz these warranties totalgd.4 millior
in 2012, $4.9 million in 2011 and $5.2 million iBZD.

Our primary assumption in estimating the amountsas@ue for warranty costs is that historical ckiexperience is a strong indicato
future claims experience. Factors that affect oarranty liability include the number of homes defied, historical and anticipated rate:
warranty claims, and cost per claim. We periodjcaisess the adequacy of our accrued warrantjitifapivhich is included in accrued exper
and other liabilities in the consolidated balaniceets, and adjust the amount as necessary based assessmen@ur assessment includes
review of our actual warranty costs incurred toniifg trends and changes in our warranty claimseeignce, and considers our hc
construction quality and customer service initiesivand outside events. Based on our assessmantdetermined that our overall warrs
liability at each reporting date was sufficientctmver our overall warranty obligations on previgudélivered homes that are under our linm
warranty. Additionally,based on our assessment of the trends in our warckims experience, and taking into account teerehse in tf
overall number of homes
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we have delivered over the past several years®@@t?2 and the steady reduction in our estimateiréng repair costs and actual repair ¢
incurred for homes identified as affected or patdiytaffected by the allegedly defective drywalle recorded favorable warranty adjustmen
$11.2 million in the second quarter of 2012 andA$illion in the third quarter of 2011, as reductions to toesion and land costs in ¢
consolidated statements of operations in thosegels of November 30, 2012, based on our assessmentrafverall warranty liability on
combined basis for all of our previously delivedeoimes that are under our limited warranty, inclgdihe homes identified as affectec
potentially affected by the allegedly defectivewla)l and the increased number of homes potentéfiycted by water intrusiorelated issue
we recorded an adjustment to increase our overailanty liability by $2.6 milliorin the fourth quarter of 2012 with a correspondiharge t
construction and land costs in our consolidatetistant of operations.

While we believe the warranty liability currentlgflected in our consolidated balance sheets todeguate, unanticipated changes ir
legal environment, local weather, land or environtak conditions, quality of materials or method®disn the construction of homes,
customer service practices could have a significapict on our actual warranty costs in the futane such amounts could differ from
current estimateg\ 10% change in the historical warranty rates usegstimate our warranty accrual would not result imaterial change in ¢
accrual.

Insurance As discussed in Note 13. Commitments and Contirigerin the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statésenthis report, we
maintain, and require the majority of our subcartyes to maintain, general liability insurance (uating construction defect and bodily inji
coverage) and workersbmpensation insurance. These insurance polic@sgirus against a portion of our risk of loss frdaims related to o
homebuilding activities, subject to certain seured retentions, deductibles and other coveliagts. In Arizona, California, Colorado a
Nevada, our subcontractors' general liability iagge primarily takes the form of a w-up policy, where eligible subcontractors are esrbb
insureds on each project. We selure a portion of our overall risk through the w$ a captive insurance subsidiary. We also miairtertair
other insurance policies. We record expenses ailities based on the estimated costs requiredotger our selfhsured retention ai
deductible amounts under our insurance policied,tha estimated costs of potential claims and cladfjustment expenses that are above
coverage limits or that are not covered by our riasce policies. These estimated costs are baseoh @malysis of our historical claims
include an estimate of construction defect claimmuired but not yet reported. Our estimated liabgifor such items were $93.3 millia
November 30, 201liand $94.9 million at November 30, 201TThese amounts are included in accrued expenskother liabilities in ot
consolidated balance sheets. Our expenses assowiditeself-insurance totaled $8.7 million in 20,137.2 million in 2011 and $7.4 milliom
2010 . These expenses were largely offset by dartioins from subcontractors participating in thepvup policy.

We engage a thirgarty actuary that uses our historical claim angeese data, as well as industry data, to estimatargaid claims, clai
adjustment expenses and incurred but not repotéchs liabilities for the risks that we are assugnimder our selinsurance. Projection
losses related to these liabilities requires a@bassumptions that are subject to variability doeincertainties regarding construction de
claims relative to our markets and the types ofipeb we build, claim settlement patterns, insurandestry practices and legal or regula
interpretations, among other factors. Because efdtgree of judgment required and the potentialéoiability in the underlying assumptic
used in determining these estimated liability antsuactual future costs could differ from our estied amounts.

Stock-Based Compensatioks discussed in Note 1. Summary of Significant Agding Policies in the Notes to Consolidated Fital
Statements in this report, w e measure and recegmmpensation expense associated with our grasguifybased awards in accordance \
Accounting Standards Codification Topic No. 718pt@pensation—Stock Compensation” (“ASC 718&ihich requires that companies mea
and recognize compensation expense at an amoualttecghe fair value of shafgased payments granted under compensation arrangeavwe
the vesting periodAs discussed in Note 17. Employee Benefit and SRieks in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Btatgs in this repol
we have provided some compensation benefits t@ioedf our employees in the form of stock optiorestricted stock, performanbase:
restricted stock units (each a “PSU"), phantom ehi@and stock appreciation rights (“SARs”). Detelingrnthe fair value of shareased awart
requires judgment to identify the appropriate vibramodel and develop the assumptions, includimgexpected term of the stock option
SARs, expected stogbrice volatility and dividend yield, to be usedtive calculation. Judgment is also required in esimy the percentage
share-based awards that are expected to vest. tilfatsthe fair value of stock options and SARsgd using the Black-Scholes optiprieing
model with assumptions based primarily on histdrigda. The expected volatility factor was based on a coatimn of the historical volatility
our common stock and the implied volatility of pight traded options on our common stock. If acttedults differ significantly from the
estimates, stock-based compensation expense amdmaolidated financial statements could be madkgirapacted.

Income TaxedAs discussed in Note 1. Summary of Significant Aotng Policies in the Notes to Consolidated Fiman8tatements in th
report, we account for income taxes in accordanitle ASC 740.The provision for, or benefit from, income taxes@culated using the as
and liability method, under which deferred tax éssmd liabilities are recorded based on the diffee between the financial statement an
basis of assets and liabilities using enacteddtesrin effect for the year in
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which the differences are expected to reverse.rigfdax assets are evaluated on a quarterly tmsistermine if adjustments to the valua
allowance are required. In accordance with ASC W&assess whether a valuation allowance shoutdtadlished based on the consideratis
all available evidence using a “more likely tha’reiandard with respect to whether deferred tax sisgiitbe realized. The ultimate realizat
of deferred tax assets depends primarily on therg¢ion of future taxable income during the perimdehich the differences become deduct
The value of our deferred tax assets will dependpplicable income tax rateludgment is required in determining the futuredamsequenc
of events that have been recognized in our coreelitl financial statements and/or tax returns. Biffees between anticipated and a
outcomes of these future tax consequences coukldavaterial impact on our consolidated finanditiesnents.

As discussed in Note 15. Income Taxes in the Nimté&3onsolidated Financial Statements in this report recognize accrued interest
penalties related to unrecognized tax benefitsuinamnsolidated financial statements as a compooietite provision for income taxe®ut
liability for unrecognized tax benefits, combinedthwaccrued interest and penalties, is reflected asmponent of accrued expenses and
liabilities in our consolidated balance sheetsgdueht is required in evaluating uncertain tax pmss. We evaluate our uncertain tax posit
quarterly based on various factors, including cleang facts or circumstances, tax laws or the statwaudits by tax authorities. Changes ir
recognition or measurement of uncertain tax pasitioould have a material impact on our consolidéitezhcial statements in the perioc
which we make the change.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In May 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Mo@dFASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update R@l1-04, ‘Amendments t
Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disc®equirements in GAAP and IFRS” (“ASU 2011-04khich changes the wordi
used to describe the requirements in GAAP for niagdair value and for disclosing information abdair value measurements in orde
improve consistency in the application and desiotipof fair value between GAAP and Internationaldficial Reporting Standards. ASU 2011-
04 clarifies how the concepts of highest and bsetand valuation premise in a fair value measurearerrelevant only when measuring the
value of nonfinancial assets and are not relevénwmeasuring the fair value of financial assetgbilities. In addition, the guidance expan
the disclosures for the unobservable inputs forelL&vfair value measurements, requiring quantigatiformation to be disclosed relatec
(1) the valuation processes used, (2)the serngitiof recurring fair value measurements to changesunobservable inputs and
interrelationships between those unobservable sn@ud (3) use of a nonfinancial asset in a watydiffers from the asset’highest and best u
The revised guidance was effective for interim amthual periods beginning after December 15, 201k. &loption of this guidance as
March 1, 2012 did not have a material impact onamnsolidated financial position or results of @tiems.

In June 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standdpittate No. 2011-05, “Presentation of Comprehenisiseme” (“ASU 2011-05").The
amendments in ASU 2011-05 alleam entity the option to present the total of corhprssive income, the components of net income, he
components of other comprehensive income eithardimgle continuous statement of comprehensivenigcor in two separate but consect
statements. In both instances, an entity is requogresent each component of net income alory taial net income, each component of ¢
comprehensive income along with a total for othemprehensive income, and a total amount for congmsikie income. ASU 20105
eliminates the option to present the componentstitér comprehensive income as part of the stateofestianges in stockholdersquity. The
amendments in ASU 20105 do not change the items that must be reportedttier comprehensive income or when an item ofr
comprehensive income must be reclassified to netnire. However, in December 2011, the FASB issfiedounting Standards Updi
No. 20112, “Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments t@ tRresentation of Reclassifications of Items Ou®ofumulated Othi
Comprehensive Income in Accounting Standards Uphate2011-05" (“ASU 2011-12")which deferred the guidance on whether to re:
entities to present reclassification adjustmentsafiaccumulated other comprehensive income by oot in both the statement where
income is presented and the statement where ottreprehensive income is presented for both intenmd annual financial statemet
ASU 2011-12 reinstated the requirements for thegtation of reclassifications that were in plagergo the issuance of ASU 2006 and di
not change the effective date for ASU 2011-05. public entities, the amendments in ASU 2011-05 AB88) 201142 are effective for fisc
years, and interim periods within those years, tr@igp after December 15, 2011, and should be appétospectively. The adoption of t
guidance concerns disclosure only and will not lervémpact on our consolidated financial positiomesults of operations.

OUTLOOK

In 2012, several housing markets across the cowfimyed clear signs of recovery from the severesingudownturn that began in mid-
2006. Though home sales activity, home sellinggsriand housing starts remain below historicallycaidevels in most markets, we believe
factors discussed above in this report, includiredgally improving economic and job growth trensisggest that the housing market turn
corner in 2012 and that we could be at the beginofra new upward business cycle for homebuilding.
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In adapting to the changing housing market dynarofcthe past few years, we have broadly transforthedgeographic and operatic
scope of our business through our execution orhite primary integrated strategic goals descrddsmlre under “Part | — Item 1. Business
Strategy.”In our pursuit of these goals, we have expandednmastment in housing markets and submarketswhatelieve offer the strong:
growth prospects, based primarily on consumer peafees, population demographics and household faxmactivity; economic ar
employment infrastructure and trends; prevailingl @&xpected home sales activity and home pricingdse household income levels |
availability of developable land at reasonable ;caistl where we felt we could best leverage ourescalr KBnxt operational business model
experience to capitalize on identified opportusitig/e believe we have built a geographically digesperational platform in largely higher-
performing, choice locations featuring higher hdnedd incomes, become more efficient and strengttheng overall business relative to wt
we stood at the outset of the housing downturn,amagoised for growth if and as the present hgusnovery continues to progress.

We believe our 2012 results demonstrate that oatesfic approach is working. We generated year-ggar improvement in a number
key financial and operational metrics, includingaeues; homes delivered; net orders (reflectinopemrease in average net orders per comm
in 2012, partly offset by an 18% year-over-yearrdase in our community count at the end of 2018};arder valueselling, general ar
administrative expense ratibpusing gross profit margin, and in our bottom Jliméth net income in the third and fourth quartafée hav:
momentum heading into 2013, with 2,577 homes irklogcat November 30, 2012, a 20#crease over the previous year, and potentiatd
housing revenues in backlog of $618.6 million 3530 year over year. To build on our progress, we azarphg additional investments in le
and land development and other strategic initiative2013 to further expand our business. Implemgrdur current strategic plans may
involve accessing the capital markets and/or obtgiaxternal financial resources, as further describelow.

The healthier conditions in our served housing miakalbeit to varying degrees, were a substagtiaributor to our improved performat
in 2012, and we anticipate that the positive tremassaw over the course of the year will continne2013. To take advantage of -
environment, in 2012, we expanded on our primamtegic goals to target both profitability and gtbvand implemented the following fc
main strategic growth initiatives: (1) aggressivielyesting in land and land development in highberforming, choice locations, reinforcing
strategic repositioning during the housing downt®) optimizing our assets by increasing reverpegsnew home community open for si
through an intense focus on sales performancdar(@dening our performing asset base by activatmtain inventory in stabilizing markets t
was previously held for future development; andi@d)ging additional resources to targeted markétere we operate to further strengther
local field management teams and talent.

As part of our strategic growth initiatives, wednt to open additional new home communities foesséhroughout 2013, and we pla
drive sales performance with these additional coniti@s by maintaining one of the highest peramunity sales rates in the homebuilc
industry, as we have done for most of the last j@ars, and by generating higher selling prices wtmrssible. We also plan to expl
opportunities to obtain external debt and/or equépital and/or enter into revolving credit faéi# or other financing arrangements to sug
our current land acquisition and land developmerestment targets and for other business purpaséfrato effect repurchases of
outstanding senior notes or other debt.

With the strategic actions we have taken and thaltewe have achieved through the period of thesing downturn and in 2012,
believe that we are favorably situated to accorhpbgr top profitability and growth goals, particljain view of the longeterm demograph
and population growth trends that we expect wilitoaue to drive future demand for homeownershipum served markets. In particular,
believe we are welpositioned in California, which accounted for nganhlf of our 2012 revenues and where we are tigesh homebuild:
based on new home sales. California, with its lgpgpulation base, diverse business ecosystem asidalle climate and lifestyle,
experiencing significant demand for housing and &aslatively limited supply of homes available &ale, and we believe we can use
competitive strengths and long history in the stateapitalize on these trends.

The strength and durability of the present housetgvery, our future performance and the strategesmplement (and adjust or refine
necessary or appropriate) will depend significamtty prevailing economic and capital, credit andaficial market conditions, among ot
factors, and we caution that our quarterly restdigld fluctuate. We expect we will be profitable 013 and achieve solid growth in the y:
ahead if and as housing markets continue to impaodehousing resumes its historical role of contiity to national economic growth.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Investors are cautioned that certain statement&icea in this report, as well as some statementsshin periodic press releases and ¢
public disclosures and some oral statements byouseturities analysts, stockholders and othersndysiesentations, are “forwatoleking
statements” within the meaning of the Private SéesrLitigation Reform Act of 1995 (the “Act”Statements that are predictive in nature,
depend upon or refer to future events or conditiamsthat include words such as “expects,” “antgs,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,”
“estimates,” “hopes,” and similar expressions cibuist forward-

" ou " ou
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looking statements. In addition, any statementsceoning future financial or operating performandagcl(gding, without limitation, futur
revenues, homes delivered, net orders, sellinggriexpenses, expense ratios, housing gross prafgins, earnings or earnings per shar
growth or growth rates), future market conditioftgure interest rates, and other economic conditimmgoing business strategies or prosy
future dividends and changes in dividend levels,whlue of our backlog (including amounts that wpeet to realize upon delivery of hor
included in our backlog and the timing of thoseiwdzles), the value of our net orders, potentialife asset acquisitions and the impar
completed acquisitions, future share issuancespurchases and possible future actions, which regyrdvided by us, are also forwdobking
statements as defined by the Act. Forwlmaking statements are based on our current exjmtsaand projections about future events an
subject to risks, uncertainties, and assumptionsitabur operations, economic and market factord,tha homebuilding industry, among of
things. These statements are not guarantees oéfpéuformance, and we have no specific policytarition to update these statements.

Actual events and results may differ materiallynfrthose expressed or forecasted in forwaaking statements due to a number of fac
The most important risk factors that could causeamiual performance and future events and actomiffer materially from such forward-
looking statements include, but are not limitedthe following: general economic, employment andiless conditions; adverse mal
conditions, including an increased supply of undaddhes, declining home prices and greater foreotoand short sale activity, among o
things, that could result in, among other negaitiveacts on our consolidated financial statemertditianal impairment or land option contr
abandonment charges, lower revenues and operatithgther losses; conditions in the capital, cradid financial markets (including mortgi
lending standards, the availability of mortgageaficing and mortgage foreclosure rates); materigeprand availability; labor costs ¢
availability; changes in interest rates; inflatiaur debt level, including our ratio of debt toaotapital, and our ability to adjust our debt lg
maturity schedule and structure and to accessdhitye credit, capital or other financial marketsather external financing sources, incluc
raising capital through the public or private isst® of common stock, debt or other securities, @nolbdtaining a credit or similar facility
project financing, on favorable terms; weak or ohéiey consumer confidence, either generally or sjpady with respect to purchasing hom
competition for home sales from other sellers af a@d resale homes, including lenders and othirsealf homes obtained through foreclos
or short sales; weather conditions, significanturatdisasters and other environmental factors;eguwent actions, policies, programs
regulations directed at or affecting the housingkata(including, but not limited to, the Dodetank Act, tax credits, tax incentives an
subsidies for home purchases, tax deductions fotgage interest payments and property taxes, tarmptons for profits on home sales,
programs intended to modify existing mortgage lcamd to prevent mortgage foreclosures), the hontaibgiindustry, or construction activitie
decisions by lawmakers on federal fiscal policiesluding those relating to taxation and governnsg@nding; the availability and cost of lan
desirable areas; our warranty claims experience rggpect to homes previously delivered and aetaalanty costs incurred; legal or regula
proceedings or claims; our ability to use/realize het deferred tax assets we have generatedpiity o successfully implement our curn
and planned product, geographic and market positjo(including, but not limited to, our efforts txpand our inventory base/pipeline v
desirable land positions or interests at reasor@ideand to expand our community count, open mdit new home communities for sales
sell higherpriced homes and more design options, and our bpeahand investment concentration in markets afif@rnia and Texas), reven
growth, asset optimization, asset activation, Ifiedd management and talent investment, and oaerla@d other cost management strategie
initiatives; consumer traffic to our new home conmities and consumer interest in our product designsofferings, particularly highéneome
consumers; cancellations and our ability to reabze backlog by converting net orders to home @eiés; our home sales and deli
performance in key markets in California and Texag, manner in which our homebuyers are offered whether they are able to obt
mortgage loans and mortgage banking services,dimgufrom our preferred mortgage lender, Nationdtee performance of Nationstar as
preferred mortgage lender; information technolagjlufes and data security breaches; and other ®eetgide of our control.
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Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

We enter into debt obligations primarily to suppgeheral corporate purposes, including the opersitdd our subsidiaries. We are subje
interest rate risk on our senior notes. For fixate debt, changes in interest rates generallytafiedfair value of the debt instrument, but not
earnings or cash flows. Under our current polioigs,do not use interest rate derivative instrumenteanage our exposure to changes in ini

rates.

The following tables present principal cash flowsseheduled maturity, weighted average interesisrand the estimated fair value of
long-term fixed rate debt obligations as of Noverm&@ 2012 and 2011 (dollars in thousands):

Long-term debt

Fixed Rate

Weighted
Average Interest
Rate

Long-term debt

Fixed Rate

Weighted
Average Interest
Rate

As of November 30, 2012 for the Years Ended Novemb@0, Fair Value at
November 30,
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter Total 2012
$ — 75,91: $ 338,82! $ — $ 261,43( $ 994,33 $ 1,670,50. $ 1,831,59
—% 5.8% 6.1% —% 9.1% 7.€% 7.5%
As of November 30, 2011 for the Years Ended Novembg0, Fair Value at
November 30,
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Thereafter Total 2011
$ — — $ 249,64 $ 749,06¢ $ — $ 559,87: $ 1,558,58' $ 1,391,26'
—% —% 5.8% 6.1% —% 8.1% 6.8%
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Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

KB HOME
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the YEeaded November 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of November 30, 2042011

Consolidated Statements of Stockhold&muity for the Years Ended November 30, 2012, 241id 2010
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEeaded November 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Report of Independent Reqistered Public Accourtfiinm

Separate combined financial statements of our wsutimated joint venture activities have been
aggregate, they would not constitute a significaftsidiary as defined by Rule 3-09 of RegulatioX. S-
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KB HOME
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Amounts)

Years Ended November 30,

2012 2011 2010
Total revenues $ 1,560,11! $ 1,315,861 $ 1,589,99
Homebuilding:
Revenues $ 1,548,43. $ 1,305,56. $ 1,581,76:
Construction and land costs (1,317,52) (1,129,98) (1,308,28)
Selling, general and administrative expenses (251,159 (247,88¢) (289,52()
Loss on loan guaranty — (30,765 —
Operating loss (20,25€) (103,079 (16,045
Interest income 51¢ 871 2,09¢
Interest expense (69,804 (49,209 (68,307
Equity in loss of unconsolidated joint ventures (399 (55,839 (6,257)
Homebuilding pretax loss (89,93¢) (207,24¢) (88,51))
Financial services:
Revenues 11,68 10,30¢ 8,23:
Expenses (2,999 (3,519 (3,119
Equity in income/gain on wind down of unconsolidhjeint venture 2,191 19,28¢ 7,02¢
Financial services pretax income 10,88: 26,07¢ 12,14
Total pretax loss (79,059 (181,169 (76,36%)
Income tax benefit 20,10( 2,40( 7,00(
Net loss $ (58,959 $ (178,76Y) $ (69,36%)
Basic and diluted loss per share $ (76) $ (2.32) $ (.90)
Basic and diluted average shares outstanding 77,10¢ 77,04 76,88¢

See accompanying notes.
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Assets
Homebuilding:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Receivables
Inventories
Investments in unconsolidated joint ventures
Other assets

Financial services
Total assets

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Homebuilding:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Mortgages and notes payable

Financial services
Stockholders’ equity:

KB HOME

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In Thousands, Except Shares)

November 30,

Preferred stock — $1.00 par value; authorized,d@@O shares; none issued

Common stock — $1.00 par value; authorized, 290@shares at November 30, 2012 and 2011,
115,178,187 and 115,170,693 shares issued at N@re36b2012 and 2011, respectively

Paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Grantor stock ownership trust, at cost: 10,6153 10,884,151 shares at November 30, 2012 and

2011, respectively

Treasury stock, at cost: 27,340,468 and 27,214sh@des at November 30, 2012 and 2011,

respectively
Total stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

See accompanying notes.

2012 2011
$ 524,76 $ 415,05
42,36 64,48
64,82 66,17¢
1,706,57. 1,731,62!
123,67« 127,92
95,05( 75,10«
2,557,24: 2,480,36'
4,45¢ 32,17:
$ 256169 $ 251254
$ 118,54 $ 104,41
340,34 374,40
1,722,81! 1,583,57.
2,181,70. 2,062,39.
3,18¢ 7,49¢
115,17¢ 115,17
888,57 884,19(
450,29: 519,84«
(27,95%) (26,157)
(115,149 (118,05¢)
(934,13f) (932,33)
376,80 442,65
$ 256169 $ 251254

62




Table of Contents

KB HOME

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(In Thousands)

Years Ended November 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010

Number of Shares

Grantor Accumulated Grantor
Stock Other Stock Total
Common Ownership Treasury Common Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Ownership Treasury Stockholders’
Stock Trust Stock Stock Capital Earnings Loss Trust Stock Equity
Balance at November 30, 200  115,12( (11,229 (27,04 $ 115,12( $860,77: $ 806,44 $ (22,249 $ (122,01) $ (930,85() $ 707,22«
Comprehensive loss:
Net loss — — — — — (69,36¢) — — — (69,36¢)
Postretirement benefits
adjustment — — — — — — (41%) — — (419
Total comprehensive loss — — — — — — — — — (69,787
Dividends on common stock — — — — — (19,229 — — — (19,229
Employee stock options and
other 29 — — 29 2,07¢ — — — — 2,10¢
Restricted stock awards — — — — (307) — — 307 — —
Restricted stock amortization — — — — 2,297 — — — — 2,297
Stock-based compensation — — — — 5,771 — — — — 5,771
Cash-settled stock appreciatic
rights exchange — — — — 2,34¢ — — — — 2,34¢
Grantor stock ownership trust — 14¢€ — — 21¢F — — 1,26¢ — 1,487
Stock repurchases — — (48 — 342 — — — (699 (350)
Balance at November 30, 2010  115,14¢ (11,087 (27,095 115,14¢ 873,51¢ 717,85: (22,657) (120,447) (931,54) 631,87¢
Comprehensive loss:
Net loss — — — — — (178,76%) — — — (178,76%)
Postretirement benefits
adjustment — — — — — — (3,495 — — (3,495
Total comprehensive loss — — — — — — — — — (182,267)
Dividends on common stock — — — — — (19,240 — — — (19,240
Employee stock options and
other 22 — — 22 2,41( — — — — 2,43:
Restricted stock amortization — — — — 2,15¢ — — — — 2,15¢
Forfeited restricted stock — — (119 — 794 — — — (7949 —
Stock-based compensation — — — — 5,90( — — — — 5,90(
Grantor stock ownership trust — 19¢ — — (587) — — 2,382 — 1,79¢
Balance at November 30, 201 115,17: (10,88¢) (27,219 115,17: 884,19( 519,84« (26,157 (118,059 (932,33) 442,65
Comprehensive loss:
Net loss — — — — — (58,959 — — — (58,959
Postretirement benefits
adjustment — — — — — — (1,80¢) — — (1,80¢)
Total comprehensive loss — — — — — — — — — (60,759
Dividends on common stock — — — — — (10,599 — — — (10,599
Employee stock options and
other 7 — — 7 97 — — — — 104
Restricted stock awards — 20¢ — — (2,259 — — 2,25¢ — —
Restricted stock amortization — — — — 1,70¢ — — — — 1,70¢
Stock-based compensation — — — — 5,00¢ — — — — 5,00¢
Grantor stock ownership trust — 60 — — (16€) — — 657 — 48¢
Stock repurchases — — (12€) — — — — — (1,799 (1,799
Balance at November 30, 201 115,17 (10,616 (27,34) $ 115,17t $88857¢ $ 450,29: $ (27,95 $ (115,149 $ (934,13) $ 376,80¢

See accompanying notes.
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KB HOME

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In Thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash plexvby (used in) operating
activities:

Equity in (income) loss/(gain) on wind down of unsolidated joint ventures
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated joiehtures

Loss on loan guaranty

Gain on sale of operating property

Amortization of discounts and issuance costs

Depreciation and amortization

Provision for deferred income taxes

Loss (gain) on early extinguishment of debt/losvoluntary termination of
revolving credit facility

Tax benefits from stock-based compensation
Stock-based compensation
Inventory impairments and land option contract alsaments
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables
Inventories
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiedil
Other, net
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Return of investments in (contributions to) uncditsted joint ventures
Proceeds from sale of operating property
Purchases of property and equipment, net
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Change in restricted cash
Proceeds from issuance of senior notes
Payment of senior notes issuance costs
Repayment of senior notes
Payments on mortgages and land contracts duedckllers and other loans
Issuance of common stock under employee stock plans
Excess tax benefit associated with exercise okstptions
Payments of cash dividends
Stock repurchases
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivakent
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
See accompanying notes.
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Years Ended November 30,

2012 2011 2010
(58,95) $ (178,760 $ (69,36¢)
(1,797 36,55: (772)
3,31¢ 8,70: 20,41(
— 30,76t —
— (8,825) —
3,01¢ 2,15( 2,14¢
1,62- 2,031 3,28¢
1,157 — —
10,27¢ (3,617) 1,802
— — (582)
6,71¢ 8,05¢ 8,07¢
28,53 25,79: 19,92t
24,99 (2,220 211,31
30,34’ (12,345 (129,33)
(2,149 (253,54 (199,205
(12,467) (2,275 (1,669)
34,61 (347,541 (133,96
98¢ (67,26() (15,669
— 80,60( —
(1,749 (242) (420)
(760) 13,00 (16,089
22,11¢ 50,99¢ (1,185
694,83 — —
(12,445 — —
(592,641 (100,000 —
(26,299 (89,462) (101,15
59z 1,79¢ 1,851
— — 582
(10,599 (19,240 (19,229
(1,799 — (350)
73,75 (155,909 (119,47
107,61 (490,35() (269,53)
418,07 908,43 1,177,96.
525,68 $ 418,07 $ 908,43(
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KB HOME
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policie

Operations.KB Home is a builder of singl&amily residential homes, townhomes and condomisiuk¥e had ongoing operations
Arizona, California, Colorado, Florida, Marylandetada, New Mexico, North Carolina, Texas and Viegias of November 30, 2012. We o
titte and insurance services to our homebuyersutir@ur financial services subsidiary, KB Home Mage Company (“KBHMC”)From 200!
until June 30, 2011, we also offered mortgage bankervices to our homebuyers indirectly throughAKiBortgage, a former unconsolida
joint venture of a subsidiary of ours and a sulbbsidbf Bank of America, N.A., with each partner imagva 50% interest in the venture. KE
Mortgage ceased offering mortgage banking senafes June 30, 2011. KBA Mortgage was accountecafoan unconsolidated joint vent
within our financial services reporting segment.

Basis of Presentatiofhe consolidated financial statements include capants and all significant subsidiaries and jesrtures in which
controlling interest is held, as well as certairE¥Irequired to be consolidated pursuant to ASC 81lntercompany transactions have b
eliminated. Investments in unconsolidated jointtuezs in which we have less than a controllingrige are accounted for using the ec
method.

Use of Estimated’ he accompanying consolidated financial statemlesne been prepared in conformity with GAAP andrdfare, includ
amounts based on informed estimates and judgméntarmagement. Actual results could differ from thestimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted CA&hconsider all highly liquid shoterm investments purchased with an original matwi
three months or less to be cash equivalents. Osin eguivalents totaled $396.3 million at Novemb®r 3012 and $212.8 milliora
November 30, 201. The majority of our cash and cash equivalentewarested in money market accounts.

Restricted cash of $42.4 million at November 3012@nd $64.5 million at November 30, 20ddnsisted of cash deposited with var
financial institutions that was required as collatéor our LOC Facilities.

Property and Equipment and Depreciatiéroperty and equipment are recorded at cost andegeciated over their estimated useful |i
which generally range from two to 10 years, usimg $traightine method. Repair and maintenance costs are etiagyearnings as incurr
Property and equipment are included in other assetthe consolidated balance sheets. Property quigpraent totaled $7.9 million net o
accumulated depreciation of $18.5 million , at Nober 30, 2012, and $7.8 million , net of accumuladepreciation of $18.0 million a
November 30, 201. Depreciation expense totaled $1.6 million in 20$2.0 million in 2011 and $3.3 million in 2010 .

Homebuilding OperationsRevenues from housing and other real estate sedeseeognized in accordance with ASC 36Ben sales a
closed and title passes to the buyer. Sales asedtlorhen all of the following conditions are metsae is consummated, a sufficient di
payment is received, the earnings process is cdengiel the collection of any remaining receivaidegasonably assured.

Construction and land costs are comprised of diaect allocated costs, including estimated futuretcéor the limited warranty on ¢
homes and amenities within a community. Land adiiuris land development and other common costgareerally allocated on a relative
value basis to the homes within a community or lpartel. Land acquisition and land developmentscogtiude related interest and real et
taxes.

H ousing and land inventories are stated at cosgssrthe carrying value is determined not to bevesedle, in which case the affec
inventories are written down to fair value in acamce with ASC 360ASC 360 requires that real estate assets, suchrasoosing and lar
inventories, be tested for recoverability wheneseents or changes in circumstances indicate tle@tt ¢arrying value may not be recovera
Recoverability is measured by comparing the cagyialue of an asset to the undiscounted futureast flows expected to be generated b
asset. These impairment evaluations are significamipacted by estimates for the amounts and tinahfuture revenues, costs and expet
and other factors. If the carrying value of reahtsassets is not recoverable, the impairmeneteebognized is measured by the amoul
which the carrying value of the affected asset edsdts estimated fair value.

Fair Value Measurement&.SC 820 provides a framework for measuring thevfalue of assets and liabilities under GAAP andlgihes
fair value hierarchy that requires an entity to imaze the use of observable inputs and minimizeute of unobservable inputs when measi
fair value.
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Fair value measurements are used for inventories wonrecurring basis when events and circumstand@ste the carrying value is |
recoverable. Fair value is determined based omatgi future net cash flows discounted for inherisiks associated with the real estate as
or other valuation techniques.

Our financial instruments consist of cash and @aglivalents, restricted cash, mortgages and netesvable, senior notes, and mortg;
and land contracts due to land sellers and otlaslo-air value measurements of financial instrusnare determined by various market date
other valuation techniques, as appropriate. Wheilable, we use quoted market prices in active etarto determine fair value.

Financial Services Operation®ur financial services segment generates reventuggnly from insurance commissions, title servi
marketing services fees and interest incomgurance commissions are recognized when pol@ciesssued. Title services revenues are rec
when closing services are rendered and title imagrgolicies are issued, both of which generallguoat the time each home is clo:
Marketing services fees are recognized when eanddnterest income is accrued as earned.

Warranty CostsWe provide a limited warranty on all of our homeége estimate the costs that may be incurred unddr leaited warrant
and record a liability in the amount of such costghe time the revenue associated with the sakeach home is recognize@ur priman
assumption in estimating the amounts we accruevigranty costs is that historical claims experieitca strong indicator of future clai
experience. Factors that affect our warranty ligbihclude the number of homes delivered, his&riand anticipated rates of warranty cla
and cost per claim. We periodically assess the waisgof our accrued warranty liabilignd adjust the amount as necessary based ¢
assessment.

Insurance.We selfinsure a portion of our overall risk through thes s a captive insurance subsidiary. We also maintartain othe
insurance policies. We record expenses and liegsilivased on the estimated costs required to aoweselfinsured retention and deducti
amounts under our insurance policies, and the atgiincosts of potential claims and claim adjustnexpenses that are above our cove
limits or that are not covered by our insuranceqgiEs. These estimated costs are based on an snafysur historical claims and include
estimate of construction defect claims incurredrinityet reported.

We engage a thirgarty actuary that uses our historical claim angeese data, as well as industry data, to estimatergaid claims, clai
adjustment expenses and incurred but not repoitgoh< liabilities for the risks that we are assugnimder our selfrsurance. Projection
losses related to these liabilities requires a@bassumptions that are subject to variability doieincertainties regarding construction de
claims relative to our markets and the types oflped we build, claim settlement patterns, insuraindeistry practices and legal or regula
interpretations, among other factors. Because efdtgree of judgment required and the potential/éoiability in the underlying assumptic
used in determining these estimated liability amguactual future costs could differ from our estied amounts.

Advertising CostsWe expense advertising costs as incurred. We ieduadvertising costs of $24.6 million in 2012, #3ghillion in 2011
and $25.9 million in 2010.

Legal FeesLegal fees associated with litigation and similaogeedings that are not expected to provide a Henefuture periods al
generally expensed as incurred. Legal fees asedcwith land acquisition and development and o#tetivities that are expected to provic
benefit in future periods are capitalized as inedrin our consolidated balance sheets. We expdagatifees of $12.6 million in 2012$16.¢
million in 2011 and $33.7 million in 2010 .

Stock-Based Compensatiowith the approval of the management development @mdpensation committee, consisting entirel
independent members of our board of directors, awe fprovided compensation benefits to certain ofemployees in the form of stock optic
restricted stock, PSUs, phantom shares and SARs.

W e measure and recognize compensation expenseiaaedowith our grant of equity-based awards inoedance with ASC 718yhich
requires that companies measure and recognize cmafien expense at an amount equal to the faievafishardsased payments granted ur
compensation arrangements over the vesting pevite estimate the fair value of stock options and SAjranted using the Blackehole
option-pricing model with assumptions based prityan historical dataASC 718 also requires the tax benefit resultingnftax deductions
excess of the compensation expense recognizetidse toptions to be reported in the statement ¢f laws as an operating cash outflow a
financing cash inflow.

Income Taxedncome taxes are accounted for in accordance W8& A40.The provision for, or benefit from, income taxes#dculate:
using the asset and liability method, under whiefeded tax assets and liabilities are recorde@das the difference between the finar
statement and tax basis of assets and liabilitssguenacted tax rates in effect for the year inctvithe differences are expected to rewv
Deferred tax assets are evaluated on a quartesig ba determine if adjustments to the valuatidovednce are required. In accordance
ASC 740, we assess whether a valuation allowarmedhe established based on the consideratiol a¥a@ilable evidence using anbre likely
than not” standard with respect to whether defetagd
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assets will be realized. The ultimate realizatiérdeferred tax assets depends primarily on the rgéna of future taxable income during
periods in which the differences become deductibte value of our deferred tax assets will depemdyplicable income tax ratekidgment i
required in determining the future tax consequertfesvents that have been recognized in our careeld financial statements and/or
returns. Differences between anticipated and actuttomes of these future tax consequences coulel &anaterial impact on our consolide
financial statements.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive LoBse accumulated balances of other comprehensigeitothe consolidated balance sheets
November 30, 201and 2011were comprised solely of adjustments recorded tjrés accumulated other comprehensive loss in razoe
with Accounting Standards Codification Topic No571Compensation — Retirement Benefits” (“ASC 7158B5C 715 requires an employe!
recognize the funded status of defined postretirefenefit plans as an asset or liability on thiamze sheet and requires any unrecognized
service costs and actuarial gains/losses to bgneted in accumulated other comprehensive incooss)!

Loss Per ShareéBasic and diluted loss per share were calculatddllasvs (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Years Ended November 30,

2012 2011 2010
Numerator:
Net loss $ (58,95) % (178,769 $ (69,36¢)
Denominator:
Basic and diluted average shares outstanding 77,10¢ 77,04 76,88¢
Basic and diluted loss per share $ (.7¢) $ (2.32) $ (-90)

All outstanding stock options were excluded frora thluted loss per share calculations for the yeadeed November 30, 2012 , 20dric
2010 because the effect of their inclusion woulcbtdilutive, or would decrease the reported [ossshare.

Recent Accounting Pronouncemerits.May 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-Gdhich changes the wording used to describe
requirements in GAAP for measuring fair value anddisclosing information about fair value measueata in order to improve consistenc'
the application and description of fair value beaweSAAP and International Financial Reporting Stadd. ASU 20114 clarifies how th
concepts of highest and best use and valuationipeein a fair value measurement are relevant orferwmeasuring the fair value
nonfinancial assets and are not relevant when megsthe fair value of financial assets or liali@g. In addition, the guidance expandec
disclosures for the unobservable inputs for Lev&iBvalue measurements, requiring quantitatiiermation to be disclosed related to (1)
valuation processes used, (2) the sensitivity ofiméng fair value measurements to changes in wrghble inputs and the interrelations|
between those unobservable inputs, and (3) usenohfinancial asset in a way that differs from #esets highest and best use. The rev
guidance was effective for interim and annual pksibeginning after December 15, 2011. Our adomfdhis guidance as of March 1, 2012
not have a material impact on our consolidatedfired position or results of operations.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-05, whidbwal an entity the option to present the total of cormpresive income, ti
components of net income, and the components ef athmprehensive income either in a single contisugatement of comprehensive inci
or in two separate but consecutive statementsotim instances, an entity is required to preserth eamponent of net income along with total
income, each component of other comprehensive iacatong with a total for other comprehensive incprapd a total amount f
comprehensive income. ASU 200%-eliminates the option to present the componaintgher comprehensive income as part of the stteim
changes in stockholders’ equity. The amendmen#sSid 201105 do not change the items that must be reportethier comprehensive inco
or when an item of other comprehensive income rbeseclassified to net income. However, in Decen20drl, the FASB issued ASU 2012
which deferred the guidance on whether to requitities to present reclassification adjustmentsafatccumulated other comprehensive inc
by component in both the statement where net incgnpeesented and the statement where other coempsate income is presented for t
interim and annual financial statements. ASU 2@2Ireinstated the requirements for the presentatioaclassifications that were in place p
to the issuance of ASU 2011-05 and did not chahgeetfective date for ASU 2011-05. For public éasit the amendments in ASU 20Q8-anc
ASU 201142 are effective for fiscal years, and interim pds within those years, beginning after December2031, and should be appl
retrospectively. The adoption of this guidance ewns disclosure only and will not have an impactoan consolidated financial position
results of operations.

ReclassificationsCertain amounts in the consolidated financial statgs of prior years have been reclassified to aromfto the 201
presentation.
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Note 2. Segment Informatior

As of November 30, 2012we had identified five reporting segments, cosgatiof four homebuilding reporting segments andfimacia
services reporting segment, within our consolidatpdrations in accordance with Accounting Stand&@uadification Topic No. 280,Segmer
Reporting.” As of November 30, 2012 , our homehiniddreporting segments conducted ongoing operatiotise following states:

West Coast: California

Southwest: Arizona, Nevada and New Mexico
Central: Colorado and Texas

Southeast: Florida, Maryland, North Carolina anchviia

Our homebuilding reporting segments are engagéieiracquisition and development of land primardy fesidential purposes and offe
wide variety of homes that are designed to appefist-time, move-up and active adult homebuyers.

Our homebuilding reporting segments were identifiaded primarily on similarities in economic andgm@phic characteristics, prod
types, regulatory environments, methods used tasdl construct homes and land acquisition chanatits. We evaluate segment performs
primarily based on segment pretax results.

Our financial services reporting segment providesiiance services to our homebuyiarthe same markets as our homebuilding repc
segments and provides title services in the mgjofibur markets located within our Central and tB8east homebuilding reporting segmeits.
addition, since the third quarter of 2011, thismegt has earned revenues pursuant to the termsntdrigeting services agreement wit
preferred mortgage lender that offers mortgage iban&ervices, including mortgage loan originatiotaspur homebuyeraho elect to use tl
lender. Our homebuyers are under no obligatiorséoaur preferred mortgage lender and may seledeadgr of their choice to obtain mortg
financing for the purchase of a honwde make available to our homebuyers marketing nadgeaind other information regarding our prefe
mortgage lender’s financing options and mortgage lproducts, and are compensated solely for therfaiket value of these servic&sior tc
late June 2011, this segment provided mortgageibguservices to our homebuyers indirectly througs®KMortgage,a former unconsolidat
joint venture of a subsidiary of ours and a sulasidof Bank of America, N.A, with each partner having had a 50% interesténvénture.

Our reporting segments follow the same accountoigips used for our consolidated financial statets@s described in Note 1. Sumn
of Significant Accounting Policies in this repo@perational results of each segment are not nedgssdicative of the results that would hi
occurred had the segment been an independent,-altamel entity during the periods presented, northeg indicative of the results to
expected in future periods.

The following tables present financial informati@tating to our reporting segments (in thousands):

Years Ended November 30,

2012 2011 2010
Revenues:

West Coast $ 755,25¢ $ 589,38 $ 700,64!
Southwest 132,43t 139,87: 187,73t
Central 436,40° 369,70! 436,40«
Southeast 224,32¢ 206,59¢ 256,97¢

Total homebuilding revenues 1,548,43. 1,305,56. 1,581,76:
Financial services 11,68 10,30¢ 8,23:

Total $ 1,560,11 $ 1,315,861 $ 1,589,99i
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Pretax income (loss):
West Coast
Southwest
Central
Southeast
Corporate and other (a)
Total homebuilding pretax loss
Financial services

Total

Equity in income (loss) of unconsolidated joint itels:
West Coast
Southwest
Central
Southeast
Total

Inventory impairments:
West Coast
Southwest
Central
Southeast

Total

Land option contract abandonments:
West Coast
Southwest
Central
Southeast

Total

Joint venture impairments:
West Coast
Southwest
Central
Southeast

Total
(a) Corporate and other includes corporate generahdmdnistrative expenst
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Years Ended November 30,

2012 2011 2010
(10,467 $ 19,63¢ $ 60,25(
(10,199 (108,265 (15,80%)

1,44¢ (12,929 (1,779
(1,189 (37,98)) (42,807)
(69,547) (67,719 (88,38¢)
(89,930 (207,241 (88,517)
10,88: 26,07¢ 12,14¢
(79,059 $ (181,160 $ (76,369
(174 $ 68 $ 1,47¢
(811) (55,90%) (8,631)
591 (5) 89¢
(399 $ (55,839 $ (6,257)
19,23t $ 2,59t $ 3,82¢
2,13¢ 18,71 962
1,267 51 34¢
5,47( 1,36¢ 4,671
28,107 $ 22,73 $ 9,81t
— % 704 $ 797
— 29¢ —
132 1,31( 6,511
292 751 2,80z
42€ $ 3,061 $ 10,11
— % — % —
— 53,72 —
— % 53,727 $ —
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November 30,

2012 2011
Assets:
West Coast $ 930,45( $ 995,88t
Southwest 319,86: 338,58t
Central 369,29: 336,55
Southeast 341,46( 317,30t
Corporate and other 596,17¢ 492,03«
Total homebuilding assets 2,557,24. 2,480,36!
Financial services 4,45¢ 32,17:
Total assets $ 2,561,69 $ 2,512,54;
Investments in unconsolidated joint ventures:
West Coast $ 38,37: % 38,40¢
Southwest 75,92( 80,19
Central — —
Southeast 9,38 9,32
Total $ 123,67: $ 127,92¢

Note 3. Financial Service:

The following tables present financial informatietating to our financial services reporting segh{enthousands):

Years Ended November 30,

2012 2011 2010

Revenues
Insurance commissions $ 7,14C % 7,18t % 7,23t
Title services 2,36 1,98:¢ 992
Marketing services fees 2,17¢ 1,12¢ —
Interest income 6 8 6
Total 11,68 10,30¢ 8,23

Expenses
General and administrative (2,99) (3,519 (3,119
Operating income 8,69 6,79: 5,114
Equity in income/gain on wind down of unconsolidhjeint venture 2,191 19,28¢ 7,02¢
Pretax income $ 10,88: $ 26,07¢ $ 12,14:
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November 30,

2012 2011
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 92: $ 3,024
Receivables 1,85¢ 25,49¢
Investment in unconsolidated joint venture 1,63( 3,63¢
Other assets 43 15
Total assets $ 4,458 % 32,17
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 3,18¢ % 7,49¢
Total liabilities $ 3,18t % 7,492

In the fourth quarter of 2011, we received a distiion of $13.8 million and established a receieatfl $23.5 millionin connection with th
wind down of KBA Mortgage’s business operations. ieorded a gain of $19.8 millian the fourth quarter of 2011 that was include@djuity
in income/gain on wind down of unconsolidated joiehture. The receivable was collected in Decer@béd. In the third quarter of 2012,
recognized an additional gain of $2.1 million imoection with the wind down of KBA Mortgage.

Although KBHMC ceased originating and selling madg loans on September 1, 2005, it may be requ@regpurchase, or provi
indemnification with respect to, an individual lotivat it funded on or before August 31, 2005 and sw an investor if the representation:
warranties that it made in connection with the sdilthe loan are breached, in the event of an gryynent default, if the loan does not con
with the underwriting standards or other requiretsafi the ultimate investor or an applicable insuoe due to a delinquency or other mat
arising in connection with the loan.

Note 4. Receivable

Receivables of $64.8 million at November 30, 20td $66.2 million at November 30, 20&icluded amounts due from municipalities
utility companies, state income taxes receivable escrow deposits. At November 30, 2011, receigahleo included mortgages and n
receivable. Receivables were net of allowanceddobtful accounts of $21.3 million in 2012 and $2aillion in 2011 .

Note 5.  Inventories
Inventories consisted of the following (in thoussnd

November 30,

2012 2011

Homes under construction $ 454,10t $ 417,30«
Land under development 567,47( 572,66(
Land held for future development 684,99: 741,66"
Total $ 1,706,57 $ 1,731,62!

Homes under construction is comprised of costscéstsal with homes in various stages of construcdiodi includes direct construction i
related land acquisition and land development castsd under development primarily consists of laeduisition and land development cc
capitalized interest and real estate taxes asedciaith land undergoing improvement activity. Lameld for future development principe
reflects land acquisition and land developmentscosiated to lanavhere development activity has been suspendedsondiayet begun, but
expected to occur in the future. These assetsfbelfliture development are located in various sutketa where conditions do not prese
support further investment or development, or algext to a building permit moratorium or regulgtoestrictions, or are portions of larger I
parcels that we plan to build out over several yaad/or that have not yet been entitled. We msy slispend development activity if we bel
it will result in greater returns and/or maximibe teconomic performance of a community.

Interest is capitalized to inventories while thiated communities are being actively developed amd homes are completed. Capitali
interest is amortized in construction and landsastthe related inventories are delivered to hoyess. For those
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communities where development activity has beepended, applicable interest is expensed as incu@ed interest costs are as follows
thousands):

Years Ended November 30,

2012 2011 2010

Capitalized interest at beginning of year $ 233,46: $ 249,96t $ 291,27!
Capitalized interest related to consolidation a&fvpously unconsolidated joint

ventures — — 9,91«
Interest incurred (a) 132,65 112,03 122,23(
Interest expensed (a) (69,809 (49,20/) (68,307
Interest amortized to construction and land costs (78,630 (79,339 (105,15()
Capitalized interest at end of year (b) $ 217,68 $ 233,46. $ 249,96t

(&) Amounts for the year ended November 30, 20tRide a $10.3 milliofoss on the early extinguishment of debt. Amouatstie year endt
November 30, 201include a $3.6 million gain on the early extingusint of secured debt. Amounts for the year edlmeember 30, 201
include a total of $1.8 milliomf debt issuance costs written off in connectiothvaur voluntary reduction of the aggregate comreit
under the Credit Facility from $650.0 million to@20 million and the voluntary termination of thee@it Facility effective March 31, 2010.

(b) Inventory impairment charges are recognized agaihgtventory costs of a community, such as laoglugsition, land development, cos
home construction and capitalized interest. Capédlinterest amounts presented in the table tefiecgross amount of capitalized inte
as impairment charges recognized are not geneiddiyated to specific components of inventory.

Note 6. Inventory Impairments and Land Option Contract Abandonments

E ach community or land parcel in our owned inventisryassessed to determine if indicators of potentipairment exist. Impairme
indicators are assessed separately for each cortymosriand parcel on a quarterly basis and inclide,are not limited to: significant decree
in net orders, average selling prices, volume ohé® delivered, gross profit margins on homes deive@r projected gross profit margins
homes in backlog or future housing sales; signifi¢gacreases in budgeted land development and leoms&ruction costs or cancellation rate:
projected losses on expected future land salesdi¢ators of potential impairment exist for a commity or land parcel, the identified asse
evaluated for recoverability in accordance with ASED. We evaluated 135, 138 and T8 munities or land parcels for recoverability dg
the years ended November 30, 2012 , 2011 and 20&€pectively. As impairment indicators are assgsm a quarterly basis, some of
communities or land parcels evaluated during tyeses were evaluated in more than one quarteripgher

When an indicator of potential impairment is idéetl for a community or land parcel, we test theeagor recoverability by comparing
carrying value of the asset to the undiscountagaréunet cash flows expected to be generated bashet. The undiscounted future net cash |
are impacted by thecdrrent conditions and trends in the market in White asset is located as well as factors knowrstat the time the ca
flows are calculated. With the undiscounted futoe¢ cash flows, we also consider recent trendsuinooders, backlog, cancellation rates
volume of homes delivered, as well as our expextatirelated to the following: product offerings; ket supply and demand, includ
estimated average selling prices and related pyiqeeciation; and land development, home constmu@nd overhead costs to be incurred
related cost inflation. With respect to the yeardezl November 30, 2012 and 201Hgse expectations reflected our experience thagpugt
there were at times measurable quarterly fluctnatio our year-oveyear and sequential net orders, backlog levelsheming gross pro
margin, these were primarily due to certain pespdeific and/or compangpecific factors that we believed would be largeiifigated b
various strategic actions and/or by observed markeds. These factors included mortgage loan igh@sues arising from a change in
nature of our relationships with mortgage lendéns; before and after effects of the Tax Credit #hgiired in 2010; and a lower commui
count as a result of our strategic repositionirfgref. We believe the impact of these factors waslenated by our operational transition to
new preferred mortgage lender; our strategic gramitiatives; and our continueability to generate a consistent or higher avessdkng price
as a result of the demand from our homebuyersafget home sizes and more design options. By casgmamarket conditions for our asset
inventory where impairment indicators were idestifhave been generally stable in 2011 and 2018, maitsignificant or sustained deteriora
identified as to revenue and cost drivers that diquevent or otherwise impact recoverability. Basadhis experience, and taking into acc
the signs of stability and improvement in many netskfor new home sales, our inventory assessmera$ l[dovember 30, 2012 considerec
expected steady, if slightly improved, overall sgiace and average selling price performance fb8 28lative to the pace and performanc
recent quarters.
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Given the inherent challenges and uncertaintiderecasting future results, our inventory assesssnanthe time they are made take
consideration whether a community or land parcelciive, meaning it is open for sales and/or ungiaggdevelopment, or whether it is be
held for future development. For active communitéesl land parcels, due to their shiemm nature as compared to land held for fu
development, our inventory assessments generalynaes the continuation of thenwrent market conditions, subject to identifyimformatior
suggesting a significant sustained deterioratioatber changes in such conditions. These assessna¢tiie time made, generally anticipate
orders, average selling prices, volume of homes/ateld and costs to continue at or near then-cuderels through the affected asset’
estimated remaining life. Inventory assessmentsotorland held for future development consider therment market conditions as well
subjective forecasts regarding the timing and costand development and home construction ande@laost inflation; the product(s) to
offered; and the net orders, volume of homes dedileand selling prices and related price apprieciatf the offered product(s) when
associated community is anticipated to open faessalVe evaluate various factors to develop thesdsts, including the availability of &
demand for homes and finished lots within the rafwmarketplace; historical, current and expectedré sales trends for the marketplace;
third-party data, if available. These various estimdtesds, expectations and assumptions used in daxlr mventory assessments are spe
to each community or land parcel based on whatelieu® are reasonable forecasts for performancevaydvary among communities or [
parcels and may vary over time.

We record an inventory impairment charge when #reytng value of a real estate asset is greatertti@undiscounted future net cash fl
the asset is expected to generate. These rea astts are written down to fair value, whichrimarily based on the estimated future net
flows discounted for inherent risk associated vefith such assdnputs used in the estimated discounted futurecash flows are specific
each affected community or land parcel and aredoeseour expectations for each such asset as appkcable measurement date, incluc
among others, expectations related to averageggdtices and delivery rates. The discount ratesiseeare impacted by the following: the risk-
free rate of return; expected risk premium basedstimated land development, home constructiondslidery timelines; market risk fro
potential future price erosion; cost uncertaintg tlu land development or home construction coseases; and other risks specific to the as:
conditions in the market in which the asset istedat the time the assessment was made.

The following table summarizes ranges for significquantitative unobservable inputs we utilizedour fair value measurements v
respect to the impaired communities or land pawelsen down to fair value during the years preedn

Years Ended November 30,

Unobservable Input (a) 2012 2011 2010
Average selling price $115,200 - $556,300 $142,900 - $391,900  $96,600 - $256,400
Deliveries per month 1-6 1-10 3-6
Discount rate 17% - 20% 17% - 20% 17% - 20%

(&) The ranges of inputs used primarily reflect the artydng variability among the various housing maske&here each of the impac
communities or land parcels are located, rathar flugtuations in prevailing market conditions.

Based on the results of our evaluations, we reeeghinventory impairment charges of $28.1 millian 2012 associated witth4
communities, with a post-impairment fair value &9 million . In 2011 , we recognized inventoryp@irment charges d822.7 millior
associated with 12 communities or land parcelsh witpost-impairment fair value of $34.0 million héBe charges included &&8.1 millior
adjustment to the fair value of real estate calidtan our Southwest homebuilding reporting segntbat we took back on a note receivabl
2011. In 2010 , we recognized inventory impairmeimarges of $9.8 million associated with eight comities or land parcels, with a post-
impairment fair value of $11.6 million . The invery impairment charges we recognized during 202211 and 2010@eflected challengir
economic and housing market conditions in certhioun served markets. In addition, the inventorp@&inment charges in 2012 were partly
to changes to our operational or selling strategycértain communities in an effort to acceleratereturn on investment. In some cases, we
recognized inventory impairment charges for palicaommunities or land parcels in multiple years.

As of November 30, 2012the aggregate carrying value of our inventoryt theed been impacted by inventory impairment chargaes
$307.2 million , representing 46 communities andous other land parcels. As of November 30, 201le aggregate carrying value of
inventory that had been impacted by inventory impant charges was $338.5 million , representing&®munities and various other i
parcels.

Our inventory controlled under land option contsaahd other similar contracts is assessed to detenwhether it continues to meet
internal investment and marketing standards. Assests are made separately for each optioned lamelpan a quarterly basis and are affe
by the following factors relative to the marketvitnich the asset is located, among others: curnethoa anticipated net orders, average se
prices and home delivery volume; estimated lanctkigwyment and home construction costs; and projquiaitability on expected future hous
or land sales. When a decision is made not to eseecertain land
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option contracts and other similar contracts dumaoket conditions and/or changes in our markedingtegy, we write off the related invent
costs, including non-refundable deposits and uveedle pre-acquisition costBased on the results of our assessments, we reeagln
option contract abandonment charges of $.4 miltiomesponding to 446 lots in 2012 , $3.1 milliomresponding to 830 lots in 2011 , a%t0.1
million corresponding to 1,007 lots in 2010nventory impairment and land option contractradmmment charges are included in constru
and land costs in our consolidated statements efabipns.

The estimated remaining life of each communityaordl parcel in our inventory depends on variouofactsuch as the total number of
remaining; the expected timeline to acquire andtlerland and develop lots to build homes; the @péted future net order and cancella
rates; and the expected timeline to build and éelhomes sold. While it is difficult to determingiecise timeframe for any particular inven
asset, we estimate our inventory assetsiaining operating lives under current and expefuéure market conditions to range generally 1
one year to in excess of 10 yedsased on current market conditions and expectadedgltimelines, we expect to realize, on an ovdrasis
the majority of our current inventory balance witlfive years.

Due to the judgment and assumptions applied inestemation process with respect to inventory impaints, land option contre
abandonments, the remaining operating lives ofirwentory assets and the realization of our invgnbalances, it is possible that actual re:
could differ substantially from those estimated.

Note 7. Fair Value Disclosure:

ASC 820provides a framework for measuring the fair vali@assets and liabilities under GAAP, and estabtishdair value hierarchy tt
requires an entity to maximize the use of obseevatputs and minimize the use of unobservable ;piten measuring fair valu€he fair valu
hierarchy can be summarized as follows:

Level 1 Fair value determined based on quoted prices imeantarkets for identical assets or liabilit

Level 2  Fair value determined using significant observaybeits, such as quoted prices for similar asseligloitities or quoted prices f
identical or similar assets or liabilities in matkehat are not active, inputs other than quotéckprthat are observable for
asset or liability, or inputs that are derived pijirally from or corroborated by observable markatad by correlation or ot
means.

Level 3 Fair value determined using significant unobsemabuts, such as pricing models, discounted dagfsf or similar technique

Fair value measurements are used for inventories wonrecurring basis when events and circumstandasate the carrying value is |
recoverableThe following table presents our assets measurdairatalue on a nonrecurring basis for the yeateehNovember 30, 2012 &
2011 (in thousands):

Fair Value
November 30, November 30, 2011
Description Hierarchy 2012 (a) (a)
Long-lived assets held and used Level 2 $ — $ 75
Long-lived assets held and used Level 3 39,85: 33,94°
Total $ 39,85 $ 34,02:

(&) Amounts represent the aggregate fair value for conities or land parcels where we recognized inugnitnpairment charges during !
period, as of the date that the fair value measenésnwere made. The carrying value for these cortiasiror land parcels may he
subsequently increased or decreased from thedhieveflected due to activity that has occurredesthe measurement date.

In accordance with the provisions of ASC 360, Itingd assets held and used with a carrying valug68£0 millionwere written down t
their fair value of $39.9 million during the yearded November 30, 2012 , resulting in inventoryampent charges of $28.1 million . Long-
lived assets held and used with a carrying valug5@.7 million were written down to their fair valwf $34.0 millionduring the year end
November 30, 201, resulting in inventory impairment charges of $2aillion .

The fair values for our lontived assets held and used that were determined Usivel 2 inputs were based on an executed canfrhe fai
values for longived assets held and used that were determined bsivel 3 inputs were primarily based on the estéd future net cash flo
discounted for inherent risk associated with easetas described in Note 6. Inventory Impairments aandd_Option Contract Abandonment
this report. The discount rates we use are impduyetthe following: the riskree rate of return; expected risk premium baseésiimated lar
development, home construction and delivery tingsjn
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market risk from potential future price erosionstancertainty due to land development or home tooction cost increases; and other r
specific to the asset or conditions in the markethich the asset is located at the time the assegsvas madelhese factors were specific
each affected community or land parcel and may kavied among communities or land parcels.

Our financial instruments consist of cash and @aglivalents, restricted cash, mortgages and netesvable, senior notes, and mortg;
and land contracts due to land sellers and otlaslo-air value measurements of financial instrusnare determined by various market date
other valuation techniques, as appropriate. Wheilable, we use quoted market prices in active etarto determine fair value.

The following table presents the fair value hiehgracarrying values and estimated fair values affmancial instruments, except those
which the carrying values approximate fair valuiegtfousands):

November 30,

2012 2011
Fair Value Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Hierarchy Value Fair Value Value Fair Value
Financial Liabilities:
Senior notes due February 1, 2014 at 5 3/4% L2vel$ 7591. % 77,67¢ 3 249,64 % 232,50!
Senior notes due January 15, 2015 at 5 7/8% Level 2 101,99¢ 106,00 299,27: 270,00(
Senior notes due June 15, 2015 at 6 1/4% Level 2 236,82t 248,75 449,79! 401,62!
Senior notes due September 15, 2017 at 9.10% Level 2 261,43( 305,41 260,86! 235,51¢
Senior notes due June 15, 2018 at 7 1/4% Level 2 299,12¢ 325,50( 299,00 251,62!
Senior notes due March 15, 2020 at 8.00% Level 2 345,20¢ 390,25( — —
Senior notes due September 15, 2022 at 7.50% Devel 350,00( 378,00( — —

The fair values of our senior notes are generaltymated based on quoted market prices for thesriments. The carrying values repo
for cash and cash equivalents, restricted cashtgages and notes receivable, and mortgages andctarithcts due to land sellers and ¢
loans approximate fair values.

Note 8. Variable Interest Entities

We participate in joint ventures from time to tirtheat conduct land acquisition, land development@ndther homebuilding activities
various markets where our homebuilding operatioed@ated. Our investments in these joint ventanay create a variable interest Ve,
depending on the contractual terms of the arrangeriiée analyze our joint ventures in accordancé WIEC 810to determine whether they |
VIEs and, if so, whether we are the primary benefic All of our joint ventures at November 30, 20and 2011were determined under t
provisions of ASC 810 to be unconsolidated joimtuees and were accounted for under the equity adethither because they were not \
and we did not have a controlling financial intém@s if they were VIEs, we were not the primarybgciary of the VIEs.

In the ordinary course of our business, we entar land option contracts and other similar congdoet acquire rights to land for
construction of homes. The use of these land optimtracts and other similar contracts generaltyned us to reduce the market risks assoc
with direct land ownership and development, andettuce our capital and financial commitments, idelg interest and other carrying co
Under such contracts, we typically pay a speciiption or earnest money deposit in consideratiortte right to purchase land in the futi
usually at a predetermined price. Under the remeérgs of ASC 810, certain of these contracts megtera variable interest for us, with the
seller being identified as a VIE.

In compliance with ASC 810, we analyze our landaptontracts and other similar contracts to deitgemvhether the corresponding i
sellers are VIEs and, if so, whether we are thegry beneficiary. Although we do not have legdé tib the underlying land, ASC 810 requ
us to consolidate a VIE if we are determined tdHseprimary beneficiary. In determining whether ave the primary beneficiary, we consi
among other things, whether we have the powerrtxtihe activities of the VIE that most signifitlgrimpact the VIES economic performant
Such activities would include, among other thirdgtermining or limiting the scope or purpose of WHE, selling or transferring property owr
or controlled by the VIE, or arranging financing foe VIE. As a result of our analyses, we deteadithat as of November 30, 2012 and :
we were not the primary beneficiary of any VIEsniravhich we have acquired rights to land under lapton contracts and other sim
contracts.
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The following table presents a summary of our Egé&s in land option contracts and other similatreats (in thousands):

November 30, 2012 November 30, 2011
Cash Aggregate Cash Aggregate
Deposits Purchase Price Deposits Purchase Price
Unconsolidated VIEs $ 8,46: % 327,19t $ 8,097 % 122,12!
Other land option contracts and other similar oty 17,21¢ 298,13¢ 12,83( 222,94(
$ 25,68: % 625,33! $ 20,927 % 345,06!

In addition to the cash deposits presented in abéetabove, our exposure to loss related to out Ggtion contracts and other sim
contracts with third parties and unconsolidatediestconsisted of pre-acquisition costs of $25ilian at November 30, 2012 ar&B1.5 millior
at November 30, 2011. These @eguisition costs and cash deposits were includéd/entories in our consolidated balance sheetsaldb ha
outstanding letters of credit of $.5 million at Noeber 30, 2012 and $1.7 milliat November 30, 2011 in lieu of cash deposits ucedesir
land option contracts and other similar contracts.

We also evaluate our land option contracts andratimilar contracts for financing arrangements @ocadance with ASC 47@nd, as
result of our evaluations, increased inventoriesh & corresponding increase to accrued expensgsodher liabilities, in our consolidat
balance sheets by $4.1 million at November 30, 2012$23.9 million at November 30, 2011 .

Note 9. Investments in Unconsolidated Joint Venture

We have investments in unconsolidated joint veisttinat conduct land acquisition, land developmed{@ other homebuilding activities
various markets where our homebuilding operatiord@cated. Our partners in these unconsolidated yentures are unrelated homebuilc
and/or land developers and other real estate extitir commercial enterprises. These investmeantslegigned primarily to reduce market
development risks and to increase the number sfoaned and controlled by us. In some instanceticipating in unconsolidated joint ventu
has enabled us to acquire and develop land thahigkt not otherwise have had access to due to jaghi® size, financing needs, duratior
development or other circumstances. While we cens@lr participation in unconsolidated joint veetras potentially beneficial to «
homebuilding activities, we do not view such paptition as essential and have unwound our partioipan a number of unconsolidated jc
ventures in the past few years.

We typically have obtained rights to acquire porsiof the land held by the unconsolidated jointtwess in which we currently participe
When an unconsolidated joint venture sells landuohomebuilding operations, we defer recognitibmur share of such unconsolidated j
ventures earnings until a home sale is closed and titdsgmto a homebuyer, at which time we accounhfise earnings as a reduction of
cost of purchasing the land from the unconsolidaad venture.

We and our unconsolidated joint venture partnerkemaitial and/or ongoing capital contributionsttese unconsolidated joint ventu
typically on a pro rata basis equal to our respecgquity interests. The obligations to make chpitmtributions are governed by e
unconsolidated joint venture’s respective operatiggeement and related governing documents.

Each unconsolidated joint venture is obligated tormain financial statements in accordance with ®AM/eshare in the profits and los:
of these unconsolidated joint ventures generallgdoordance with our respective equity interdstsome instances, we recognize profits
losses related to our investment in an unconseltgint venture that differ from our equity intstén the unconsolidated joint venture. 1
may arise from impairments that we recognize rdldate our investment that differ from the impairneithe unconsolidated joint vent
recognizes with respect to the unconsolidated joentures assets; differences between our basis in assethawe transferred to i
unconsolidated joint venture and the unconsolid@ed venture’s basis in those assets; our ddfefrthe unconsolidated joint ventuseprofits
from land sales to us; or other items.

With respect to our investments in unconsolidatadt jventures, our equity in loss of unconsolidajgdt ventures included impairme
charges of $53.7 million in 2011There were no such impairment charges in 202D@0. In 2011, the impairment charge reflectednhte off
of our remaining investment in South Edge, a regidk development joint venture in our Southwegioring segment. We wrote off ¢
remaining investment based on our determination$oath Edge was no longer able to perform itsviets as originally intended following
court decision in the first quarter of 2011 to erntedo an order for relief on a Chapter 11 invoamtbankruptcy petition (the “Petitionfjled
against South Edge.
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The following table presents combined condenseorimétion from the statements of operations of awonsolidated joint ventures
thousands):

Years Ended November 30,

2012 2011 2010
Revenues $ 31,77: % 23C $ 122,20(
Construction and land costs (21,467 (54) (120,010
Other expenses, net (2,009 (4,50¢) (19,367
Income (loss) $ 8,29¢ % (4,330 $ (A7,179

The following table presents combined condenseahioal sheet information for our unconsolidated jeerttures (in thousands):

November 30,

2012 2011

Assets

Cash $ 29,727 % 8,92:

Receivables 6,104 19,50:

Inventories 352,79 368,30t

Other assets 1,17¢ 151
Total assets $ 389,79 % 396,88!
Liabilities and equity

Accounts payable and other liabilities $ 88,027 $ 96,98!

Equity 301,76« 299,90:
Total liabilities and equity $ 389,79 § 396,88

The following table presents information relatiogour investments in unconsolidated joint ventdedlars in thousands):

November 30,
2012 2011
Number of investments in unconsolidated joint vesgu 8 8

Investments in unconsolidated joint ventures $ 123,67: $ 127,92¢

Our unconsolidated joint ventures finance land iaventory investments for a project through a ugrig arrangements, and certain of
unconsolidated joint ventures have obtained loam® fthird-party lenders that are secured by the underlyioggnty and related project ass
However, none of our unconsolidated joint ventirad outstanding debt at November 30, 2012 or 2011.

In certain instances, we and/or our partner(shinirgconsolidated joint venture have provided cotigoieand/or carvesut guarantees to t
unconsolidated joint ventui®’lenders. A completion guaranty refers to the fglayscompletion of improvements for a project amdtloe
obligation to contribute capital to an unconsolkhjoint venture to enable it to fund its completabligations. Our potential responsibility un
our completion guarantees, if triggered, is higdypendent on the facts of a particular case. Aecaut guaranty refers to the payment of loss
lender suffers due to certain bad acts or omisgigran unconsolidated joint venture or its partneush as fraud or misappropriation, or dt
environmental liabilities arising with respect toetrelevant project. As none of our unconsolidgtedt ventures had outstanding deb
November 30, 2012 or 2011, we did not have expositterespect to any related completion or c-out guarantees as of those dates.

In addition to completion and careet guarantees, we provided the Springing Guartmihe Administrative Agent in connection w
secured loans made to South Edge. On Februaryl3, 20bankruptcy court entered an order for reliethe Petition filed against South E
and appointed a Chapter 11 trustee for South Ealgeugh we believed that there were potential etfsor defenses to prevent or minimize
enforcement of the Springing Guaranty, as a refuhlie February 3, 2011 order
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for relief on the Petition, we considered it prolealibased on the terms of the Springing Guarahgt, we became responsible to pay ce
amounts to the Administrative Agent related to Bpringing Guaranty. Therefore, beginning in thetfiquarter of 2011, our consolida
financial statements reflected a net payment otiligarepresenting our estimate of the probablelarhthat we would pay to the Administrat
Agent (on behalf of the South Edge lenders) relébetthe Springing Guaranty and to pay for certaiesf expenses and charges and for ¢
allowed general unsecured claims in the South Bag&ruptcy case. This estimate was evaluated artieof each subsequent quarterly pe
in 2011 and updated to reflect our belief of ouslfable net payment obligation at the time. In cotine with the South Edge Plan and
resolution of other matters surrounding South Edgemade payments of $251.9 millionthe fourth quarter of 2011, including a paynienthe
Administrative Agent, which satisfied the respeetiens of the Administrative Agent and most of auth Edge lenders on the land South |
owned. Accordingly, our obligations under the Sgiigy Guaranty were eliminated. As a result of rdtay a probable obligation related to
Springing Guaranty and the bankruptcy caurtonfirmation of the South Edge Plan, and takimg iaccount accruals we had previo
established with respect to our investment in Sdtdige, we recognized an aggregate loss on loaragtyacharge of $30.8 milliom out
consolidated statements of operations for the gaded November 30, 2011. This charge was in additidhe joint venture impairment cha
of $53.7 million that we recognized in 2011 to werifff our remaining investment in South Edge.

Our investments in unconsolidated joint venture®falovember 30, 2012 and 2011 included our investnof $71.0 million an&75.k
million , respectively, in Inspirada Builders, LLC, an unsolidated joint venture that was formed in 201Tamnection with the South Ec
Plan and in which a wholly owned subsidiary of oigra member. As part of the terms of the SoutheHelgn, land previously owned by
South Edge joint venture, including our share timatsists of approximately 6@evelopable acres, was acquired by Inspirada Bsilde.C in
November 2011. We anticipate that we will acquine share of the land from Inspirada Builders, Lb@tgh a future distributiol

Our initial investment of $75.5 million in InspiradBuilders, LLC consisted of $75.2 million , thdiested fair value as dlovember 3(
2011 of our share of the land the venture holdd,af.3 million initial capital contribution to fdrthe ventures operations. We calculated 1
estimated fair value of our share of the land usipgesent value methodology and assumed that wiwevelop the land, build and sell hol
on most of the land, and sell the remainder ofténesloped land. This fair value estimate at NovarBe 2011 reflected our expectations of
price we would receive for our share of the landha land’s then-current state in an orderly (ndbraed) transaction under th@nevailing
market conditions. This fair value estimate of sbare of the land reflected judgments and assumpbelieved to be appropriate based ol
information known to us at the time concerning, aghother things, (a) southern Nevada housing maskpply and demand conditio
including estimates of average selling pricesp@tgntial future home sales and cancellation rét@sntitliements and development plans fo
land; (d) land development, home construction aretteead costs to be incurred; and (e) a frisk-rate of return and an expected risk prerr
in each case in relation to an expected 15 -y&afdr the project. This fair value estimate wasg@borated by a thirgharty appraisal conduct
in the fourth quarter of 2011. Due to the judgmeatd assumptions applied in the fair value estwnagpirocess, it is possible that actual re
could differ substantially from those estimatedybueer, we did not identify any impairment to ouvéstment in Inspirada Builders, LLC as
November 30, 201:

Note 10. Other Asset:
Other assets consisted of the following (in thods3n

November 30,

2012 2011
Cash surrender value of insurance contracts $ 64,757 $ 59,71¢
Property and equipment, net 7,92( 7,801
Debt issuance costs (a) 14,56 4,21¢
Prepaid expenses 7,81( 2,214
Net deferred tax assets — 1,152

Total $ 95,05( $ 75,104

(a) The increase in debt issuance costs as of Nove8the&2012 compared to November 30, 2011 primarilieceed the costs associated v
our issuance of the $350 Million 8.00% Senior Nated the $350 Million 7.50% Senior Notes during 201
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Note 11. Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilitie
Accrued expenses and other liabilities consisteti@following (in thousands):

November 30,

2012 2011

Construction defect and other litigation liabilgie $ 107,11: $ 101,01°
Employee compensation and related benefits 97,18¢ 76,96(
Warranty liability 47,82: 67,69:
Accrued interest payable 47,39: 43,12¢
Liabilities related to inventory not owned 4,10C 23,90:
Real estate and business taxes 8,45 10,77(
Other 28,27¢ 50,93«

Total $ 340,34 % 374,40t

Note 12. Mortgages and Notes Payab
Mortgages and notes payable consisted of the falig\{in thousands):

November 30,

2012 2011

Mortgages and land contracts due to land selledo#rer loans (6% to 7% at November 30, 2012 ar |
2011) $ 52,31. % 24,98
Senior notes due February 1, 2014 at 5 3/4% 75,91 249,64
Senior notes due January 15, 2015 at 5 7/8% 101,99¢ 299,27:
Senior notes due June 15, 2015 at 6 1/4% 236,82t 449,79!
Senior notes due September 15, 2017 at 9.10% 261,43( 260,86!
Senior notes due June 15, 2018 at 7 1/4% 299,12¢ 299,00°
Senior notes due March 15, 2020 at 8.00% 345,20¢ —
Senior notes due September 15, 2022 at 7.50% 350,00( —
Total $ 1,722,81! $ 1,583,57.

Letter of Credit FacilitiesWe maintain our LOC Facilities with various finaalkinstitutions to obtain letters of credit in tbeinary cours
of operating our business. As of November 30, 281® 2011, $41.9 million and $63.8 millipmespectively, of letters of credit were outstag
under our LOC FacilitiesOur LOC Facilities require us to deposit and mamtash with the issuing financial institutions @dlateral for ou
letters of credit outstanding. As of November 3012 and 2011, the amount of cash maintained foL@€ Facilities totaled $42.4 millioanc
$64.5 million , respectively, and was includedeastricted cash on our consolidated balance sheeisthose date¥Ve may maintain, revise
if necessary or desirable, enter into additionaganded letter of credit facilities, or entepiatrevolving credit facility, with the same or ei
financial institutions.

Mortgages and Land Contracts Due to Land Sellerd @ther LoansDuring 2011, we repaid debt that was secured byuli-fevel
residential building we operated as a rental ptypaevhich we sold during that year. As the seculedt was repaid at a discount prior tc
scheduled maturity, we recognized a gain of $3.lianion the early extinguishment of secured debt. Inwéeg having a carrying value
$94.1 million as of November 30, 2012 are pledgechilateralize mortgages and land contracts dlexnih sellers and other loans.

Shelf RegistrationOn September 20, 2011, we filed the 2011 Shelf fegion with the SEC, registering debt and eqgsétgurities that w
may issue from time to time in amounts to be deimeth The 2011 Shelf Registration replaced our iptesly effective shelf registratis
statement filed with the SEC on October 17, 2008 {2008 Shelf Registration”).

Senior NotesAll of our senior notes outstanding at NovemberZil2 and 2011 represent senior unsecured obligatiank equally in rigl
of payment with all of our existing and future iftiedness and are unconditionally guaranteed joantty severally by the Guarantor Subsidi
on a senior unsecured ba#s$.our option, these notes may be redeemed, inavabhny time or from time to time in part, at damption pric
equal to the greater of (i) 100% of the principaloaint of the notes being redeemed and (ii) the sfithe present values of the remair
scheduled payments of principal and interest omdtes being
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redeemed discounted to the redemption date atimedefate, plus, in each case, accrued and unpEest on the notes being redeemed t
applicable redemption date.

On June 30, 2004, we issued the $350 Million 6 3f8nior Notes at 99.3%f the principal amount of the notes in a privagcpment. O
December 3, 2004, we exchanged all of the privaitdged $350 Millior6 3/8% Senior Notes for notes that were substéniidéntical excey
that the new $350 Million 6 3/8% Senior Notes wergistered under the Securities Act of 1933. Oy 30| 2009, we purchas&250.0 millior
in aggregate principal amount of the $350 Millior8/8% Senior Notes pursuant to a tender offer samebus with the issuance of th26t
Million 9.10% Senior Notes. On August 15, 2011, mpaid the remaining $100.0 million in aggregatagpal amount of the $350 Millio
3/8% Senior Notes at their maturity.

On January 28, 2004, we issued the $250 Millio8@3Senior Notes at 99.4748bthe principal amount of the notes in a privdsecpmen
On June 16, 2004, we exchanged all of the privaiklged $250 Milliorb 3/4% Senior Notes for notes that are substapiiddintical except th
the new $250 Million 5 3/4% Senior Notes are regetl under the Securities Act of 1933.

On December 15, 2004, pursuant to the shelf registr statement filed with the SEC on November 2004 (the 2004 Shel
Registration”), we issued the $300 Million 5 7/8%n%r Notes at 99.357% of the principal amounhefriotes.

On June 2, 2005, pursuant to the 2004 Shelf Ragistr, we issued the $450 Millio® 1/4% Senior Notes at 100.614% of the prin
amount of the notes.

During 2012, we purchased a portion of each off2&0 Million 5 3/4% Senior Notes, the $300 Millién7/8% Senior Notes and tid5(
Million 6 1/4% Senior Notes, in each case pursuant teethestof the applicable January 2012 Tender Offedstlae applicable July 2012 Ten
Offers, as discussed below.

On July 30, 2009, pursuant to the 2008 Shelf Regish, we issued the $265 Million 9.10% Senior @éoht 98.014%f the principe
amount of the notes. We used substantially alhefrtet proceeds from the issuance of the $265dvlili. 10%Senior Notes to purchase, purst
to a simultaneous tender offer, $250.0 million ggegate principal amount of the $350 Million 6%/&enior Notes.

On April 3, 2006, pursuant to the 2004 Shelf Regigin, we issued $300.0 million of 7 1/4% seniotes due 2018 at 99.48666 the
principal amount of the notes.

On February 7, 2012, pursuant to the 2011 ShelfisRagon, we issued the $350 Million 8.00%enior Notes at 101% of the princi
amount of the notes. We used substantially alhefrtet proceeds from this issuance to purchassyanit to the terms of the applicable Jan
2012 Tender Offers, $56.3 million in aggregate ggal amount of the $250 Million 5 3/4% Senior Nt$130.0 millionin aggregate princip
amount of the $300 Million 5 7/8% Senior Notes, i&3.7 millionin aggregate principal amount of the $450 Milliod/8% Senior Notes. T
applicable January 2012 Tender Offers expired dirggy 15, 2012. The total amount paid to purchihsse senior notes was $340.5 million
We incurred a loss of $2.0 millian the first quarter of 2012 related to the eadglamption of debt due to a premium paid under pipdicable
January 2012 Tender Offers and the unamortizedhatigssue discount.

On July 31, 2012, pursuant to the 2011 Shelf Regish, we issued the $350 Million 7.50% Senior égoat 100%f the principal amou
of the notes. We used $252.2 milliohthe net proceeds from this issuance to purctmssuant to the terms of the applicable July ZDé2de
Offers, $117.7 million in aggregate principal ambahthe $250 Million 5 3/4% Senior Notes, $67.8limn in aggregate principal amount of
$300 Million 5 7/8% Senior Notes, and $59.4 millioraggregate principal amount of the $450 Milliod/8% Senior Notes. The applicable .
2012 Tender Offers expired on August 7, 2012. Wedubie remaining net proceeds from this issuancedaeral corporate purposes.
incurred a loss of $8.3 milliom the third quarter of 2012 related to the eagigamption of debt due to a premium paid under pipdicable Jul
2012 Tender Offers and the unamortized originalésgiscount.

If a change in control occurs as defined in thérimsents governing each of the $265 Million 9.10&0iBr Notes, the $350 Million 8.0C
Senior Notes, and the $350 Million 7.50% Seniordspive would be required to offer to purchase theses@ut not our other outstand
senior notes) at 101% of their principal amourggetber with all accrued and unpaid interest, if.any

The indenture governing our senior notes does patan any financial maintenance covenants. Suliecipecified exceptions, t
indenture contains certain restrictive covenangd, thmong other things, limit our ability to inceecured indebtedness, or engage in sale
leaseback transactions involving property or assbtwe a certain specified value. Unlike our oemior notes, the terms governing the ¢
Million 9.10% Senior Notes, the $350 Million 8.008&nior Notes, and the $350 Million 7.50% Seniorddatontain certain limitations relatet
mergers, consolidations, and sales of assets.

As of November 30, 2012ve were in compliance with the applicable termalbbf our covenants under our senior notes, tdenture, an
mortgages and land contracts due to land selle®#mer loans. Our ability to secure future detaricing
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may depend in part on our ability to remain in sasmpliance.

Principal payments on senior notes, mortgages and tontracts due to land sellers and other loamslae as follows: 2013 —3%.€
million ; 2014 — $88.8 million ; 2015 — $340.4 nidlh ; 2016 — $0 ; 2017 — $261.4 million ; and tredter — $994.3 million .

Note 13. Commitments and Contingencie

Commitments and contingencies include typical altians of homebuilders for the completion of cocisaand those incurred in -
ordinary course of business.

Warranty.We provide a limited warranty on all of our hom&ke specific terms and conditions of these limitedranties vary dependi
upon the markets in which we do business. We géygrnavide a structural warranty of 10 yeara warranty on electrical, heating, cool
plumbing and other building systems each varyiognftwo to five years based on geographic marketstei@ law, and a warranty ofe yea
for other components of the honWwe estimate the costs that may be incurred unddr lgaited warranty and record a liability in thenaunt o
such costs at the time the revenue associatedthétisale of each home is recogniz@dr primary assumption in estimating the amount
accrue for warranty costs is that historical claemperience is a strong indicator of future claiexperience. Factors that affect our warr
liability include the number of homes deliveredsthrical and anticipated rates of warranty claiarg] cost per claim. We periodically asses:
adequacy of our accrued warranty liability , whishincluded in accrued expenses and other liadslith the consolidated balance sheats,
adjust the amount as necessary based on our agsgs9ur assessment includes the review of our actualawsy costs incurred to ident
trends and changes in our warranty claims expegiesnod considers our home construction quality @arsfomer service initiatives and outs
eventsWhile we believe the warranty liability currentlgflected in our consolidated balance sheets talbguate, unanticipated changes ir
legal environment, local weather, land or environtak conditions, quality of materials or method®disn the construction of homes,
customer service practices could have a significapict on our actual warranty costs in the futame such amounts could differ from
current estimates.

The changes in our warranty liability are as fokofin thousands):

Years Ended November 30,

2012 2011 2010
Balance at beginning of year $ 67,69¢ $ 93,98¢ $ 135,74¢
Warranties issued 8,41¢ 4,85z 517:
Payments (29,86¢) (25,029 (44,979
Adjustments (8,42) (6,129 (1,967
Balance at end of year $ 47,82. $ 67,69: $ 93,98t

Our overall warranty liability at November 30, 20ib2luded $1.5 million for estimated remaining regasts associated with Tibmes the
have been identified as containing or potentiatiytaining allegedly defective drywall manufactuiedChina. These homes are locate
Florida and were primarily delivered in 2006 andd200ur overall warranty liability at November 2011 and 2010 included $4.8 millidor
estimated remaining repair costs associated wittu8f homes and $11.3 million associated with<28h homes, respectively. The decreas
the liability for estimated repair costs associamgth such homes at November 30, 2012 and 201gatefll the lower number of homes v
unresolved repairs at each date as compared tespective previous year. Since 2009, we haveifosha total of 46%uch homes and resoh
repairs on 452 of them through November 30, 201@.cahsider warrantyelated repairs for homes to be resolved wherephirs are comple
and all repair costs are fully paid, and/or whendegermine that we are not obligated to or will need to repair a home under our lim
warranty. During the years ended November 30, 204211 and 2010 , we paid $2.9 million , $13.7 imilland $25.5 million respectively, t
repair homes identified as affected or potentialffiected by the allegedly defective drywall. AsNbvember 30, 2012, we have p#d3.«
million of the total estimated repair costs of $illion associated with all such homes.

The drywall used in the construction of our hongeplirchased and installed by subcontractors. Chaositractors obtained drywall mate
from multiple domestic and foreign sources throlagke 2008. In late 2008, we directed our subcotdrado obtain only domestically sour:
drywall. Based on the significantly reduced waryatltim rate on the issue (only tveaiditional homes were identified in 2012 as corigiro!
potentially containing allegedly defective drywatlanufactured in China), communitide reviews we have conducted, and the dorr
sourcing of drywall material since late 2008, whewe that we have identified substantially all lstnomes and will receive at most only nom
additional claims in future periods.

We have tendered claims with our liability insuramarriers, seeking reimbursement of costs we imavered to make repairs
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on and to handle claims with respect to previodsljvered homes, including homes identified ascadfé or potentially affected by the allege
defective drywall. During 2012, we recognized imswe recoveries of $26.5 millioms a reduction to construction and land costs i
consolidated statements of operations, represeatimgunts we received from one of our insuranceegarfor a portion of the claims we hi
tendered. We intend to continue to seek and arertaidng efforts, including legal proceedings, tdain reimbursement from various sour
including suppliers and their insurers, for thets@ge have incurred or expect to incur to investigand complete repairs and to defend ours
in litigation associated with homes previously deted, including homes identified as affected deptally affected by the allegedly defect
drywall. Given uncertainties in the potential outers of these efforts, we have not recorded any atador potential future recoveries as
November 30, 201:

As of November 30, 2012 , we were a defendant idaWGuits relating to the allegedly defective drilw&evenof these lawsuits a
“omnibus” class actions purportedly filed on behalf of nunssrdvomeowners asserting claims for damages agaiyatall manufacturer
homebuilders and other parties in the supply cbathe allegedly defective drywall material. We atgo a defendant in twiawsuits brought i
Florida state court and orlawsuit brought in Louisiana federal court, in eaase by individual homeowners. On May 31, 2013]oba
settlement of claims relating to the allegedly défe drywall material, including those brought exgd us, was preliminarily approved by
federal court judge overseeing a multidistricghiiion case —n re: Chinese Manufactured Drywall Products LiatyilLitigation (MDL-2047).
A fairness hearing on the preliminary global setgat was held on November 13, 2012. The hearingtiget concluded. If the global settlerr
is finally approved and is accepted by all partie&s current form, it will resolve all currentatins against us and bar any future claims ag
all participating defendants, including us. Somette plaintiffs have opted out of the global setémt, and we will defend cases by tf
plaintiffs against us. While the ultimate outconoéshe drywallrelated lawsuits are uncertain, based on the dustatus of the proceedings,
do not believe the outcomes will be material to camsolidated financial statements.

During 2012, we received warranty claims from homeers in certain of our communities in Florida feater intrusiorrelated issues ¢
homes we delivered between 2003 and 2009. Whil@itially believed these issues were isolated,radtdlitional investigation, we determir
in the fourth quarter of 2012 that more homes awdrounities may have been affected. Given the estalye of our investigation into the sc
of the water intrusiomelated issues in Florida, we are currently unébldetermine whether we will need to record adddiccharges for rep:
costs. Our investigation into these issues, inagidistimating the number of homes affected andteeall repair costs, is ongoing.

In assessing our overall warranty liability at pading date, we evaluate the costs for warraatsted items on a combined basis for a
our previously delivered homes that are under ouitdd warranty. Accordingly, since 2009, we hawalaated the costs related to ho
identified as affected or potentially affected Hiegedly defective drywall manufactured in Chinadain 2012, we also evaluated the ¢
related to homes potentially affected by waterusibn-related issues, in each case together witlofabur other warrantyelated item:
Notwithstanding our actual or estimated remainieggir costs related to the allegedly defective ditirand water intrusic-related issues, sin
2009 we have experienced favorable trends in owahearranty costs incurred with respect to clamlating to other warrantselated item:
reflecting, among other things, our ongoing focasconstruction quality and customer service. Basedur assessments of these and
relevant factors on a combined basig, determined that our overall warranty liabilityemch reporting date was sufficient to cover oterall
warranty obligations on previously delivered hortiegt are under our limited warranty. Additionalhgsed on our assessment of the trends |
warranty claims experience, and taking into accdliatdecrease in the overall number of homes we Halivered over the past several y
before 2012 and the steady reduction in our estichegmaining repair costs and actual repair costsried for homes identified as affecte:
potentially affected by the allegedly defectivewlajl, we recorded favorable warranty adjustment$1df.2 millionin the second quarter of 2C
and $7.4 millionin the third quarter of 2011 as reductions to awesion and land costs in our consolidated statésnehoperations in tho
periods.As of November 30, 2012, based on our assessmentirobverall warranty liability on a combined bais all of our previousl
delivered homes that are under our limited warraintyluding the homes identified as affected oreptitilly affected by the allegedly defect
drywall and the increased number of homes poténtidfected by water intrusiorelated issues, we recorded an adjustment to iserea
overall warranty liability by $2.6 milliorin the fourth quarter of 2012 with a correspondiigrge to construction and land costs in
consolidated statement of operations.

Depending on the number of additional homes idiedtifis affected or potentially affected by allegeditfective drywall manufactured
China or by water intrusiorelated issues, if any, and the actual costs war imcfuture periods to repair such homes and/ondwaffected
other warrantyrelated issues, including costs to provide affe¢ttecheowners with temporary housing, we may revigedstimated amount
our liability, which could result in an increasedacrease in our overall warranty liability.

Guaranteesin the normal course of our business, we issuaicerépresentations, warranties and guaranteeteddia our home sales ¢
land sales that may be affected by Accounting Statsd Codification Topic No. 460, “GuaranteeBased on historical evidence, we do
believe any potential liability with respect to $leerepresentations, warranties or guarantees wamilchaterial to our consolidated finan
statements.
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Insurance W e maintain, and require the majority of our subraetors to maintain, general liability insuranagc(uding construction defe
and bodily injury coverage) and workerdmpensation insurance. These insurance polic@egirus against a portion of our risk of loss 1
claims related to our homebuilding activities, sabjto certain seliasured retentions, deductibles and other covetimgis. In Arizona
California, Colorado and Nevada, our subcontratigeseral liability insurance primarily takes th@rh of a wrapdp policy, where eligibl
subcontractors are enrolled as insureds on eaghcpréVe selfinsure a portion of our overall risk through thee usf a captive insuran
subsidiary. We also maintain certain other insuegpalicies. We record expenses and liabilities thasethe estimated costs required to ¢
our selfinsured retention and deductible amounts undeirmurance policies, and the estimated costs ofnfiateclaims and claim adjustme
expenses that are above our coverage limits oatieatot covered by our insurance policies. Theimated costs are based on an analysis
historical claims and include an estimate of cartdion defect claims incurred but not yet reportedr estimated liabilities for such items w
$93.3 million at November 30, 2012 and $94.9 milliat November 30, 2011 These amounts are included in accrued expenskothe
liabilities in our consolidated balance sheets. ©uenses associated with self-insurance totaledirillion in 2012 , $7.2 million in 201&nc
$7.4 million in 2010 . These expenses were largéfet by contributions from subcontractors papiting in the wrap-up policy.

Performance Bonds and Letters of Credife are often required to provide to various municiggdi and other government agen
performance bonds and/or letters of credit to sed¢be completion of our projects and/or in suppfrtobligations to build communi
improvements such as roads, sewers, water systechsother utilities, and to support similar devel@m activities by certain of o
unconsolidated joint ventures. At November 30, 2022e had $286.1 million of performance bonds add.$ million of letters of cred
outstanding. At November 30, 2011 , we had $361ilkom of performance bonds and $63.8 million oftées of credit outstandingf. any sucl
performance bonds or letters of credit are calleslywould be obligated to reimburse the issuer efgarformance bond or letter of credit. We
not believe that a material amount of any curreatlystanding performance bonds or letters of cneditbe called. Performance bonds do
have stated expiration dates. Rather, we are eglefism the performance bonds as the underlyinfppeance is completed. The expiral
dates of some letters of credit issued in conneatith community improvements coincide with the egigd completion dates of the relz
projects or obligations. Most letters of creditwewer, are issued with an initial term of one yaad are typically extended on a yeary&a
basis until the related performance obligationscarapleted.

Land Option Contractdn the ordinary course of business, we enter iatal loption contracts and other similar contractsciguire rights t
land for the construction of homes. At November3m.2 , we had total deposits of $26.2 million mpoised of $25.7 milliorof cash deposi
and 3.5 million of letters of credit, to purchaaed having an aggregate purchase price of $623l®mi Our land option contracts and ot
similar contracts generally do not contain prowisioequiring our specific performance.

LeasesWe lease certain property and equipment under maetzble operating leases. Office and equipmestkeare typically for terms
three to five years and generally provide renevptibas for terms up to an additional five yeats most cases, we expect that leases that ¢
will be renewed or replaced by other leases withilar terms. The future minimum rental paymentsarmadperating leases, which prima
consist of office leases having initial or remagqmoncancelable lease terms in excess of one wearas follows (in thousands):

Years Ending November 30,

2013 $ 5,87:
2014 5,33¢
2015 2,72¢
2016 28¢
2017 —
Thereafter —

Total minimum lease payments $ 14,22¢

Rental expense on our operating leases was $3ibmiil 2012 , $6.7 million in 2011 and $8.5 milidn 2010 .
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Note 14. Legal Matters

Nevada Development Contract Litigaticn November 4, 2011, the Eighth Judicial Districtu@, Clark County, Nevada set for trie
consolidated action against KB Nevada, in a catilez] Las Vegas Development Associates, LLC, Essex RedeRPartners, LLC, et al. v. |
HOME Nevada Inc In 2007, LVDA agreed to purchase from KB Nevagaraximately 83acres of land located near Las Vegas, Nev
LVDA subsequently assigned its rights to Essé&B Nevada and Essex entered into a developmenteagmat relating to certain ma
infrastructure improvements. LVDA’'s and Essexcomplaint, initially filed in 2008, alleged th&B Nevada breached the developn
agreement, and also alleged that KB Nevada frantiylenduced them to enter into the purchase aneéldpment agreements. LVD#'an
Essex$ lenders subsequently filed related actions thetewconsolidated into the LVDA/Essex matter. Tloasolidated plaintiffs soug
rescission of the agreements or, in the alternatiompensatory damages of $55 million plus then@#ai DamageskB Nevada has denied 1
allegations, and believes it has meritorious deferie the consolidated plaintiffslaims. At a November 19, 2012 hearing, the cdartied a
of the consolidated plaintiffghotions for summary judgment on their claims. lditidn, the court granted several of KB Nevada'sioms fol
summary judgment, eliminating, among other of thesolidated plaintiffstlaims, all claims for fraud, negligent misreprdséion, and punitiv
damages. With the coustdecisions, the only remaining claims against Ké&&ta are for contract damages and rescissioneWHel ultimat
outcome is uncertain — we believe it is reasongtagsible that the loss in this matter could rangenfzeroto the amount of the Claim
Damages (now excluding any punitive damages pecdloet’s action) plus prejudgment interest, which couldniserial to our consolidat
financial statements — KB Nevada believes it wél $uccessful in defending against the consolidgk=idtiffs’ remaining claims and that 1
consolidated plaintiffs will not be awarded residasor damages. A nguy trial, originally set for September 2012 am@rnt continued un
January 2013, has now been further continued tol@ctl5, 2013.

Southern California Project Development Ca&s, December 27, 2011, the jury in a case entillsthncia Coastal, LLC v. KB HON
Coastal Inc. et alteturned a verdict against KB HOME Coastal Inayhally owned subsidiary, and us for $9.8 millipexcluding legal fees a
interest. The case related to a land option congnad a construction agreement between KB HOME fabasc. and the plaintiff. Based on pre-
trial analysis, the verdict was not expected, aBIHOME Coastal Inc. and we jointly filed a motiocor fludgment notwithstanding the verc
and a motion for a new trial, which were heard ceyM8, 2012. On May 23, 2012, the trial court dérifee motions and on June 4, 2012 ent
a judgment in favor of the plaintiff in the amowit$9.2 million plus pre-judgment interest of appmoately $.9 million. The judgment enter
reflects an earlier payment by us to the plairdiffa portion of the jury’s award and does not ideluegal fees and costs and postgmen
interest. We had established an accrual for thisembased on our pijadgment estimate of the probable loss. Howevepn eesult of the trii
court’s decision and probable legal fees and cast@rd, we recorded a charge of $8.8 millinrthe second quarter of 2012 to increast
accrual for this matter to $11.7 milliorThe charge was included in selling, general ahdiaistrative expenses in our consolidated stat¢iwi
operations. On September 14, 2012, following aihgathe trial court awarded legal fees and casthé plaintiff of approximately $1.4 million
In light of the legal fees and costs awarded orte3eper 14, 2012, we continue to believe our acatiblovember 30, 2012 reflects the prob
outcome of the matter. We and KB HOME Coastal hrave appealed the entry of judgment. While thenate outcome is uncertain, we
KB HOME Coastal Inc. believe we will be successfutesolving the matter for an amount less tharjubdlgment.

Other Matters.In addition to the specific proceedings describbdva, we are involved in other litigation and regulatgyoceeding
incidental to our business that are in various @docal stages. We believe that the accruals we tes@ded for probable and reason
estimable losses with respect to these proceedirgsadequate and that, as of November 30, 20Mas not reasonably possible that
additional material loss had been incurred in amwar in excess of the estimated amounts alreadygrézed on our consolidated finan
statements. We evaluate our accruals for litigatind regulatory proceedings at least quarterly asdyppropriate, adjust them to reflect (i}
facts and circumstances known to us at the tineuding information regarding negotiations, settens, rulings and other relevant events
developments; (ii) the advice and analyses of celuasd (iii) the assumptions and judgment of managnt. Similar factors and considerat
are used in establishing new accruals for procgsdis to which losses have become probable anohadzly estimable at the time an evalue
is made. Based on our experience, we believe Hetamounts that may be claimed or alleged agaimsh uhese proceedings are ni
meaningful indicator of our potential liability. €putcome of any of these proceedings, includilegdifense and other litigatioalated cos
and expenses we may incur, however, is inheremtbertain and could differ significantly from thetiesate reflected in a related accrua
made. Therefore, it is possible that the ultimateeeme of any proceeding, if in excess of a relaisgtual or if no accrual had been made, ¢
be material to our consolidated financial statement
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Note 15. Income Taxe!

The components of income tax benefit (expensd)drconsolidated statements of operations are lasvi(in thousands):

Federal State Total

2012
Current $ 16,50C $ 3,60 $ 20,10(
Deferred — — —
Income tax benefit $ 16,50C $ 3,600 $ 20,10(

2011
Current $ 2,60 $ (200 $ 2,40(
Deferred — — —
Income tax benefit (expense) $ 2,600 $ (200) $ 2,40(

2010
Current $ 6,50 $ 50C $ 7,00(
Deferred — — —
Income tax benefit $ 6,50 $ 50C $ 7,00(
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Deferred income taxes result from temporary diffieess in the financial and tax basis of assetsiabdities. Significant components of «
deferred tax liabilities and assets are as follfiwshousands):

November 30,

2012 2011

Deferred tax liabilities:
Capitalized expenses $ 76,11: $ 98,671
State taxes 64,57 61,55(
Other 21¢ 19C
Total $ 140,900 $ 160,41

Deferred tax assets:

Inventory impairments and land option contract aloeaments $ 132,09¢ $ 219,45
NOL from 2006 through 2012 442,62: 412,90:
Warranty, legal and other accruals 54,74« 61,18¢
Employee benefits 68,64¢ 57,69¢
Partnerships and joint ventures 132,85 83,69:
Depreciation and amortization 7,46 13,577
Capitalized expenses 6,64¢€ 6,23
Tax credits 169,17: 151,30(
Deferred income 66¢ 83C
Other 6,107 2,515
Total 1,021,02 1,009,39!
Valuation allowance (880,11)) (847,82)
Total 140,90° 161,56
Net deferred tax assets $ — $ 1,152

The income tax benefit computed at the statutor§. federal income tax rate and the income tax litepedvided in the consolidat
statements of operations differ as follows (in tends):

Years Ended November 30,

2012 2011 2010
Income tax benefit computed at statutory rate $ 27,67: % 63,397 $ 26,72¢
Increase (decrease) resulting from:
State taxes, net of federal income tax benefit 9,94¢ 4,691 4,01(
Reserve and deferred income (9,14¢) (1,16 1,204
Capitalized expenses 7,96( (3,509 (88)
Basis in joint ventures 42 ,50: 4,401 13,72¢
NOL reconciliation (5,345 71t (24,749
Inventory impairments (59,407 (1,857 (2,736
Recognition of federal tax benefits 17,65( 2,60( 1,621
Tax credits 17,88¢ 5,47 5,38¢
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets (32,28¢) (76,74") (21,11H
Other, net 2,65¢€ 4,38( 3,011
Income tax benefit $ 20,10C $ 2,400 $ 7,00(

We recognized income tax benefits of $20.1 miliio2012 , $2.4 million in 2011 and $7.0 million2010. The income tax benefit in 20
primarily reflected the resolution of federal andts tax audits, which resulted in an income tapefieof $20.1
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million and the realization of $1.2 million of defed tax assets. The income tax benefit in 201lecksd the reversal of a $2.6 millidiability
for unrecognized tax benefits due to the statuedéral and state tax audits. The income tax bemefl010 reflected the recognition ofb&.4
million federal income tax benefit from an additional chagk of our 2009 NOL to offset earnings we generéte2004 and 2005, and -
reversal of a $1.6 million liability for unrecogeid tax benefits due to the status of federal azg $ax auditsDue to the effects of our defer
tax asset valuation allowances, carrybacks of ddtNand changes in our unrecognized tax benefits effective tax rates in 2012, 2011
2010 are not meaningful items as our income taxuentscare not directly correlated to the amountwfpretax losses for those periods.

In accordance with ASC 74Qve evaluate our deferred tax assets quarterly terme if adjustments to the valuation allowance
required. ASC 740 requires that companies assestherha valuation allowance should be establislaséd on the consideration of all availi
evidence using a “more likely than not” standarthwespect to whether deferred tax assets wileézed.The ultimate realization of defert
tax assets depends primarily on the generationtafé taxable income during the periods in whighdifferences become deductible. The v
of our deferred tax assets will depend on appleaitome tax rates. During 2012 and 2011, we recbyaluation allowances &32.3 millior
and $76.7 million , respectively, against net defértax assets generated primarily from the preiages for those years. During 201ve
recorded a net increase of $21.1 million to theia@bn allowance against net deferred tax asseflecting a $26.6 milliorvaluation allowanc
recorded against the net deferred tax assets geddram the pretax loss for the year that wasigrtoffset by the $5.4 millioriederal incom
tax benefit from the additional carryback of ouD2QINOL.

The majority of the tax benefits associated with@L can be carried forward for 2@ears and applied to offset future taxable incofe
federal NOL carryforwards of $313.5 million , if thatilized, will begin to expire in 2030 through2D. The state NOL carryforwards $£29.:
million will begin to expire between 2013 and 20Baot utilized.

In addition, $80.0 million of our tax credits, ibnutilized, will begin to expire in 2015 through22 . Included in the $80.0 million a$&.¢
million of investment tax credits of which $7.0 fich and $.8 million will expire in 2026 and 2027Fespectively.

We had no net deferred tax assets at Novembel03@, Dur net deferred tax assets totaled $1.2am#lt November 30, 2011. The defel
tax asset valuation allowance increased to $88@lbmat November 30, 2012 from $847.8 milli@d November 30, 2011, reflecting the
impact of the $32.3 milliowaluation allowance recorded in 2012. To the extenpenerate sufficient taxable income in the ®itorfully utilize
the tax benefits of the related deferred tax asaet®xpect our effective tax rate to decreasbeasdluation allowance is reversed.

Gross unrecognized tax benefits are the differebedseen a tax position taken, or expected to kentén a tax return, and the ben
recognized for accounting purposes. A reconcilimtdd the beginning and ending balances of the goosecognized tax benefits, excluc
interest and penalties, is as follows (in thous@nds

Years Ended November 30,

2012 2011 2010
Balance at beginning of year $ 1,89¢ $ 11,30¢  $ 11,02/
Additions for tax positions related to prior years — 5 1,72C
Reductions for tax positions related to prior years (165) — (1,189
Reductions related to settlement — (264) —
Reductions due to lapse of statute of limitations (63) (2,476 —
Reductions due to resolution of federal and statiits — (6,679 (253%)
Balance at end of year $ 1671 § 1,89¢ § 11,30¢

W e recognize accrued interest and penalties retatadrecognized tax benefits in our consolidatedritial statements as a compone
the provision for income taxes. As of November3m12 , 2011 and 2010 , there were $1.3 million.8 $dillion and $6.9 million respectively
of gross unrecognized tax benefits (including ieserand penalties), that if recognized would affaet annual effective tax rate. Our ti
accrued interest and penalties related to unrezednncome tax benefits was $.6 million at Noven8#:r2012 and $.9 million &lovember 3(
2011 . Our liabilities for unrecognized tax bersefit November 30, 2012 and 204rk included in accrued expenses and other ligsilih ou
consolidated balance sheets.

Included in the balance of gross unrecognized émefits at November 30, 2012 and 2011 are taxiposibf $1.0 millionfor each year, f
which the ultimate deductibility is highly certdiut there is uncertainty about the timing of sueluttibility. Because of the impact of defel
tax accounting, other than interest and penaltiesgdisallowance of the shorter deductibility pdneould not affect the annual effective tax r
but would accelerate the payment of cash to authoaty to an earlier period.
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As of November 30, 2012 , our gross unrecogniz&demefits (including interest and penalties) wda$2.3 million. We anticipate th
these gross unrecognized tax benefits will decrégsan amount ranging from $.2 million to $1.1 il during the 12 months from tl
reporting date due to various state filings assediwith the resolution of a federal audit.

The fiscal years ending 2005 and later remain opéaderal and state examinations.

The benefits of our NOL, built-in losses and taadits would be reduced or potentially eliminatedé experienced an “ownership change”
under Section 382. Based on our analysis perforaseaf November 30, 2012, we do not believe thahaee experienced an ownership chi
as defined by Section 382, and, therefore, the Niilf-in losses and tax credits we have generated shmildbe subject to a Section !
limitation as of this reporting date.

Note 16. Stockholders’ Equity

Preferred StockOn January 22, 2009, we adopted a Rights Agreebenteen us and Computershare Shareowner ServidggdLlccesss
to Mellon Investor Services LLC), as rights agefated as of that date (the “2009 Rights Agreemeati)l declared a dividend distributior
one preferred share purchase right for each ouwtistarshare of common stock that was payable tokktiders of record as of the close
business on March 5, 2009. Subject to the ternasjgions and conditions of the 2009 Rights Agreetyiéthese rights become exercisable,
right would initially represent the right to purceafrom us 1/100th of a share of our Series A Elpdiing Cumulative Preferred Stock fc
purchase price of $85.00 (the “Purchase PricH")issued, each fractional share of preferred staculd generally give a stockholt
approximately the same dividend, voting and ligtimarights as does one share of our common stdolwever, prior to exercise, a right d
not give its holder any rights as a stockholdecjuding without limitation any dividend, voting diquidation rights. The rights will not |
exercisable until the earlier of (i) Halendar days after a public announcement by usatparson or group has become an Acquiring Pees
defined under the 2009 Rights Agreement) andX@)ousiness days after the commencement of a tendexcbange offer by a person or gr
if upon consummation of the offer the person owugravould beneficially own 4.9% or more of our oatgling common stock.

Until these rights become exercisable (the “Disititn Date”),common stock certificates will evidence the righitsl may contain a notati
to that effect. Any transfer of shares of our commtock prior to the Distribution Date will consti¢ a transfer of the associated rights. Afte
Distribution Date, the rights may be transferrdakothan in connection with the transfer of thearhydng shares of our common stock. If thel
an Acquiring Person on the Distribution Date oresspn or group becomes an Acquiring Person afeeDiistribution Date, each holder c
right, other than rights that are or were bendficiawned by an Acquiring Person, which will be gpwill thereafter have the right to rece
upon exercise of a right and payment of the PueclRage, that number of shares of our common dt@sing a market value of two times
Purchase Price. After the later of the Distributidete and the time we publicly announce that anukaty Person has become such, our boa
directors may exchange the rights, other thansigtdat are or were beneficially owned by an AcaujiPerson, which will be void, in whole ol
part, at an exchange ratio of one share of comnumk per right, subject to adjustment.

At any time prior to the later of the Distributi@ate and the time we publicly announce that an AsuPerson becomes such, our boal
directors may redeem all of the then-outstandigiptsi in whole, but not in part, at a price of $.gir right, subject to adjustment (
“Redemption Price”). The redemption will be effeetiimmediately upon the board of directoegtion, unless the action provides that :
redemption will be effective at a subsequent timeigon the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one aempecified events, in which case
redemption will be effective in accordance with girevisions of the action. Immediately upon thesefiveness of the redemption of the rig
the right to exercise the rights will terminate ahd only right of the holders of rights will be teceive the Redemption Price, with inte
thereon. The rights issued pursuant to the 200atRiggreement will expire on the earliest of (& ttose of business on March 5, 2019, (b
time at which the rights are redeemed, (c) the ttn&hich the rights are exchanged, (d) the timghath our board of directors determines tr
related provision in our Restated Certificate afdrporation is no longer necessary, and (e) theeatd business on the first day of a taxable
of ours to which our board of directors determitieg no tax benefits may be carried forward. At aanual meeting of stockholders on Apr
2009, our stockholders approved the 2009 Rightedment.

Common StoclkAs of November 30, 2012, we were authorized to remase 4,000,000 shares of our common stock unbeamapprove:
share repurchase prograwle did not repurchase any of our common stock utidemprogram in 2012, 2011 or 2010. We have nptireghase
common shares pursuant to a common stock repurghaséor the past several years and any resumpfisach stock repurchases will be at
discretion of our board of directors.

Our board of directors declared a quarterly divitlenh$.0625per share of common stock in the first quarter@f2and quarterly dividen
of $.0250per share of common stock in each of the secoird,dhd fourth quarters of 2012. All dividends deeld in 2012 were paid during
year. During 2011 and 2010, o ur board of directordated four quarterly cash dividends of $.0625 gers of common stodkat were als
paid during those years.
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Treasury StockWe acquired $1.8 million of our common stock in 204nd $.4 millionin 2010, which were previously issued sh
delivered to us by employees to satisfy their witding tax obligations on the vesting of restricttdck awards or forfeitures of previ
restricted stock awards. We did not acquire anyeshaf our common stock in 2011. Treasury stoalkedé®rded at cost. Differences betweer
cost of treasury stock and the reissuance procaedsecorded to paiith capital. These transactions are not considespdrchases under 1
share repurchase program.

Note 17. Employee Benefit and Stock Plar

Most of our employees are eligible to participateiie KB Home 401(k) Savings Plan (the “401(k) Plamder which contributions |
employees are partially matched by us. The aggeegadt of the 401(k) Plan to us was $2.6 millior2012 , $2.8 million in 2011 an$3.Z
million in 2010 . The assets of the 401(k) Plantzekl by a thirdaarty trustee. The 401(k) plan participants magdtithe investment of thi
funds among one or more of the several fund optidfesed by the 401(k) Plan. A fund consisting af sommon stock is one of the investn
choices available to participants. As of Novemb@&r2)12 , 2011 and 2010 , approximately 7% , 4%5¥d respectively, of the 401(k) Plan’
net assets were invested in the fund consistimyotommon stock.

At our Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on Adril2010, our stockholders approved the KB Home02Bduity Incentive Plan (tl
“2010 Plan”), authorizing, among other things, tb&uance of up to 3,500,000 shares of our comrumk $or grants of stockased awards
our employees, noamployee directors and consultants. This pool aefeshincludes all of the shares that were availfaslgrant as of April :
2010 under our 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, undeckvhb new awards may be made. Accordingly, as oil Ap2010, the 2010 Plan became
only active equity compensation plan. Under thed2Blan, grants of stock options and other simiearas reduce the 2010 Plarshare capaci
on a 1 -for- 1 basis, and grants of restrictedkstw other similar “full value” awards reduce 2@&10 Plan’s share capacity on a 1.78 -for-
basis. In addition, subject to the 2010 Plan’s teemd conditions, a stodlased award may also be granted under the 2010t®l@place &
outstanding award granted under another of oursplanbject to the terms of such other plan) witmgesubstantially identical to those of
award being replaced.

At our Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on Apfjl 2011, our stockholders approved an amendmetited?010 Plan (thePlar
Amendment”) to increase the number of shares otommmon stock that may be issued under the 2010tBlan additional 4,000,000 shares.

The 2010 Plan provides that stock options, perfocaastock, restricted stock and stock units magvierded for periods of up to 10 years
The 2010 Plan also enables us to grant cash borisi8&s and other stodkased awards. In addition to awards outstandingiie 2010 Pla
we have awards outstanding under our Amended asthfed 1999 Incentive Plan (the “1999 Plawfjch provided for generally the same ty
of awards as the 2010 Plan. We also have awardtading under our 1988 Employee Stock Plan andPetformancé3ased Incentive Plan 1
Senior Management, each of which provides for galyethe same types of awards as the 2010 Plarstbak option awards granted under tl
plans have terms of up to 15 years .

Stock OptionsStock option transactions are summarized as follows

Years Ended November 30,

2012 2011 2010
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Options Price Options Price Options Price
Options outstanding at
beginning of year 10,160,39 $ 21.2i 8,798,61. $ 24.1¢ 5,711,70. $ 27.3¢
Granted 30,00( 9.0¢ 1,716,00! 6.3¢€ 3,572,23 18.71
Exercised (7,499 13.9¢ — — (28,28)) 13.0C
Cancelled (77,35€) 17.9¢ (354,21) 21.45 (457,04, 22.0t
Options outstanding at end of
year 10,105,54 $ 21.2i 10,160,39 $ 21.2i 8,798,61. $ 24.1¢
Options exercisable at end of
year 8,533,22. $ 23.7¢ 7,142,560 $ 26.4: 6,146,600 $ 28.7:
Options available for grant at
end of year 1,721,84 2,477,21‘ 21,70:

The total intrinsic value of stock options exerdiseas less than $.1 million for the year ended Madwer 30, 2012 and was $.1 millidor
the year ended November 30, 2010 . There wereonl sptions exercised during the year ended Novelibe
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2011 . The aggregate intrinsic value of stock emgtioutstanding was $18.2 million , $1.7 million &@a million at November 30, 2012011
and 2010 , respectively. The intrinsic value otktoptions exercisable was $7.8 million at Noven8ir2012 . Stock options exercisable had
intrinsic value at November 30, 2011 and an inicinalue of less than $.1 million at November 301@. The intrinsic value of a stock optior
the amount by which the market value of the undeglgtock exceeds the price of the option.

On August 13, 2010, we consummated an exchange (e “August 2010 Exchange Offeffursuant to which eligible employees hac
opportunity to exchange their outstanding casHesetBARs granted on October 2, 2008 and Januar@29 for nonqualified options t
purchase shares of our common stock granted uhéePQ10 Plan. On November 9, 2010, we consummatsparate exchange offer (
“November 2010 Exchange Offer”) pursuant to whidiliele employees had the opportunity to exchariggr toutstanding casbettled SAR
granted on July 12, 2007 and October 4, 2007 farqumlified options to purchase shares of our comstock granted under the 2010 Plan.

Pursuant to both the August 2010 Exchange Offert@dNovember 2010 Exchange Offer, each stock mgifanted in exchange for a S
had an exercise price equal to the S&\BXercise price and the same number of underbliages, vesting schedule and expiration date dn
such SAR. The August 2010 Exchange Offer and thesder 2010 Exchange Offer did not include anieing or any other changes impac
the value to the employees. We conducted the Auld Exchange Offer and November 2010 Exchanger @ffan effort to reduce the ove
degree of variability in the expense recorded fopleyee equitypased compensation by replacing the SARs, whiclaereunted for as liabili
awards, with stock options, which are accountec$oequity awards.

Pursuant to the August 2010 Exchange Offer, 19bdigemployees returned a total of 1,116,83(Rs to us, and those SARs were canc
on August 13, 2010 in exchange for correspondiagitgrof stock options to 18 of those employeesitohase an aggregate of 1,073, 7dvare
of our common stock at $19.90 per share and onet gfastock options to one employee to purchas@9® shares of our common stock
$11.25 per share.

Pursuant to the November 2010 Exchange Offer, aliggble employees returned a total of 925, 56Rs to us, and those SARs w
cancelled on November 9, 2010 in exchange for spoeding grants of stock options to those rémgployees to purchase an aggrega
732,170 shares of our common stock at $28.10 mmesand grants of stock options to sewétthose employees to purchase an aggreg
193,535 shares of our common stock at $36.19hzes

The stock options granted pursuant to the AugusDZBxchange Offer and the November 2010 Exchander @fe included in the sto
options granted total in the above table.

On October 6, 2011, our president and chief exeeutificer was granted an award of performabased stock options to purchase
aggregate of 365,000 shares of our common stotthegburchase price of $6.32 per share. The pedocebased stock options shall vest
become exercisable if our president and chief eikexofficer does not experience a terminationes¥/ke prior to the applicable dates descr
in his performance option agreement, and if théoperance goal, as set forth in that agreementpbas satisfied. The number of performance-
based stock options that ultimately vest dependshenachievement of one of the following three gerfance metrics: positive cumulat
operating margin; relative operating margin; andtamer satisfaction, as set forth in the agreemerdccordance with ASC 718, we used
Black-Scholes option-pricing model to estimatedhant date fair value per performance-based stptikroof $2.54 .

On October 7, 2010, our president and chief exeeutfficer was granted an award of performabased stock options to purchase
aggregate of 260,000 shares of our common stottlegiurchase price of $11.06 per share. The padiocebased stock options shall vest
become exercisable if our president and chief akexofficer does not experience a terminationesf/ie prior to the applicable dates descr
in his performance option agreement, and if théoperance goal, as set forth in that agreementpkas satisfied. The number of performance-
based stock options that ultimately vest dependshenachievement of one of the following three perfance metrics: positive cumulat
operating margin; relative operating margin; anldtiee customer satisfaction, as set forth in tgeesement. In accordance with ASC 718,
used the Black-Scholes option-pricing model toneste the grant date fair value per performanceebsiek option of $4.59 .
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Stock options outstanding and stock options exaitésat November 30, 2012 are as follows:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Weighted
Weighted Average Weighted Average
Average Remaining Average Remaining
Exercise Contractual Exercise Contractual
Range of Exercise Price Options Price Life Options Price Life
$ 6.32t0 $10.54 1,704,999 $ 6.45 8.8 567,67 $ 6.44
$10.55 to $14.96 2,030,55! 12.0% 6.€ 1,595,55 12.3¢
$14.97 to $20.08 2,211,77. 17.6¢ 6.3 2,211,77. 17.6¢
$20.09 to $33.92 2,024,72. 27.3¢ 5.1 2,024,72. 27.3¢
$33.93 to $69.63 2,133,50! 39.81 54 2,133,50! 39.81
$ 6.32 to $69.63 10,105,54 $ 21.27 6.2 8,5633,22. $ 23.7¢ 5.¢

The weighted average grant date fair value of stgtlons granted in 2012 , 2011 and 2010 was $4%P856 and $2.81respectively. Tt
fair value of each stock option grant is estimatedthe date of grant using the Black-Scholes optidcing model with the followin
assumptions:

Years Ended November 30,

2012 2011 2010
Risk-free interest rate 1% .9% 1%
Expected volatility factor 65.€% 65.€% 61.7%
Expected dividend yield 1.% 3.£% 2.2%
Expected term 5 year 5 year 3 year

The riskfree interest rate assumption is determined barembseerved interest rates appropriate for the egdaerm of our stock optior
The expected volatility factor is based on a comatiam of the historical volatility of our commonosk and the implied volatility of public
traded options on our stock. The expected divideeld assumption is based on our history of divitipayouts. The expected term of emplc
stock options is estimated using historical data.

Our stock-based compensation expense related ¢& efmion grants was $5.0 million in 2012 , $5.9liom in 2011 and $5.8 milliorn
2010 . As of November 30, 2012 , there was $1.Tianilof total unrecognized stodkased compensation expense related to unvestek
option awards. This expense is expected to be nineg over a weighted average period of 1.3 years.

We record proceeds from the exercise of stock nptas additions to common stock and paid-in capitag tax shortfalls of $.3 milliom
2012, $1.0 million in 2011 and $2.8 million in ZDdesulting from the cancellation of stock awaxdsre reflected in paith capital. In 2012 ar
2011, the consolidated statement of cash flowscetftl noexcess tax benefit associated with the exercisstonk options since Decembe
2005, in accordance with the cash flow classifaratiequirements of ASC 718. In 2010 , the constddi@tatement of cash flows reflected
million of excess tax benefit associated with tkereise of stock options.

Other Stock-Based AwardBrom time to time, we grant restricted stock toimas employees as a compensation benefit. Durim
restriction periods, these employees are entiletbte and to receive cash dividends on such sh@hesrestrictions imposed with respect tc
shares granted lapse over periods of three yeeestdin conditions are met.
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Restricted stock transactions are summarized ksl

Years Ended November 30,

2012 2011

Weighted Weighted

Average Average

per Share per Share

Grant Date Grant Date

Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value
Outstanding at beginning of year 338,91: $ 15.0¢ 402,47 $ 15.0¢
Granted 207,61 16.2: — —
Vested (176,13 14.2¢ (10,930) 13.4¢
Cancelled (140,670 15.4¢ (52,63%) 15.4¢
Outstanding at end of year 229,72‘ $ 15.81 338,91: $ 15.0¢

As of November 30, 2012, we had $3.3 milliohtotal unrecognized compensation cost relatedesricted stock awards that will
recognized over a weighted average period of ajpeely three years.

On November 8, 2012, we granted PSUs to certainames. Each PSU grant corresponds to a target ranadwur common stock (t
“Award Shares”). Each PSU entitles the recipieneeive a grant of between 0% and 200% of theieui's Award Shares, and will vest ba
on our achieving, over a thregear period commencing on December 1, 2012 anchgradi November 30, 2015, specified levels of (&rag:
return on equity performance and (b) revenue gromwethtive to a peer group of higiteduction homebuilding companies, subject tc
recipients continued employment with us through to and idiclg the date on which the management developnmehtempensation commiti
of our board of directors determines performanaeefich of the measures. The grant date fair valusach such PSU was $16.23s of
November 30, 2012, there we227,049PSUs outstanding. The number of shares of our comstmck actually granted to a recipient, if
when a PSU vests will depend on the degree of aetmient of the applicable performance measures gitine threerear performance peric
Compensation cost for PSUs is initially estimatexbdal on target performance achievement and adj@stedppropriate throughout
performance period. Accordingly, future compensgatiosts associated with outstanding PSUs may isereadecrease based on the proba
of our achievement with respect to the applicatdgfggmance measures. At November 30, 2012, we Ba@l fillion of total unrecognize
compensation cost related to unvested PSUs, whiekgdected to be recognized over a weighted-averaied of approximately three years.

In 2009 and 2008, we granted phantom shares tousaemployees. In 2008, we also granted SARs fousaemployees. These castttle
awards have been accounted for as liabilities mconsolidated financial statements. Each phantwemesrepresented the right to receive a
payment equal to the closing price of our commarksbn the applicable vesting date. Each SAR reptssa right to receive a cash payr
equal to the positive difference, if any, betwels grant price and the market value of a sharaiotommon stock on the date of exercise.
phantom shares vested in full at the end of theses/, while the SARs vested in equal annual instats over three years . There ware
phantom shares outstanding as of November 30, 2@h2pared to 5,556 and 268, 7@2antom shares outstanding as of November 30, 26¢
2010, respectively. We had 29,939 SARs outstandingoth November 30, 2012 and 2011, compared t61375ARs outstanding as
November 30, 201. The year-over-year decrease in the number ofandsrg SARs in 2011 from 20Y&flects the impact of the August 2(
Exchange Offer and the November 2010 Exchange Offer

We recognized total compensation expense of $1llibmin 2012 , $1.2 million in 2011 and $.7 millian 2010related to restricted sto
PSUs, phantom shares and SARs.

Grantor Stock Ownership Trusbn August 27, 1999, we established a grantor steakership trust (the “Trust'into which certain shar
repurchased in 2000 and 1999 were transferred T, administered by a thigghrty trustee, holds and distributes the sharesmwimon stoc
acquired to support certain employee compensatidnemployee benefit obligations under our exisstagk option, the 401(k) Plan and of
employee benefit plans. The existence of the Trastno impact on the amount of benefits or compiemsthat is paid under these plans.

For financial reporting purposes, the Trust is otidated with us, and therefore any dividend tratieas between us and the Trust
eliminated. Acquired shares held by the Trust remadlued at the market price on the date of puetesl are shown as a reductiol
stockholdersequity in the consolidated balance sheets. Therdifice between the Trust share value and the maakeg on the date shares
released from the Trust is included in paideapital. Common stock held in the Trust is nobsidered outstanding in the computation
earnings (loss) per share. The Trust held 10,625598 10,884,151 shares of common stock at NoveBthe2012 and 201 1respectively. T
trustee votes shares held by the Trust in accoedaiihy voting directions from eligible employees, specified in a trust agreement with
trustee.
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Note 18. Postretirement Benefit:

We have a supplemental ngoalified, unfunded retirement plan, the KB HomeiRenent Plan, effective as of July 11, 2002, parsttc
which we have offered to pay supplemental pensimefits to certain designated individuals (consgsiof current and former employees
connection with their retirement. The plan was etbo new participants in 2004. In connection wiité plan, we have purchased cost recc
life insurance contracts on the lives of the desgd individuals. The insurance contracts assatiatth the plan are held by a trust, establi
as part of the plan to implement and carry outpifevisions of the plan and to finance the benefitsred under the plan. The trust is the ov
and beneficiary of such insurance contracts. Theuaof the insurance coverage under the contiaaesigned to provide sufficient funds
cover all costs of the plan if assumptions mad®asnployment term, mortality experience, policynéiags and other factors are realized.
cash surrender value of these insurance contragspd?2.4 million at November 30, 2012 and $41.Tionilat November 30, 2011in 2012 an
2011, we paid $.5 million and $.1 million , respeely, in benefits under the plan to eligible fomeenployees.

We also have an unfunded death benefit plan, theHéBie Death Benefit Only Plan, implemented on Ndveri, 2001, for certa
designated individuals (consisting of current amnfer employees). The plan was closed to new faatits in 2004. In connection with the p
we have purchased cost recovery life insuranceractston the lives of the designated individualse Thsurance contracts associated witl
plan are held by a trust, established as part@ptan to implement and carry out the provisionshef plan and to finance the benefits offi
under the plan. The trust is the owner and bemficdf such insurance contracts. The amount ofrtbierance coverage under the contrac
designed to provide sufficient funds to cover abts of the plan if assumptions made as to emplayreem, mortality experience, poli
earnings and other factors are realized. The aasbrgler value of these insurance contracts was8$dlion at November 30, 2012 afd3.7
million at November 30, 2011 . We have not paidat benefits under the plan.

The net periodic benefit cost of our postretiremeenefit plans for the year ended November 30, 2042 $6.6 million, which include:
service costs of $1.3 million , interest costs Pf3$million , amortization of unrecognized loss¥df.4 millionand amortization of prior servi
costs of $1.6 million . The net periodic benefistof these plans for the year ended November @01 2vas $5.5 million which include:
service costs of $1.2 million , interest costs 2f3%million , amortization of unrecognized loss$06 million, and amortization of prior servi
costs of $1.5 million , partly offset by other imse of $.1 million . For the year ended NovemberZ,0, the net periodic benefit cost of th
plans was $5.5 million , which included servicetsasf $1.2 million , interest costs of $2.2 milligramortization of unrecognized loss &8
million , amortization of prior service costs of.6million and other costs of $.2 million . Thelikities related to these plans we@0.9 millior
at November 30, 2012 and $53.1 million at Noven®8ikr2011, and are included in accrued expenses and otaglities in the consolidat
balance sheets. For the years ended November 39,a2@ 2011 , the discount rates we used for tresphere 3.3% and 4.4% , respectively.

Benefit payments under our postretirement bendditpare expected to be paid as follows: 2013 -2 $dillion ; 2014 — $1.4 millior
2015 — $1.8 million ; 2016 — $2.4 million ; 2017 $2.7 million ; and for the five years ended Novenm®@ 2022 — $17.8 milliorin the
aggregate.
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Note 19. Supplemental Disclosure to Consolidated Statements Cash Flow:

The following are supplemental disclosures to ihresolidated statements of cash flows (in thousands)

Summary of cash and cash equivalents at the ettt gfear:

Homebuilding
Financial services

Total

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Interest paid, net of amounts capitalized
Income taxes paid
Income taxes refunded

Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities:

Increase in inventories in connection with consaiioh of joint ventures

Increase in accounts payable, accrued expensestizrdiabilities in connection

with consolidation of joint ventures

Stock appreciation rights exchanged for stock oystio
Cost of inventories acquired through seller finagci
Increase (decrease) in consolidated inventorieswoed

Acquired property securing note receivable

Note 20. Quarterly Results (unaudited’

Year Ended November 30,

2012 2011 2010
$ 524,76 $ 415,05( 904,40:
922 3,02 4,02¢
$ 525,68 $ 418,07 908,43(
$ 6554. $ 48,03¢ 71,64
82€ 33t 807
22,34: 21¢ 196,86
$ — % — 72,30(
— — 38,86
— — 2,34¢
53,62t — 55,24+
(19,809 8,35t (41,626
— 40,00( —

The following tables present our consolidated aarirtresults for the years ended November 30, 201® 2011(in thousands, except |

share amounts):

2012
Revenues
Gross profits
Pretax income (loss)
Net income (loss)
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share
2011
Revenues
Gross profits
Pretax income (loss)
Net income (loss)

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share

First Second Third Fourth
$ 254,55¢ $ 302,85 $ 424 ,50: 578,20:
26,36¢ 52,49( 75,88 84,85:
(45,400 (28,636 (7,439 2,42t
(45,807) (24,13 3,261 7,72
$ (59 $ (31) $ .04 AC
$ 196,94( $ 271,73 % 367,31t 479,87
25,27¢ 20,57( 63,57¢ 72,94
(114,126 (68,80/) (9,649 11,41
(114,526 (68,509 (9,649 13,91
$ (149 $ (89 $ (19 $ 18

Gross profits in the first, second, third and fowtiarters of 2012 included inventory impairmerdrges of $6.6 million , $9.9 million$6.4
million and $5.2 million , respectively, and no dhoption contract abandonment charges in the Sestond and third quarters and $.4 million
the fourth quarter. Gross profits in the second taimd quarters of 2012 also included insurancevedes of $10.0 million and $16.5 millign

respectively.

Gross profits in the first, second, third and fowtiarters of 2011 included inventory impairmerdrges of $1.0 million , $20.1 milliors,2
million and $1.3 million , respectively, and langtion contract abandonment charges of $.8 milli$rb,million ,
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$.8 million and $1.0 million , respectively.

The pretax loss in the first and second quarte20afl included a loss on loan guaranty of $22.8aniland $14.6 million respectively. Tt
pretax income in the fourth quarter of 2011 inclidegain on loan guaranty of $6.6 million . Thet@xeloss in the first quarter of 205lsc
included a joint venture impairment charge of $58ilfion .

Quarterly and year-tdate computations of per share amounts are madpendently. Therefore, the sum of per share amdontthe
guarters may not agree with per share amountfiéoyear.

Note 21. Supplemental Guarantor Information

Our obligations to pay principal, premium, if arand interest under our senior notes are guararteed joint and several basis by
Guarantor Subsidiaries. The guarantees are fuluacdnditional and the Guarantor Subsidiaries 808downed by us. Pursuant to the term
the indenture governing our senior notes, if anyhef Guarantor Subsidiaries ceases to be a “signifisubsidiary” as defined by Ruled2-of
Regulation SX (as in effect on June 1, 1996), it will be autdicelly and unconditionally released and discharged its guarantee of o
senior notes so long as all guarantees by suchaBtosrSubsidiary of any other of our or our sulzsids’indebtedness are terminated at or |
to the time of such release. As of November 30220 determined that five of our subsidiaries eda® be “significant subsidiariesghd
pursuant to the terms of the senior note indentiiney were automatically and unconditionally reeghand discharged from their respec
guarantees of our senior notes. We also determtim&ida wholly owned subsidiary that previously was a Guarantor Subsidiary wa
“significant subsidiary,’and, pursuant to the terms of the senior note ilenwe caused that subsidiary to become a Guar&nbsidiary. W
have determined that separate, full financial statgs of the Guarantor Subsidiaries would not beéer@d to investors and, according
supplemental financial information for the Guarar8absidiaries is presented below.

The supplemental financial information for the pdd presented below reflects the relevant subgdisinat were Guarantor Subsidiarie
of and for the respective periods then ended. Afingly, information for any period presented doesneflect subsequent changes, if any, ir
subsidiaries considered to be Guarantor Subsidiarie
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In Thousands)

Year Ended November 30, 2012

KB Home Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
Corporate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Total
Revenues $ — % 978,06: $ 582,05 $ — 1,560,11!
Homebuilding:
Revenues $ — 3 978,06: $ 570,36¢ $ — 1,548,43.
Construction and land costs — (844,98) (472,54) — (1,317,52)
Selling, general and administrative expense: (60,10) (119,43) (71,62)) — (251,159
Operating income (loss) (60,107 13,65 26,19« — (20,256
Interest income 48C — 38 — 51¢
Interest expense 49,68¢ (78,879 (40,617 — (69,809
Equity in income (loss) of unconsolidated joi
ventures — (989 58¢ — (399
Homebuilding pretax loss (9,935 (66,21) (23,790 — (89,93¢)
Financial services pretax income — — 10,88: — 10,88:
Total pretax loss (9,935 (66,21) (2,907 — (79,059
Income tax benefit 2,50( 16,90( 70C — 20,10(
Equity in net loss of subsidiaries (51,519 — — 51,51¢ —
Net loss $ (58,95Y) $ (49,31) $ (2,207 $ 51,51¢ (58,959
Year Ended November 30, 2011
KB Home Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
Corporate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Total
Revenues — 3 745,96! $ 569,90 $ — 1,315,86!
Homebuilding:
Revenues — 3 745,96¢ $ 559,590 $ — 1,305,56:
Construction and land costs — (638,80 (491,18) — (1,129,98)
Selling, general and administrative expenses (52,789 (93,289 (101,819 — (247,88
Loss on loan guaranty — (30,765 — — (30,765
Operating loss (52,789 (16,890 (33,400 — (103,079
Interest income 71t 36 12C — 871
Interest expense 51,95% (69,309 (31,859 — (49,20¢)
Equity in loss of unconsolidated joint ventures — (55,83) (8) — (55,83
Homebuilding pretax loss (112) (141,999 (65,140 — (207,241
Financial services pretax income — — 26,07¢ — 26,07¢
Total pretax loss (112) (141,999 (39,067 — (181,169
Income tax benefit — 1,90( 50C — 2,40(
Equity in net loss of subsidiaries (178,65¢) — — 178,65t —
Net loss (178,769 $ (140,09 $ (38,567) $ 178,65t (178,769
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Year Ended November 30,

2010

KB Home Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
Corporate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Total
Revenues — % 429917 $ 1,160,070 $ — $ 1,589,99
Homebuilding:
Revenues — % 429,917 $ 1,151,841 $ — % 1,581,76
Construction and land costs — (360,45() (947,839 — (1,308,28)
Selling, general and administrative expenses (68,149 (48,239 (173,139 — (289,52()
Operating income (loss) (68,149 21,23¢ 30,87( — (16,044
Interest income 1,77( 30 29¢ — 2,09¢
Interest expense 20,35 (41,68¢) (46,979 — (68,307
Equity in loss of unconsolidated joint ventures — (18€) (6,077 — (6,257
Homebuilding pretax loss (46,02¢) (20,60¢) (21,877 — (88,51)
Financial services pretax income — — 12,14: — 12,14
Total pretax loss (46,02¢) (20,60¢) (9,739 — (76,369
Income tax benefit 4,20( 1,90( 90C — 7,00(
Equity in net loss of subsidiaries (27,549 — — 27,54 —
Net loss (69,369 $ (18,709 $ (8,83) % 2754. $ (69,36%)
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEETS
(In Thousands)

November 30, 2012

KB Home Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
Corporate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Total
Assets
Homebuilding:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 457,000 $ 22,64: $ 45,11¢ $ — 524,76!
Restricted cash 42,36: — — — 42,36:
Receivables 121 49,51¢ 15,18: — 64,82:
Inventories — 1,075,01. 631,56( — 1,706,57
Investments in unconsolidated joint ventures — 109,34t 14,32¢ — 123,67:
Other assets 85,90: 7,491 1,65¢ — 95,05(
585,39: 1,264,00: 707,84 — 2,557,24.
Financial services — — 4,45¢ — 4,45¢
Investments in subsidiaries 11,41 — — (11,419 —
Total assets $ 596,80: $ 1,264,000 $ 712,29¢ % (11,41) $ 2,561,69!
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Homebuilding:
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and oth
liabilities $ 134,31 $ 147,56: $ 177,01 $ — 458,88
Mortgages and notes payable 1,645,39. 69,59¢ 7,82¢ — 1,722,81
1,779,70 217,15¢ 184,83 — 2,181,70.
Financial services — — 3,18¢ — 3,18¢
Intercompany (1,559,71) 1,046,84! 512,86: — —
Stockholders’ equity 376,80t — 11,41 (11,41) 376,80t
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 596,80. $ 1,264,000 $ 712,29¢ (11,41) $  2,561,69
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November 30, 2011

KB Home Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
Corporate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Total
Assets
Homebuilding:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 340,95 $ 32,87¢ $ 41217 $ — 3 415,05(
Restricted cash 64,47¢ 6 — — 64,48
Receivables 801 29,25( 36,12¢ — 66,17¢
Inventories — 1,256,46: 475,16: — 1,731,62
Investments in unconsolidated joint ventures — 113,92: 14,00¢ — 127,92¢
Other assets 67,05¢ 73C 7,31¢ — 75,10¢
473,29: 1,433,25. 573,82t — 2,480,36!
Financial services — — 32,17 — 32,17
Investments in subsidiaries 34,23¢ — — (34,239 —
Total assets $ 507,52 % 1,433,25. $ 605,99¢ $ (34,23) $ 2,512,54
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Homebuilding:
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and oth
liabilities $ 121,57. $ 181,83 $ 175410 % — 3 478,82
Mortgages and notes payable 1,533,47 45,92¢ 4,16¢ — 1,583,57
1,655,04! 227,76 179,58 — 2,062,39
Financial services — — 7,49¢ — 7,49¢
Intercompany (1,590,17) 1,205,49: 384,68t — —
Stockholders’ equity 442,65 — 34,23¢ (34,23 442,65
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 507,527 § 143325 § 605,99¢ § (34,23) $  2,512,54.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In Thousands)

Year Ended November 30, 2012

KB Home Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
Corporate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Total
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (58,95) $ (49,31) $ (2,20 $ 51,51¢ (58,959
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:
Equity in (income) loss of unconsolidated joint
ventures — 98¢ (2,780 — (1,797
Inventory impairments and land option
contract abandonments — 10,417 18,11¢ — 28,53
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables 68C (7,716 32,03( — 24,99¢
Inventories — (59,875 90,22 — 30,341
Accounts payable, accrued expenses anc
other liabilities 11,28: 20,85¢ (34,289 — (2,149
Other, net 6,507 66( 6,46¢ — 13,63¢
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activiti (40,48Y (83,989 107,56¢ 51,51¢ 34,617
Cash flows from investing activities:
Return of investments in (contributions to)
unconsolidated joint ventures — 1,65¢ (667) — 98¢
Purchases of property and equipment, net (a75) (855) (719 — (1,749
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activiti avE) 801 (1,38¢) — (760)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Change in restricted cash 22,11¢ — — — 22,11¢
Proceeds from issuance of senior notes 694,83: — — — 694,83:
Payment of senior notes issuance costs (12,445 — — — (12,445
Repayment of senior notes (592,64Y — — — (592,649
Payments on mortgages and land contracts d
land sellers and other loans — (26,299 — — (26,299
Issuance of common stock under employee stock
plans 59: — — — 59:
Payments of cash dividends (10,599 — — — (10,599
Stock repurchases (1,799 — — — (1,799
Intercompany 56,65¢ 103,27! (108,41 (51,519 —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 156,71( 76,971 (108,415 (51,519 73,757
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 116,05( (6,20¢) (2,230 — 107,61
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 340,95 28,84¢ 48,26¢ — 418,07-
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 457,000 § 22,64: $ 46,03¢  $ — 525,68t
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Year Ended November 30, 2011

KB Home Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
Corporate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Total
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (178,769 $ (140,09) $ (38,565 $ 178,65t $ (178,769
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash
in operating activities:
Equity in (income) loss/(gain) on wind down
of unconsolidated joint ventures — 55,83 (29,27%) — 36,55
Loss on loan guaranty — 30,76¢ — — 30,76¢
Gain on sale of operating property — (8,825 — — (8,825
Inventory impairments and land option
contract abandonments — 21,51 4,28( — 25,79
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables 3,40 (9,72¢6) 4,10z — (2,220
Inventories — (40,979 28,62¢ — (12,345
Accounts payable, accrued expenses anc
other liabilities (3,035 (247,29) (3,220 — (253,54)
Other, net 9,18¢ 4,271 1,58¢ — 15,05:
Net cash used in operating activities (169,21)) (334,521 (22,467) 178,65t (347,54Y
Cash flows from investing activities:
Return of investments in (contributions to)
unconsolidated joint ventures — (77,090 9,83( — (67,260
Proceeds from sale of operating property — 80,60( — — 80,60(
Sales (purchases) of property and equipment (200) (202) 16C — (242
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (200) 3,30¢ 9,99( — 13,09¢
Cash flows from financing activities:
Change in restricted cash 24,23¢ 26,75 — — 50,99¢
Repayment of senior notes (100,000 — — — (100,000
Payments on mortgages and land contracts due to
land sellers and other loans 3,39i (87,94) (4,919 — (89,46))
Issuance of common stock under employee s
plans 1,79¢ — — — 1,79¢
Payments of cash dividends (29,240 — — — (19,240
Intercompany (170,429 411,30¢ (62,22¢) (178,65 —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (260,23) 350,12¢ (67,145 (178,65¢) (155,909
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents (429,64¢) 18,90" (79,61) — (490,35¢)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 770,60: 13,96¢ 123,85¢ — 908,43(
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 340,95 $ 32,87¢  $ 44,247 $ — 3 418,07«
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Year Ended November 30, 2010

KB Home Guarantor Non-Guarantor Consolidating
Corporate Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Adjustments Total

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (69,369 $ (18,709 % (8,839 % 27,54. % (69,36¢)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash
provided by (used in) operating activities:

Equity in (income) loss of unconsolidated joint

ventures — 18¢€ (95¢) — (772
Inventory impairments and land option
contract abandonments — 1,98( 17,94¢ — 19,92¢
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables 187,54 3,551 20,21¢ — 211,31
Inventories — (99,216 (30,119 — (129,339
Accounts payable, accrued expenses anc
other liabilities (16,979 (65,87¢) (116,35 — (199,209
Other, net (8,467) 1,60¢ 40,32t — 33,47
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activiti 92,74( (176,47)) (77,77Y 27,54. (133,969
Cash flows from investing activities:
Contributions to unconsolidated joint ventures — (517 (15,157 — (15,669
Purchases of property and equipment, net (229) (70) (121 — (420
Net cash used in investing activities (229) (587) (15,279 — (16,089
Cash flows from financing activities:
Change in restricted cash 25,57¢ — (26,767) — (2,185
Payments on mortgages and land contracts due to
land sellers and other loans — (81,04 (20,119 — (101,159
Issuance of common stock under employee s
plans 1,851 — — — 1,851
Excess tax benefit associated with exercise of
stock options 58:¢ — — — 58:¢
Payments of cash dividends (19,227 — — — (19,229
Stock repurchases (350) — — — (350
Intercompany (325,46 217,24( 135,77: (27,547 —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (317,03() 136,19¢ 88,89 (27,549 (119,479
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (224,519 (40,859 (4,159 — (269,53)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 995,12: 44,47¢ 138,36: — 1,177,96.
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 770,600 $ 361¢ § 134,20t $ — 908,43
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of KB Home:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated talateets of KB Home as of November 30, 2012 artl,2@nd the relat
consolidated statements of operations, stockhdl@epsity, and cash flows for each of the three y@atbe period ended November 30, 2(
These financial statements are the responsibifith® Companys management. Our responsibility is to expresspmian on these financi
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting Oversighaf8o(United States). Thc
standards require that we plan and perform thet dodibtain reasonable assurance about whethdintdugcial statements are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disids in the financial statements. An &
also includes assessing the accounting principed and significant estimates made by managememiek as evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgde a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referrecabove present fairly, in all material respedtg, tonsolidated financial position of |
Home at November 30, 2012 and 2011, and the caladetl results of its operations and its cash flfawgach of the three years in the pe
ended November 30, 2012, in conformity with U.Shegally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@united States), KB Homg’
internal control over financial reporting as of Nowber 30, 2012, based on criteria established terrdal Control —Integrated Framewo
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohshe Treadway Commission and our report datetiaky 18, 2013 expressed

unqualified opinion thereon.
éfwdtf MLL?

Los Angeles, California
January 18, 2013
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Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We have established disclosure controls and preesda ensure that information we are requiredgolase in the reports we file or sub
under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934derded, processed, summarized and reported witleirime periods specified in the SEC’
rules and forms, and accumulated and communicatethanagement, including the President and Chiefcliikes Officer (the Principa
Executive Officer”) and Executive Vice Presidendahief Financial Officer (the “Principal Financi@fficer”), as appropriate, to allow time
decisions regarding required disclosure. Undesthgervision and with the participation of seniomagement, including our Principal Execu
Officer and Principal Financial Officer, we evaledtour disclosure controls and procedures, as &ram is defined under Rule 13&{(e
promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act 8818ased on this evaluation, our Principal Exeeu@fficer and Principal Financial Offic
concluded that our disclosure controls and proaslwere effective as of November 30, 2012.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
(&) Managemen's Annual Report on Internal Control Over FinancigReporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting, as such term is definet
Rule 13a15(f) under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1@B#er the supervision and with the participatdsenior management, includ
our Principal Executive Officer and Principal Fio&i Officer, we evaluated the effectiveness of mternal control over financial reporti
based on the framework imternal Control-Integrated Frameworlssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiahthe Treadwa
Commission. Based on the evaluation under thatéveonk and applicable SEC rules, our managementiwded that our internal control o
financial reporting was effective as of Novembey 3012.

Ernst & Young LLP, the independent registered pubkcounting firm that audited our consolidatedfficial statements included in 1
annual report, has issued its report on the effesiss of our internal control over financial rejpgy as of November 30, 2012.

(b) Report of Independent Registered Public Accountifigm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of KB Home:

We have audited KB Home’internal control over financial reporting as odWember 30, 2012, based on criteria establishddtérna
Control —Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ofnSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commissibe EOSO criteria). K
Home’s management is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financial reporting, amat fts assessment of the effectiver
of internal control over financial reporting inckdl in the accompanying Managemenfnnual Report on Internal Control Over Finar
Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an mpiron the company’s internal control over finaheogoorting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statsd of the Public Company Accounting Oversight ldogUnited States). Tho
standards require that we plan and perform thetaadobtain reasonable assurance about whethectigéeinternal control over financ
reporting was maintained in all material respe€ar audit included obtaining an understanding ¢érimal control over financial reportir
assessing the risk that a material weakness etéstting and evaluating the design and operatifextdfeness of internal control based on
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsease considered necessary in the circumstancesbéleve that our audit provide
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is ao@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranceliregshe reliability o
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsikatements for external purposes in accordantie generally accepted accounting princig
A companys internal control over financial reporting inclsdose policies and procedures that (1) pertaihganaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettiiansactions and dispositions of the assetseoédmpany; (2) provide reasonable assuranc
transactions are recorded as necessary to perepisuation of financial statements in accordanch génerally accepted accounting princig
and that receipts and expenditures of the compeape@ing made only in accordance with authorizatiohmanagement and directors of
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurancediagaprevention or timely detection of unauthorizetjuisition, use, or disposition of
company’s assets that could have a material effetihe financial statements.
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Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or détmisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods angjext to the risk that controls may become inadegjbecause of changes in conditions, ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, KB Home maintained, in all mateniabpects, effective internal control over finahceporting as of November 30, 20
based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsds the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@’nited States), the consolids
balance sheets of KB Home as of November 30, 20@i22811, and the related consolidated statemeraperftions, stockholdersquity, an
cash flows for each of the three years in the pleeioded November 30, 2012 and our report datedadai®, 2013 expressed an unquali

opinion thereon.
éfh-dtf MLL?

Los Angeles, California
January 18, 2013

(c) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reportgn

There have been no changes in our internal coote financial reporting during the quarter endexy&mber 30, 2012 that have materi
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallfeef, our internal control over financial reporting

Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART Il

Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

The information required by this item for executféicers is set forth under “Executive Officerstbe Registrantin Part |. Except as ¢
forth below, the other information called for byistitem will be included under the captions “Comer Governance and Board Matteasic
“Proposal 1: Election of Directors” in our ProxyaBtment for the 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholdéns “2013 Proxy Statementvhich
will be filed with the SEC not later than March 2013 (120 days after the end of our fiscal yeam} is incorporated herein by reference.

Ethics Policy

We have adopted an Ethics Policy for our directofficers (including our principal executive officgrincipal financial officer and princig
accounting officer) and employees. The Ethics Bdlcavailable on our investor relations websitevatw.investor.kbhome.com. Stockhold
may request a free copy of the Ethics Policy from:

KB Home

Attention: Investor Relations
10990 Wilshire Boulevard

Los Angeles, California 90024
(310) 231-4000
investorrelations@kbhome.com

Within the time period required by the SEC and Mew York Stock Exchange, we will post on our ineestelations website a
amendment to our Ethics Policy and any waiver applie to our principal executive officer, princigadancial officer or principal accounti
officer, or persons performing similar functionegdaour other executive officers or directors.

Corporate Governance Principles

We have adopted Corporate Governance Principleghvdre available on our investor relations webst®ckholders may request a !
copy of the Corporate Governance Principles froendtidress, phone number and email address setftle under “Ethics Policy.”

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item will be indied under the captions “Corporate Governance aratdBMatters” and Executive
Compensation” in the 2013 Proxy Statement andcisrporated herein by reference.
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ltem 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this item will be indied under the caption “Ownership of KB Home Seiagitin the 2013 Proxy Statem«
and is incorporated herein by reference, excephfinformation required by Item 201(d) of RegiaiatS-K, which is provided below.

The following table presents information as of Nmber 30, 2012 with respect to shares of our comstock that may be issued under
existing compensation plans:

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of common

Number of shares remaining
common shares to available for future
be issued upon issuance under equity
exercise of Weighted-average compensation plans
outstanding options, exercise price of (excluding common
warrants and outstanding options, shares reflected in
rights warrants and rights column(a))
Plan category () (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by stockholders 10,105,54 $ 21.2i 1,721,84
Equity compensation plans not approved by stocldrsld — — — (1
Total 10,105,54 $ 21.27 1,721,84

(1) Represents our current compensation plan domonemployee directors that provides for grants of @ef common stock units or stc
options. These stock units and options are destribethe “Director CompensationSection of our 2013 Proxy Statement, whic
incorporated herein. Although we may purchase shaf@ur common stock on the open market to satisfypayment of these stock u
and options, to date, all of them have been seitlexhsh. Further, under the non-employee directansent compensation plan, our non-
employee directors cannot receive shares of ounwmstock in satisfaction of their stock units ptions unless and until approved by
stockholders. Therefore, we consider the aoployee directors compensation plans as havingvadable capacity to issue shares of
common stock.

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item will be indied under the captions “Corporate Governance aaddBdatters” and “Other Matters
the 2013 Proxy Statement and is incorporated héseneference.

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item will be indled under the caption “Independent Auditor Fees Services’in the 2013 Prox
Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(@)

2.

3.

Exhibit

1.

Number

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

Financial Statements

Reference is made to the index set forth on pag# 6fls Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Financial Statement Schedules

Financial statement schedules have been omittealibedhey are not applicable or the required inddion is provided in the

consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

Exhibits

Description

Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amenélkd] as an exhibit to our Current Report on Fori 8ated April 7, 200!
(File No. 001-09195), is incorporated by refereheeein.

By-Laws, as amended and restated on April 5, 2fil@d, as an exhibit to our Quarterly Report on FdrhQ for the quarte
ended February 28, 2007 (File No. 001-09195),defiporated by reference herein.

Rights Agreement between us and Mellon Investovies LLC, as rights agent, dated January 22, 2fle#l,as an exhibit t
our Current Report on Form 8-K/A dated January?2®9 (File No. 001-09195), is incorporated by refiee herein.

Indenture and Supplemental Indenture relating 36456 Senior Notes due 2014 among us, the GuarasmorSun Trust Ban
Atlanta, each dated January 28, 2004, filed asbéshio our Registration Statement No. 333-114761Form S4, are
incorporated by reference herein.

Third Supplemental Indenture relating to our SeNotes by and between us, the Guarantors nameeinthéine Subsidiat
Guarantor named therein and SunTrust Bank, dated sy 1, 2006, filed as an exhibit to our Curr&sport on Form &
dated May 3, 2006 (File No. 001-09195), is incogped by reference herein.

Fourth Supplemental Indenture relating to our SeNiotes by and between us, the Guarantors nameeirthend U.S. Ban
National Association, dated as of November 9, 20f6éd as an exhibit to our Current Report on F@&iK datec
November 13, 2006 (File No. 001-09195), is incogped by reference herein.

Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated August 17, 208lating to our Senior Notes by and betweenhes Guarantors, and t
Trustee, filed as an exhibit to our Current Reporf-orm 8-K dated August 22, 2007 (File No. @®195), is incorporated |
reference herein.

Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Januar2@L2, relating to our Senior Notes by and betwes the Guarantors a
the Trustee, filed as an exhibit to our Currentdepn Form 8-K dated February 2, 2012 (File NdL-00195), is incorporate
by reference herein.

Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Janugr(13, relating to our Senior Notes by and amosghe Guaranto
and the Trustee, filed as an exhibit to our Curfeaport on Form 8-K dated January 11, 2013 (File 0@109195), is
incorporated by reference herein.

Specimen of 5 3/4% Senior Notes due 2014, filedraexhibit to our Registration Statement No. 33875l on Form & is
incorporated by reference herein.

Specimen of 5 7/8% Senior Notes due 2015, filedragxhibit to our Current Report on Fornk&lated December 15, 20
(File No. 001-09195), is incorporated by refereheesin.

Form of officers’ certificates and guarantocsttificates establishing the terms of the 5 7/8%i& Notes due 2015, filed as
exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated &aber 15, 2004 (File No. 001-09195), is incorpatddg reference herein.



4.11 Specimen of 6 1/4% Senior Notes due 2015, filednagxhibit to our Current Report on FornK&ated June 2, 2005 (File N
001-09195), is incorporated by reference herein.

4.12 Form of officers’ certificates and guarantocsttificates establishing the terms of the 6 1/486i& Notes due 2015, filed as
exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K datedel@n2005 (File No. 001-09195), is incorporateddfgrence herein.

108




Table of Contents

Exhibit
Number

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

4.20

4.21

4.22

10.1*

10.2*

10.3*

10.4*

10.5*

10.6*

10.7*

10.8

Description
Specimen of 6 1/4% Senior Notes due 2015, filedragxhibit to our Current Report on FornkK&ated June 27, 2005 (F
No. 001-09195), is incorporated by reference herein

Form of officers’ certificates and guarantoesttificates establishing the terms of the 6 1/48i& Notes due 2015, filed as
exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K datedel@i, 2005 (File No. 001-09195), is incorporateddfgrence herein.

Specimen of 7 1/4% Senior Notes due 2018, filedragxhibit to our Current Report on ForniK8lated April 3, 2006 (Fil
No. 001-09195), is incorporated by reference herein

Form of officers’ certificates and guarantocsttificates establishing the terms of the 7 1/486i& Notes due 2018, filed as
exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated iABr 2006 (File No. 001-09195), is incorporatedrbference herein.

Specimen of 9.100% Senior Notes due 2017, filedrasxhibit to our Current Report on FornK&ated July 30, 2009 (Fi
No. 001-09195), is incorporated by reference herein

Form of officers’ certificates and guarantocgrtificates establishing the terms of the 9.10@%i& Notes due 2017, filed
an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K dately 30, 2009 (File No. 001-09195), is incorporatgdeference herein.

Specimen of 8.00% Senior Notes due 2020, filechasxaibit to our Current Report on FornkK8dated February 7, 2012 (F
No. 001-09195), is incorporated by reference herein

Form of officers’ certificates and guarantocg'tificates establishing the terms of the 8.00%i@eNotes due 2020, filed as
exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K datedraeby 7, 2012 (File No. 001-09195), is incorporabgdeference herein.

Specimen of 7.50% Senior Notes due 2022, filechasxaibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K dataty B1, 2012 (File No.
001-09195), is incorporated by reference herein.

Form of officers’ certificates and guarantors’ derates establishing the terms of the 7.50% SeNites due 2022, filed as an
exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated/B1, 2012 (File No. 001-09195), is incorporatedddgrence herein.

Kaufman and Broad, Inc. Executive Deferred Comptmsdlan, effective as of July 11, 1985, filedaasexhibit to our 200
Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-09195)inisorporated by reference herein.

Amendment to Kaufman and Broad, Inc. Executive Betk Compensation Plan for amounts earned or vestedr afte
January 1, 2005, effective January 1, 2009, fiedmexhibit to our 2008 Annual Report on Form 1(Fe No. 00109195)
is incorporated by reference herein.

KB Home 1988 Employee Stock Plan, as amended astdted on October 2, 2008, filed as an exhibitup 2008 Annug
Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-09195), is inamgted by reference herein.

Kaufman and Broad Home Corporation Direct@sferred Compensation Plan established effectivef dsly 27, 1989, file
as an exhibit to our 2007 Annual Report on FornK1(ile No. 001-09195), is incorporated by refereherein.

KB Home Performanc&ased Incentive Plan for Senior Management, as detkand restated on October 2, 2008, filed ¢
exhibit to our 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K éANo. 001-09195), is incorporated by referenceihere

Form of Stock Option Agreement under KB Home PenfmceBased Incentive Plan for Senior Management, filedae
exhibit to our 1995 Annual Report on Form 10-K éANo. 001-09195), is incorporated by referenceihere

KB Home 1998 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended asthted on October 2, 2008, filed as an exhibituio 2008 Annue
Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-09195), is inamgied by reference herein.

KB Home Directors’ Legacy Program, as amended Jgral 999, filed as an exhibit to our 1998 AnnRabort on Form 10-
K (File No. 001-09195), is incorporated by refereherein.



10.9 Trust Agreement between Kaufman and Broad Home@atipn and Wachovia Bank, N.A. as Trustee, dasedf é\ugust 27
1999, filed as an exhibit to our 1999 Annual Reporform 10-K (File No. 001-09195), is incorporalgdreference herein.
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Exhibit
Number

10.10*

10.11*

10.12*

10.13*

10.14*

10.15*

10.16*

10.17*

10.18*

10.19*

10.20*

10.21*

10.22*

10.23*

10.24*

10.25*

10.26*

10.27*

Description
Amended and Restated KB Home 1999 Incentive Pliangended and restated on October 2, 2008, filesh &hibit to ou
2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-091 %6incorporated by reference herein.

Form of NonQualified Stock Option Agreement under our Amendad Restated 1999 Incentive Plan, filed as an éxioi
our 2011 Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 0®1E95), is incorporated by reference herein.

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under our Amdnaied Restated 1999 Incentive Plan, filed as aibixio our 201!
Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-09195)inisorporated by reference herein.

KB Home 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended asthted on October 2, 2008, filed as an exhibituio 2008 Annue
Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-09195), is inamgted by reference herein.

Form of Stock Option Agreement under our 2001 Stackntive Plan, filed as an exhibit to our 2011nAal Report on Forl
10-K (File No. 001-09195), is incorporated by refege herein.

Form of Stock Restriction Agreement under our 288dck Incentive Plan, filed as an exhibit to out 2Gnnual Report o
Form 10-K (File No. 001-09195), is incorporatedrbference herein.

KB Home Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plarhwispect to deferrals prior to January 1, 200fecéfe March 1
2001, filed as an exhibit to our 2001 Annual Reporf-orm 10-K (File No. 001-09195), is incorporalgdreference herein.

KB Home Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Planhwiespect to deferrals on and after January 1, ,28€8&ctive
January 1, 2009 (File No. 001-09195), filed as a&hilst to our 2008 Annual Report on Form KQ-is incorporated b
reference herein.

KB Home Change in Control Severance Plan, as andegule restated effective January 1, 2009, filednasxhibit to our 200
Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-09195)inisorporated by reference herein.

KB Home Death Benefit Only Plan, filed as an exhibi our 2001 Annual Report on Form 10-K (File N@1-09195), is
incorporated by reference herein.

Amendment No. 1 to the KB Home Death Benefit OnlignP effective as of January 1, 2009, filed as mbét to our 200¢
Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-09195)inisorporated by reference herein.

KB Home Retirement Plan, as amended and restatectieé January 1, 2009, filed as an exhibit to 2008 Annual Repo
on Form 10-K (File No. 001-09195), is incorporatsdreference herein.

Employment Agreement of Jeffrey T. Mezger, datedr&ary 28, 2007, filed as an exhibit to our Curri@eport on Form &
dated March 6, 2007 (File No. 001-09195), is incoaped by reference herein.

Amendment to the Employment Agreement of JeffreyME&zger, dated December 24, 2008, filed as an @xiaitour 200¢
Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-09195)inisorporated by reference herein.

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the EmploymAgreement between us and Jeffrey T. Mezger datedf
February 28, 2007, filed as an exhibit to our CurrRBeport on Form 8-K dated July 18, 2007 (File 00109195), it
incorporated by reference herein.

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Amendedl Rastated 1999 Incentive Plan for stock optiomigta Jeffrey T
Mezger, filed as an exhibit to our Quarterly RepmrtForm 10-Q for the quarter ended August 31, 26@& No. 00109195)
is incorporated by reference herein.

Policy Regarding Stockholder Approval of Certainv&ance Payments, adopted July 10, 2008, filednasxibit to ou
Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 15, 2008(Kib. 001-09195), is incorporated by referenceihere

KB Home Executive Severance Plan, filed as an é@utwur Quarterly Report on Form-Q for the quarter ended August



10.28*

10.29*

10.30

2008 (File No. 001-09195), is incorporated by refiee herein.

Form of Fiscal Year 2009 Phantom Shares Agreerfitztt,as an exhibit to our Current Report on Forik 8ated October ¢
2008 (File No. 001-09195), is incorporated by refiee herein.

KB Home Annual Incentive Plan for Executive Offisgfiled as Attachment C to our Proxy Statemen$onedule 14A for th
2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (File No. O®IE95), is incorporated by reference herein.

Amendment to Trust Agreement by and between KB Hame Wachovia Bank, N.A., dated August 24, 200@dfias al
exhibit to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q foe tuarter ended August 31, 2009 (File No. 00195), is incorporated |
reference herein.
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Exhibit
Number

10.31

10.32

10.33*

10.34*

10.35*

10.36*

10.37*

10.38*

10.39*

10.40

10.41*

10.42*

10.43*f

10.44*%

10.45*F

12.1t
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Description
Amended and Restated KB Home Nemyployee Directors Compensation Plan, effectivefalily 9, 2009, filed as an exhi
to our 2009 Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No141®195), is incorporated by reference herein.

Form of Indemnification Agreement, filed as an éihio our Current Report on Form 8-K dated April2D10 (File No. 001-
09195), is incorporated by reference herein.

KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan, filed as anibitiio our Quarterly Report on Form ID{or the quarter ended Febru
28, 2010 (File No. 001-09195), is incorporated dference herein.

Form of Stock Option Award Agreement under the K8nt¢ 2010 Equity Incentive Plan, filed as an exhibibur Curren
Report on Form 8-K dated July 20, 2010 (File NdL-09195), is incorporated by reference herein.

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement underiBeHome 2010 Equity Incentive Plan, filed as anibithio our Curren
Report on Form 8-K dated July 20, 2010 (File NdL-09195), is incorporated by reference herein.

Form of Fiscal Year 2011 Restricted Cash Award Agrent, filed as an exhibit to our Current ReportFanm 8K datec
October 13, 2010 (File No. 001-09195), is incorpedey reference herein.

KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan Stock Option égment for performance stock option grant to JeflreMezger, filec
as an exhibit to our 2010 Annual Report on FornKl(@ile No. 001-09195), is incorporated by refereherein.

Amendment to the KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Pllad as an exhibit to our Quarterly Report orrrRdl0-Q for the
quarter ended February 28, 2011 (File No. 001-0948%ncorporated by reference herein.

Executive Severance Benefit Decisions, filed aseghibit to our Quarterly Report on Form @DFor the quarter ends
February 28, 2011 (File No. 001-09195), is incogped by reference herein.

Consensual agreement effective June 10, 2011,d8eah exhibit to our Quarterly Report on FormQ@r the quarter endt
August 31, 2011 (File No. 001-09195), is incorpeddby reference herein.

Form of 2010 Equity Incentive Plan Performance CGasfard Agreement, filed as an exhibit to our Cutri@eport on Form 8-
K dated October 12, 2011 (File No. 001-09195)ntoiporated by reference herein.

KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan Stock Option égment for performance stock option grant to JeffreMezger, filec
as an exhibit to our 2011 Annual Report on FornKl(@ile No. 001-09195), is incorporated by refereherein.

Form of KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan PerfontexBased Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement.

KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan Performance-BaRestricted Stock Unit Award Agreement for perfamoebasec
restricted stock unit award to Jeffrey T. Mezger.

Form of KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan Res&itStock Award Agreement.
Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.

Certification of Jeffrey T. Mezger, President artue® Executive Officer of KB Home Pursuant to SewtB02 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Jeff J. Kaminski, Executive ViceeBident and Chief Financial Officer of KB Home $uant to Section 302
the Sarban«Oxley Act of 2002



32.1t Certification of Jeffrey T. Mezger, President antief Executive Officer of KB Home Pursuant to 1&WC. Section 1350, .
Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbanesyOXtt of 2002.

32.21 Certification of Jeff J. Kaminski, Executive VicaeBident and Chief Financial Officer of KB Home suant to 18 U.S.(
Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 9@Geobarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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101t

The following materials from KB Home’s Annual Repon Form 10K for the year ended November 30, 2012, formatte
eXtensible Business Reporting Language (XBRL)C@nsolidated Statements of Operations for the yeaded Novembe
30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, (ii) Consolidated Bale®ioeets as of November 30, 2012 and 2011, (iii) Glareted Statements
StockholdersEquity for the years ended November 30, 2012, 201d12010, (iv) Consolidated Statements of Cash $lon
the years ended November 30, 2012, 2011 and 2@#8iQyvathe Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateémen

* Management contract or compensatory plan or gearent in which executive officers are eligiblgtoticipate.
t Document filed with this Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 18{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduoly authorized.

KB Home
By: /s/ JEFF J. KAMINSKI

Jeff J. Kaminski
Executive Vice President and Chief Financialicaif

Date: January 18, 2013

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpihe following persons on bet
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ites indicated:

Signature Title Date
/s/ JEFFREY T. MEZGER Dirg—zctor, Pre_sident _and January 18, 2013
Chief Executive Officer
Jeffrey T. Mezger (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ JEFF J. KAMINSKI Exc_acuti_ve Vi_ce Pre_sident and January 18, 2013
Chief Financial Officer
Jeff J. Kaminski (Principal Financial Officer)
/s/  WILLIAM R. HOLLINGER Sepior Vice Pr_esiden.t and January 18, 2013
Chief Accounting Officer
William R. Hollinger (Principal Accounting Officer)
/sl STEPHEN F. BOLLENBACH Chairman of the Board and Director January 18, 2013

Stephen F. Bollenbach

/s/ BARBARA T. ALEXANDER Director January 18, 2013
Barbara T. Alexander

/sl TIMOTHY W. FINCHEM Director January 18, 2013
Timothy W. Finchem

/s/ THOMAS W. GILLIGAN Director January 18, 2013
Thomas W. Gilligan

/s!/ KENNETH M. JASTROW, Il Director January 18, 2013
Kenneth M. Jastrow, Il

/s/ ROBERT L. JOHNSON Director January 18, 2013
Robert L. Johnson

/sl MELISSA LORA Director January 18, 2013
Melissa Lora
/sl MICHAEL G. MCCAFFERY Director January 18, 2013

Michael G. McCaffery

/sl LUIS G. NOGALES Director January 18, 2013




Luis G. Nogales
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Sequential
Exhibit Page
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3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amendiget] as an exhibit to our Current Report on Forid 8
dated April 7, 2009 (File No. 001-09195), is incorqted by reference herein.

3.2 By-Laws, as amended and restated on April 5, 2fi@d, as an exhibit to our Quarterly Report on FAgQ
for the quarter ended February 28, 2007 (File Nbd-09195), is incorporated by reference herein.

4.1 Rights Agreement between us and Mellon Investori€es LLC, as rights agent, dated January 22, -
filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Fors{/8 dated January 28, 2009 (File No. 009195), is
incorporated by reference herein.

4.2 Indenture and Supplemental Indenture relating 8/4846 Senior Notes due 2014 among us, the Guarz:
and Sun Trust Bank, Atlanta, each dated Januarp@®4, filed as exhibits to our Registration Stagat
No. 333-114761 on Form S-4, are incorporated bgregice herein.

4.3 Third Supplemental Indenture relating to our SeiNotes by and between us, the Guarantors namesirif
the Subsidiary Guarantor named therein and SunBask, dated as of May 1, 2006, filed as an exhd
our Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 3, 200Be(No. 00109195), is incorporated by referer
herein.

4.4 Fourth Supplemental Indenture relating to our SeNimtes by and between us, the Guarantors namegir
and U.S. Bank National Association, dated as ofévaver 9, 2006, filed as an exhibit to our Curreapét
on Form 8-K dated November 13, 2006 (File No. 0019®), is incorporated by reference herein.

4.5 Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated August 17, 208lating to our Senior Notes by and between hus
Guarantors, and the Trustee, filed as an exhib@uoCurrent Report on Formi8-dated August 22, 20(
(File No. 001-09195), is incorporated by referehegein.

4.6 Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Januarg2@®L2, relating to our Senior Notes by and betwes
the Guarantors and the Trustee, filed as an exoilitir Current Report on Form 8-K dated Februa30a2
(File No. 001-09195), is incorporated by referehegein.

4.7 Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Jaddar3013, relating to our Senior Notes by and agngs;
the Guarantors and the Trustee, filed as an exoilmtir Current Report on Formk8édated January 11, 20
(File No. 001-09195), is incorporated by refereheesin.

4.8 Specimen of 5 3/4% Senior Notes due 2014, filedrasxhibit to our Registration Statement No. 333751l
on Form S-4, is incorporated by reference herein.

4.9 Specimen of 5 7/8% Senior Notes due 2015, filedragxhibit to our Current Report on ForniK8datec
December 15, 2004 (File No. 001-09195), is incaapext by reference herein.

4.10 Form of officers’ certificates and guarantocgrtificates establishing the terms of the 5 7/8%i& Note:
due 2015, filed as an exhibit to our Current ReportForm 8-K dated December 15, 2004 (File No. 001-
09195), is incorporated by reference herein.

4.11 Specimen of 6 1/4% Senior Notes due 2015, filedra®xhibit to our Current Report on FornK8datec
June 2, 2005 (File No. 001-09195), is incorpordtgdeference herein.

4.12 Form of officers’ certificates and guarantocgrtificates establishing the terms of the 6 1/486i& Note:
due 2015, filed as an exhibit to our Current Reporf-orm 8-K dated June 2, 2005 (File No. @®1-95), is
incorporated by reference herein.



4.13

4.14

4.15

Specimen of 6 1/4% Senior Notes due 2015, filednagxhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated
June 27, 2005 (File No. 001-09195), is incorporétedeference herein.

Form of officers’ certificates and guarantocgrtificates establishing the terms of the 6 1/486i& Note:
due 2015, filed as an exhibit to our Current ReparfForm 8-K dated June 27, 2005 (File No. 09195), is
incorporated by reference herein.

Specimen of 7 1/4% Senior Notes due 2018, filediraexhibit to our Current Report on FornkK8datec
April 3, 2006 (File No. 001-09195), is incorporategreference herein.
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4.16 Form of officers’ certificates and guarantocgrtificates establishing the terms of the 7 1/486i& Note:
due 2018, filed as an exhibit to our Current Reporform 8-K dated April 3, 2006 (File No. 002495), i¢
incorporated by reference herein.

4.17 Specimen of 9.100% Senior Notes due 2017, fileghasxhibit to our Current Report on FornK&ated Jul
30, 2009 (File No. 001-09195), is incorporated &fgrence herein.

4.18 Form of officers’ certificates and guarantocgrtificates establishing the terms of the 9.10084i& Note:
due 2017, filed as an exhibit to our Current ReparForm 8-K dated July 30, 2009 (File No. (I¥195), is
incorporated by reference herein.

4.19 Specimen of 8.00% Senior Notes due 2020, filedragxibit to our Current Report on Fornk8eatec
February 7, 2012 (File No. 001-09195), is incorpenleby reference herein.

4.20 Form of officers’ certificates and guarantoesttificates establishing the terms of the 8.00%i@eNotes du
2020, filed as an exhibit to our Current Reportr@nm 8-K dated February 7, 2012 (File No. @®IE95), is
incorporated by reference herein.

4.21 Specimen of 7.50% Senior Notes due 2022, filednasxaibit to our Current Report on Fornk8dated Julh
31, 2012 (File No. 001-09195), is incorporated &fgrence herein.

4.22 Form of officers’ certificates and guarantoesttificates establishing the terms of the 7.50%i@eNotes du
2022, filed as an exhibit to our Current ReportForm 8-K dated July 31, 2012 (File No. 009195), is
incorporated by reference herein.

10.1* Kaufman and Broad, Inc. Executive Deferred Compémsalan, effective as of July 11, 1985, filedaa
exhibit to our 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K éANo. 001-09195), is incorporated by referenceihere

10.2* Amendment to Kaufman and Broad, Inc. Executive Bete Compensation Plan for amounts earne
vested on or after January 1, 2005, effective Jgriia2009, filed as an exhibit to our 2008 AnnRalport or
Form 10-K (File No. 001-09195), is incorporatedrbference herein.

10.3* KB Home 1988 Employee Stock Plan, as amended atated on October 2, 2008, filed as an exhibitux
2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-091 $5incorporated by reference herein.

10.4* Kaufman and Broad Home Corporation Directde@ferred Compensation Plan established effectivef
July 27, 1989, filed as an exhibit to our 2007 Aan®Report on Form 10-K (File No. 0@B195), i¢
incorporated by reference herein.

10.5* KB Home Performanc8ased Incentive Plan for Senior Management, as detkand restated on Octobe
2008, filed as an exhibit to our 2008 Annual ReportForm 10-K (File No. 0009195), is incorporated |
reference herein.

10.6* Form of Stock Option Agreement under KB Home PenfmceBased Incentive Plan for Sen
Management, filed as an exhibit to our 1995 AnnRajport on Form 10-K (File No. 0009195), it
incorporated by reference herein.

10.7* KB Home 1998 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended esigited on October 2, 2008, filed as an exhibdtux
2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-091 $5incorporated by reference herein.

10.8 KB Home Directors’Legacy Program, as amended January 1, 1999, flexhaxhibit to our 1998 Annt
Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-09195), is inamgted by reference herein.

10.9 Trust Agreement between Kaufman and Broad Home @atipn and Wachovia Bank, N.A. as Trus
dated as of August 27, 1999, filed as an exhibibuo 1999 Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-



10.10*

10.11*

09195), is incorporated by reference herein.

Amended and Restated KB Home 1999 Incentive Plianezended and restated on October 2, 2008, fil
an exhibit to our 2008 Annual Report on Form 10fKlg No. 00109195), is incorporated by referer
herein.

Form of NonQualified Stock Option Agreement under our Amended Restated 1999 Incentive Plan, f
as an exhibit to our 2011 Annual Report on FornKl(rile No. 00109195), is incorporated by referer
herein.

115




Table of Contents

Exhibit
Number

Description

Sequential
Page
Number

10.12*

10.13*

10.14*

10.15*

10.16*

10.17*

10.18*

10.19*

10.20*

10.21*

10.22*

10.23*

10.24*

10.25*

10.26*

10.27*

10.28*

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement under our Amdnded Restated 1999 Incentive Plan, filed a
exhibit to our 2011 Annual Report on Form 10-K éANo. 001-09195), is incorporated by referenceihere

KB Home 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended estdted on October 2, 2008, filed as an exhibaux
2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-091%6incorporated by reference herein.

Form of Stock Option Agreement under our 2001 Stackntive Plan, filed as an exhibit to our 2011nAal
Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-09195), is inamgted by reference herein.

Form of Stock Restriction Agreement under our 28ddck Incentive Plan, filed as an exhibit to oud 2
Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-09195)inisorporated by reference herein.

KB Home Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Planhwiéspect to deferrals prior to January 1, 2
effective March 1, 2001, filed as an exhibit to @001 Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 009195), is
incorporated by reference herein.

KB Home Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plarhwéspect to deferrals on and after January 1, ,.
effective January 1, 2009 (File No. 001-09195gdibs an exhibit to our 2008 Annual Report on FboHK,
is incorporated by reference herein.

KB Home Change in Control Severance Plan, as andeade restated effective January 1, 2009, filedn
exhibit to our 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K éANo. 001-09195), is incorporated by referenceihere

KB Home Death Benefit Only Plan, filed as an exhtbi our 2001 Annual Report on Form KO¢File No.
001-09195), is incorporated by reference herein.

Amendment No. 1 to the KB Home Death Benefit OnlgnP effective as of January 1, 2009, filed a:
exhibit to our 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K éANo. 001-09195), is incorporated by referenceihere

KB Home Retirement Plan, as amended and restaftectieé January 1, 2009, filed as an exhibit to 2008
Annual Report on Form 10-K (File No. 001-09195)inisorporated by reference herein.

Employment Agreement of Jeffrey T. Mezger, datebtr&ary 28, 2007, filed as an exhibit to our Cur
Report on Form 8-K dated March 6, 2007 (File NdL.-09195), is incorporated by reference herein.

Amendment to the Employment Agreement of JeffreyMezger, dated December 24, 2008, filed a
exhibit to our 2008 Annual Report on Form 10-K éANo. 001-09195), is incorporated by referenceihere

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the Employnfagreement between us and Jeffrey T. Mezger ¢
as of February 28, 2007, filed as an exhibit to ©@urrent Report on Form IB-dated July 18, 2007 (File N
001-09195), is incorporated by reference herein.

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the AmendetiRestated 1999 Incentive Plan for stock optiomt
to Jeffrey T. Mezger, filed as an exhibit to our a@erly Report on Form 1Q- for the quarter endt
August 31, 2007 (File No. 001-09195), is incorpeddlby reference herein.

Policy Regarding Stockholder Approval of Certairv&ance Payments, adopted July 10, 2008, filedh
exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K datedyJi, 2008 (File No. 0009195), is incorporated |
reference herein.

KB Home Executive Severance Plan, filed as an éxtulour Quarterly Report on Form ID{for the quarte
ended August 31, 2008 (File No. 001-09195), isiipotated by reference herein.

Form of Fiscal Year 2009 Phantom Shares Agreerfilatt,as an exhibit to our Current Report on Fori 8
dAatad Nrtnhar 8 2NNR (Fila NIn (-NQ10RK) ic inrnrnnratad hv rafaranra har



10.29* KB Home Annual Incentive Plan for Executive Offisgfiled as Attachment C to our Proxy Statemer
Schedule 14A for the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stod#tbs (File No. 00139195), is incorporated |
reference herein.

10.30 Amendment to Trust Agreement by and between KB Hameé Wachovia Bank, N.A., dated August
2009, filed as an exhibit to our Quarterly RepartForm 10€ for the quarter ended August 31, 2009 (
No. 001-09195), is incorporated by reference herein
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10.31

10.32

10.33*

10.34*

10.35*

10.36*

10.37*

10.38*

10.39*

10.40

10.41*

10.42*

10.43*%

10.44*%

10.45*F

12.1t

217

237

Amended and Restated KB Home NBmployee Directors Compensation Plan, effectivefatuly 9, 2009
filed as an exhibit to our 2009 Annual Report onrrrd0-K (File No. 00189195), is incorporated |
reference herein.

Form of Indemnification Agreement, filed as an é&xhto our Current Report on Formk3-dated April 2
2010 (File No. 001-09195), is incorporated by refee herein.

KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan, filed as anibikhto our Quarterly Report on Form ID-for the
quarter ended February 28, 2010 (File No. 001-0948%ncorporated by reference herein.

Form of Stock Option Award Agreement under the K&t 2010 Equity Incentive Plan, filed as an exl
to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 2Q,@2(File No. 00109195), is incorporated by referel
herein.

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement under Kile Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan, filed as
exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K datedyJ20, 2010 (File No. 0009195), is incorporated |
reference herein.

Form of Fiscal Year 2011 Restricted Cash Award Agrent, filed as an exhibit to our Current Repor
Form 8-K dated October 13, 2010 (File No. 001-091B5ncorporated by reference herein.

KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan Stock Option égment for performance stock option grant to Jg
T. Mezger, filed as an exhibit to our 2010 AnnuapBrt on Form 10-K (File No. 0009195), is incorporate
by reference herein.

Amendment to the KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Pfded as an exhibit to our Quarterly Report onrk
10-Q for the quarter ended February 28, 2011 (#fde001-09195), is incorporated by reference herein

Executive Severance Benefit Decisions, filed asdmbit to our Quarterly Report on Form Ofor the
quarter ended February 28, 2011 (File No. 001-0948%ncorporated by reference herein.

Consensual agreement effective June 10, 2011, ddeain exhibit to our Quarterly Report on FormQ.@r
the quarter ended August 31, 2011 (File No. 001989 1is incorporated by reference herein.

Form of 2010 Equity Incentive Plan Performance Caslard Agreement, filed as an exhibit to our Cut
Report on Form 8-K dated October 12, 2011 (File 081.-09195), is incorporated by reference herein.

KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan Stock Option égment for performance stock option grant to Jg
T. Mezger, filed as an exhibit to our 2011 AnnuabpBrt on Form 10-K (File No. 0009195), is incorporate
by reference herein.

Form of KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan PerfonoexBased Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement.

KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan Performamased Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement
performance-based restricted stock unit awardffceyel. Mezger.

Form of KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan Res&itStock Award Agreement.
Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.
Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.



311t

31.2t

32.11

32.2t

Certification of Jeffrey T. Mezger, President antdhie® Executive Officer of KB Home Pursuant
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Jeff J. Kaminski, Executive Viced8ident and Chief Financial Officer of KB Home Suan
to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Jeffrey T. Mezger, President anuief Executive Officer of KB Home Pursuant to 1&LC.
Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 9@igGecarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Jeff J. Kaminski, Executive Viced3ident and Chief Financial Officer of KB Home Suan
to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuanettic 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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The following materials from KB Home’s Annual Repan Form 10K for the year ended November :
2012, formatted in eXtensible Business Reportingiguage (XBRL): (i) Consolidated Statements
Operations for the years ended November 30, 200P] 2nd 2010, (ii) Consolidated Balance Sheetsf
November 30, 2012 and 2011, (iii) Consolidated edtents of Stockholder€quity for the years end:
November 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, (iv) Consolidef¢atements of Cash Flows for the years e
November 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010, and (v) the Not€onsolidated Financial Statements.

* Management contract or compensatory plan or gearent in which executive officers are eligiblgtoticipate.
T Document filed with this Form 10-K.
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EXHIBIT 10.43

KB HOME
2010 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN
PERFORMANCE-BASED RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREE MENT

This Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Awisgreement (this “Agreement”) is made on [DATE] (‘@ Date”)
between KB Home, a Delaware corporation (the “Camgfya and [NAME] (“Employee”).Capitalized terms used in this Agreen
and not defined herein have the respective meagjrgs to them in the KB Home 2010 Equity IncentRlan (“Plan”).

AGREEMENT

1. Award . Subject to the terms of the Plan and this AgreenteatCompany hereby awards to Employee (the “Aljyard
a target number of [NUMBER] performance-based Rastt Stock Units (the “Target Restricted Stockte/i Except as otherwis
set forth in the Plan or this Agreement, (i) theakd/represents the right to receive a percentagedfarget Restricted Stock Un
upon vesting thereof (the “Award Shares”), withtedevard Share representing the right to receive(@h&hare of Common Stock
of the Company, and (ii) unless and until the Awlaad vested in accordance with the terms of thi:ément, Employee shall not
have any right to the issuance or delivery of angr8s underlying the applicable Award Shares, mht as a stockholder with
respect to such Shares, or any other considernati@spect of the Award or the applicable Awardr8kaA copy of the Plan is
attached hereto and/or is available upon requedtisamade a part hereof.

2. Vesting and Delivery of Award. The Award will vest based on satisfaction of thefgenance conditions and the
other terms set forth in Attachmenttéthis Agreement as determined by the Committeesisole discretion, which determination
will be made on a date (“Determination Date”) tisaho later than ninety (90) days after the enthefPerformance Period (as
defined in_Attachment A, subject to Employee's being employed from thenGDate through to and including the Determination
Date by the Company or any “subsidiary corporatias’tiefined in Section 424(f) of the Code and aplieable regulations
promulgated thereunder or any other entity of wiachajority of the outstanding voting stock or ngtpower is beneficially ownt
directly or indirectly by the Company (each, a “Sigltary”). Subject to the terms of the Plan and thgreement, the Shares
corresponding to the portion of the Award that sdwtreunder shall be delivered directly or indlyelt Employee within thirty (3(
days following the Determination Date.

3. _Forfeiture of Award . Employee will immediately forfeit all rights, titlend interests in and to any and all of the
Award, without any consideration, that is unvesiadhe date Employee experiences a Terminatiorefi& other than a
Retirement that occurs no earlier than one year #fe Grant Date. Such forfeiture of the Award ali§o result in Employee
immediately forfeiting any and all right to paymeftany corresponding Dividend Equivalent (as dediim Section 4). The
Committee, in its discretion, may accelerate thstimg under this Agreement for some or all of thea#d at any time, subject to t
limitations on acceleration set forth in the Pldiso accelerated, vesting will occur upon the omence of the condition specified
by the Committee. If Employee Retires on a datedbeurs one year after the Grant Date or laterpind to the Determination
Date, Employee will be eligible to receive onlyttbarcentage of applicable Award Shares and Divdeguivalent amount that
Employee would otherwise be eligible to receivearrttiis Agreement had Employee remained employedigh the
Determination Date that is equal to the ratio ef tlumber of full calendar months Employee was eyguldy the Company or a
Subsidiary (whether as an employee or otherwisghguhe Performance Period and the number otciléndar months in the
Performance Period; provided that Employee wiltdiirentirely such eligibility, without considerati, if Employee is employed in
any capacity at any time prior to the Determinafdmte by a competitor of the Company, includinghaiit limitation any
subsidiary or affiliate of any such competitor. Boese purposes, the Company will have




the sole right to determine whether Employee isleygul by a competitor or any subsidiary or afféidlhereof.

4. _Crediting and Payment of Dividend Equivalets . Employee will be credited with an amount (thevidend
Equivalent”) equal to the number of Target RestdcEtock Units multiplied by the amount per Shdrany cash dividends
declared by the Board on the outstanding Sharaadsvhen declared with a record date during thegdreginning on the Grant
Date and ending on the Determination Date, orifier, the date on which Employee forfeits anyested Award. The Company
will pay in cash to Employee an amount equal toDhédend Equivalents credited to Employee mulégliby the ratio of (a) the
applicable Award Shares Employee is eligible tenez as determined pursuant to Attachmemaind (b) the Target Restricted St
Units, as promptly as may be practicable, butnyn event, no later than the 15th day of the thiahth following the end of the fir
taxable year in which the Determination Date occurs

5. Additional Terms and Adjustments. This Award is made subject to all of the terms aonditions of the Plan,
including without limitation any terms, rules, cgtdrminations made by the Committee pursuant tauitisority under the Plan and
Plan provisions on adjustment of awards, non-texasility, satisfaction of tax requirements and pbance with other laws.

6. _Additional Restrictions. The Company may impose such restrictions, condit@rimitations as it determines
appropriate as to the timing and manner of anyleesa other transfers of any applicable Award 8gaincluding without
limitation (a) restrictions under an insider traglior other Company policy, (b) restrictions des@jteedelay and/or coordinate the
timing and manner of sales by Employee and otl#li®fing a public offering of the Company's sedest (c) stock ownership or
holding requirements and (d) the required usesgexified brokerage firm for such resales or ottsersfers.

7. California Law . This Agreement will be construed, administered anfrced in accordance with the laws of the
State of California.

8. _Compliance With Laws. Employee acknowledges that the Plan and thisekgeat are subject to compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations, the rules of amguBities Exchange, and to such approvals by atindi, regulatory or
governmental authority as may, in the opinion afresel for the Company, be necessary or advisaklderinection therewith. The
applicable Award Shares will be subject to suclrieins, and Employee will, if requested by then@pany, provide such
assurances and representations to the Compang &othpany may deem necessary or desirable to assuggiance with all
applicable legal requirements. To the extent peechiby applicable law, the Plan and this Agreemgihbe deemed amended to
the extent necessary to conform to any applicaies| rules and regulations.

9. _Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire agreemenuadeérstanding of the parties with respect tc
subject matter of this Agreement, and supersedi@siat and contemporaneous oral and written agesgsiand understandings
relating to such subject matter. Employee agreég toound by the terms and conditions of this Agiexa and of the Plan, and that
in the event of any conflict between this Agreereerd the terms of the Plan, the terms of the Piliiprevail. All designations,
determinations, interpretations, and other decssiomder or with respect to this Agreement or theafwill be within the sole
discretion of the Committee, may be made at ang &imd will be final, conclusive, and binding updirPersons (as defined belo
including, but not limited to, the Company, any Sidiary, Employee, any stockholder and any empl@fdbe Company or any
Subsidiary. EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THATHE COMMITTEE SHALL ADMINISTER THIS




AGREEMENT AND THE AWARD, AND THAT EMPLOYEE IS BOUNIDBY, AND THE AWARD IS SUBJECT TO, ANY
TERMS, RULES OR DETERMINATIONS MADE BY THE COMMITTE.

10. _NonTransferability . The Award may not be sold, pledged, assigned osteared in any manner other than as
permitted by the Plan or this Agreement.

11. _No Obligation. Neither the execution and delivery hereof nor gsaance of the Award will confer upon Employee
any right to be employed or engaged in any capagithe Company or any Affiliate, or to continuesimch employment or
engagement, or will interfere with or restrict imyavay the rights of the Company and any Affiliakdich rights are hereby
expressly reserved, to discharge Employee at arg. ti

12. _Notice. Any notice given hereunder to the Company wilbBbleressed to the Company at its corporate heaegsiar
attention Senior Vice President, Human Resourgebsaay notice given hereunder to Employee will iérassed to Employee at
Employee's address as shown on the records ofdhmgpény.

13. _Section 409A This Agreement will be interpreted in accordanwith Section 409A of the Code, to the extent
applicable, including without limitation any Treaguregulations or other Department of Treasury gugd that may be issued or
amended after the date hereof, and will not be dertor modified in any manner that would causeAlgieement to violate the
requirements of Section 409A. If, following the el&iereof, the Committee determines that the Awaad be subject to Section
409A, including such Department of Treasury guidaas may be issued after the date hereof, the Cib@ennnay, in its discretion,
adopt such amendments to this Agreement or adchtaher policies and procedures (including amemispgolicies and
procedures with retroactive effect), or take arheotactions, as the Committee determines are reyessappropriate to (i) exempt
the Award from Section 409A and/or preserve therided tax treatment of the benefits provided wapect to the Award, or (i)
comply with the requirements of Section 409A. Neéhsianding anything to the contrary in the Plaindhis Agreement, Employ:
agrees that Employee will be solely responsibldHersatisfaction of all taxes, interest and pérsmthat may be imposed on
Employee or for Employee's account in connectiath wiis Award (including without limitation any tag, interest and penalties
under Section 409A), and neither the Company soiftiliates will have any obligation to reimburgademnify or otherwise hold
Employee harmless from any or all of such taxder@st or penalties.

14. _RescissionThis Agreement and the Award will be subjectdscission by the Company if an original of this
Agreement executed by Employee is not receivedéyCompany within four weeks of the agreementiblistion date.

15. _Term. Upon forfeiture of all of Employee's rights, titkend interests in and to any and all of the Awarspant to
Section 3 above, this Agreement will terminate baaf no further force or effect.

16. _General If any provision of this Agreement is or becomessateemed to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceablany
jurisdiction or as to Employee or the Award, or Webdisqualify the Award under any law deemed agllle by the Committe:
such provision will be construed or deemed amendednform to the applicable laws, or if it canbetconstrued or deemed
amended without, in the determination of the Corteritmaterially altering the intent of this Agreemesuch provision will be
stricken as to such jurisdiction, and the remairdéhis Agreement will remain in full force andedt. Headings are given to the
Sections and




subsections of this Agreement solely as a conveniémfacilitate reference. Such headings willb®deemed in any way material
or relevant to the construction or interpretatiéthis Agreement or any provision thereof and hea event of any conflict, the text
of this Agreement, rather than such titles or hagsli will control.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company, by its duly authed officer, and Employee have executed this Agerd as ¢
the day and year first above written.

KB HOME

Employee:



EXHIBIT 10.44

KB HOME
2010 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN
PERFORMANCE-BASED RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREE MENT

This Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unit Awsgreement (this “Agreement”) is made on Novembe2@®,2 (‘Grant
Date”) between KB Home, a Delaware corporation {®empany”), and Jeffrey T. Mezger (“Employee”).ftalized terms used
in this Agreement and not defined herein have ¢éspective meanings given to them in the KB HomedZBduity Incentive Plan
(“Plan™).

AGREEMENT

1. Award . Subject to the terms of the Plan and this AgreenteatCompany hereby awards to Employee (the “Alyard
a target number of 152,495 performance-based RestrStock Units (the “Target Restricted Stock EMitExcept as otherwise set
forth in the Plan or this Agreement, (i) the Awaeghresents the right to receive a percentage ofdinget Restricted Stock Units
upon vesting thereof (the “Award Shares”), withtedevard Share representing the right to receive(@h&hare of Common Stock
of the Company, and (ii) unless and until the Awlaad vested in accordance with the terms of thieément, Employee shall not
have any right to the issuance or delivery of angr8s underlying the applicable Award Shares, mht as a stockholder with
respect to such Shares, or any other considernati@spect of the Award or the applicable Awardr8kaA copy of the Plan is
attached hereto and/or is available upon requedtisamade a part hereof.

2. Vesting and Delivery of Award. The Award will vest based on satisfaction of th&fqgrenance conditions and the
other terms set forth in Attachmenttéthis Agreement as determined by the Committetsisole discretion, which determination
will be made on a date (“Determination Date”) tisaho later than ninety (90) days after the enthefPerformance Period (as
defined in_Attachment A, subject to Employee's being employed from thenGDate through to and including the Determination
Date by the Company or any “subsidiary corporatias’tiefined in Section 424(f) of the Code and aplieable regulations
promulgated thereunder or any other entity of whiachajority of the outstanding voting stock or ngtpower is beneficially ownt
directly or indirectly by the Company (each, a “Sigltary”). Subject to the terms of the Plan and thgreement, the Shares
corresponding to the portion of the Award that sdwtreunder shall be delivered directly or indlyelt Employee within thirty (3(
days following the Determination Date.

3. _Forfeiture of Award . Subject to the terms of Employee's Employment Agesg dated as of February 28, 2007,
Employee will immediately forfeit all rights, titlend interests in and to any and all of the Awaiithout any consideration, that is
unvested on the date Employee experiences a Tdrarniraf Service other than a Retirement that ocaorearlier than one year
after the Grant Date. Such forfeiture of the Awailll also result in Employee immediately forfeitirgny and all right to payment
any corresponding Dividend Equivalent (as defime8éction 4). The Committee, in its discretion, raagelerate the vesting under
this Agreement for some or all of the Award at &ime, subject to the limitations on accelerationfegh in the Plan. If so
accelerated, vesting will occur upon the occurresfdbe condition specified by the Committee. If loyee Retires on a date that
occurs one year after the Grant Date or later aiad {o the Determination Date, Employee will bgyigle to receive only that
percentage of applicable Award Shares and Dividegqulvalent amount that Employee would otherwiseligble to receive unde
this Agreement had Employee remained employed girdle Determination Date that is equal to theratithe number of full
calendar months Employee was employed by the Coynpaa Subsidiary (whether as an employee or ofisejvduring the
Performance Period and the number of full calenaamths in the Performance Period; provided thatlByse will forfeit entirely
such eligibility, without consideration, if Emplogés employed in any capacity at any time priathi Determination Date by a
competitor of the Company, including without lintitm any subsidiary or affiliate of any such conijget For these purposes, the
Company will have




the sole right to determine whether Employee isleygul by a competitor or any subsidiary or afféidlhereof.

4. _Crediting and Payment of Dividend Equivalets . Employee will be credited with an amount (thevidend
Equivalent”) equal to the number of Target RestdcEtock Units multiplied by the amount per Shdrany cash dividends
declared by the Board on the outstanding Sharaadsvhen declared with a record date during thegdreginning on the Grant
Date and ending on the Determination Date, orifier, the date on which Employee forfeits anyested Award. The Company
will pay in cash to Employee an amount equal toDhédend Equivalents credited to Employee mulégliby the ratio of (a) the
applicable Award Shares Employee is eligible tenez as determined pursuant to Attachmemaind (b) the Target Restricted St
Units, as promptly as may be practicable, butnyn event, no later than the 15th day of the thiahth following the end of the fir
taxable year in which the Determination Date occurs

5. _Additional Terms and Adjustments. This Award is made subject to all of the terms aeonditions of the Plan,
including without limitation any terms, rules, cgtdrminations made by the Committee pursuant tauitisority under the Plan and
Plan provisions on adjustment of awards, non-terasility, satisfaction of tax requirements and ptiamce with other laws.

6. _Additional Restrictions. The Company may impose such restrictions, condit@mrimitations as it determines
appropriate as to the timing and manner of anyleéesa other transfers of any applicable Award 8baincluding without
limitation (a) restrictions under an insider traglior other Company policy, (b) restrictions desijteedelay and/or coordinate the
timing and manner of sales by Employee and otladi®Afing a public offering of the Company's sedest (c) stock ownership or
holding requirements and (d) the required usesgexified brokerage firm for such resales or ottsersfers.

7. _California Law . This Agreement will be construed, administered emfbrced in accordance with the laws of the ¢
of California.

8. _Compliance With Laws. Employee acknowledges that the Plan and thisekgeat are subject to compliance witk
applicable laws and regulations, the rules of amguBities Exchange, and to such approvals by atindi, regulatory or
governmental authority as may, in the opinion afregel for the Company, be necessary or advisalderinection therewith. The
applicable Award Shares will be subject to suclrieins, and Employee will, if requested by then@hany, provide such
assurances and representations to the Compang &othpany may deem necessary or desirable to assuggiance with all
applicable legal requirements. To the extent peechiby applicable law, the Plan and this Agreemgihbe deemed amended to
the extent necessary to conform to any applicaies| rules and regulations.

9. _Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire agreemenuanérstanding of the parties with respect tc
subject matter of this Agreement, and supersedigsiat and contemporaneous oral and written agesgsiand understandings
relating to such subject matter. Employee agreég toound by the terms and conditions of this Agwe® and of the Plan, and that
in the event of any conflict between this Agreenamd the terms of the Plan, the terms of the Piliiprevail. All designations,
determinations, interpretations, and other decssiomder or with respect to this Agreement or theafwill be within the sole
discretion of the Committee, may be made at ang &imd will be final, conclusive, and binding updirPersons (as defined belo
including, but not limited to, the Company, any Sidiary, Employee, any stockholder and any empla@féke Company or any
Subsidiary. EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THATHE COMMITTEE SHALL ADMINISTER THIS




AGREEMENT AND THE AWARD, AND THAT EMPLOYEE IS BOUNIBY, AND THE AWARD IS SUBJECT TO, ANY
TERMS, RULES OR DETERMINATIONS MADE BY THE COMMITTE.

10. _NonTransferability . The Award may not be sold, pledged, assigned osteared in any manner other than as
permitted by the Plan or this Agreement.

11. _No Obligation. Neither the execution and delivery hereof nor fiseiance of the Award will confer upon Employee
any right to be employed or engaged in any capagithe Company or any Affiliate, or to continuesimch employment or
engagement, or will interfere with or restrict imyavay the rights of the Company and any Affiliakdich rights are hereby
expressly reserved, to discharge Employee at arg. ti

12. _Notice. Any notice given hereunder to the Company wilbBbleressed to the Company at its corporate heaegsiar
attention Senior Vice President, Human Resourgebsaay notice given hereunder to Employee will iérassed to Employee at
Employee's address as shown on the records ofdhmgpény.

13. _Section 409A This Agreement will be interpreted in accordanith Section 409A of the Code, to the extent
applicable, including without limitation any TreaguRegulations or other Department of Treasury guged that may be issued or
amended after the date hereof, and will not be dertor modified in any manner that would causeAlgieement to violate the
requirements of Section 409A. If, following the el&iereof, the Committee determines that the Awaad be subject to Section
409A, including such Department of Treasury guidaas may be issued after the date hereof, the Cibeenmnay, in its discretion,
adopt such amendments to this Agreement or adoptather policies and procedures (including amemdsygolicies and
procedures with retroactive effect), or take arheotctions, as the Committee determines are reagessappropriate to (i) exempt
the Award from Section 409A and/or preserve therided tax treatment of the benefits provided wapect to the Award, or (ii)
comply with the requirements of Section 409A. Neéhsianding anything to the contrary in the Plaimndhis Agreement, Employ:
agrees that Employee will be solely responsibldHersatisfaction of all taxes, interest and pérsmthat may be imposed on
Employee or for Employee's account in connectiaih wriis Award (including without limitation any tag, interest and penalties
under Section 409A), and neither the Company soifiiliates will have any obligation to reimburgademnify or otherwise hold
Employee harmless from any or all of such taxesr@st or penalties.

14. _RescissionThis Agreement and the Award will be subjectdscission by the Company if an original of this
Agreement executed by Employee is not receivedhéyCompany within four weeks of the agreementidigtion date.

15. _Term. Upon forfeiture of all of Employee's rights, titknd interests in and to any and all of the Awangpant to
Section 3 above, this Agreement will terminate badaf no further force or effect.

16. _General If any provision of this Agreement is or becomessateemed to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceablany
jurisdiction or as to Employee or the Award, or Webdisqualify the Award under any law deemed agllle by the Committe:
such provision will be construed or deemed amendednform to the applicable laws, or if it canbetconstrued or deemed
amended without, in the determination of the Cortewitmaterially altering the intent of this Agreemeuch provision will be
stricken as to such jurisdiction, and the remaimdéhis Agreement will remain in full force andaft. Headings are given to the
Sections and




subsections of this Agreement solely as a converiémfacilitate reference. Such headings willl®tdeemed in any way material

or relevant to the construction or interpretatiéthis Agreement or any provision thereof and hie évent of any conflict, the text
of this Agreement, rather than such titles or hagsli will control.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company, by its duly authed officer, and Employee have executed this Agesd as ¢
the day and year first above written.

KB HOME

Employee:

/sl JEFFREY T. MEZGER



EXHIBIT 10.45

KB HOME
2010 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN
RESTRICTED STOCK AGREEMENT

This Restricted Stock Agreement (“Agreement”) isdaman [DATE] (“Award Date”)by and between KB Home.
Delaware corporation (“Company”), and [NAME] (“H@d). Capitalized terms used in this Agreement and nbheld
herein have the respective meanings given to thetmei KB Home 2010 Equity Incentive Plan (“Plan”).

AGREEMENT
1. Award . Subject to the terms of the Plan and this AgreenmbatCompany hereby awards to Holde
aggregate of [# SHARES] shares of Common StockGspar value per share, of the Company (the “AwjaiEkcept a
provided in this Agreement, the shares of CommaciSsubject to the Award (“Award Sharesgnnot be transferred
any manner. A copy of the Plan is attached henetidoa is available upon request, and is made ahgseof.

2. Lapse of Transferability Restrictions (Vesting & Award) . Subject to Section 3 below,
transferability restrictions imposed by this Agresrhand the Plan on the Award Shares will lapseé the Award Shan
will become freely tradable, according to the follog vesting schedule:

Shares Subject to Lapse of

On Transferability Restrictions
November 8, 2013 33 1/3% of Grant
November 8, 2014 an additiona 33 1/3% of Grant
November 8, 2015 an additiona 33 1/3% of Grant

3. _Forfeiture of Award Shares. Holder will immediately forfeit all rights, titleral interests in and to
Award Shares that are subject to transferabilistrietions under this Agreement on the date Holebgoeriences
Termination of Service. The Committee, in its ditimm, may accelerate the lapsing of the transfisalpestrictions
under this Agreement for some or all of the Awaldi®s at any time, subject to the limitations ocesaration set for
in the Plan. If and to the extent so acceleratbd, ttansferability restrictions will lapse as oktdate or upon tl
occurrence of the condition specified by the Cortesit

4. Delivery of Award Shares; TaxesSubject to the Company's right under the PlandcorceAward Shares
the Company's books in uncertificated form, the @any will deliver to Holder stock certificate(s)presenting thos
Award Shares as to which transferability restritsichave lapsed in accordance with this Agreemenscasm a
practicable after any such lapse, provided thatelohas paid to the Company the amount of any tdee€ompany
required to withhold in connection with any suclpda. At Holder's discretion, Holder may direct thempany t
withhold Award Shares to satisfy any tax withholgliobligation that may arise upon the lapse of fexability
restrictions as provided under this Agreement. dfdér makes an election under Section 83(b) ofGbde to be taxe
with respect to the Award as of




the Award Date rather than as of the date any feeasility restrictions lapse or the date upon wahidolder woult
otherwise be taxed under Section 83(a) of the Célidder must deliver a copy of such election to @empan
promptly after filing such election with the IntatrRevenue Service.

5. _Dividends. Cash dividends or other cash distributions paisioim respect of shares of Common Stoc
the Company that are not restricted and are fraehdeable (“Unrestricted SharesWill be equally an
contemporaneously paid to Holder on or in respéany Award Shares that are subject to transfatabistriction:
under this Agreement. In addition, any stock oeotimoneash distributions issued on or in respect of Unided Share
will be equally and contemporaneously issued om oespect of such Award Shares, but will be haléscrow and wi
be subject to the transferability restrictions &mdeiture conditions imposed under this Agreenm@miAward Shares.

6. _Additional Terms and Adjustments. This Award is made subject to all of the terms aadditions of th
Plan, including without limitation any terms, rules determinations made by the Committee pursta@its authorit
under the Plan and Plan provisions on adjustmerawafrds, noriransferability, satisfaction of tax requirementx
compliance with other laws.

7. _Additional Restrictions . The Company may impose such restrictions, condition limitations as
determines appropriate as to the timing and maohany resales or other transfers of any Award &has to whic
transferability restrictions have lapsed in accam#awith this Agreement, including without limitati (a) restrictior
under an insider trading or other Company poli®),réstrictions designed to delay and/or coordirtagetiming an
manner of sales by Holder and others following Blipwffering of the Company's stock, (c) stock @nsghip or holdin
requirements and (d) the required use of a spddiiiekerage firm for such resales or other trassfer

8. _California Law . This Agreement will be construed, administered anfibrced in accordance with the le
of the State of California. This Agreement and Aveard will be subject to rescission by the Comp#ngn execute
original of this Agreement is not received by thentpany within four weeks of the Award Date.

9. _Compliance With Laws. Holder acknowledges that the Plan and this Agre¢mensubject to complian
with all applicable laws and regulations, the rutdsany Securities Exchange, and to such apprawalany listing
regulatory or governmental authority as may, in ¢p&éion of counsel for the Company, be necessargdwisable i
connection therewith. The AwarBhares shall be subject to such restrictions, aoldldd shall, if requested by 1
Company, provide such assurances and represestéidine Company as the Company may deem necessaegirabl
to assure compliance with all applicable legal neuents. To the extent permitted by applicable, llng Plan and th
Agreement will be deemed amended to the extentssacgto conform to any applicable laws, rules ragailations.

10. _Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire agreementusnaigérstanding of the parties w
respect to the subject matter of this Agreement aumpersedes all prior and contemporaneous oralvaitten
agreements and understandings relating to suclkedubjtter. Holder agrees to be bound by the tamdsconditions «
this Agreement and of




the Plan, and that in the event of any conflicinesin this Agreement and the terms of the Planidiras of the Ple
shall prevail.

11. _NonTransferability . The Award may not be sold, pledged, assigned osteared in any manner otl
than as permitted by the Plan or this Agreement.

12. _No Obligation. Neither the execution and delivery hereof nor #saiance of the Award shall confer u
Holder any right to be employed or engaged in aamyacity by the Company or any Affiliate, or to dook in suc
employment or engagement, or shall interfere withiestrict in any way the rights of the Company amy Affiliate,
which rights are hereby expressly reserved, tchdigge Holder at any time.

13. _Notice. Any notice given hereunder to the Company will lolelrassed to the Company at its corpc
headquarters, attention Senior Vice President, hluResources, and any notice given hereunder toddaldll be
addressed to Holder at Holder's address as showhearecords of the Company.

14. _Section 409A The Award is intended to be outside the scope ati@e 409A of the Code, and t
Agreement shall be interpreted in a manner comgistéh such intent. Notwithstanding anything te ttontrary in th
Plan or in this Agreement, Holder agrees that Hosithall be solely responsible for the satisfactibrall taxes, intere
and penalties that may be imposed on Holder oHfader's account in connection with this Award (uting withou
limitation any taxes, interest and penalties urkmtion 409A), and neither the Company nor itslidtiés shall have ai
obligation to reimburse, indemnify or otherwisedblolder harmless from any or all of such taxewrgst or penalties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company, by its duly authed officer, and Holder have executed
Agreement as of the day and year first above writte

KB HOME

HOLDER:



EXHIBIT 12.1

KB HOME
COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES
(In Thousands, Except Ratios)

Years Ended November 30,

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Earnings
Loss from operations before income taxes $ (79,059 $ (181,169 $ (76,36¢) $ (311,18) $ (967,93)
Add:
Interest incurred 132,65 112,03 122,23( 119,60: 156,40:
Amortization of premiums and discounts related 1
debt 3,01¢ 2,15( 2,14¢ 1,58¢ 2,06:
Portion of rent expense considered to be interest 3,09¢ 3,517 4,65¢ 7,507 16,50:
Amortization of previously capitalized interest 78,63( 79,33¢ 95,23¢ 138,17¢ 129,90:
Distribution of earnings from unconsolidated joint
ventures, net of equity in income (loss) 1,51¢ 45,25¢ 19,63¢ 43,26: 157,39
Deduct:
Interest capitalized (62,859 (62,839 (53,929 (67,839 (143,431
Income (loss) as adjusted $ 77,01 $ (1,709 $ 113,62( % (68,887) $ (649,10
Fixed charges
Interest incurred $ 132,65 $ 112,03 % 122,230 % 119,60: $ 156,40:
Amortization of premiums and discounts related to
debt 3,01¢ 2,15( 2,14¢ 1,58¢ 2,06:
Portion of rent expense considered to be interest 3,09¢ 3,517 4,65¢ 7,507 16,50:

$ 138,76¢ $ 117,70 $ 129,03 $ 128,69' $ 174,96

Ratio of earnings to fixed charges — — — — —

Coverage deficiency (a) $ (61,75) $ (119,40) $ (15,41 $ (197,58) $ (824,07)

The ratios of earnings to fixed charges are contpatea consolidated basis.

(&) Earnings for the years ended November 30, 2012,,281110, 2009 and 2008 were insufficient to coverd charges for the period by $6
million, $119.4 million, $15.4 million, $197.6 midin and $824.1 million, respectively.



EXHIBIT 21
KB HOME AND CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
The following subsidiaries* of KB Home were inclutie the November 30, 2012 consolidated finandetesnents:

Percentage of
Voting Securities

Owned by
the Registrant
ora
Subsidiary of
Name of Company/Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Farmation the Registrant
Arizona
KB HOME Phoenix Inc. 100
KB HOME Sales - Phoenix Inc. 100
KB HOME Sales - Tucson Inc. 100
KB HOME Tucson Inc. 100
California
KB HOME Coastal Inc. 100
KB HOME Greater Los Angeles Inc. 100
KB HOME Insurance Agency Inc. 100
KB HOME Sacramento Inc. 100
KB HOME South Bay Inc. 100
Colorado
KB HOME Colorado Inc. 100
Delaware
KB HOME Charlotte Inc. 100
KB HOME DelMarVa LLC 100
KB HOME Florida LLC 100
KB HOME Fort Myers LLC 100
KB HOME Gold Coast LLC 100
KB HOME Gulf Coast Inc. 100
KB HOME Jacksonville LLC 100
KB HOME Maryland LLC 100
KB HOME North Carolina Inc. 100
KB HOME Orlando LLC 100
KB HOME Raleigh-Durham Inc. 100
KB HOME South Carolina Inc. 100
KB HOME Tampa LLC 100
KB HOME Treasure Coast LLC 100
KB HOME Virginia Inc. 100
KB HOME Wisconsin LLC 100
KB Urban Inc. 100
Florida
KB HOME Title Services Inc. 100
lllinois

KB HOME Mortgage Company 100






Percentage of
Voting Securities
Owned by
the Registrant
ora

Subsidiary of

Name of Company/Jurisdiction of Incorporation or Faormation the Registrant
Nevada
KB HOME Las Vegas Inc. 100
KB HOME Nevada Inc. 100
KB HOME Reno Inc. 100
New Mexico
KB HOME New Mexico Inc. 100
Texas
KB HOME Lone Star Inc. 100
KBSA, Inc. 100

* Certain subsidiaries have been omitted from likts These subsidiaries, when considered in ¢figegate as a single subsidiary, do not
constitute a significant subsidiary as defined iheRL-02(w) of Regulation S-X.



EXHIBIT 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference infdllewing Registration Statements:

(1) Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-176@8 KB Home,

(2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 328273) pertaining to the KB Home 1988 Employeeckstelan, the KB Home 19¢
Stock Incentive Plan, the KB Home Performance-Badseédntive Plan for Senior Management, the KB Hadlwn-Employee
Directors Stock Plan, the KB Home 401(k) SavinganPthe KB Home 1999 Incentive Plan, the KB Hom@128tock Incentiv
Plan, certain stock grants and the resale of cestares by officers of the Company,

(3) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-163bértaining to the KB Home 401(k) Savings Plarg a
(4) Registration Statements (Form S-8 No. 333-8&8&ihd Form S-8 No. 333-175601) pertaining to tBeHOme 2010 Equity

Incentive Plan;

of our reports dated January 18, 2013 with resjoettte consolidated financial statements of KB Hpamel the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting of KB Home, included irigiAnnual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended &lober 30, 2012,

Bret ¥ MLLP

Los Angeles, California
January 18, 2013



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jeffrey T. Mezger, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on FornKi®-KB Home

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not cortaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgitate a material fact necessary to n
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeter which such statements were made, not misigadth respect to the period cove
by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements odimer financial information included in this refdairly present in all material respe
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, theégas presented in this report;

4. The registran$ other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesld procedures (as defir
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatetnal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13&(f)
and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a)

b)

<)

d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduressansed such disclosure controls and procedurdsetalesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly durihg fperiod in which this report is being prepared;

Designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggttae reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallypedeaccounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtidis report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #pent based on such evaluation; and

Disclosed in this report any change in thegtegnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrathos
recent fiscal quarter (the registranfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbr® that has materially affected, or is reasoy
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s inted control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdzhon our most recent evaluation of internal @bmtver financial reportin
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitiEthe registrant’s board of directors (or pessperforming the equivalent functions):

a)

b)

Dated

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal controémfinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidfgability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

Any fraud, whether or not material, that innegdvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registramstinterna
control over financial reporting.

January 18, 2013 /sl JEFFREY T. MEZGER

Jeffrey T. Mezger
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jeff J. Kaminski, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on FornKléF KB Home

Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtéde a material fact necessary to n
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeler which such statements were made, not misigadth respect to the period cove
by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$ oéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respe
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, théogls presented in this report;

The registrang’ other certifying officer and | are responsible dstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (as defir
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatetnal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13&(f)
and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedunes;ansed such disclosure controls and procedurdsetalesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly durihg fperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be designed under
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggttae reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements
external purposes in accordance with generallypiedeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtihis report our conclusions about
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees) as of the end of the period covered by #pent based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegtegnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrathos
recent fiscal quarter (the registranfourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annupbr® that has materially affected, or is reasoy
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s inted control over financial reporting; and

The registrang’ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsddhon our most recent evaluation of internal @bmver financial reportin
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitiEthe registrant’s board of directors (or pessperforming the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal controémfinancial reporting which a
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regidfgability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that innedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifiole in the registramstinterna
control over financial reporting.

Dated January 18, 2013 /s! JEFF J. KAMINSKI

Jeff J. Kaminski
Executive Vice President and Chief Financialicaif
(Principal Financial Officer)



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT
TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of KB Homeg(ttCompany”) on Form 10-K for the period ended Naber 30, 2012 (the “Report”),
Jeffrey T. Mezger, President and Chief ExecutivBo®f of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.Ss€ction 1350, as adopted pursual
section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, ihéihe best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementseé€tion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeoA 1934; an

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operations of
Company.

Dated January 18, 2013 /sl JEFFREY T. MEZGER
Jeffrey T. Mezger
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT
TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of KB HomegttCompany”) on Form 10-K for the period ended Nuober 30, 2012 (the “Repoit”
I, Jeff J. Kaminski, Executive Vice President artdef Financial Officer of the Company, certify, puant to 18 U.S.C. section 1350, as adc
pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2062, that to the best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangecA1934; an

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operations of
Company.

Dated January 18, 2013 s/ JEFF J. KAMINSKI
Jeff J. Kaminski
Executive Vice President and Chief Financialicgif
(Principal Financial Officer)




